


Cihola County Commission
Regular Meeting
Thursday December 16t, 2021

The Cibola County Commission held a Regular Meeting on Thursday December 16t 2021 at
5:00 pm in the Cibola County Commission Center

Elected Officials Present Staff

Daniel Torrez, Chairman Kate Fletcher, County Manager
Martha Garcia , 1° Vice Chairman Paul Ludi, Finance Director

Christina Lowery , 2" Vice Chairman Natalie Grine, Deputy Clerk

Raiph Lucero, Commissioner Marisa Baca, Recording & Filing Clerk

Robert Windhorst , Commissioner

1. CALLTO ORDER
Chairman Torrez, called the meeting to Order at 5:00 pm,

2. ROLL CALL
Chairman Torrez does roll call-5-0 all Commissioners in attendance.

3. Pledge of Allegiance

Recited by all. Led by Commissioner Lowery

4. Prayer
Commissioner Windhorst led us in prayer,

5. Approval of Agenda
Motion to approve the agenda made by Commissioner Lucero, second by Commissioner
Lowery, remove item 11. Executive Session continue as directed
5-0 affirmative.
6. Public Comment - NONE
The Public has the opportunity to provide comment on any subject during the public comment
period. Speaker’s comments will be limited to three minutes unless the Board of County
Commissioners requests more information. The time limit is given in an effort to allow public
input but also to move the agenda forward in a prompt yet efficient manner.
7. Minutes
a. Minutes from November 18th, 2021, Regular Commission Meeting
b. Minutes from November 22nd, 2021, Special Commission Meeting
Motion to approve made by Commissioner Windharst second by Commissioner Garcia
5-0 affirmative.
8. Reports
a. Budget and Finance Report- Kate Fletcher-County Manager & Paul Ludi-Finance
Director
b. Public Safety Building Scope of Work Update- Kate Fletcher-County Manager

9. Public Hearing
a. Ordinance 2021-02 Local Economic Development Act {LEDA)

Page 1 of 4



10. New Business
a. Consideration of Resolution 21-66 Premium Pay For Eligible County Employees
Motion to approve made by Commissioner Lucero
Second by Commissioner Lowery
5-0 affirmative,
b. Consideration of Ordinance 2021-02 Local Economic Development Act (LEDA)
Motion to approve made by Commissioner Windhorst
Second by Commissioner Lucero
3-0 affirmative,

c. Consideration to use ARPA funds for a County-Wide Broadband Feasibility
Study
Motion to approve made by Commissioner Lowery
Second by Commissioner Windhorst
5-0 affirmative,

d. Consideration of Resolution 21-67 Supporting the 2022 Legislative Priorities of
the NM Counties
Motion to approve made by Commissioner Garcia
Second by Commissioner Windhorst
5-0 affirmative,

e. Consideration of Resolution 21-68 Requesting Legislature Redraw
District 30 To Preserve Voice of Cibola County
Motion to approve made by Commissioner Lucero
Second by Commissioner Windhorst
5-0 affirmative.
f. Consideration to approve requisitions over $20,000
a. Finley Engineering-Broadband Feasibility Study-$84,530
Motion to approve by Commissioner Lowery Second by Commissioner

Windhorst this was approved with item 10. C.

11._ Executive Session
ITEM REMOVED .

Motion and roll call vote to go into executive session and that, pursuant to New

Mexico State Statute Section 10-15-1, only the following matters will be discussed in closed
session:

Pursuant to Section 10-15-1 (H) the following matters may be discussed in closed session:
g Pending or threatened litigation 10-15-1 (H) (7)
1. Cibola County vs. Jaynes, Inc.
2. Cibola County v. Amerisource Bergen, Cardinal Health, McKesson et al
h. Real Property 10-15-1 (H) (8)
1. Personnel 10-15-1 (H}) (2)
j.  other specific limited topics that are allowed or authorized under the stated statute;
Motion and Roll Call Vote to Return to Regular Session
Motion and Roll Call Vote that Matters Discussed in Closed Session Were Limited To Those

Specified In Motion For Closure, and That No Final Action Was Taken

Page 2 of 4



12. New Business-Action May Be Ta ken

a.  Direction to Staff Regarding Cibola County v, Jaynes, Inc.

b. Direction to Staff Regarding Cibola County v. Amerisource Bergen, Cardinal Health,
McKesson et al

13. Announcements

The Next Commission Meeting will be a Special Commission Meeting which will be held on,
Tuesday, January 11th, 2022, at 5:00p.m. The Cibola County Offices will be closed Thursday,
December 23rd and Friday, December 24th, 2021, in observation of Christmas Holidays and
Thursday, December 30th and Friday, December 31st, 2021, in observation of New Year's
Holidays,

14. Adjournment
5:40pm

Page 3 of 4



PASSED, APPROVED, and ADOPTED this 11% of lanuary, 2022

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Daniel Torrez, Commission Chair

Martha Garcia, 15t Vice Chair

Christine Lowery, 20d Vice Chiar

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

ATTEST:

Date:

Michelle E. Dominguez, Cibola County Clerk

SEAL

Page 4 of 4



As of December 31°Y 2021




Hospital

Quarterly Update




W
General Hospital, Inec. s 4

\_,__:; L

"Healthcare with a hometown touch”

January 21, 2022

Kate Fletcher

County Manager

Cibola County

700 East Roosevelt, Suite 50
Grants, NM 87020

Subject: Mill Levy

Dear Kate:

physician compensation.

The ED has about 10,000 visits per year from residents of Cibola County, surrounding counties
and travelers on I-40 and Route 66 who need urgent and emergent medical care,

The physicians cover the ED 24 hours per day, 365 days per year. All are Board certified, and
most in Emergency Medicine, and they have the experience to address unique medical cases
found in the rural setting as well as trauma.

>

1016 E. Roosevelt, Grants, NM 87020
(505)287-4446 www.cibolahospital.com
Let our family CARE for your family



""\

CIBOLE\

General Hospital, Inc.

\

"Healthcare with a hometown touch"

AGENDA ITEM

DISCUSSION/FINDINGS

CONCLUSIONS/RECOMM,

j ACTION/FOLLOWUP/RESP. |
PARTY |

New
Business/Action
!‘,ﬂkﬁﬂ N

Mill Levy Resolution

b. Psychlatric Nurse Practitioner
¢ Fiscal Year 2027 Goals

a. Motion to approve Mill Levy
Board Resolution, with the
revision of designating the entire
Mill Levy Funds to offset
Emergency Department's !
Physlcians' compensations, made |
by Chase Elkins, Seconded by
Robert Branum. Carrled by way of
acclamation, all inapproval

b. Motion to approve compensation |
andbenefit package for Cibola |
General Hospital Psychiatric
Nurse Practitioner made by
Robert Windhorst, Seconded by
Ron Ortiz. Carvled by way of

acclamation, all in approval, |

<. Mation to approve overarching
Cibola General Hospital fiscal Year
2022 Goals made by Robert
Windhorst, Seconded by Ron
Ortiz. Carried by way of
acclamation, allin approval

Announcements/
| Reminders

Board and Executive Team Advisary Management Workshop

Mr. Whelan

Motion to adjourn made by Robert Windhorst, Seconded by
Ron Ortiz. Motion Carried by way of acclamation, all in

approval,

| Meeting adjourned at 1934,

The Board of Directors will meet
next on Monday, july 27, 2021 at
1730 in the Board Room.

1016 E. Roosevelt, Grants, NM 87020
(505)287-4446 o www. cibolahospital.com
Let our family CARE for your family




Cibola General Hospital
Grants, New Mexico
Report to County of Cibola
FYE 6/30/2022

estimated

L__Qtrended9/30/21 | L__Qtrended12/31/21 ] | YTDFYE6/30/22

Financial Budget Actual | Budget __Actual _
Operating Revenue 9,741,312 10,222,433 10,241,572 10,400,000
Operating Expenses (10,228,720) (10,096,997) (10,418,195) (10,300,000)

Non-Operating Revenue & Expense 118,000 26,675 118,000 250,000
Excess of Revenue over Expense (369,408) 152,111 (58,623) 350,000
Statistical
Beds in Service 25 25 25 25
Inpatient Days 657 661 860 870
Occupancy Rate 28.6% 28.7% 37.4% 37.8%
Admissions 220 193 287 224
Average Length of Stay 3.0 3.4 3.0 3.9
Deliveries 47 36 43 42
Outpatient Visits 4,609 4,103 4,265 6,125
Emergency Department Visits 2,552 2,918 2,596 2,555
Surgical Procedures 315 193 315 220
Paid FTE's 215.3 233.2 215.3 235.3
Bad debt % of charges 3.4% 12.0% 3.4% 4.5%
Indigent Care
County Inmate Care Total 150,000 60,500 150,000 66,625
- CCcc 8,944 27,182
- Cibola County Sheriff 28,162 27,365
- Grants PD 23,394 11,691
- Milan PD 0 387
Mill Levy Funds - Received
2,020 330,000 109,126 330,000 413,600
2,021 390,000 94,101 390,000 23,314
2,022 390,000 75,369 390,000 369,539

Budget Actual

19,982,884 20,622,433
(20,646,915) (20,396,997)

236,000 276,675
(428,031) 502,111
25 25
1,517 1,531
33.0% 33.3%
507 417
3.0 3.7
90 78
8,874 10,228
5,148 5,473
630 413
215.3 234.2
3.3% 8.2%
300,000 127,125
X 36,126
X 55,527
X 35,085
X 387
660,000 522,726
780,000 117,415
780,000 444,908



Presented




Cibola County Road Dept.

700 E. Roosevelt Suite 50

505-285-2570 Phone  505-285 3656 Fax

Grants NM 87020

Monday January 10, 2022

To: Kate Fletcher - County Manager
Fr: Edward Salazar - Road Superintendent
Re: Monthly Repors: 12/01/21 - 12/31/21 (December)

Road

C41
C47
C354
C35D
C10
Cil1
Cci2
9
C49
C29

C48A4
C33
C35
Ci
C354
22
C5
Cci7

Regular Maintenance

Blade & Shape

Description
Pi Town Rd.
Mesa Ridge Rd.
Moreno Hill Rd.

W. Homesiead Rd.
N. Castillo Rd.
Bibo Ranch Rd.
DeArmond Springs Rd.
Water Canyon Rd.
Zuni Canyon Rd.
Plano Colorado
Total Miles

Special Projects

Timberlake Rd. - Haul Millings & base course, repair road, install culvert,

5.350
7.148
10419
2,949
2.500
0.567
0.698
4.095
13.427
2.482
49.635

Cundy Kitchen Rd, - Reosion reapir, fix cattle guard & culvert, fix pot holes, haul base course.

E. Homestead Rd. - Fix culvert.

Marquez Rd. - clean culverts

Moreno Hill Rd, - Fix & put up signs.

Broadview Acres (Thunderbird Rd.) - Fix & put up signs.
Moquino-LaJoya Loop - Add more weight to barrels.

Mt Taylor Addition - Put up deliniator posts.



c7
C8
C47
C4l
C28
€23

C58
C20

C28
C294

c29
49

Cubero-Village Rds. - Check on signs.

Encinal Rd. - Haul dirt, shoulder repair.

Mesa Ridge Rd, - Clean culverts & cattle guards, remove t-posts from bar ditch,
Pie Town Rd - Raise culvert, add 10fi lift.

Bluewater Village - Put up stop signs.

Ralph Card Rd.- Repair speed bumps.

Dig trench at Fencelake Fire Dept.

Hauling base course from C & E.

Sunow Removal

San Rafael,

San Mateo

Bluewater Village

Old Bluewater Lake Rd.
Plano Colorado

Zuni Canyon Rd.
County Complex

County Cattle Guard, Culvert & Bridee Inventory
All County Roads,




Cibola County Road Dept.

700 E. Roosevelt Suite 50
Grants NM 87020

505-285-2570 Phone

Fax 505-287-3656

December 2027
Total Parts & Hours Mechanic Total on Repair
Depariment | Unit Number it Worked Rate Order
Road 138 $ 155.89 4 3 18.40 17429
Road _:_’_’__4__8 $ - 1 s 18#4-40 18-40
Road 151 S 90.09 5 8 18.40 182.09
' TOTAL 27478




Cibola County Road Dept.

515 W. High Street
Grants NM 870620
505-283-2570 Phone

505-287-3656 Fax

FUEL REPORT - CIBOLA COUNTY ROAD DEPARTMENT

December 2021
UNLEADED
UNIT® | VENICLE # | COSBY/MILE MPG RILES TOTAL GAL. | TOTAL COS8Y
127 | G18473 | #VALUEl | #VALUE! NU 0.000 |8 i
128 | G-18464 | #VALUE! | #VALUEI NU 0000 | $ i
130 | G-15638 0.48 6.67 208 31480 | $ 100.01
131 | G29800 | H#VALUE! | #VALUE! NIU 0000 |8 i
133 | G-23696 0.19 17.20 443 26040 | ¢ 26.00
138 | G-95862 0.22 17.96 887 49390 | $ 192.49
139 | G-57384 | #VALUEI | #VALUE! NU 0000 |8 .
140 | G-57619 | HVALUEl | HVALUE! U 0000 | $ i
41 | G57618 0.2 14.43 749 51.900 | $ 167.42
146 146 AVALUE! | #VALUE! NI 0000 |8 i
147 | G-66164 0.37 6.47 67 7914 | $ 25.00
148 | G-66165 0.19 1719 1,486 86.450 | $ 279.98
150 | G-70482 0.24 13.70 922 67.280 | § 218.00
151 | G-78718 0.21 15.34 2265 147700 | $ 484,68
152 | G-64230 017 1847 1,569 84950 | § 274.05
153 | G-86952 0.11 20,50 579 19630 | § 63,00
154 | G-86953 0.14 23.19 1529 65053 | § 212.96
155 | G-86954 | HVALUEI | HVALUE! U 0000 | § :
156 | comonesor | #VALUE! | #VALUEI N 0.000 |8 .
157 | G-91750 0.12 26.26 427 15100 | $ 50.00
TOTAL GAS 653.476 | § 2,153.19




DIESEL FUEL

UNIT # | VENICLE ®# | COST/TIILE MPG MILES TOTAL GAL. | TOTAL COST
137 G-50237 0.49 8.29 94 11340 | § 46,00
209 G-18476 #VALUE! | #VALUE! N 0.000 $ -
212 6-30550 #VALUE! | #VALUE! NIU 0.000 $ -
213 6-30549 #VALUE! | HVALUE! N . 0.000 $ .
214 G-38441 1.16 3.38 189 55921 |$ 219,71
215 G-67372 #VALUE! | #VALUE! N 0.000 $ -
216 G-67371 #VALUE! | #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ .
217 G-70782 0.81 4.98 492 98710 1§ 399.02
218 | Distributor | HVALUE! | #VALUE! NU 0.000 $ .
219 | Water Truck 0.58 7.02 256 26457 |8 149.44
220 | New Transport 0.84 4.76 1,072 225,180 $ 902.77
221 | New Dump Truck 0.67 5.90 2,489 421,868 $ 1,672.64
222 |NewDumpTruck|  0.70 5.71 1,461 256.090 | $ 1,022.83
305 305 #VALUE! | BVALUE! NI 0.000 $ -
306 306 RVALUE! | #VALUE! N/ 0.000 $ .
307 307 28.11 0.14 4 28324 |3 112.42
308 308 4.25 0.94 40 42570 |3 170.19
309 309 40.14 0.10 2 20228 |8 30.28
310 310 #VALUE! | #VALUE! NAJ 0.000 $
311 311 #VALUE! | #VALUE! N 0.000 $ -
312 312 #VALUE! | HVALUE! N 0.000 $ -
313 313 #VALUE! | #VALUE! N 0.000 $ .
314 314 7.14 0.55 21 38178 |§ 150.00
416 416 RVALUE! | #VALUE! N 0.000 $ -
417 417 13.30 0.30 55 185830 | § 731.61
418 418 #VALUE! | #VALUE! N 0.000 $ .
419 418 7.67 0.51 49 95700 |$ 376.00
420 420 12.53 0.32 88 271.550 | § 1,077.51
501 501 #DIV/0! #DIV/O! 0 0.000 $ -
525 525 #DIV/O! #DIV/O! 0 0.000 $ -

Extra Fyel |7 900 Tk 13245 | gyt #DIV/0! 0 0.000 $

Extra Fuel| Chain Saw #DIV/0! #DIV/0! 0 0.000 $ .

TOTAL DIESEL 1787.956 | 8 7,110.42

"N/U = NOT USED




Presentation

Grants Main Street Project




Grants
MainStreet
Project, Inc.

Incubator
Project Fund
Request

presented by
Grants MainStreet Project, Inc. &
Cibola Community Economic Development Foundation




Introduction

Cibola County unemployment rate in January 2020
was 6.7%

Due to COVID-19 pandemic, the unemployment rate
reached a peak of 14% in July 2021

In June 2021, the unemployment rate in Cibola
County is 9.5%

Small businesses in Cibola County face the economic
challenge of ability to conduct business through an
online store front due to lack of broadband
connections and online business operational
knowledge.



Grants
MainStreet
Project,

Inc.
Proposal

Creating business trainings for local individuals and
business to respond to the negative impacts of COVID-
19 pandemic, per US Treasury rule of providing technical
assistance, counseling, or other services to assist with
business planning needs

Trainings will include assistance to small businesses for
adoption of safer operating procedures, provision of
online sales platform, and COVID-19 safe delivery
services

Provision of space for pop-up businesses that would
provide COVID-19 safe environment for small businesses
to conduct in person transactions, advertise their online
storefront, and prepare to create a brick-and-mortar

business space >
am

CINRA




Program Proposal Components

Rental of Retail Space
In the Mainstreet District, the
retail space will be the downtown
business incubator/accelerator

Office Equipment

Provision of copy machine, scanners
for online business use, along with
cameras or laptops with built-in
cameras for virtual meetings

Business Trainings

Offering pertinent business
trainings to local businesses




Program Proposal Components

High Speed Internet Services
Providing this services at the
retail/training center for small

Focus Areas .
business development

+ Outdoor recreation and tourism
businesses

* Small businesses negatively
impacted by COVID-19

* Services to individuals in Qualified

Cevialls Thaet Space for Pop-Up businesses and

mentorship for brick-and-motar
business creation




Prospective Trainings

n_._jmmq:m online Business Plan COVID-19 Safe
shops/stores Development or Business Practices
Modification




| Online
Marketing of
Businesses

Shipping
Practices




State and Local Business Training

Business for Unemployed
Requirements Workers




Technical Assistance to Set Up

R ~
Y |
#55
- - ....»w._~w.m
fess i
F S )
..uc‘.uwv....

Home Business




Qualifications per Treasury Rules

1. For assistance to small businesses, the Interim Final Rule states that assistance
may be provided to small businesses, including loans, grants, in-kind assistance,
technical assistance or other services, to respond to the negative economic
impacts of the COVID19 public health emergency. In providing assistance to small
businesses, recipients must design a program that responds to the negative
economic impacts of the COVID-19 public health emergency, including by
identifying how the program addresses the identified need or impact faced by
small businesses. This can include assistance to adopt safer operating procedures,
weather periods of closure, or mitigate financial hardship resulting from the

COVID-19 public health emergency.




2. Speeding the recovery of the
tourism, travel, and hospitality
sectors, supporting industries that
were particularly hard-hit by the

COVID-19 emergency and are just
now beginning to mend. Similarly
impacted sectors within a local

area are also eligible for support.

3. The Interim Final Rule also
identifies a set of services that are
presumptively eligible when
provided in a Qualified Census
Tract (QCT); to families and
individuals living in QCTs. Per
attached map, a portion of Grants
Mainstreet District falls within a
Qualified Census Tract




Map Options : Clear | Reset | Full Screen
QCT Legend: ) sect . 262 Quaided Census

SADDA Legend: ! Boundary B 2c21 smanooa B 00

¢ Census Tracts (QCTs) and Difficult Development Ar H{alal ‘ i nuary 1, 2021. The 2021 design m the 2010 Decen

Map Options b
2 Cufrent Zox ZD—U Satellite
) yraguu

Click here for full screen map

Select Year

9747.00 NG 9747,00

San Rafael

9747.00 9747.00

Keyboard shortcuts  Map date £202% Google Terms of Use  Report a map error




Proposal Cost

GRANTS MAINSTREET PROJECT- INCUBATOR

Proposed Budget

Budget area

Income

Personnel expenses

Cperating expenses

Mew Mexico Economic
Development Funding {income)

Estimated
213,000.00
£0,262.00

160,700.00

115,000.00

Actual

0.00

0.00

Difference
213,000.00
50,292.00

160,700.00

115,000.00




ARPA FUNDING

Space Rental

Total income

Estimated
210,000,00
3,000.00

213,000.00

Actual
0.00
0.00

0.00

Difference
210,000,00
3,000.00

213,000.00




FPersonnel expenses
Expenses

Wages
Employee benefits

Professional Development/Training

Travel/Vehicle
Payroll Liabilities

Total personnel expenses

Estimated
32,000.00
4, 000.00
1,200.00
2,400.00
10,602.00

50,292.00

Actual
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

0.00

Difference
32,000.00
4,000.00

1,200.00
2,400.00
10,692.00

50,202.00




Operating expenses

Expenses

Advertising

Capital Expenditures
Administration Fees
Professional Services
Security

Dues and subscriptions
Insurance

Internet

Professional Services

Maintenance and repairs
Office supplies

Postage

Rent or mortgage
Tenant Training
Software
Supplies

Office Equipment
Telephone
Utilities

Meeting Expense

Licenses & Permits

Estimated
6,000.00
35,000.00
30,000.00
1,200.00
3,000.00
1,200.00
10,000.00
2,400.00
g,000.00
1,200.00
6,000.00
600.00
18,000.00
2,400.00
2,100.00
0.00
5,000.00
2,400,00
4,800.00
1,800.00

600.00

Difference
6,000.00
35,000.00
30,000,00
1,200.00
3,000.00
1,200.00
10,000.00
2,400.00
9,000.00
1,200.00
6,000.00
6oo.00
18,000,00
2,400.00
2,100.00
0.00
5,000.00
2,400.00
4,800,00
1,800.00

boo.o00

Tenant Grants

Total operating expenses

18,000.00

160,700.00

18,000.00

160,700.00




Programming

Boot Camps

2-3 day intensive in-person sessions
covering topics trainings important to
businesses recovering from the impacts of
the pandemic or to new businesses in
need of specific assistance.




1. COVID-19 Safe Training: Using the manual produced by
the State - All Together New Mexico as 3 guide this
bootcamp will provide hands-on training on opening or
reopening a customer facing business during the
pandemic recovery period.

2. Startup Bootcamp: Covering topics like Value Proposition
design, customer discovery/validation, market analysis,
competitive landscape, and revenue models this bootcamp will
give participants the tools to test their business ideas and

make an informed go or no-go decision.




Pivot
Accelerator

Program

Five-week cohort-based
program that will explore
hybrid business and revenue
models with existing businesses
Weekly topics include:

1. Beyond brick and mortar business and
revenue models

2. Setting up an ecommerce site

3. Branding and marketing an ecommerce site
4. Receiving, shipping, fulfillment,
warehousing, and distribution

5. Payment & processing

(B

ST




Organizations that specialize in offering

HN.QWOSH.O@ assistance to startup and established
HVH.OA\MQ.QH. businesses will be invited to the space to

hold open office hours and meet one-on-

OWWMOQ EOG.H.W one with individuals and businesses.

Subleases will be made available to Sstartup
businesses in the retail, hospitality, outdoor

recreation, and tourism industries. These wcﬁvu—mmwmw m\HHQ.
subleases will be below market rate, .wo..mulc.ﬁvm

renewed yearly, and each business may only
OCcupy a space for a maximum of two years.




Reporting Requirements

* Quarterly reporting to include financial data, information
on the contractor, and information regarding the
recipients' use of award funds.

* Performance reports will cover a 12-month period and

must be posted on the public face of the Grants
MainStreet Project, Inc. website.

* Funding for Project will be on a year-to-year basis after
evaluation of previous year's success not to exceed 4
years total per ARP spending requirements.




Thank You




ARPA Funds

Request

Grants Main Street




Grants MainStreet Project, Inc. Incubator Project Funding Request

Introduction:

Cibola County unemployment rate as of January 2020 was 6.7%. As the Covid-19 Pandemic
continued, the unemployment rate in July of 2020 reached a peak of 14%. As of June 2021, the
unemployment rate has failen to 9.5%. This number is still higher than the pre-pandemic
unemployment rate. Many businesses have closed or limited their staff, and as of July 2021, the
number of unemployed continues to exceed the available posted jobs. New Mexico Department
of Workforce Solutions numbers indicate there are approximately 1000 unemployed workers and
only 400 job postings in Cibola County. One of the economic challenges of Cibola County small
businesses is the ability to conduct business through an online storefront. Due to lack of
broadband connections and education regarding creating an online presence, small businesses
and individual crafters/artisans were unable to conduct business face-to-face as they would have
pre-pandemic.

The Grants MainStreet Project, Inc. proposes to implement an incubator project which wil
conduct business trainings for these individuals and businesses to respond to the negative
economicimpacts of the public health emergency per the US Treasury rule by providing technical
assistance, counseling, or other services to assist with business planning needs. Additionally,
these trainings will include assistance to small businesses for adoption of safer operating
procedures, providing online sales platforms, and COVID-19 safe shipping or delivery services as
an avenue to weather periods of closures,

The provision of the space for pop-up businesses would provide a COVID-safe environment for
small businesses to conduct in person transactions, advertise their online storefront, and allow
them the opportunity to prepare to create a brick-and mortar business space.,

Cibola Communities Economic Development Foundation will be assisting in providing training,
technical assistance, and counseling to small businesses and individuals in establishing and
strengthening their local businesses to mitigate the negative impacts of COVID-19, Additional aid
may be provided to support the safe reopening of businesses in the tourism, travel, and
hospitality industries that were either closed due to the public health emergency or had any
planned expansions or upgrades that were delayed due to the pandemic.

Preposal:

1. Rent a retail space in the Main Street District to create a downtown business
incubator/accelerator,

2. Provide a copy machine and scanner for online business use, Cameras or laptops with
built-in cameras for virtual mesetings.
a. Offer business training to include but not limited to:
i. Creating online shops/stores to minimize negative economic impacts of
COVID-19 (provide Computers for online shops)

Page 1 of 7



iil. Business plan development/modification to minimize negative economic
impacts of COVID-19
iii. COVID-Safe Business practices
iv. Online marketing of business
v, Shipping practices
vi. State and local business requirements
vii. Business training for unemployed workers to accelerate rehiring, or
address negative economic impacts experienced due to occupation or
level of training
viii. Technical assistance to set up in home businesses
b. Provide space for pop-business and mentorship for brick-and-mortar business
creation.
3. Provide high speed internet services at the retail/training center for small business
development.
4. Focuson:
a. Outdoor recreation and tourism related business as outlined in the Recreation
Economy for Rural Communities Plan.
b. Small businesses negatively impacted by COVID-19 throughout the county.
¢. Services to individuals in the Qualified Census tract.

Qualifications per Treasury rules:

1. For assistance to small businesses, the Interim Final Rule states that assistance may be
provided to small businesses, including loans, grants, in-kind assistance, technical
assistance or other services, to respond to the negative economic impacts of the COVID19
public health emergency. In providing assistance to small businesses, recipients must
design a program that responds to the negative economic impacts of the COVID-19 public
health emergency, including by identifying how the program addresses the identified
need or impact faced by small businesses. This can include assistance to adopt safer
operating procedures, weather periods of closure, or mitigate financial hardship resulting
from the COVID-19 public health emergency.

2. Speeding the recovery of the tourism, travel, and hospitality sectors, supporting
industries that were particularly hard-hit by the COVID-19 emergency and are just now
beginning to mend. Similarly impacted sectors within a local area are also eligibfe for
support,

3. The Interim Final Rule alsa identifies a set of services that are presumptively eligible when
provided in a Qualified Census Tract (QCT); to families and individuals living in QCTs. Per
attached map, a portion of Grants Main Street District falls within a Qualified Census Tract

Page 2 of 7



Map Options : Clear | Reset | Full Screen

QCT Legend: —Tiact Duline . LIHTC Project . 2021 Cuzlified Cenzus Tracs
SADDA Legend: — FMR Boundary — ZCTA Boundary . 2021 Small DDA . Pari DDA Non Metra DDA

Hide the overview

The 2021 Qualified Census Tracts (QCTs) and Difficult Development Areas (DDAs) are effective January 1, 2021 The 2021 designations use data from fhe 2010 Decennial census The
designation melhodology is explained in the federal Register notice published September 23, 2020

v P

Map Options. A
12 Current Zoom Level Map Satellite

:@.UU

]
L d

[} Show Difficult Development Areas (Zoom 7+)

Color QCT Qualified Tracts (Zoom 7+)
Show Tracls Qutiine (Zoom 114}
[_]Show FMR Qutiines (Zoom 4+)

[ Show LIHTC Projects (Zoom 11+)

Click here for full screen map S 5 47.00

Select Year

® 2021 9747.00 9747.00
2020

San Rafael

| \ f
9747.00 9747.00 T+
. : i

Google

W.inﬂms Mzp data 82021 Google Terms of Use Report a map error

Proposal Costs:

GRANTS MAINSTREET PROJECT- INCUBATOR

Proposed Budget

Budget area Estimated Actual Difference
Income 213,000.00 0.00 213,000.00
Personnel expenses 50,292.00 0.00 50,292.00
Operating expenses 160,700.00 0.00 160,700.00
New Mexico Economic R B S0
Development Funding (income) 51000 ' e

Balance (income minus

117,008.00 0.00 538,992.00

expenses)

Page 3 of 7



Income Estimated

ARPA FUNDING 210,000.00
Space Rental 3,000.00
Total income 213,000.00

Personnel expenses

Actual
0.00

0.00

0.00

Difference
210,000.00

3,000.00

213,000.00

Expenses Estimated
Wages 32,000.00
Employee benefits 4,000.00
Professional Development/Training 1,200.00
Travel/Vehicle 2,400.00
Payroll Liabilities 10,692.00
Total personnel expenses 50,292.00

Operating expenses

Expenses Estimated
Advertising 6,000.00
Capital Expenditures 35,000.00
Administration Fees 30,000.00
Professional Services 1,200.00
Security 3,000.00
Dues and subscriptions 1,200.00
Insurance 10,000.00
Internet 2,400.00
Professional Services 9,000.00
Maintenance and repairs 1,200.00
Office supplies 6,000.00
Postage 600.00
Rent or mortgage 18,000.00
Tenant Training 2,400.00
Software 2,100.00
Supplies 0.00
Office Equipment 5,000.00
Telephone 2,400.00
Utilities 4,800.00
Meeting Expense 1,800.00

Actual
0.00
0.00

0.00

0.00
0.00
0.00

Actual
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

Difference
32,000.00
£,000.00

1,200.00

2,400.00
10,692.00
50,292.00

Difference
6,000.00
35,000.00
30,000.00
1,200.00
3,000.00
1,200.00
10,000.00
2,400.00
9,000.00
1,200.00
6,000.00
600.00
18,000.00
2,400.00
2,100.00
0.00
5,000.00
2,400.00
4,800.00
1,800.00

Page 4 of 7



Licenses & Permits 600.00 0.00 600.00
Tenant Grants 18,000.00 0.00 18,000.00

Total operating expenses 160,700.00 0.00 160,700.00

The project would also seek to partner with New Mexico State University — Grants Small Business
Development Center for business trainings and mentorships. In relation, this project seeks to
provide computers to small businesses who have completed all their trainings so they will be able
to conduct online businesses, provided that they will meet their specific grant reporting and
financial impact requirements for grants per ARP Rules.

Implementation:

Hire staff

Rental of building with year-to-year lease with extension option

Set up trainings.

Set policy of priority in pop-up space for individuals enrolled in training.

Set up policy for use of pop-up space and covid safe practices.

Recruit Businesses and individuals to enroll for training and use of pop-up spaces.
Conduct trainings

Keep records of trainings and reporting requirements

Promote pop-up business space.

el R RS U

Programming

To assist businesses that have been negatively impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic and to help
in accelerating the growth of startup businesses in the retail, outdoor recreation, tourism, and
hospitality industries the Grants MainStreet Incubator will offer a suite of programming.

Boot Camps

Two to three day intensive in person sessions covering topics and trainings important to
businesses recovering from the impacts of the pandemic or new business owners in need
of specific assistance. Two initial boot camps will be offered.

1. Covid Safe Training: Using the manual produced by the State - All Together New
Mexico as a guide this bootcamp will provide hands-on training on opening or
reopening a customer facing business during the pandemic recovery period.

2. Startup Bootcamp: Covering topics like Value Proposition design, customer
discovery/validation, market analysis, competitive landscape, and revenue
models this bootcamp will give participants the tools to test their business ideas
and make an informed go or no-go decision.

Pivot Accelerator Program

Page 5 of 7



This five week cohort based program will work with existing businesses to explore hybrid
business and revenue models. Up to six businesses will be accepted into the first five week
cohort and will meet twice per week for two hours per session. Weekly topics include:

Beyond brick and mortar business and revenue models
Setting up an ecommerce site

Branding and marketing an ecommerce site

Receiving, shipping, fulfillment, warehousing, and distribution
Payment & processing

A il ol A

Resource Provider Office Hours

Organizations that specialize in offering assistance to startup and established businesses
will be invited to the space to hold open office hours and meet one-on-one with
individuals and businesses. Organizations like the SBDC, WESST, SWCOG, etc. will be
invited to hold office hours once or twice per month.

Subleases and Pop-ups

As part of the core incubator program subleases will be made available to startup
businesses in the retail, hospitality, outdoor recreation, and tourism industries. These
subleases will be below market rate, renewed yearly, and each business may only occupy
a space for a maximum of two years. In addition to the subleased spaces the incubator

will offer pop-up spaces for aspiring businesses owners to test their concepts for a week
to two weeks at a time.

Free online training sources:

https://www.sha.gov/sba-learning-platform - Learning Center Courses Include:

Planning for Businesses
Launch your Business
Manage your business
Market your business
Grow your business.
https://www.score.org/take-workshop - Offers: Also offers webinars in Spanish

Live Webinars; Recorded Webinars; Courses on Demand; Local Workshops and events
Samples of topics:

Starting an E-Commerce Business from Scratch to Shopify

Year end Tax planning for your business

Simple Changes that can help grow online sales.

Integrating Brick & Mortar and eCommerce.
https://grow.google/smallbusinesses/#?modal active=none — Lessons include teaching
materials and printable certificates of completion.

Page 6 of 7



Courses from this platform include:
Write a Business Plan
Build your Online Business
Create Your Business Profile on Google.
Estimate Financing for your Business Plan
https://clients.wesst.org/events.aspx — Lessons include:
How to create a social media Strategy: Covid-19 Recovery
Create your online Boutique
Quickbooks Online Basics
Women in Manufacturing
Covid Protocols for your Business
Food Truck Safety 101 Post Pandemic

Reporting Requirements.

Quarterly Reporting to include financial data, Information on the Contractor information
regarding recipient’s use of the award funds.

Performance indicators:
Number of individuals or businesses who participated in training.
Number of participants per training session.
Number of individuals or businesses who utilized space in the pop-up space.
Number of new businesses created.
Number of businesses who created new online presence.
Number of businesses provided assistance. (Grant funding)
Amount of grant per individual.

Performance reports will cover a 12-month period and must be posted on the public face of the
Grants MainStreet Project, Inc. website.

Funding for Project will be on a year-to-year basis after evaluation of previous year’s success not
to exceed 4 years total per ARP spending requirements.

Page 7 of 7



Resolution 22-16

FY22 Budget Adjustment No. 3




Cibola County

Cibola County Commission 700 E. Roosevelt Ave., Suite 50
Daniel J. Torrez, Chairman Grants, New Mexico 87020
Martha Garcia, 1% Vice-Chair Phone (505) 287-9431 - Fax (505) 285-5434

Christine Lowery, 2™ Vice-Chair

WEW MExICD

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner Kate Fletcher
Robert Windhorst, Commissioner County Manager

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

Resolution No. 2022-16 BAR #3

Fiscal Year 2022

the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Cibola is the duly
constituted governing body of the County and serves ex officio as the County
Board of Finance with authority for establishing, monitoring, and adjusting the
County’s budget; and

budget adjustments are required to establish correct beginning cash balances;
allow for new transfers; to allow for budget increases and decreases to
revenues and expenditures to offset any unanticipated revenues and/or
expenditures; and to correct amounts when required; and

the budget adjustments and the associated line items with amounts stated on
the attached, Schedule of Budget Adjustments 2022-164 is essential.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
of the COUNTY OF CIBOLA, STATE OF NEW MEXICO, ex officio COUNTY BOARD OF
FINANCE that the adjustments included in this document are deemed necessary to the
operations of the County for the 2022 fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED by the governing body at a regular meeting on the
27th day of January, 2022.

ATTEST:

THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS:

Daniel Torrez, Chairman

Martha Garcia, 15t Vice-Chair

Dr. Christina Lowery, 274 Vice-Chair

Michelle E Dominguez, County Clerk Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner



EEDWN Wodj Juswasinquilal paAiaaay| 007057 [ 00°0S#! [ 000§ Spunjay| 0192-00€-04-02 0909%-1000-00£0Z anuaaay pund [esjeiddesy %[ S
"Si1aysp xy o} Ajuoyine Jabpnq ubliead| 06°001% 00°00L 00'0 ANIWLINDT ALIAVS 28000-551-5€0-50 06095-100£-00L 12 ainypuadxy 4437] il
"Si1238p Xy o} Ajlioyine 18bpnq ubjjeoy 86'¥90'PS (00°0015) B86'FIL'FS Juawidinby /Buiyie]] sAndajolg 000-55+-S€£0-50: 0L195-100E" 4 aimypuadxg uE.u..n: 1
Y3JELU JBA0D O} U] J9)suel] asealdu|| 00005293 00°00529% 00°0 879 O} L0y Wodg P00-661~ L 0Z-8p! 00Z1.9-L000~ 14 Il 1ajsuE | peoy Qjunoy - u_n_t S
Y3jew J3A02 03 U] J5jSuei| asea1au (00005295 (00°005°298] 00°0 879 93 |0y wodg 0v00-661L 10" L0V 0L 19-1000" Z NG Jajsued | pung erausg )
“ublfesy “sjunodse papasl pejEn|EASY 00°005'89.% 00°005'89.% 00°0% uoponisuc) £0900-9S+-5¥0-209 66.5-2002-00812 eJmjjpuadxy 392l0.d [[eJ] |IIH Z1enp 1
"ubleay "SjUnoaoe papaau paien|eAay | 00°0% {00°000°5 157 00°000°G1$ Yol - Juawdinbg €0E01-95t~510-L0! 66.5-2002-0081Z ainjpuadxg 133lo.d |Ied] ||IH ZiienD 1
Papasu pajen|eAay| 00°0§ (00°000°FF3) 00°000%¥$ Ydje - sjedalep 20£01-95%5¥0-209 666.5-200Z-00812 aimjpuadxgy 133[01d [IB1L JIiH Z1enD 1
Papasu pajen|eAay| 00°0% (00°000°G1$) 00°000°615 Yaiew - JogeT LOE0L-95%~G¥0-209 66645-200Z-008}Z ainjipuadxy 198loid [IBIL [[IH ZenD il
PopsaU pajenjeAay | 000§ (00°000°5VS] 00°000'S¥$ U2JBIN - S83IAISS [elolSsajoid L0101-95¥-G70-209 66625-2002-00812 einjipuedxy| j3eloid JIB1L [||H ZHEND i
“ubjjeay “sjunoooe pajen[eAay| 00°0% (00°000°28§) 00°000'Z8% —_juawdinby €0£00-95-570-209 0Z0BS-200Z-00812 24mpusdx3| J3aloid JIed] |IiH ZHenD ]
“ubjjeay ‘S)unaaoe pajenieAsd| 0005 [00°000°28%) 0000285 JogeT LOE00-95+5p0-209 0615-200Z-00812 SINYIpuadx3| joajoid |IE1L [\H ZHEnD il
"ubijeay "S}uUn0doe papaau pajen|eAay | 00000613 {00°000°2¥zS) 0°000°252% S[EH3IE 20£00-95%5%0-L09 6695-2002-008LZ 2Inypuadx3 | jo8oid |1B1L [IH ZHenD a
"ubljeay "SIUNOI3E papaeU pajen|eAsy| 00°000°06S (00°005"E€CS) [ S8JIAISG [eUOISSajoId 10100-95%5%0-209 £055-2002-008 k2 SINIPUSHXS | 198[0d [/e3L [I'H ZHEnD o}
'Sejejs e[dnin uj| 00°59ES 005523 s[eajsAyd 6SZ00-901- 700~ L0¥ 666579001000 +1 oImIpuodxg Joinsesi] B
panll oym aafkojdwa uo syoays jeuoyppe o}
anp yBiy ui awed safojdwe mau oy je Ayd
‘IeaisAyd 1oy 31alep X1y 01| 00°6vLS 00°55Z3) 00°000'}LS Seliejeg awsAQ $0000-90t-+00-LOY 020LS-9001-000L L alnjipuadx3 dsinseal| 1
Pajabpnq uey) JuswwiAed JaybiH 00°008'€L! 00°0S% 00°0SL°EL §.5 0} pzy wolg e 66%LL1-G/S 00119-L000-00¥ 0% ainyipuadxy SUBOT V4N 1
Pajabpnq uey) juswied JayBiH 00°00Z'8! 00°00Z$ 00°000°8E §.G 0} gL Woly 8L¥60-661LL1L-G/G 001 19-L000-00#0F ainjpusdxy SUeoT y4WN 1
Pajabpng uey; yuswAed JaybiH | (00008 € 13) (00053 (00°0SLELS) §.15 0] pZpy wody §.560-661-0Z0-vZv 00219-1000"00602 almjjpusdxy QadA o1agqng a
pejabpnq ueyy yuawiAed JayBiH 0000z 86 ] (00°00Z%) {00'000'8%%] G160} gLy woiq G1560-661020-8L¥ 00Z19-1000-00602 aimjpusdxg QdA usysuy Apuey 1
Pe329dXa UBL) 9101 000°05$ PaAIa53d| 00°000°0625 00°000'05% 00°000'002% Jueig [eUSIEW a1l aje1s 98500-628L0-6 L 666.5-200£-00602 ainjipuad adA Uaysyy Apuen B
ueo) Joj jdeateiu| IWN| 00°9¥6'2% 00°9V6'23 00°0§ Juauno||y aii4 ajejg 0009S-00€-0E-60F 060.1~1000-00602 anuaAey ddA uoAuej ogoT S
“TBUILED §TB5130 10} AYIOUINE UBIIEaN | 00°L0}'5/88 [{00°005 5] 00°1.09°28% SIFVIVS IWIL TN 20000-807500- 0¥ 0Z015-5001-000+1 simpuadxg pusys i
73bpnq AIE[es| 00°000°ES 00000 0000018 sasuadx3 aujue) £8000-807-500- L0¥ 666.5-G001-000LL|  @injipusdxg IEIT g
Bujsn £ynp jo sujj ayy uy pny sem Bop uaym
1119 324 0} anp sasuadxa aujues aseaou|
“S|enIa.| 00000013 00°000°6% 00°000°5% SUBWIBSINGWISY |MQ SNOHEA SJjiiaUs 10002-05€-2Z-LOF 0909t-1000-0001F ERNELER] FITIEDTS R
s.Jeaf sijy uo paseq suawasInquiay
IMQ SnoleA S jj1ieys asealou|
18bpnq Ale[es| 00°000'9% 00°005°Z$ 00°005'€$ Sellddng g JUBWAINDT 8310 60000-80¥-500- L0V 02095-5001-000FF simpusaxg HHBUS B
Buisn ieaf jo jsai yBnouy; 396 pue o18p
12A03 0} saljddns g "dinb3 'yo aseasou;
9L[LIBAO Jof JueiB uny MaN| 00°000°65 007000°53 [[H SjusWiesinguijay AJliNJag PUE|IWOH 2000Z-05£-22- L0¥ 0909%L000-000LL shusAsy e S
BWIHIBAD Joj) Juelb Bulpuny maN| 00°000°5% 00°000°5% 00°0% Ajinaes puejauioy 85000-80-500- L0V 666.5-500L-000L 1 admjjpusdx3y Husys S
juswainsold j1sbeue | 00°000'63 00°000°L$ 00°000°8% sayjddng pue jusuidinb3 9910 60000-20t~ 0010V 0209S-1002-000F1 almjlpusdxy JELETET 1
HSIY 404 sayndwoa mau oy 196pnq jou pig
5894 diysiequall YO 49 JoJ png jou PIA| 00°05.% 00°05% 00°004% Shiulad g ' sead 'sasuel] PZLLO-Z0V700-LOF 66645-L00Z-000L ainjjpuadxy Jabeuep) a
“S)2yep xy 0} Ajuoyine Jebpnq ubleay| 00°9LE 85 (00°050°E$) 00°99¢'68 Nledsy @ Ul ‘dinbg 2L000-20-p00-LOF 050+5-100Z-0001 anjpuadx3 Jabeuepy i
| @3Aojdwa mau paiiH| 00°09% 00°09% 00°0% S|edisAud 65200-LE1-090-6EV| 666.5-900E-00£T: ainjjpuadx3 uonnquisig IMai T \A
s9fojdwa mau paiiy 00°ZL5'0P1S (00°0987 00°'ZE9'0¥LS Sallejeg awi] Jing €0000-L£+-090-6EY 02015-900£-00E2C ainjipuadx3y uonngUIsIg IMaT al i
SaIUedwWiod| 00'000Z+S 00°0007CLS 00°0% ujuselog LL000-LEV-090-65 666.5-1000-00£22 aimjpuadx3y uonnguIasig iMai s
apisino wouy Bujusaaios Joy fed o)
Spunyas pajedionuUeUn 7 paAIaday| 00°00£S | 00°00€§ 00°0% Snoauejjaasiy 0018€-D0E-1L9-6E¥ 0069+-1.000-00£2Z anuaAay uonnqasiqg IMma| S
“10j paijdde ueyj siow 000°0.% uw_u._mgq_ 00°000°001% 00000043 00°000°0€$ RI ]pQg 00292-00€-09-8E¥% L2041~ 1000-00E22 | anuaaay eI ]pg S
Juel9 M3N Joj @sealdu|| 00'6LLES 00°6LL'ES a0'0% UohusAsid f uolzeanpy €2L00-L¥t-0.0-0FF 666.5-1000-00€ZZ| ainypuadxy 1UBI9 10JIWN - IMAD S
ueln map Joj mmmw._u:: 00'62L'ES 0062L°€$ 00°0% el weibold |M@o 00508-00t-09-0¢F 666.5-L000-00£Z2 anuaney iueln LOAWN - IMao S
| _ 00°0% (BZ'0L2°623] 82'0..'SES @3le|eg JUBID JO UOISIaASY 600Z1-Z4i~B1L0-609 aInjipusdxy 34310 i
“1eaA| 09'vyZ9% 09°vpZ 9% 00°0% "dinb3 "ujwipy UoRoag 800Z1-2¥i810-609 666.5-2002-00812 aimjpusdx3y EIETR) R
leasiy mau m_.__.a.;u uj awea SadjoAul jngq Jeak
‘ 123514 Jouud woyy sainypusdxs 104 5,0d PeH
Juelb| 89°5ZE6LS 89°6ZS'615 00°0$ llddns @ "dinb3 aajuasqy 10 [1e[y Aq 2304, L00Z1-Zr81L0-609 666.5-200Z-00812 aIm|puadxy
Ysiuly o3 | Z°y96 JO aseaious ue snid Jeak
I1easy mau Bupnp uy awes sasloau| jng Jeak
238y Jopid woy sainypuadxa 104 5,04 peH
“de3A| 00°09P5 00°09p$ 00°0% sivndwo) 62000-0%1590-005 0r095-¥00L-00S2T aimypuadxy i3I0 s
_muwc Mau mE_..Z—w Ul awed sadloAul Ing 1eak
‘ 19513 Jolud wouy seunypusdxa 1o} 5,04 peH
ﬁ “lo} pejebpnq jou| g/'555 §L'S5S 00°0% s|ealsiyd 65200-21L-+00- L0V 666451 L0Z-000L1 aJmjpusdxy 1
|eaisAyd 1aa02 0} fjioyne 18Bpnq ubijeay
“1oj pajabpnqiou Gz pFLs {52°55%] 0070028 asuadx3 aalysp L1L000-ZL¥~¥00-LOF, 0F0¥S-1L0Z-000k1 aImpuadxy a
‘ |ea1sAyd 1an00 0} Ajuoyine Jabpng ubiijeay|
"0} ps3abpng 10U 00565 00°56% 0003 ~ BUISIignd g BUlig 80000-ZLI-F00-1.0¥ 060Z5-LE0Z-00041 SImpUeaxy I il
pe Ae|ds|p 12A03 0} Ajiioyine 3e6png ubijeay
“10j pajabpnq jou| 00654 (00°G6S) 00°0SL$ abejsod 90000-¢L¥-+00- LOY 080.5-11.0Z-000L L ainjipuadx3 i 1
pe Aejdsip JaA02 03 Ajuoyine Jabpng ubieay
3s0d¥nd 139ang 13sang 1NNODJY 40 #LNNODOV # LNND2OV {Wo¥4 4o ANIWLHYdIa (s)alvis
OL) H3JISNVHL ¥O (1) Ivoo1
aaisnrav ANJWLSnray d3AO¥ddY NOLLdI¥OS3a ALNNOD V108102 via JHNLANIdX3 ALNNOD HVHE 40 3dAL
INNIATY
V9l-2z0e -34TNA3HOS Hve
91-¢ene “# NOLLN10S3y
Z Jo | Bbeq Ze-lc0e Ad WVIA VIS
Aunog ejogiy “AWVYN ALILNT

HWLSOAy Lanc
nE2ME aouTuy

LISRUEN




Z 4o g abed

Runog ejoqa

I ajeg UBULIEYD pleog Ba1eg 343]D Ajunog
118311V
Spuoq “Jad "eyul]| 00°000°761S (00°00070%] 00°000'002% Aeping Tenden 82000-9L1-510-20% 66685-1005-00¥02 IMIpusdxy peoy 1
ui y1ayap xyy o} Ayoyne 3ebpng ubijeey
“ieaA ybnolin| 00°005'L3 00000°9% 00°005°1S nisy jisodeq puog ULIoHad aimponijseju] 000EE-9Lt-PLO-Z0F 666.5-1005-00v02 peoy T
136 0} |euonippe ppg'L$ PPy "1eak Joud
ul syuad Joj pred Aay | “awiy ysea pog'Ls
1B S8wl} g papunjal sem sjuels jo A19
Apadosd| 007000913 00°000°91$ 00°0% Auedolg Ajuncd jo sjeg 000¥E-00£-0E-Z0% L609%-L000-00102 anusAey POy s
40 uoyysodsip [euoppe jo mouy jou pig
‘uaasalojun sem j| “sjejuai Je(|idialed| 00'0093 00009 00°08 spunjay 00192-00€-0£-20¥% 0S0.%-1000-00702 anuaaay peoy S
wialy punjad e Joj }aBpng jou piq - spunjay
"@23ld B 051§ 1B S|[ELNgG| 00°005% 00'00Z$ 00°00€$ anuaAdy Jsylg 00¥LE-Z8E-BT-Z0F 0069t-1L000-00%0Z anuaAsy peoy S
Z J03136png piqg "sjeling 1oy saay uoneaydde
pue |ejaw detos ajakoaa oy 1obpng jou pig
“UN0J2e S|y} woly ubjjeal] 00’666 65rS (00°06¥'SLE) 00'68V'SLPS sajejeg awi] [Ing 20000-GEY-0.0-GEY 02015-500£-00202 ainjjpuadxy Li6-3 S
os suoijisod pajabpng awos pajjy jusaey
doueusjuieiy g3 104 pasealdu| 00078 00°000°6% “Jule g dinb3 WaisAs 1163 60000-SE1-0L0-SEY 02095-G00£-00L02 aInjpuadxy Li6-3 S
3502 BuiLindas e siyng Jeak| 00°00¥'8E 1S 00700¥'S$ 00°000°EEFS S30|AI3S [ENIORIIUGY +ZL00-SEV-0L0-SEF 0E0S5-S00€-0020¢ Impuadxg 163 S
ise| sajjddns so1y0 jo jno pied gpgiemoy
1o} pa1abpnq Joul saLioyd [j20 AN ¥3ed| 00°000°3L% 00°000°9§ 00°000°01% SUORE3UNWILIO88 L £0000-5€v-020-5E¥| 091/5-500£-00£02 SINjIpUsdxy 1163 S
“1o} pajabpnq jou Ul ealq & peH| 00°Er0'2S 00'0szs 00°E6L'LS asUadx3 92Iyap 11000-SEV-0L0-GEY 21L95-500£-00L02 aInjipusdx3 Li6-3 S
"SHouep xy 03 Kuoyine jabpnq ubileay| 00017 625 (00°15) 00°L ¥ 623 SAMYIVS JWIL 77N 20000-65%520-029 €0LS-E001-00€0Z ainjipuadx3 pung jesiesddeay | 1
“si1oyep xy 03 Ajoyne Jebpng uBileay| 00'88L FLLS 00°Ls 00°28BLFLLS 19W0jald - malA albeg 0£000-65+-520-029 66645-E£00L-00£02 Uedx3 pungjesjeiddeny %L i | |_
380dynd 139ang 139and 1NNOJJY 40 #LNNODOY # LNNOJOY (Woud 10 ANIWLYY43a (s)3Lvis
OL) HIASNYHL Ho (1) Ivo01
aailsnray ANIWLSNrav Q3A0HddY NOILdI¥Os3aa ALNNOJ V10810 v4a JHUNLANIdX3 ALNNOD HYHE 40 3dAL
SNNIAIY
V9l-2202 -3TNA3IHIS Hve
9l-2c0e #NOlLNToS3y
CZ-L20Z Ad “HV3A VISl

JWYN ALLLNT




Resolution 22-17

FY22 Second Qtr. Report




Cibola County

Cibola County Commission 700 E. Roosevelt Ave., Suite 50
Daniel J. Torrez, Chairman Grants, New Mexico 87020
Martha Garcia, 1% Vice-Chair Phone (505) 287-9431 - Fax (505) 285-5434

Christine Lowery, 2™ Vice-Chair

MEW MEXICO - £3T. o9

Ralph Lucero, Commissioner Kate Fletcher
Robert Windhorst, Commissioner County Manager

Resolution No. 2022-17

FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 SECOND QUARTER FINANCIAL REPORT

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

the Board of County Commissioners of the County of Cibola is the duly
constituted governing body of the County and serves ex officio as the County
Board of Finance with authority for establishing, monitoring, and adjusting the
County’s budget; and

the first quarterly report has been reviewed and approved to ensure the
reconciliation of cash balances & activity on this report to the County’s internal
financial reports; and

it is hereby certified that the contents in this report are true and correct to the
best of our knowledge and that this report depicts all funds for fiscal year 2022,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

of the COUNTY OF CIBOLA, STATE OF NEW MEXICO, ex officio COUNTY
BOARD OF hereby approves the first quarter report for FY 2022 hereinafter
described as Attachment “2022-17A” and respectfully requests approval from
the Local Government Division of the Department of Finance and
Administration.

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED by the governing body at its reqular meeting on the
2Tth day of January in 2022.

THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS:

Daniel J. Torrez, Chairman

Martha Garcia, 15t Vice-Chair

ATTEST:
Christine Lowery, 214 Vice-Chair
Michelle E Dominguez, County Clerk Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner



ajeg

uBWIEY) pieOog

aeq

3¥e1o

FLS3ILLY|

vb'9.5'899'L TS (81°0£5"20£7€8) 29'9vT'9/E 178 SE'99V'8Y9'ZS (Er'9v1'L0T'68) 00'0$ r9'E65°LrT'6S 8UTLE'9EE'SS | seT9m'oszers |=s1vi01
€0°Z61'95 00°0% E0'Z6T'9$ 00°0% (97" L€S"9z8) (4z°€29'019) I6'P19°0TS 00°0$ | S9'LBLTES S19310Hd AVILNO TVLIdYD - 159
0008 0008 000§ 000§ (00°995°83) 00'995'g$ 0003 0008 | ooos LNVY9 Y0318 "dIN0I V4NN - 059
£0°9ZT'BYEZS [ 000§ | soeerabezs | ooos | Ueszszozsi | 0003 000§ | 000§ | 005908528 | 15w Nvid 3nosau nvaray - 609
L8'BST'LETS | 00°0$ | LB'BST'LETS | ooos | lzsvovers) 00'0$ 99'SET'ITS [ 00°03 EU'BB6'SSZS | ANNA TVSIVHddvaY %1 - 029
0003 | 000§ [ 000§ i 00'0§ [ 000§ 000§ [ 000§ 00'03 00'0§ WY¥904d FINVITIND) - §T9
25'EZ6'06235 [ 00’03 | ZS'ETE'D6ZS [ lee2ev'298) | Tocostrer'zs] 00°000°00T°TS bZrL6'eLS TS 00°03 SLLLS'9TTS HILNID NOLLNILIA - bT9
00'0§ | 00'0§ 000§ [ o0'0g | 000§ 00'0§ | 0003 0005 0003 | nvauna snsnas - ote
174968 | 000§ 12965 | 00°'0% | Teooosves) 4‘ 000§ | 000§ 000§ | BZ0LL'SZS | INVHD S.NOIDIT LoV s3uv5 - 609
09208255 | 0005 09'z08°25$ | 0005 | fesoctersi | 0003 YT'EL6TZZS 00’03 f 000 19310¥d TIIH ZL¥VND - 209
Ly'Lb0'0LBS [ 0008 Lr'Lb0'0L8$ | 00'0% | {es'zsvzes) | 00°0$ 00°0% 000§ [ 00°005'z06$ LNYHD "SNYYL 'AOD T¥D01 LOGIIN - 908
86'S51'6$ | 00'08 86'S9T'6% [ 00°0$ _ 00°0% 1_‘ {00°666'6TS) | 00°000'6Z$ 00°0$ 86'v9TS [NOLLOAL0ud INTWIIHOINT v - 509
0E'600'b5$ | 00°0% 0E'60075S | 00°03 | les0z'sas] | 00°000°rS [ 26'806°285 0005 | sesoszrs [1HsUYIN 3414 - b0
00°S8L$ | 0005 00°S8L$ | 0008 [ 00°0§ | 0003 [ 0008 00°08 | 00°s8L$ LNIWISYNYIN ADNIDHIING - 09
£9°0v6°09TS | 0008 ESO609TS | 00'0$ | (00°TE593] | oosogoors | 651925 | v0°'Z09'99§ [ 0008 SNYOT V4N - 52§
8STER'LET'TS [ 00°08 BSTERLETTS | 00'0§ | tearrtezs) | 00°0$ | _osteoksrts | 00'0$ | 00'0$ |ann4 awoon1 anos avToz - ozs
SE'799°005$ | 00°0$ sezoglorsy | 00'0$ leetec'otts) | 000§ i ZEH6E'TS9$ [ 00°0% | 0005 [anna awoant anos vetoz- gos
98°vED'99$ | 000§ 9B VED'99S | 000§ | (eewsszzsl | 0o°0g voozo'Ezs | 0o°0s | BLE6€'99¢  [ONITI/ONIGH0D3H WHITD - 00s
BT'66L'V16$ | 00°0$ 8T'66LvT6S i 00°0% [ {8z'z18's5) l00°'000'25) 0Z'€08'89TS | 00°0$ [ 9Z'808'E6LS [NOLD310ud 3814 ALNROS - S2v
6Y'PZETLTS | 000§ BY'bZETLTS | 000% | (15°€55'b81S) (¢8'£95'15) | 09'S£9°E9TS | 000§ | rzear'sers |NownsLsia ma - esp
00’05 | 00’08 00°0§ | 00’08 | (£8'£96'13) LB'L96'TS 00’05 [ 00°0§ | 00'03 [LNvHD Ima - sep
85'€79'S0€$ | 00°0$ 85'E29'50€3 | 00°0$ [ (£5'vL6'2LrS) {00'000°p3) BY'SHP'LT9$ | 00°0§ | L9'ZST'SITS [Ho1vdsia aavanosnos - sep
£5'SE00TS | 00°0% ES'SEPDTS [ 0003 | 00°0§ | 00°0$ 00°'652°0T§ | 00'0s [ £59,T$ |39nvInawy wonadns - v
LYTIE'LBTS | 00°05 LU°TT6'L8TS | 000§ | lesmiwvzs) i 00°000'$ 05'SLp'8ZS | 000§ | 09'8v8'92Z§ | G4A O¥HOW 13- L2v
1S'6T8'L$ [ 00°0% 1561825 | 0008 | {00°0015) [ 000§ 00°000°5$ | 00708 | IS'616'2$ |sw3 o¥3gna -szv
EO'TOT'6ETS | 00°0$ E0'TOT'6ETS | 00°0§ [ (65°09€'21$) | (00°£82'98) 05°709'6t5 [ 00°0% i ZTVr9'8ETS |asn owaano - vzy
89'9€5'£05$ f 00'0§ 89'9€5°2055 | 00'0§ | fesersTes) | 000§ oobvgolrs | a0'0§ [ DETHZ'ETYS  |aIn YNNOVI-6TH
00°'609°vEES [ 0003 00'609°vEEs | 0003 | (EE'6L6'65] [ tooesries) 00'T6L'9zEs | 0005 | £E'986'80$ [a4n N3HOLIY AaNYa - BT0
b6 TVE'Z60S | 0003 VETVET6YS | 000§ | (svvsouzasl | 00°000°25 os'siy'sses | 00'03 i 65°055'Te$  |adnivi3oNad- 1w
8LT6L'615 i 00'0§ BLZ6L'6T3 00'0§ | 000§ | 0003 00'VI0TTS I 000§ [ BL'BLL'ES | SW3 TTIHENIG - sTE
00°TZ5'ET$ [ 000§ 00TES'EIS | 000§ [ 00°05 | 00°0$ 00TZS’ELS | 00°0§ [ 000§ [swa vunov- €1y
IT'LTI'ZTZS | 0008 9T°LT9'ZTZS | 00°0% | (15°Etv'55) 00°SZS'EpS 00'9b6°'Z$ | 00'0§ | L9°685°TLTS |97 NOANY2 0501 60v
Lr'SLS'vBTS | 000§ Lb'SLSP8TS | 000§ | (50°961°25) [ (00°£89°8T5) 00°750'09% | 0003 | 25'£02'0525 [a4n watvmania - sor
bL'568'9915 | 00'0$ PL'568'99T$ | 00'0$ [ (£¥'5z8'ES8] | {00'12b'6ES) 00°Z66'26$ | 00°0$ [ 1Z'052'£918 [aan Tavavy nvs - 2o
6€'96L'T675 i 00'0§ 6E'96LT6ZS | 00°0§ [ (eTevTers) | 00'0$ evzie'szes | 00'0§ [ YE'SSbL6S |inaoian - aop
88'5685 [ 00'05 885685 [ 000§ | (zr'vot'z3) | 00'000'85 000§ | 0005 | 000§ [39Nv = Wava - eor
Tv'0z9'vzes | 00°0 T7029'vZz$ | 000§ | (TT'688'2255) | 00°000°001% BIZET'LLSS | 00°0$ | v8'9ZE0ZTS |avou - zop
£0°065'PE0'9S | 00°0$ E006SWEO9S | ZTwwe'sILEs | lzezesssses) | (eczessozTd) 69°'shs'rez'zs | 0003 26'SZ8'S60'9  |aNN4 TvuaNao - Top
vL'TZ9'595'T$ | Terocszozes Z6'T6T'ELT'SS | 00°0$ 000 | 00°0$ BL'EZV'ES PT'69£'692'5$ 000§ ANN4 LNJWLSIANI - TOT
Saoueeg Juawlsany] Samiasoy S3oUE[eg JuaUnSany] SYUaWIsNIpY aiA SaInyIpuadx3 LA SI9JSUEI] O1A SanusAay 1A TZ0Z/17Z TZ0Z/i/L spung anipy
g ysey Juipug uipuy PEOY g pung [eJauag g yse) Juipug 40 se flusWIsany| JOSE SIuEEq
P3ISTIPY d|qe[lEAY _ 4 PUCE 'V puog % “BujuuiEeg "4se) suiuuigag

VLT72Z0T PINP3YIS - TZ0Z ‘TE 19quianag o sy - Hoddy 1apenp pug Aunoj ejoqi




Professional

Services Contract

SCRAM Systems For DWI Dept.




1241 West Mineral Avenue, Suite 200
Littleton, CO 80120

MASTER AGENCY AGREEMENT

AGENCY: CIBOLA COUNTY DWI PROGRAM INITIAL CONTRACT TERM: 36 months
ADDRESS: 700E. Roosevelt, Suite 40
Grants, NM 87020

This MASTER AGENCY AGREEMENT (the ‘Agreement”), is entered into as of the Effective Date by and between
ALCOHOL MONITORING SYSTEMS, INC. (“AMS”), a Delaware corporation located at 1241 West Mineral Avenue,
Suite 200, Littleton, Colorado 80120, and the Agency listed above. This Agreement incorporates by reference any
and all Schedules executed by the parties. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Agreement are those as
defined in the attached Schedule(s). Should there be a conflict between the terms in this Agreement and those of
any Schedule, the terms in the Schedule will prevail. The effective date of the Agreement is the date last signed by
AMS (Effective Date"). This Agreement supersedes any prior written or oral agreement and understandings with
respect to the subject matter herein.

1 GENERAL SCOPE OF AGREEMENT. AMS sells and rents Equipment and provides supporting Services
specific to monitoring Clients who are required to or opt to wear such Equipment. AMS desires to sell or rent
and Agency desires to order such Equipment and the supporting Services as specified in this Agreement and
the attached Schedules in the Territory described on the applicable Schedule.

2 DEFINITIONS

“Clients” means individuals who are required or choose to wear the Equipment.
“Effective Date” means the date this Agreement is signed by AMS,
“Equipment” means the hardware identified in the applicable Schedule.

“Mobile Application” means any applications listed in this Agreement which are provided by AMS or its third-

party supplier and designed to complement the Services, but which run on mobile devices such as smart phones
or tablets.

“Monitoring Services” means the remote collection, compilation and reporting of data from the Equipment.

“Monitoring Software” means AMS’ proprietary, web-based software applications, depending on the
Equipment or Service contracted for, which track and store Client data and other features as may be added
from time to time.

“Parts” means peripheral hardware necessary for the support of the Equipment such as, but not limited, to
batteries, straps and back-plates.

“Products” means collectively the Equipment and the Parts.
“Rental Equipment” means Equipment rented by AMS to Agency.
“RMA” means a Return Material Authorization issued by AMS.

“Services” means collectively the; (i) the Monitoring Services: (i) provision of training and certification
necessary for Agency to use Products; (ii) provision of technical support and telephone assistance; (iii)
scheduled Equipment (vi) maintenance; (iv) disaster recovery and backup services for Client data stored using
the Monitoring Software; and (v) provision of such other Services and support functions as may be agreed to
in writing by the parties and made part of this Agreement,

“Territory” means the geographic area type as defined on each Schedule in which Agency may provide the
Products and Services to Clients.

1of8 Confidential
Master Agency Agree

AMS Inc. Version 20180209



“Third Party Contractor” means Agency's third-party subcontractors to whom Agency is subcontracting any
of Agency’s work or responsibilities under this Agreement.

3 GENERAL BUSINESS TERMS

3.1 Payment Terms,

3.1.1  Purchased Products. Products will be invoiced at the time of shipment. The price of the Products
does not include applicable taxes and is due and payable in U.S. dollars within ten (10) days of date of invoice.

3.1.2 Rental Equipment. Rental Equipment Fees will be invoiced monthly to Agency by AMS based on
the specific pricing option for the Rental Equipment on or before the tenth (10t day of each month and shall be
paid by Agency to AMS within thirty (30) days from the date of such inveice.

3.1.3 Monitoring Service and Other Fees. Service fees will be invoiced by AMS on a monthly basis as
incurred and shall be paid by Agency within thirty (30} days from the date of such invoice. Other fees include, but
are not limited to, fees for the following: Court appearances whereby AMS is requested by Agency to be a witness
in a court case; manual check-in for inactive Equipment; repair or replacement not covered by the Maintenance and
Repair Policy under Section 7 and Equipment returned to AMS without an RMA. Unless set forth on an applicable
Schedule, fees will be charged at AMS' then prevailing rates.

3.1.4 Currency; Iinvoiced Taxes. All fees are payable in U.S. Dollars. In addition, Agency is responsible
for the timely payment of all taxes invoiced by AMS related to the purchase price for Products, Rental Equipment
Fees, Services and any other fees set forth on the Schedule(s).

3.2, Ordering; Freight Terms; Order Cancellation and Reschedule.

3.21  Orders. AMS may provide Agency with AMS’ standard order form to use for when Agency places
orders under this Agreement. Agency may use its own purchase order form in addition to the AMS order form. All
terms on any Agency purchase order shall not alter or amend the terms of this Agreement and any additional or
varying terms contained in such instrument are expressly rejected.

3.2.2 Freight Terms. Products ordered by Agency shall be shipped to Agency's designated facility, AMS
paying ground freight, and AMS bearing the risk of loss of damage until Products are delivered to Agency's dock,
at which time any visible damage to the outermost packaging must be noted on the Bill of Lading. AMS shall
determine the type of packaging, mode of transportation for all shipments including for returns. Any returns must

be accompanied by an RMA, Orders expedited at Agency's request will be shipped FOB Origin, with all freight costs
to be paid by the Agency.

3.2.3 QOrder Cancellation and Reschedule. Orders for Products, once accepted by AMS, are non-
cancelable, and Products are non-returnable, except in accordance with the Maintenance and Repair Policy set
forth in this Agreement or the terms, if any, in the applicable Schedule. Upon AMS agreement, Agency can
reschedule orders one time upon thirty (30) days written notice prior to the shipment date. Any such rescheduled
delivery date must be within thirty (30 days of the original delivery date.

3.3 Taxes. Agency shall be solely responsible for all taxes related to Products or Services provided to it by
AMS under this Agreement including, by way of example and not limitation, sales, use, property, excise, value
added, and gross receipts irrespective of whether the Products are purchased or rented. If Agency is exempt from
taxes of any kind Agency will provide appropriate exemption documentation for all such taxes applicable to the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement.

34 Failure to Make Payments and Suspension of Services. Late paid invoices will be subject to interest,
accruing from the due date at the rate of either one-and-one-half percent (1.5%) per month or the highest rate
specified by applicable statute, whichever is lower. In addition, if Agency fails to pay any amount when due under
this Agreement, AMS will provide written notice to Agency of such failure. If Agency does not pay any outstanding
amount due within five (5) business days of the date of such notice, AMS may do any of the following; (i) reject
orders from Agency for additional Products or withhold delivery of Products already ordered but not yet shipped; (ii)
suspend access to the Services until Agency pays all outstanding amounts in full; and (iii) proceed with termination
of this Agreement and any applicable Schedules in accordance with the terms in Section 9.3 of this Agreement.

3.5 Title to Equipment; Rental Equipment.

Confidential
Master Agency Agree

20200428



3.5.1  Title to Equipment. Title to purchased Equipment transfers to Agency upon delivery to the freight
carrier. Title to any Rental Equipment shall remain with AMS, unless such Equipment is later purchased by the
Agency,

3.5.2 Rental Equipment. Agency may rent Equipment from AMS in quantities agreed to by the parties.
Agency will not encumber or dispose of any Rental Equipment. Agency will inventory Rental Equipment in a location
that is used and operated by Agency authorized personnel only. All Rental Equipment maintained in Agency's
inventory location will be handled in accordance with industry standard practices for prevention of loss or physical
damage, including that which may be caused by electronic static discharge and environmental concerns. Agency
will be responsible to and reimburse AMS for all loss to AMS resulting from damage, theft, destruction or any other
loss whatsoever of Rental Equipment received by Agency. In the event of the loss or damage to any of the Rental
Equipment, Agency agrees to pay AMS the Replacement Fee amounts specifled on the relevant Schedule. AMS
reserves the right, at its sole option, to reduce Agency’s inventory of Rental Equipment, if Agency does not remit

4 USE RESTRICTIONS; FIRMWARE LICENSE; OWNERSHIP; LIMITED LICENSE; DISCLAIMER

4.1  Use Restrictions: No Modification. Agency shall not do any of the following acts: (i) wilfully tamper with
the security of the Monitoring Software, Mobile Application or Equipment: (i) access data on the Monitoring
Software not intended for Agency; (iii) log into an unauthorized Server or account on the Monitoring Software; (iv)
attempt to probe, scan or test the vulnerability of the Monitoring Software or Mobile Application or to breach the
security or authentication measures without proper authorization; (v} wilfully render any part of Monitoring Software
or Mobile Application unusable; (vi} reverse engineer, de-compile, disassembie or otherwise attempt to discover
the source code or underlying ideas or algorithms of the Monitoring Software or Mobila Application; (vii) modify,
translate, or create derivative works based on the Monitoring Software or Mobile Application; (viii) rent, lease,
distribute, license, sublicense, sell, resell, assign, or otherwise commercially exploit the Monitoring Software or

Agreement; (ix) use the Monitoring Software for timesharing or service bureau purposes or otherwise for the benefit
of a third party; (x) publish or disclose to third parties any evaluation of the Monitoring Software or Mobile
Application without AMS’ or its third party supplier's prior written consent; (xi) remove, modify, obscure any
copyright, trademark, patent or other proprietary notice that appears on the Monitoring Software or Mobile
Application; or (xii) create any link to the Monitoring Software or frame or mirror any content contained or accessible
from the Monitoring Software. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, no right or license is granted
hereunder, by implication, estoppel or otherwise.

4.2 Firmware License. The Products contain firmware developed and owned by AMS or its third-party
supplier. Agency is hereby granted a limited, non-exclusive, non-transferable, royalty-free license, for the Term,
as defined in Section 9.1 below, to use the firmware in the Products. Use of the Parts may be subject to third party
license agreements. AMS and its third-party suppliers shall retain all rights to the firmware contained in the
Products. Any applicable license shall be deemed to be in effect upon delivery of the Products.

4.3  Ownership: Limited License. Agency acknowledges that all right, title and interest in any software, Mobile
Application or firmware provided under this Agreement and al| modifications and enhancements thereof, including
all rights under copyright and patent and other intellectual property rights, belong to and are retained solely by
AMS or its third-party suppliers. This Agreement provides Agency only the rights expressly granted in this
Agreement. Further, if Agency suggests any new features or functionality for the Equipment, Monitoring Software
or Parts that AMS or its third party suppliers subsequently incorporate into the Products or Monitoring Software

Caonfidential
Master Agency Agres

20200428



4.4 EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT AND TO THE EXTENT ALLOWED BY
APPLICABLE LAW, AMS DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, WHETHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED,

5 SERVICE TERMS

51 Service Scope. AMS will provide Agency with the Services and support functions per the terms in this
Agreement. Unless otherwise eXpressly agreed to by the parties, AMS is not obligated to and will not provide
Services for any Equipment not obtained directly from AMS.

5.2 Monitoring Service Availability. AMS shall use commercially reasonable efforts to make the Monitoring
Services available for twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week. Agency agrees that from time to time
the Monitoring Services may be inaccessible or inoperable for reasons beyond the reasonable control of AMS,
including: (i} equipment maifunctions; (i) periodic maintenance procedures or repairs which AMS may undertake;
or (iif) interruption or failure of telecommunication or digital transmission links, hostile network attacks, network
congestion or other similar failures. Agency will not be entitled to any setoff, discount, refund or other credit as a
result of unavailability of the Monitoring Services unless expressly provided in this Agreement.

5.3 Monitoring Software Security. AMS shall use commercially reasonable efforts to prevent unauthorized
access to restricted areas of the Monitoring Software and any databases or other sensitive material. AMS reserves

suspected to be using his/her access to facilitate llegal, abusive or unethical activities. Such activities inciude
pornography, obscenity, violations of taw or privacy, hacking, computer viruses, or any harassing or harmful
materials or uses. Agency agrees to hold AMS harmless from any claims resulting from such use.,

5.4 Access to Monitoring Software. Agency agrees to limit requests for access to the Monitoring Software
to Agency personnrel who are authorized to enrall Clients, set notification aptions and otherwise access the

5.5 Equipment and Utilities. Agency is responsible and shall bear the costs assaciated with providing and
maintaining internet access and ali necessary telecommunications equipment, software and other materials

5.6 Equipment Maintenance. AMS and Agency shall establish a routine maintenance program designed to
keep the Equipment in good repair, working order and condition in accordance with AMS’ then-published
specifications, including establishing a schedule that will ensure the return of the Equipment to AMS at
approximately annual intervals. Unless otherwise agreed, Agency shall be responsible for (i) coliecting any
Equipment from Clients that Is scheduled for maintenance and (ii} shipping it fo AMS having first obtained a RMA

Confidential
Master Agency Agree

24200428



prior approval from AMS, send to AMS for maintenance any Equipment not then scheduled for maintenance.
Equipment returned to AMS for any reason, including rental returns, damages, and scheduled repairs, that are not
accompanied with a properly issued RMA may be assessed a returned administrative charge.

57 Training and Certification. AMS will provide Agency personnel with on-line training and certification in
the use of the Products at AMS’ current training rates as quoted by AMS to Agency.

5.8 Additional or Changes to Services. From time-to-time, AMS may revise the scope of the Services,
subcontract or delegate to a third party some or all of the provision of the Services, or make substitutions, additions,
modifications and improvements to Monitoring Software and/or Services. Additionally, as a part of these changed
Services, AMS also may determine, at its sole option, to discontinue providing Services hereunder for specific
versions of the Products upon a minimum of one (1) year prior notice to Agency.

6. AGENCY RESPONSIBLITIES,

implementation of the Client enroliment, monitoring and notification options provided for the Monitoring Software.
For avoidance of doubt, Agency is solely responsible for the Mmanagement of the Clients, including the response to
any Client violations reported by AMS or its third-party providers. AMS is not responsible or liable for Agency’s
failure to properly fulfill its foregoing responsibilities.

6.2 Agreements with Clients. Agency shall obtain the necessary written consent from any Client authorizing
the tracking andfor monitoring of the Equipment by AMS or its subcontractors. Agenoy is solely responsible for
notifying Clients in writing of any restrictions or limitations on the use of the Equipment of which it is made aware
by AMS. These mandatory restrictions and prohibitions to be communicated to Clients are available on the
Monitoring Software platform in the form of a “Participant Agreement”. This Participant Agreement is not intended
to cover all possible requirements of the relationship between Agency and its Clients and should be reviewed by

L]

6.3 Third Party Call Center Support. If Agency determines that it will establish and use a third-party call
center to monitor and receive alerts from the Manitoring Software, then Agency will notify AMS and shall ensure
that personnel certified by AMS will operate the call center. Agency shall be responsible for all acts and omissions
of the third-party call center personnel granted access to Monitoring Software as if they were employees of Agency.

6.4 Research Studies. Agency agrees that prior to using the Equipment for a research study or publishing
any resuits from such a study, the Agency will obtain AMS’ prior written approval of the study and additional written
approval of any intent to publish the research results. AMS may, at its sole discretion, withhold any such approval.
Agency's breach of this Section 6.4 will be a material breach of the Agreement.

7 MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR

7.1 Maintenance and Repair Policy. Provided Agency; (i) pays to AMS the Service fee(s) for Equipment; and
(ii) installs the Equipment in accordance with AMS’ Instructions, for all Equipment manufactured by and ordered
directly from AMS, AMS will provide the necessary maintenance and repair for such Equipment at AMS’ expense
to enable it to function with the Monitoring Software in a manner substantially in accordance with the performance
parameters specified in the documentation for the specific Equipment. For any Parts manufactured by third parties
and sold by AMS, any service or repair commitment for that Part shall be solely as described in the relevant
Schedule for that Part. Products returned to AMS under warranty must be returned within thirty (30) days of issuance
of the RMA. Agency must return damaged or defective Products to AMS using the label or freight carrier information
provided by AMS to Agency at the time of RMA issuance,

7.2 Maintenange and Repair Policy Exclusions. The above policy does not cover Equipment that is obtained
from sources outside of AMS or is defective due to (i) improper use or installation, damage, accident, abuse or
alteration; (i) failure to comply with the operating and maintenance instructions set forth in the documentation for

Confidential
Master Agency Agree

20200428



the specific Equipment; (jii) servicing of the Equipment by anyone not authorized by AMS; (iv) failure of Agency to
obtain reasonable and necessary maintenance of the Equipment as contemplated under the Agreement: (v) use of
Parts in the repair of the Equipment that have not been approved in writing by AMS for use in the Equipment; or (vi)
use in connection with a third party product other than that as approved in writing by AMS.

7.3 Sole Remedy. in the event of g breach of the above Maintenance and Repair policy, Agency's sole remecy
shall be, at AMS’ option, the repair or replacement of the defective Equipment or Part by AMS.

7.4 Product Changes: Retrofit Activities. AMS shall have the right at any time (i) to change the design or
specifications of any Equipment without notice and without obligation to make the same or any similar change on
any Equipment previously purchased by Agency; and (ii) to refrofit or replace {during routine maintenance or
otherwise) any Equipment to incorporate any upgrades or updates then available. However, nothing herein shall
obligate AMS to provide Agency with all new models of Equipment at no additional cost, and AMS may charge a
fee for Equipment model upgrades in certain circumstances including, but not jimited to, a new line of products or
a change in underlying technology or technological advancements requiring significant changes to an existing
Equipment madel. Regarding the foregoing, in any case where AMS charges a fee for an Equipment model
upgrade, it will provide no less than six (6) months’ notice to Agency prior to discontinuing the sale or rental of the
discontinued Equipment model. In addition, AMS will continue to repair the Equipment for the shorter of three years

or date of termination of third-party technology services integral to the performance and functionality of the
discontinued Equipment.

8 CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

8.1 Confidential Information. In connection with this Agreement a party ("Discloser") may furnish to the other
party ("Recipient”) software, user and training manuals, data, Client information, designs, drawings, tracings, plans,
layouts, specifications, samples, equipment and other information provided by or on behalf of Discloser to Recipient,
that should reasonably have been understood by Recipient, because of (i) legends or other markings, or (ii) the
circumstance of disclosure or the nature of the information itself, to be proprietary and confidential to Discloser or
to a third party (“Confidential Information”}., Confidential Information specifically Includes ali information accessed
by Agency via the Menitoring Software. Cenfidential Information may be disclosed in written or other tangible form
(including digital or other electronic media) or by oral, visual or other means. Fach party agrees not to disclose to
the ather party any confidential or proprietary information of third parties unless authorized to do so. The parties
each agree to treat this Agreement, including all exhibits hereto, as Confidential Information of each party.

8.2 Nondisclosure. It is agreed that, after receipt of Confidential Information of the other party, Recipient
shall: (i) restrict the dissemination of such Confidential Information to those employees who need to use the
Confidential Information in the performance of this Agreement, and (ii) to use no less than a reasonable standard
of care in safeguarding against unauthorized disclosure of such Confidential Information. Recipient agrees to have
an appropriate nondisclosure agreement signed by each of its employees, agents and contractors who may be
exposed to Discloser's Confidential Information,

8.3 Exceptions from Confidential Information. Confidential Information shall not include information that: (i)
Is or becomes part of the public domain without violation of this Agreement by Recipient, (ii} is already in Recipient's
possession free of any restriction on use or disclosure, (iii) becomes available to Recipient from a third party
provided that such party was free from restriction on disclosure of the information or {iv) has been independently
developed by Recipient,

8.4 Required Disclosures. If Recipient is required by legal proceeding discovery request, “open records” or
equivalent request, investigative demand, subpoena, court or government order to disclose Confidentia|
Information, Recipient may disclose such Confidential Information provided that: (1) the disclosure is limited to the
extent and purpose legally required; and (ii) prior to any disclosure, Recipient shall immediately notify Discloser in
writing of the existence, terms and conditions of the required disclosure and, at Discloser’s request and expense

Cooperate in obtaining a protective order or other reliable assurance that confidential treatment will be accorded the
Confidential Information,

9 TERM AND TERMINATION

9.1 Term. This Agreement shall commence from the Effective Date and shall continue for the period specified
on page one (the “Initial Term”) unless earlier terminated in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. After

Confidential
Master Agency Agree

20200428



the Initial Term expires, this Agreement can be extended by mutual written agreement of the parities for additional
terms (each a “Renewal Term"). The Initial Term, together with any Renewal Term, is referred to as the “Term”.

9.2 Termination for Convenience. This Agreement may be terminated for convenience at any time upon
thirty (30) days prior written notice by one party to the other.

9.3 Termination for Breach. Either party may terminate this Agreement; (i) if a voluntary or involuntary petition
in bankruptcy, receivership, assignment for the benefit of creditors or other similar insolvency action is filed or levied
against the other party and not discharged within sixty (60) days after the filing or levy thereof: (i} by written notice
by the non-breaching party, if the other party fails to cure any nonpayment of money owed to the other party under
this Agreement within thirty (30) days of such notice; (iii) by written notice by the non-breaching party, if the other
party fails to cure any material breach of this Agreement {(other than non-payments described in clause (it) above)
within sixty (60) days of such notice (it is understood; however, that a violation of law, breach of confidentiality or
misuse of access grants that cannot be cured shall be grounds for immediate termination); or (iv) immediately, by

written notice by the non-breaching party, upon the second commission of a previously remedied material breach
under clause (iii} above.

9.4 Termination for Non-Appropriation of Funds. In the event that Agency is unable to continue to make
payments required hereunder due to a failure of the responsible governtnental entity to make available funding to
the level and in the amount required to remain in compliance with Agency’s financial obligations hereunder, then
upon the occurrence of such a non-appropriation event and on the date that the requisite funding ceases to be
available to the Agency, Agency may terminate this Agreement, without further financial obligation or liability to AMS
other than to pay for Products and Services previously delivered to Agency or performed for Agency.

9.5 Survival. This Section, any indemnity obligations of either party, and Sections 4.3,44,6,8, 11,121 and
12.2 shall survive termination of this Agreement.

10 EFFECT OF TERMINATION

10.1  Payments; Return of Equipment. Upon any termination of this Agreement or any Schedule incorporated
by reference herein, Agency shall provide AMS with all outstanding payments due and, within ten (10) days of the
termination, return to AMS all Equipment not owned by Agency or, if so directed by AMS, fo AMS’ third party
supplier. Upon termination of this Agreement, each party shall deliver or destroy afl Confidential Information of the

other party which is in its possession, care or control within thirty (30) days of termination except for backup and
archived Client data.

1 ALLOCATION OF LIABILITY

Each party agrees, to the extent allowed by law, to defend, indemnify and hold the other party and its officers,
directors, shareholders, employess and third party suppliers (collectively, the “Indemnified Parties”) harmless from
and against all [osses, damages and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, in connection with any claims
against the Indemnified Parties arising out of or related to the negligence or willful misconduct of the other party’s
employees or agents. Further, Agency shall indemnify and hold harmless AMS and its officers, directors,
shareholders, employees and third-party suppliers against the acts of any Client assigned to wear the Equipment,
including claims for personal, injury property damage or death. An indemnifying party shall have the foregoing
obligation only if the other party provides: (i) a prompt written request for indemnification and defense in such claim
or action; (i) sole control of the defense and settlement thereof; and {iif) all available information, assistance and
authority reasonably necessary to settle and defend any such claim or action.

EXCEPT AS ALLOWED BY APPLICABLE LAW, UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL A PARTY TO THIS
AGREEMENT BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY OR ANY OTHER THIRD PARTY FOR INDIRECT, SPECIAL,
INCIDENTAL, EXEMPLARY OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, DAMAGES
FOR LOSS OF GOODWILL, PROFITS, DATA, (OR USE THEREOQF), OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION ARISING
OUT OF ANY ACTS OR FAILURES TO ACT, WHETHER SUCH DAMAGES ARE LABELED IN STRICT LIABILITY,

TORT, CONTRACT OR OTHERWISE, EVEN IF IT HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH
DAMAGES.

AMS HAS NO RESPONSIBILITY OR LIABILITY FOR ACTS THAT MAY BE COMMITTED BY INDIVIDUALS
WHILE THEY ARE CLIENTS. EXCEPT AS LIMITED BY APPLICABLE LAW, UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES
SHALL THE TOTAL LIABILITY OF AMS FOR ALL CLAIMS OF ANY KIND WHATSOEVER, AND UNDER ANY

Confidential
Master Agency Agree

20200428



THEORY OF LIABILITY, EXCEED THE TOTAL AMOUNT PAID BY AGENCY TO AMS DURING THE TWELVE
MONTHS IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING THE EARLIEST EVENT GIVING RISE TO THE CLAIM,

The limitations set forth in this Section 11 shall apply even if any exclusive remedy in this Agreement fails of its
essential purpose. The allocation of liability in this Section 11 represents the agreed and bargained for
understanding of the parties and each party’s compensation hereunder reflects such allocations.

12 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

121 Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the
State of Colorado without regard to its conflicts of laws provisions. AMS and Agency hereby irrevocably consent to
jurisdiction, service of process and venue in the City and County of Denver, Colorado.

party shall bear its own expenses with respect to such arbitration and shall share equally in the expenses of the
arbitrator and the fees of the American Arbitration Association,

123  Injunctive Relief. Notwithstanding anything above to the contrary, either party at any time may apply to a
court having jurisdiction thereof for a temporary restraining order, preliminary injunction or other appropriate order
where such relief may be necessary to protect its interests {including, without limitation, any breach of the

obligations under Sections 4 and/or 8), without any showing or proving of any actual damages and without posting
a bond or other security.

124  Non-Discrimination and Business Code of Conduct.

12.4.1 Non-discrimination. To the extent not exempt, the parties shall abide by the requirements
of 41 CFR §§ 60-1.4(a}, 60-300.5(a) and 60-741.5(a). These regulations prohibit discrimination against
qualified individuals based on their status as protected veterans or individuals with disabilities and prohibit
discrimination against all individuals based on their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity, or national origin. Moreover, these regulations require that covered prime contractors and

12.5 Records Retention and Audit Rights. Agency will retain all records relating to the Agreement or any
Schedule for a period of seven (7) years after termination of the Agreement or applicable Schedule. During the
Term, upon ten (10) days prior written notice, and not more than once per year (unless circumstances warrant
additional audits as described below), AMS may audit Agency'’s procedures and records that relate to the obligations
under this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties agres that AMS may conduct an audit at any time,

in the event of (i) audits required by governmental or regulatory authorities or (ii) investigations of a breach of this
Agreement.

126  Assignment. Except as expressly permitted herein, neither party may transfer or assign this Agreement,
in whole or in part, without the written consent of the other party and any such attempt at transfer or assignment
shall be void. Notwithstanding the foregoing, AMS may transfer or assign this Agreement to an entity that is an
affiliate of AMS or, in the event of a sale of all or substantially all of its assets or equity, each without the consent of
Agency. This Agreement shall extend to and be binding upon any successors and permitted assigns of the parties,

12.7  No Agency: Independent Contractor. The use of the term “Agency” in this Agreement is solely for
convenience and is not intended to make either party an agent of the other party. This Agreement does not
constitute and shall not he construed as constituting an agency, distributorship or joint venture business

Confidential
Master Agency Agree

20200428



12.8  Force Majeure. Except for the obligation to make payments as provided herein, neither party shall be in
default under this Agreement by reason of its delay in the performance of, or failure to perform, any of its obligations
under this Agreement, If, and to the extent that, such delay or failure is caused by strikes, wars, natural disasters,
acts of the public enemy, government restrictions or acts of terrorism. Upon claiming any excuse or delay under
this Section, such party shall promptly notify the other party, use reasonable efforts to remove the cause and
continue its performance under this Agreement whenever the cause is removed.

12.9  Notices. Al notices, requests, demands or communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in
writing, delivered personally or by electronic malil, facsimile or overnight delivery service at the respective addresses
set forth herein (or at such other addresses as shall be given in writing by either party to the other). All notices,
requests, demands or communications shall be deemed effective upon receipt for personal defivery, or on the
business day following the date of sending by electronic mail, facsimile or overnight delivery service.

12.10 Waiver; Severability. Any waiver of any default or breach of this Agreement shall be effective only if in
writing and signed by an authorized representative of the party providing the waiver. No such waiver shall be
deemed to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach or default. If any provision of this Agreement is held to
be invalid, the remaining portions of this Agreement shall remain in full force.

12.11 Publicity. AMS shall have the right to issue news releases, press releases or other communications
regarding this Agreement to potential investors and customers. However, AMS shall not disclose any names of
Clients without the prior written approval of the Client and Agency.

1212 Headings. Headings used in this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not be
construed as altering the meaning of this Agreement or any of its parts.

1213 Execution. This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in one or more counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. The parties
agree that signatures on this Agreement, as well as any other documents to be executed under this Agreement,
may be delivered by facsimile or email and signed using a portable document format or an electronic signature in

lieu of an original signature, and the parties agree to treat such signatures as original signatures and agree to be
bound by this provision.

12.14 Entire Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire understanding of the parties and supersedes all
prior or contemporaneous written and oral agreements, representations or negotiations with respect to the subject
matter hereof. This Agreement may not be modified or amended except in writing and signed by both parties.

Confidential
Master Agency Agree

20200428



IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties’ hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their dully authorized
representatives as of the date last signed by AMS.

CIBOLA COUNTY DWI PROGRAM ALLCOHOL MONITORING SYSTEMS, INC.

By: _ By:

Name: Kate Fletcher Name:  John Hennessey

Title: City Manager : Title: Chief Revenue Officer

Date:

By:

Name:

Title;

Date:

Attest:

Clerk of Agency

Signed by AMS and effective as of:

Effective Date

Confidenttal
Master Agency Agree

20200428



PRODUCT AND SERVICE SCHEDULE
TO
MASTER AGENCY AGREEMENT

AGENCY: CIBOLA COUNTY DWI PROGRAM

This PRODUCT AND SERVICES SCHEDULE (“Schedule”) to the MASTER AGENCY AGREEMENT {the “Agreement’) is
entered into on the date last signed by AMS by and between Alcohol Monitoring Systems, Inc. (*AMS") and the Agency identified
above. This Schedule is incorporated by reference into the Agreement effective executed by the parties.

Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms in this Schedule are those as defined in the Agreement. This Schedule is
effective on the date signed by AMS.

AMS hereby desires to provide Agency with Equipment and sell the Agency supporting Services and Agency desires to order
such Equipment and purchase such Services as defined in this Schedule during the Term.

1. DEFINITIONS
a. “Active Equipment” means any Equipment unit activety using the Monitoring Software.
b. “Additional Monitoring Services” means, if Agency is purchasing such services, the additional Monitoring

Services provided by AMS and as further defined on Attachment 1, at the pricing set forth in Attachment 1, Schedule A,

C. “CAM Equipment” means, if applicable perthe pricing table below, an ankle bracelet device that continuously
monitors alcohol levels and if configured as a kit, the base station.

d. “Service Fee” as used on the Schedule(s) means the Monitoring Service fee charged by AMS to Agency per
each Equipment unit, per day using the Monitoring Services.

e “Equipment” means collectively the GPS equipment, CAM equipment, various base stations, the Remote

Breath Analyzer, the Radio Frequency House Arrest bracelet, Wireless Multi-connect devices and various base stations
if sold separately rather than in kit configuration.

f. “GPS Equipment” means, if applicable per the pricing table below, a device that monitors Client's
geophysical location based on exclusion and inclusion zones and includes the base station if configured as a kit.

d. “House Arrest Equipment” means, if applicable per the pricing table below, an electronic ankle device that
monitors Client's adherence to a home arrest curfew schedule and includes the base station If configured as a kit.

h. “Remote Breath Equipment” means, if applicable per the pricing table below, a device that measures alcohol
levals in the breath and may have facial recognition capabilities.

i “SLA" means the Sertvice Level Agreement Information document, which is attached to this Schedule as
Attachment 1 and is only applicable if Agency is purchasing or renting Equipment with Additional Monitoring Services.
Specific SLA protocols wili be agreed to in a separate SLA document signed by Agency.

i- “Wireless Base Station” means, if applicable per the pricing table below, an AMS device that uses cellular
transmission to connect with another device, such as a House Arrest or CAM bracelet.

k. “Wireless Multi-connect Device” means, if applicable per the pricing table below, a third-party wireless
device that connects multiple elecironic hardware devices, such a CAM bracelet to a base station.

2. TERRITORY: NA

3. EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE LIMITATIONS AND SPEGIAL REQUIREMENTS
3.1 GENERAL EQUIPMENT LIMITATIONS

311 Alcohol Detgction, The CAM Equipment is not designed to give immediate nofification of alcohol detection.

3.1.2  Tamper Efforts. AMS makes no assurances that the any Equipment wom by a Client will detect all tamper
efforts.

3.1.3  Submergence in Water or Other Liquid. Equipment Is not designed for submergence in liquids. Certain
Equipment can tolerate limited water exposure such as that encountered when showering.

1
Agency Product and Services Schedule Purchase and Rental
Version 20201016



3.1.4  Failure by Agency to Adhere to Maintenance Schedules. AMS boars no liability for Agency's failure to

adhere to Equipment maintenance notifications andfor schedules related to equipment and calibratton,
3.2 REMOTE BREATH EQUIPMENT LIMITATIONS

3.241 Set Up. Agency is responsible for entering and updating schedules for each Client and setting up all
relevant notifications, including all methods and events. Further, Agency is responsible for establishing a program
providing the necessary criteria to interpret all testing results provided by AMS. The Equipment is intended fo be used
to determine if a Client has consumed alcohol. It is a professional device designed to be used by trained Agency
personnel in conjunction with a routine Agency-run equipment maintenance and calibration oversight program. Use
by untrained personnel or without periodic maintenance or calibration may resultin invalid results or incorrect
interpretation of results,

3.2.2 Breath Test Results. AMS will not analyze or interpret testing results, reporting histories, or provide an
opinion as to whether the Client has consumed alcohol. The concentration of alcohol in the blood of the Client cannot
be exactly determined by using a breath alcohol-screening device. Blood alcohol concentration depends on a number
of variables Including, but not limited to, the amount of alcohol consumed, the rate at which it was consumed, body
size, age, physical health and the rate of which the Client metabolizes alcohol. No vehicle or machinery should ever be -

operated after alcohol consumption, regardiess of the breath test result as aven small quantities of alcohol can result
in driving impairment.

3.23 Other Limitations. The SCRAM Remote Breath Equipment is not waterproof and should not be immersed

in or exposed in any way to liquids. Equipment damaged by Clients or by exposure to water will not be repaired and is
subject to the lost/damaged Equipment unit replacement fee.

3.3 ADDITIONAL MONITORING SERVICES - 24/7 REQUIREMENTS. Additional Monitoring Services are
supportad by a separate SLA document, which must be completed for each Client. Each SLA specifies, among other
things, the type, description and price of the Monitoring Services to be provided. Any modifications of the terms of the
SL.A shall be made solely in writing and mutually executed by the parties and any other attempt to modify the terms of
the SLA shall be vold. AMS is not liable for; (i) the actions or inactions of Agency or its employees, contractors and
agents that result in delay or error in the Services; (i) failure to report Client non-compliant activities to appropriate
supervising authorities when potential bond, parole or probation violations have occurred; or (iii) inaccurate information
provided or input into the Monitoring Software, including Client or other contact information, GPS inclusionfexclusion
zone set up and offender scheduls information and associated protocols.

3.4 WIRELESS EQUIPMENT AND NETWORK LIMITATIONS. AMS prbvides a choice of data network
providers as a part of its Services for the Wireless Multi-connect Device and other Equipment. AMS accepts no
responsibility or liability for wireless data coverage or lack thereof. No data will be transmitted when a data network that

s supporting the Equipment is not available. Wireless Multi-connect Davices do not provide caller location or caller
identification.

4 EQUIPMENT AND SERVICE PRICING:

4.1 Purchased Equipment

Equipment Type ___Quantity _Price per Unit _ Servic_e Fee per Unit, per Day 7
CAM Kit Landline Base | 1+ | 1500 T340 T
Station
CAM Bracelet 1+ $1200 $4.40
CAM Kit Wireless Base 1+ $1735 $4.40
Station
GPS Bracelst T 600 [ 52.60
GPS Beacon 1+ $400 $0.60
GPS On-body Charger 1+ $125 NA
House Arrest Kit Landline ' 1+. $600 . $‘1 30
Base Station
House Arrest Bracelet 1+ $240 $1.30
House Arrest Kit Wireless 1+ $835 $1.30
Base Station

2

Agency Product and Services Schedule Purchase and Rental
Version 20201016



CAM/HA Landline Base 1+ $400 NA
Station _
CAM/HA Wirelass Base T+ 1 §650 $100
Station
Remole Broaih Kt it $850 $2.60
4,2 Rental Equipment Price
Equipment Type Quantity | Service Fee | Rental Daily Service Fee per | Shelf Fee
per Unit, Equipment Fee, Unit (includes Rental
per Day per Unit, per Day | Equipment Fee)

CAM Set Landl $4.40 $2.17 $6.57 $2.17
Base Station
CAM Bracelet 1+ $4.49 $1.73 $6.13 51.73
CAM Set Wireless | 1+ $4.40 $2.51 $7.91 $2.51
Base Station
GPS Bracelot T+ $2.60 $0.97 $3.57 $1.12
GPS Beacon 1+_ $0.60 $0.59 _ $1.19 $1_.20

“House ArrestSet | 1% $1.30 $0.87 §2.17 750.87
Landline Base
Station
House Arrest 1+ $1.30 $0.35 $1.85 $0.35
Bracelet
House Arrest Set 1+ $1.30 $2.16 $3.36 $1.21
Wireless Base
Sta_tion
Remote Breath 17 $2.60 $2.45 $5.05 $2.45
Equipm_ent
CAM/HA Landiine | 1% NA NA NA NA
Base Station
Standalone
CAM/HA Wireless | 1+ $1.00 $0.94 $1.94 0.94
Base Station
Standalone

Note 1: If purchasing/renting the Wireless Base Station kitte
the amount for CAM or HA Kit listed above, plus the Service
station as if It were purchased/rented as a standalone unit, T,

5. ADDITIONAL SERVICES

d with CAM or HA Equipment, the Service Eee will be invoiced at
Fee amount listed above for the CAM or HA Wireless Base
he same concept applies to Daily Rental GPS Beacons.

Training: AMS will provide Agency personnel with training in the use of the Products. Any such fraining wilt be at no

charge to Agency.

Ethernet Communication: $0.50 per Equipment unit, per day

RB Associated Consumables: AMS will
Equipment units.

provide 1 calibration kit for each order with a quantity of 25 Remote Breath

RB Galibration Fee: AMS will calibrate Remote Breath Equipment for a charge of $50 per Equipment unit.

Consumabies:

usage for a particular product, usually based on

are avaiiable for purchase. A complete listing of consumables
purchase price, is located under that Help tab in SCRAMnet,
assist customers in their normal operations. A complete listing

purchase prices, is iccated under the Help tab in

Agency Product and Services Schedule Purchase and Rental
Version 20201016

additional charge

AMS electronic monitoring devices require the use of certain consumable items for proper
up to the amount of the customer's normal expected

monitored days. Consumables in excess of normal expected usage

SCRAMnet.
3

for AMS electronic monitoring devices, including current
In addition, AMS offers for sale certain accessories that
of accessories available for purchase, including current



Consumable Calculation Example:

90 CAM units on for a 30 day/monthly period

Results in 2700 monitored days

Using a normal expected usage of 90 days for battery/faceplate kits
Allocated 30 battery faceplate kits for the month.

6 MOBILE APPLICATIONS:

TouchPoint Overview: TouchPoint is an AMS proprietary mobile application designed for use by Clients who are using
AMS or other electronic monitoring devices under the Agency’s supervision. AMS will provide the Agency with TouchPoint
training. Clients will downioad TouchPoint to their cell phone and upon first use agree to the TouchPoint Mobile Application
Terms and Conditions of User. The Agency will provide TouchPolint {raining to the Clients.

TouchPoint Price/Billing:
Price:  TouchPFoint Client Users wearing AMS Equipment: No charge
TouchPoeint Client Users not wearing AMS Equipment: $0.50 per TouchPoint Client User, per day when active

Billing: AMS will invoice the Agency monthly in arrears. Payment terms will be those as set forth in the
Agreement. TouchPoint price is subject to change upon availability of additional features/function. AMS will contact

Agency if the price changes and if the new price cannot be agreed on by Amendment on this Agreement, TouchPoint
will become unavailable with 30 days prior notice.

Ally Overview: The Ally Mabile Application is an AMS proprietary mobile application designed for Victim notification
used to alert a Victim when a Client wearing an AMS GPS Bracelet is in geographic proximity of the Victim's phone.
AMS will provide the Agency with Ally Mobile Application training. Victims will download the Ally Mobile Application to
their cell phone and upon first use agree to the Ally Mobile application terms and Conditions of Use. The Agency will
provide Ally Mobile Application fraining to the Victim. The alert geographic boundary is set by the Agency in the
Monitering Software. The Client must be on a 1x1 rate plan if they are paired with a Victim. The term “Victim” means a
person who is a participant in a victim notification program managed by Customer and who is authorized by
Customer to download and activate the Ally Mobile Application on hisfher personal moblle device so that the Victim
can receive alerts related to the Client based on parameters set up by Gustomer in the Monitoring Software.

Required Actions by Customer, Client and Victim:

It is understood and agreed by the parties that the Ally Mobile Application is to be used as a part of a written victim
notification program managed by Customer whereby the Client is enrolled in a GPS monitoring program requiring the
wearing of a SCRAM GPS Ankle Monitor Bracelat.

The Ally Mobile Application is not a substitute for the Victim remaining vigilant to protect hisfher personal safety and
cannot be relied upon as the sole means of maintaining the Victim’s personal safety. Each Victim must comply is all
respects with the detailed requirements listed in the Ally Mobile Application Terms and Conditions which are available
via a link in the Ally Mobile Application. In addition, the timely receipt and/or accuracy of alerts from the Ally Mabile
Applications are dependent upon: {i} the Victim's full compliance with the requirements of the Ally Mobile Application
Terms and Conditions; (i) full compliance of the Client with the requirements of histher GPS location monitoring
program, including but not limited fo, the Client not tampeting with or removing hisfher device; (iii) the proper set up
and maintenance in the Monitoring Software by Customer of all zones, schedules and victim information for the relevant
Client; and {iv) the Client's SCRAM GPS Ankle Monitor Bracelet being “active” so that notifications can be sent to the
Ally Mobile Application. Customer shall be solely responsible for the management and supervision of any Client, Victims
or Customer personnel using the Monitoring Software. In addition, Customer Is solely responsible for (i} the
development of a Victim notification program, (ii) the maintenance of a separately contracted GPS monitoring program
requiring the wearing by Clients of SCRAM GPS Ankle Monitor Bracelets, (iil) the selection and implementation of the
Victim enrollment process, (iv) the set up and maintenance of the monitaring and notification options available in the
Monitoring Software (including maintenance of all zones, schedules and victim information) and (v) the training of
Victims in the set up and use of the Ally Mobile Application. AMS is not responsible or liable for Customer's fallure to
properly fulfill its foregoing responsibilities AMS IS NOT RESPONSIBLE OR LIABLE TO CUSTOMER, CLIENT OR
VICTIM IF THE ALLY MOBILE APPLICATION DOES NOT PROVIDE TIMELY OR AGCURATE NOTIFICATIONS

OR ALERTS DUE TO A FAILURE OF CUSTOMER, CLIENT OR VICTIM TO COMPLY WITH ANY OF THE
FOREGOING.

Price: $1 per day, per Victim per Ally user.

Billing: AMS will invoice the Agency monthly in arrears. Payment terms will be those as set forth in the Agreement. Ally
price is subject to change upen availability of additional features/function. AMS will contact Agency if the price changes

and if the new price cannot be agreed on by Amendment on this Agreement, Ally will become unavailable with 30 days
prior notice.

4
Agency Product and Services Sclhiedule Purchase and Rental
Version 20201016



7 SHELF FEE; SHELF ALLOWANCE; LOSS AND DAMAGE ALLOWANCE; LOST AND DAMAGE FEE:

Shelf Fee: A Shelf Fes is only charged if there is an amount in the Rental Equipment Fee column "in the table above
and there is a Shelf Allowance percentage listed below.

Shelf Allowance: 20%

Loss and Damage Allowance: 5%

Loss and Damage Fee: The replacement foe for Rental Equipment iost or damage beyond repair will be the
purchase price, per unit, listed above or as follows. For Parts it will be the current replacement cost from the

manufacturer. GPS refurbishment fee will be $365.50, CAM refurbishment fee will be $600 for those units that can be
repaired.

8 SPECIAL TERMS: NA

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties' hereto have caused this Agreement o be executed by their dully authorized
representatives as of the date last signed by AMS.

THIS SCHEDULE, AND THE AGREEMENT OF WHICH IT IS A PART, IS A COMPLETE AND EXCLUSIVE STATEMENT OF
THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE PARTIES, WHICH SUPERSEDES ALL PRIOR SCHEDULE AND ANY PROPOSALS AND
UNDERSTANDINGS BETWEEN THE PARTIES RELATING TO THE SUBJEGT MATTER OF THIS SCHEDULE. By execution,
both signers certify that each is authorized to execute the Schedule on behalf of their respective companies.

CIBOLA COUNTY DWI PROGRAM ALCOHOL MONITORING SYSTEMS, INC.
By: By:
Name: Kate Fletcher Name: _John Hennessey
Title: City Manager Title: Chief Revenue Officer
Date:

Signed by AMS and effective as of:

Effective Date

Agency Product and Services Schedule Purchase and Rental
Version 20201016



ATTACHMENT 1~ MONITORING SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT INFORMATION
TO
PRODUCT AND SERVICE SCHEDULE
TO
MASTER AGENCY AGREEMENT

1 OVERVIEW

The following information details the alert and notification protocols that AMS will provide to Agency for those Clients
using Equipment that requires Additional Monitoring Services and is incorporated by reference into the Product and .
Services Schedule to the Master Agency Agreement between the parties.

1.1 SERVICES

1.1.1 Additional Monlforing Services, AMS will provide Additional Monitoring Services on a 24/7, 365 day
basis. The Monitoring Services are provided by AMS and not a third parly. Services generally consist
of outbound calls made by AMS to Probation Officers, law enforcement or Clients, telephone calling or

customized Monitoring Services based on alert protocol specifications entered into the Monitoring
Software.

1.1.2 Contact Information and Monitorin rvice Level Aqree t Form, Agency will contract AMS to
configure the Monitoring Software to maintain all alert protecols and contact information.

1.1.3 Alert Protocols, Agency will contact AMS to set up alert protocols that will documented in a separate SLA
for each Gustomer.

1.1.4 Alert Resnonse Time. AMS will respond to outbound alerts within 30 minutes of recsiving notification
of alert and will follow the protocols as configured for Agency.

115 Recording, The Monitoring Software will record inbound and outbound requests made by telephone. For
quality purposes AMS will provide individual recordings of the telephone transactions upon written request.

1.1.6 Reporting. Upon writtén request, AMS wilt provide Agency with the following information:

= Number of alerts received for a specific period oftime
"  Average time fo respond to alerts
*  Results/notes of calls

1.2 PRICE AND PAYMENT. Additional Monitoring Service standard fees are identified on Schedule A
hereto, but will be formally agreed to in the SLA, and will be invoiced by AMS on a monthly basis as incurred and
shall be paid by Agency the payment terms set forth in the Agreement from the date of such invoice and the
remedies under the Agreement shall apply fo any non-payment.

Agency Product and Services Schedule Purchase and Rental
Version 20201016



SCHEDULE A — ADDITIONAL MON!ITORING SERVICE FEES
ATTACHMENT 1 —SER\-II-I(().‘.E LEVEL AGREEMENT
PRODUCT AND S-II;?{VICE SCHEDULE
MASTER AGEJ(?Y AGREEMENT

SERVICE LEVEL CHOOSEN: PREMIER

SERVICE APPLICABLE PRODUCT(s): Check the box for the Product(s) you are purchasing the Additional Services for.

CAM ] REMOTE BREATH' [T - HOUSE ARREST O GPS
'ADDITIONAL MONITORING SERVICES . CAM o REMOTE BREATH, HOUSE .

ARREST GPS ( Per Day, Per .

Standard (Inc[uded in Serv:ces Fee)

24/7/365 monitoring services . No Additional Charge ' No Add]tlonal Charge

Online training and certifications

Automated alert notifications delivered via text,
email or page

Daily summary reports

24/7 alert generation and analysis

‘Premier . : . o -

« Standard, plus: Not Available $1.00

¢ High priority alert investigation/ handling/
resolution

e Manual outhound officer and offender calls

+ Closed loop documentation of alert handling/
resolution (1-3 calls per alert)

» Premier, plus: )

¢ Outbound offender and officer calls based on
defined protocols and escalation procedures
per SLA

» Escalated alert notifications to officers and/for
supervisors {e.g. highest autharity for
notiﬁcation) {>3 calls per alert)

Not Available $1.25/day/Client

For data entry, schedule changes, on-site Priced for each service | Priced for each sarvice in the SLA
training, operational assessments, agency and in the SLA
court reporting packages

Agency Product and Services Schedule Purchase ancl Rental
Version 20201016



Tammz Morgan

From: Brett Wilday <BWilday@scramsystems.coms
Sent: Wednesday, August 25, 2021 1:47 PM

To: Joanna Pena

Cc: Brett Wilday

Subject: SCRAM quate

Hello and good afternoon Ms. Pena,

Thanks for the time on the phone this afternoon., Per the conversation here is a price quote for purchased vs
rented SCRAM products.

Purchase Daily Fee

CAM Bracelet: $1,200.00 $4.40

Wireless Base Station: $650.00  $1.00

Standard Base Station: $400.00  $.50 Ethernet $0.00 analog phone
GPS bracelet: $600.00 52.60

CAM Bracelet Refurbish: $600.00

Daily When on Rental

CAM Bracelet: $6.28
Wireless Base Station:$2.02
Standard Base Station:$.63
GPS bracelet: $3.57

Victim Notification App

This is a smart phone App the victim downloads and is paired with SCRAM GPS device to alert the victim if GPS
bracelet is close by,

Daily Fee when active $1.00

Please iet me know if you have any questions|

Brett



Resolution 22-14

Auth. The Auction/Disposal of Computer
Equipment




Cibola County

Cibola County
Cibola County Commission 700 E. Roosevelt Ave., Suite 50
Daniel J. Torrez, Chairman Grants, New Mexico 87020
Martha Garcia, 1%t Vice-Chair Phone (505) 287-9431 — Fax (505) 285-5434 =
Christine Lowery, 274 Vice-Chair
Robert Windhorst, Commissioner Kate Fletcher
Ralph Lucero, Commissioner County Manager

County Manager

Resolution No. 2022-14

Fiscal Year 2022

Resolution Authorizing Auction and Disposal of Cibola County Computer Equipment

WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978 Section 4-38-1 the powers of a county as a body politic
and corporate shall be exercised by a board of county commissioners; and,

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 4-38-13 provides that board of county commissioners shall
have power at any session to make such orders concerning the property belonging to the
county as they may deem expedient; and,

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 13-6-2 provides that the County give notification at least thirty
days prior to its action making the deletion by sending a copy of its official finding and the
proposed disposition of the property to the state auditor and the appropriate approval
authority designated in Section 13-6-2 NMSA 1978, duly sworn and subscribed under oath by
each member of the authority approving the action.; and,

WHEREAS, NMSA 1978, Section 13-6-2 provides, in pertinent part, that the “sale or
disposition of real or tangible personal property having a current resale value of more than
five thousand dollars ($5,000) may be made by a . . . local public body. . . if the sale or

disposition has been approved by . . . the local government division of the department of
finance and administration for local public bodies; and,

WHEREAS, the County is in possession of 149 desktops, 8 Servers, 115 Monitors, 66 Printers,
28 UPS, & 22 Switches that were utilized by various departments and are now obsolete, have
reached end of life, or are unsupported; and,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of Cibola
County that it authorizes the sale of the vehicles and equipment, contingent upon securing the
approval of the local government division of the department of finance and administration and
sending notification to the office of the state auditor; and,

WHEREAS, the disposition of property descriptions and information stated on the
attachment labeled “Auction and Disposal of Cibola County Computer
Equipment.”

Page 1 of 2



Cibola County
Cibola County

Cibola County Commission 700 E. Roosevelt Ave., Suite 50

Daniel J. Torrez, Chairman Grants, New Mexico 87020

Martha Garcia, 1%t Vice-Chair Phone (505) 287-9431 — Fax (505) 285-5434 =
Christine Lowery, 27 Vice-Chair B
Robert Windhorst, Commissioner Kate Fletcher
Ralph Lucero, Commissioner County Manager

County Manager

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED by the governing body at its regular meeting on the

21™ day of January 2022.
THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS:
Daniel J. Torrez, Chairman
Martha Garcia, 15t Vice-Chair
ATTEST:
Christine Lowery, 2md Vice-Chair
Michelle E Dominguez, County Clerk Ralph Lucero, Commissioner

Robert Windhorst, Commissioner

Page 2 of 2



RFP 2022-01

Selection of Consulting Services for Multi-
Hazard Mitigation Plan



088 06 08g 0TV SINVLITNSNOD DYvY
<19 0s 06T SLE 377 ONIAN WOQ338d AW
SNOLLN10S
1
o] a3a4nvnosia a3idnvnosia a3dInvnosia ALIX3TINGD SINA
598 00T SLE 06E INI ‘S3LVID0SSY dS3
SIvi0L SINIOd 0ST SINIOd 00t SINIOd 05t SLNIOd
44 SIY l payuspy “Hom palinbau ayy a1ajdwod 03 Ajyiqe 5,J0J340 ajensuowap
434uiny pinoMm Jey3 spJEMe puUe SuoiedyIIad AU Jo sajdo)
pawojiad sem ao1A1as AUyl uaym SE3OM 0 3d03s a1 ||1)|ny |1M NoA Moy saquasag "123foud sjy3 uo
apinodd ‘padinbal 310 auyy wiopiad 03 spjoy yaea suoneayyenb
PUE Yaea o3 papinold aaiauss jo adAy sy aquasap JUBNSUOD AY3 Yym ylom 03 paudisse ag pjnom oym 44e3s poddns ayy 3y} 3G1S3p PuE ‘FUPLIOM 50 PINOM ILEINSLES 3
(o1q1s504 000°T) OS|B 3SNLU JOJ3jIQ "sadiAIas de|jwis papiacsd|  saynuap) ‘saiep uop|dwod afo.d siy3 yoeoidde 03 spuajul weay 4 2q! PP B qaPpl H 4
dunsoddns vosiad yoea yaiym ur Aypedes ay1 auyaq 9sloud SIVSOdOYd
Sjulog |20 SBU Wy InoA yolym 10} seduasapal Ajaua ijgnd S,3UBINSUOD 313 MOY SaUIIN0 ‘Winwiuiw e Je ey} [esodoud Jiay)
< SI41 UG Jue3nsu0d 3y yiim 03 paudisse ag pinom oym jje3s
98JU3 3589|382 40} UDHEULIOJUI 1DBIUOI JUBLINI| UM ue|d 39afoid B apiacad 3SNW 101340 “SAIILL JUsWILIAAY Jayjo
voddns ay3 Ajuapy "uisJay pan 1]0S Sa2IAI5 Jo sadAl asay)
pue saweu apiaosd 1snw 1oJayo - SIONIHIITH Yum Ajjepadsa ‘Wiaiay pajnijos $30JMB5 Jo sadA asay) Bujpinoad
apiaoad 01 suoiealjenb s 3ueynsuod Yl aquasap pue Ajuap)
Ul 33uaLIadX3 53ULYNSU0D Y] BOLIISAP IS loiaj0 - PNIHILAE
- SNOILYDIEHIMYND TYNISS3308d
SHOLOV4/VIILI¥D | o
S1HwLwon
0001 ﬁ 0ST 00w 0SSy SINVLINSNOD DYvY
0s9 00T 00z 0SE 2T1 ONIAIT WOQ33dd AN
SNOILNIOS
o} a3dnvnosia a3lnvnosia 1
el a3adnvnosia ALIXITdNGOI SINA
546 0ST 0ot Erdd ONI ‘S31VIDOSSY ds3
SIV.1OL SINIOd 0ST SINIOd 00f SINIOd 0st SINIOd
X aJinbau ayy a19)dwoa o B 5,J0J3J10 a)eljsuowa
d3¥ Sy Uy paypuspl Hom padj 43 933) 1 Ajjige s,J01ap0 8y P
-8L1in) pinom e SpJEME pUE SUOREIYNIIAI AU Jo sajdod
PawIogiad sem 92)A18S ayl uaym| s j10m Jo adods sy 1104 11im noA moy saquasaq “1aafoud siyy uo
3plAold *palinbaJ yio ayy wiopad o) spjoy yaea suonelyljenb
Pue Lea o3 papiaosd a3ialas Jo adAy a3 aquasap UE3NSU0I BYL Ym J10Mm 0] paudisse aq pjnom oym yels uoddns ayl 243 311353 PUE "BUBLIOM 54 PINOM JUEYNSLO3 3
(ajqissod 000°T) OS|B 1SNW J0Jay 0 's92|AI95 Jejilis papiao.d Sayliuap| 'saiep uolia|dwod 1afosd sjy1 yoeosdde oy Spusju| Weay dped! iy A 9P { 4
b Supdoddns uosiad yaea yojym uj Ayoedes ayl auyeq 3rafosd SIVSOdOYd
s1uI0d |B101 SBU Wy InoA yaiym 1oy saauaiagal Aljua agnd $3UBYINSU0I 33 Moy sauIRno ‘wnwiujw e 3e 1ey) |esodold Jiay;
SIY3 UO Jueansuod ayl yiim o3 paudisse aq pjnom oym jeis
994U} 3583] J€ JO} UONBWLIOU] 192IU0D JUBLIND| UM Ue|d 3I3(0u4 B apinold Jsniu 4013440 "SaNijua JuaLIuIBA0g Jayio
et St R Joddns ay3 Ajpyuap) "uialay pajiyjos saoiA1as 0 sadAy asayy
pUe saweu apiaosd 3snw Jolayo - SIONIUIITY yum Ajjepadsa ‘ulasay paiianos sa0iAIas Jo sadAy asaly} uipinosd
Ul 93UaL1RdXa SJURYNSUOD BY) AQISAP 1SNW 10J340 - IINITTIART Spiroid o3 suoleayljent saueynsuod auy RALRAP DU E ARuap)
i ; i 5 - SNOILVIHNVYND 1VNISS3d0ud
| T Jequisin
|
SHOLOV4H/VINILIND S

NV1d NOILVDILIA QYVZVH-I1TNIAL Y04 SIDIAYIS muZ:..SmZGu 100-¢¢0Z 'ON d4¥

133HS NOILVINgVL ald




0007 0ST 0ot 0S¥ SINYLINSNOD DHvY
545 54 00z 00€ J77 ONIAIT INOQ33Y4 AN
SNOILNT0S
0 a3dvnosia a3ldnvnosia a3idnvnosia ALIXITAWO3 SINA
000T 0ST 0of ost INI 'S3LYID0SSY ds3
S1v.LOL S1NIOd 0ST SLNIOd 00b | SINIOd oSy S1INIOd
oM painbai ayy 233jdwos o3 Aujiqe s, 0340 31eNSUOWS
d4¥ Sl paynuapy|  HOM PaX L3 333) 1 Ajige s Jossyo aren: P
43L3In} PINOM 1BY) SPIEME PUE SUOIEIYILIZD AUE JO saido)
paulopad sem adinsas ayy uaym|  seuom jo adoas ay [y ny lItm noA moy saquasaq “yralosd Sly3 uo ;
2piA0Id "palinbau 310 ayy waopad 03 spjoy yaea suoneayienb
PUE 4oea 0} papiaosd adiauas Jo adAy auy3 aquasap) JUE3INSUDD B3 Laim d1om 03 paudisse aq pinom Oum Jie3s Jioddns ay
7 2L} aquasap pue ‘Suppiom ag pjnom Juelnsuoa ay
(21915504 000°T) OS|E 1SNW JoJayQ "Sa3|AIBS Jejilis papiaosd Seyiuap) "sajep uonajdwon 1afoud siyy yoeosdde oy SpuUajuy Wweay
& BupJoddns uossad yaes yaym u) Apedes 8yl auyaq -r2losd SIVSOd0OYd
5julog [e10) SBY ULy JnoA yarym Joj saoualagal Anus ongnd SAUBYNSUOD 3Y) MOY S3UIIING ‘WnWiuiw e 38 ey jesodoud Jjaiyy SIU} U JUEHNSHOD 311 LM 03 PAUBISSE G PINOM DU S
23JU3 1523 1B JOf UONBLIIOJUI JIBIUOI JUSLIND Yitm ue|d 13afoug e apinosd 3snw 4048y *sannua JuaLWLIEA0S Jayj0 4 ! 43 th e 9Pl U 3
oddns sy Aypuap) “UIRI3y pa31a1|os sad1Aas 4o sadAl asauy
PUE sawWeu apiaoad Isnw Jolayo - SIONTYIITY Yum Ajjepadsa ‘uiaay PR1d1jos sadjauas jo sadAy asayy Buipiacsd
apinosd 01 suopeayienb sjuelnsuod 93} aquISap pue Ajuapy
Ul adualiadxa s JuB3INSUCD Y3 3qLISIP IsNW 104840 - IINIIUIAXI
SHOLOVAH/VI¥ILIY | fea i
n* M_m.._._ U aiwwe)
D&eg 0ot 0SE [0}7474 SINVIINSNOD DYvY
00s oot 00z ooz 71 BNIAIN IWOAa33YH AN
SNOILMOS
(s} a3iznvnosia a3 Sila
YN0 a34NvNosia ALXTIINGD SINA
018 0st 09¢ 00E ONI ‘S3LYID0SSV ds3
SivioL SINiQd 05T SLNIOd oot SINIOd 0S¥ SLNIOd
L
d34 S u) paynupy “Hom pasinbal sy :39jdwos o1 Aypge 540180 IjeSUOWap
43L3inj pINOM 1ey3 SpJeme pue suoneayIRI Aue o saido)
pawJoyiad sem aaines ayy uaym | se #H0oMm jo adods ays (jy)|ny |!m noA moy saquasaq “13foud sjy3 uo
9pIn0Lg “painbay yio 3y wuoyiad o1 spjoy yoea suonesyienb
pue Lyaea o3 papirold a2ias Jo adAy auy SqHISIP [JULYNSUOD BYY Y3M oM 0] paudisse 39 pjnom oym yeys Jioddns ayy 3173 9q14353p pue ‘FupLiom 3G PINOM JUEINSUOD ay
(e1q1s504 000°T) 0S]e 1SNW J0JBYO 'S32IMIBS Jejiwis papiaoid Saynuap| "sajep uopa|dwon 1vafold siyy yorosdde oy Spuaju| weay R 2qiDsep P iy P !
g Bupoddns uossad yoea Yarym i Aypeded ayy auyaq “afosd S1VSOdOud
S0 |ej0L SeY Wy JnoA yoiym 1oy saouasagal Ainua ongnd SAUEJINSUOD 3Y) MOY S3UIINO “WinWuiw e je jey; jesodoud sy
g SI43 UO Jue3NSUO BU1 Yum 03 paudisse ag pjnom oym ueis
89413 35E8] 1 JO} UOREULIOJUY 1IBIU0D JUBLIN3| Yum Uejd 3193f0.d B 3piacJd ISNW J04BH0 *SANAUS JUSWUISA0S Jaylo
Hoddns ay3 Ajpuapy ‘uaiay Paud1os saoimas jo sadA asayy
PUE S3weu apinoad 3snw 10134)0 - §IINTHIIIY Ym Ajjeiadsa ‘ujaaay paipijos sadinas 40 sadAy asayy Suipinosd
apiaoid 03 suofieayljenb S,JUBYNSU0I 3Y1 3qLIsap pue Ajnuap)
Ul 23uanadxs s 1UBYYNSUOD 3L agLIsap SNl 104330 - IINTEIAKI
f € JBquiBin

SHOLOVH/VI¥3LIND

ET Ty




Svrivy SINVIINSNOD Duvy
T8z 71 ONIAIT INOQITYS AN
0 SNOILNTOS
ALIX31dW0D SINN
009t INI'SILYIDOSSY dS3
V101 ONVED ANYdINOD
Si6 STT 00 ost SINVLINSNOD J4vY
10S T ooz 00E 71 DNIAIT WOQITHS AW
SNOLLNT0S
0 a3idnNvnosia a3i4nvnosia a3l4nvnosia ALIXTIAINGD SINA
056 oot 00¥ 0S¥y INI ‘S3LVID0SSY dS3
SivioL SANIOd 0ST SLNIOd 00% SLINIOd 0St SINIOd
“4om paainbal ayy ayajdwon oy Anqe $,4043jj0 a1en3suowwap
dd4 Sy Ul paynuap)
4ayuny pjnom 1eys spieme pue SuonReIyILL Aue Jo saidoy
P3wioyad sem aapuas ayy uaym|  se 40Mm jo 3dods ayy jy)ing jlim NoA Moy saquasaq “1afoud siyy uo
3pinoid "palinbas 30 ayy wiouad oy SPIoy yoes suopesyjenb
PUE dea 01 papiaoid aojasas Jo adAy 243 3quIsap [JueyNSUOD By} yum }10M 03 paudjsse ag pjnom oym yjels voddns ayy 341 2q1.959p pue Bupyiom 5 piom wueynsuos ay
9|qIss 5 - n d ]
it u 25 .:Mo ..._m .._“3 T mMH: M_ uw._m ._M Mm_._n_”_u .pmm.: w_qo.“._ M M. _M_ugn n_ﬁ_._ 048, ) .Mw ”_eu ::mu‘:_._ﬂ aA08 5_ FW DR U0VORRII00 S A Y PREER S0 pinw UMpE,
mm.zt et .,% ..m_”:m Eo.,. i o F_h _M u“_ mnuu ‘ w 3 : = .“n mw_wvm __”u_umwnwu =i 2 Sur Suwn Hoddns ayy Aynuap) “ulalay paajjos sa0jAlas 4o sadAy asay)
e i uy “w._..,_.w:_wf“u mu:m“._”“c,___uunwﬂpﬂa:”mw.u .._m:”_._ 1013J)0 m”_..wzmh.wnxm pinoid o3 suoneayyienb SAUB3NSUOD Uy aquIsap pue Anusp;
ST ? ; - SNOLLYDHIHIVNO TYNISS330ud

SHOLIVH/VINILIYD

mumnsm_a
21Wwon _




Resolution 22-15

Designating the Location of Election Polling
Places 2022/2023




NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of County Commissioners
designates the election day polling locations for any Statewide Election to be conducted in 2022
and 2023 as follows:

Voting Precinet Name Precinct Address Precinct #’s that can vote
Location at Voting Locations
1 Fence Lake Community 2125 Hwy 36, Fence Lake NM 87315 1
Center
2 Seboyeta Elementary State Road 279, Seboyeta NM 87014 2
School
3 San Mateo Fire Station 110 San Mateo Main Street, San Mateo 3
NM 87020
20 Laguna Tribal Building 22 Capital Drive, Laguna NM 87026 20
21 Mesita Facility | Industrial Parkway Loop, Mesita, NM 21
87026
22 Paguate Community 60 Paguate Day School Road, Paguate, 22
Center NM 87040
23 Encinal Recreation Hall | 5 Flagstone Road, Encinal, NM 87038 23
24 Paraje Recreation Hall 31 Paraje Road, Paraje, NM 87007 24
25 Seama Recreation Hall 13 Sacred Shield Road, Seama, NM 87007 25
VCC Site Old County Complex 515 W. High St, Grants. NM 87020 4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13,14,15
1 ,16,17,18,19,26,27, 28,29
VCC Site County Clerk’s Office 700 E. Roosevelt Suite 50, Grants, NM 4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13,14,15
2 87020 ,16,17,18,19,26,27, 28,29
VYCC Site Milan Parks and 407 Airport Rd, Milan, NM 87021 4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13,14,15
3 Recreation ,16,17,18,19,26,27, 28,29
VCC Site | Acoma Community Center 25 Pinsbarri Drive, Acoma, NM 87034 17,29 ONLY
4
VCC Site Ramah Training Center 422 BIA 125, Pinehill, NM 87357 4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13,14,15
3 ,16,17,18,19,26,27, 28,29
VCC Site | Bluewater Senior Center 5 Pinon Street, Bluewater NM 87005 4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13,14,15
7 ,16,17,18,19,26,27, 28,29
VCC Site Bluewater Acres Fire 9 Cod Drive, Thoreau NM 87323 4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13,14,15
8 Station ,16,17,18,19,26,27, 28,29
VCC Site San Rafael Elementary 27 Mesa View St, San Rafael, NM 87051  4,5,6,7,8,9,10,1 1,12,13,14,15
9 School ,16,17,18,19,26,27, 28,20
VCC Site | Cubero Elementary School 100 Main Street, Cubero NM 87014 4,5,6,7,8,9,10,11,12,13,14,15
10 ,16,17,18,19,26,27, 28,29

Page 2 of 3




CIBOLA COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-15
DESIGNATING THE LOCATION OF ELECTION DAY POLLING PLACES
FOR ALL STATEWIDE ELECTIONS CONDUCTED IN 2022 AND 2023

WHEREAS, the Cibola County Board of Commissioners met upon notice of a regular meeting
duly published at the Cibola County Administration Building, 700 East Roosevelt, Suite 50,
Grants, New Mexico 87020 on F ebruary,17"2022, at 5 p.m. as required by law; and,

WHEREAS, pursuant to the New Mexico Statutes Annotated 1978, Section 1-3-2 (2019) the
Board of County Commissioners by resolution shall designate the location of election day

polling places in the county for the conduct of any statewide election conducted in calendar years
2022 and 2023; and,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners finds that each polling place designated in
this resolution complies with the provisions of NMSA 1978, Section 1-3-7 (2019), titled Polling
Places; and,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners finds that the Voting Convenience Centers
created by this resolution will make voting more convenient and accessible to voters of the
consolidated precinct, will not result in delays in the voting process, and are centrally located
within each consolidated precinct; and further that the Voter Convenience Centers created by this
Resolution along with any Early Voting locations which the County Clerk determines to
maintain open on Election Day as additional Voter Convenience Centers all meet the
requirements of Subsections B and C of NMSA 1978, Section 1-3-4 (2019) and will be available
to voters of any precinct in the county to cast a vote at the Voting Convenience Center; and

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners finds that the voters of those precincts which
pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 1-3-4(B)(7) (2019) the board of county commissioners has
exempted “certain precincts [ ] from operating as a voter convenience center or being a part of a
consolidated precinct; provided that if the precinct is not designated as a mail ballot election
precinct pursuant to Section 1-6-22.1 NMSA 1978 and the polling place for that precinct does
not have real-time access to the voter registration electronic management system ,[ | and,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners finds that that each polling place provides

individuals with physical mobility limitations unobstructed access to at least one voting machine;
and,

Page 1 of 3



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that th

is resolution repeals and replaces Resolution 2021 -47
and all other conflicting resolutions.

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 17" day February 2022,

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

Daniel J. Totrez, Chair Martha Gareia, 1% Vice-Chair

Christine Lowery, 2™ Vice Chair Ralph Lucero, Member

Robert Windhorst, Member

ATTEST BY:

Michelle E. Dominguez, County Clerk

Page 3 of 3



Requisitions Over

$20,000

2021 Durango-Melloy Dodge-Manager’s Dept.




REQUISITION ORDER

%\l\ E [/ J‘% DATE : DEPARTMENT: QUOTE OBTAINED BY:
o Manager
& y January 18, 2022
<l G “’ QUOTE #1 QUOTE #2 QUOTE #3
£ VENDOR NAME: Melloy Dodge
CONTACT NAME:|james Cassell
PHONE:|505-922-2557
T e FAX:|505-922-2580
NO, DESCRIPTION UNIT COST EXTENSION UNIT COST EXTENSION UNIT COST | EXTENSION
1 [Durango, ltem 4 33355.00 33,355.00 8 -
1 |Engine 3.6 V-6, Item D -1600.00 (1,600.00) - b
1 _[Interior Upgrade, ltem K 1470.00 1,470.00 - &
1 |Special Service Delete, Item U -995.00 (995.00) - -
1 |Window Tint 250.00 250.00 - 2
SUBTOTAL FOR SELECTED ITEMS 32,480.00 - -
TOTAL LABOR/ SERVICE COSTS - - “
TOTAL GROSS RECEIPTS TAX - .
TOTAL SHIPPING/ FREIGHT COSTS - - -
GRAND TOTAL 32,480.00 - -
REASON SELECTED STATE CONTRACT =
VENDOR Melloy Dodge
CONTRACT/BID/RFP # 00-00000-20-00121
ADDRESS 9621 Coors Blvd NW ESTIMATED DELIVERY
Albuguerque, NM 87114 PURCHASE ORDER #
[PURCHASING
AGENT FUND NAME & LINE ITEM # AMOUNT
With my signature, I hereby certify that all 0 401-004-402-00028 S 32,480.00
goods/services req d are Yy to d p 0
properly conduct the aperations of this ove fo d Capital Outlay
department, and that all procurement has
been conducted according to purchasing 7
policies approved by the Cibola County DEPARTME AD SIGNATURE DESIGNEE SIGNATURE FINANCE SIGNATURE
Board of Commissioners. =
@ 0 O 00.00 O Q QUO U 0 0,000.00 OR OR DTO Q0 A\ DA OR

il A A R a PA 0 A 0 RA 0



BID/QUOTE

2021 Dodge Durango SXT

State contract # 00—00000-20-00121

Item 4 Durango

Item D Engine 3.6 V-6

Item K Interior Upgrade
Item U Special Service Delete

Item AB Window Tint

SXT Durango Total

James Cassell

Fleet Sales

Melloy Dodge
(505)922-2557 direct
(505)922-2580 fax
(505)239-2811 cell
Jeassell@melloydodge.com

$33,355.00
-$1,600.00
$1,470.00
-$995.00
$250.00

$32,480.00



DocuSign Envelope ID: 341 07C7E-9BE1-46D5-BAFB-ASDOAOSEABER

SPD_Amd_Exted_01 0_Rev_00_0220

State of New Mexico
General Services Department
Purchasing Division

Statewide Price Agreement Amendment

Awarded Vendor: Number: 90-00000-20-0012
8 Awarded Vendors :
Amendment No.: One
Term: Nevember 13, 2020 - November 12, 2 022
Ship To: Procurement Specialist: Tami Concha (.
All State of New Mexico agencies, commissions,
institutions, political subdivisions and local public Telephone No.: 505-660-3671
bodies allowed by law,
Email; Tami.g;oncl.:g@s'tate.nm.ug
Invoice:
As requested

Title: Police Pursuit
This amendment is fo be attached to the respective Price Agreement and become a part thereof,

In accordance with Price Agreement provisions, and by mutual agreement of all parties, this Price
Agreement is extended from November 13, 2021 to November 12, 2022 at the same price, terms and
conditions,

Except as modified by this amendment, the provisions of the Price Agreement shall remain in full force
and effect,

Accepted for the State of New Mexico

Valerit padle Date: 10/25/2021
Matk Hayden, New Mexico State Purchasing Agent

X This Agreement was signed on behalf of the State.l’nrchasing Agent

Purchasing Division: 1100 St, Franels Drive, Room 2018, Santa Fe, 87505; PO Box 6850, Santa Fe, NM 87502 (505) 827-0472




Cortificate Of Completion

Envelops Id! 34107C7E0BE146D5BAFBAGDOAOSFABEB

Bubject: Please DocuSign: SPD SPA
Sourge Envelope:

Document Pages:

Cerlificate Pages: 5

AutoNav: Enablad

Envalopeld Stamplng: Enablad

Signatures: 1
Initials; 2

Time Zone: (UTC-07:00) Mountain Tima {US & Canada)

Record Tracking
Status; Originaf

10/22/2021 8:5%:51 AM
Securily Appliance Status: Connected
Slorage Appilance Status: Connected

Signer Evenis

Tami Concha
tami.concha@state.nm.us
Pracurement Offloar-A,

New Maxico General Services, State Purchasing
Divislon

Securlly Lavel: Email, Account Authentleation
(None)

Electronic Record and Stgnature Disclosurs:
Not Offered via DocuSign
Natalle Martinez

natalle.martinezt @state.nm.us
New Mexlco General Services

Becurity Lovel: Emall, Account Authentication
{None)

Electronic Resord and Signature Disclosure:
Not Cffared via DocuSign

Valetie Paulk

Valarle.Paulk@state.nm.us

Signed of Behalf of State Purchaging Agent
New Mexico General Services

Sequrity Level: Emall, Account Authentication
(None)

Eleotronic Record and Slgnature Disclosure:
Accepted: 5/26/2020 9:4(:59 AM
1D: 126a6d0-7cha-4ded-b581.8180244887H

In Parsen Slgner Evants
Editor Delivery Events
Agent Dellvery Events
Intermediary Delivery Evants

Certified Dellvery Events

Holder: Taml Gancha
taml.concha@atatenm.us

Paal: Btatel.ocal

Paol; GSD

Signature

A

Slgnature Adoplior: Pre-selecisd Style
Uslng P Addrass: 75.161.69,184

M

Bignature Adoplion: Pre-selected Styls
Usling 1P Addrass: 173.181.144.245

Vilerie Paulk

Slgnature Adoplion; Pre-selected Style
Using P Address: $7.123.127.51
Signed using maobila

Bignature
Status
Status
Btatus

Status

DocuSign

Status: Completad

Envelops Originatar:

Taml Conche

13 Bataan Blvd

Santa Fe, NM 87508
taml.conpha@@state.nm,us
tP Address: 75.161.60.164

Looation: DacuSign

Location: DocuSign

Timestamp

Bent: 10/28/2021 B:58:14 AM
Viewed: 10/22/2021 55620 AM
Sfgned: 10/22/2021 8:66:38 AM

Sent: 10/22/2021 0:56:13 AM
Viewed: 10/22/2021 8:57:34 AM
Slgned: 10/22/2021 8:57:45 AM

Sank: 10/22/2021 8:67:46 AM
Resent: 10/2572021 8:88:07 AM
Viewed: 10/25/2021 10:05:43 AM
Signed: 10/25/2021 10:05;50 AWM

Timastamp
Timestamp
Timestamp
Timestamp

Timestamp




Carbon Copy Events Status

Witness Events Slgnature
Notary Evenis Signature
Envelope Summary Events Status
Envatope Sent Hashed/Encryptad
Gertified Delivered Security Checkerd
Slgning Gomplate Securily Checked
Completed Sacurity Checked
Payment Evants . Status

Electronic Recerd and Signature Disclosure

Timestamp
Timestamp
Timestamp

Timestamps
1012212029 8:56:14 AM
10/25/2021 10:05:43 AM
HH26/2021 10:06:58 AM
10/25/2021 10:06:59 AM

Timestamps




Electronic Recerd and Signature Disclosure created on: 4/14/2020 118:28 PM
Partles agreed to: Valerls Paulk

ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE
A. ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE (ERSD)

From time to time, New Mexico General Services Department (GSD), on behalf of the State of
New Mexico (SONM), may be required by law to provide you with certain written notices or
disclosures. Stated below are the terms and conditions for GSD's providing you such notices and
disclosures electronically through the DocuSign system. Please read this information carefully, If
you are able to access this information electronically and agtee to this Electronic Record and

Signature Disclosure (ERSD), please confirm your agreement by selecting the check-box next
to 71 agree 1o use electronic records and signatures” before clicking “CONTINUE” within the
DocuSign system.

B. Obtaining paper copies

At any time up to twenty (20) calendar days following your use of DocuSign to electronically
sign a document, you may request a paper copy of any record provided or made available
electronically to you by GSD. You will have the ability to download and print documents SONM
sends you through the DocuSign system during and immediately after the signing session and, if
you elect to create a DocuSign account, you may access the documents for a twenty (20)
calendar day period after such documents are first sent to you. Following the twenty (20) day
period, if you want GSD to send you paper copies of any such documents from GSD's office,
you will be charged a $1.00 per-page fee plus postage. You may request delivery of such paper
copies from GSD by following the procedute stated in Section I, below.

C. Withdrawing your consent

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from GSD electronically, you may at any time
change your mind and inform GSD you want to receive required notices and disclosures only in
paper format. The procedure concerning how you may inform GSD of your decision to receive
future notices and disclosures in paper format as well as withdraw your consent to receive
notices and disclosures electronically is stated in Section D, immediately below,

D. Consequences of changing your mind

If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the
speed with which GSD will be able to complete certain steps in specific transactions and deliver
paper copies to you. GSD will need: (1) to send the required notices or disclosures to you in
paper format; and (2) wait until GSD receives your acknowledgment of your receipt of such
paper notices or disclosures, Further, you will no longer be able to use the DocuSign system to
receive required notices and consents electronically from SONM or to electronically sign
documents generated and sent to you from SONM,




Daueuslgr Envelope 12 BAEOF7A7-B834-4327-0ACH-3A184930D8GE

Engine:
Shall have a minimum of three hundred and fifty {350) horsepower

State of New Mexico
General Services Department
Purchasing Division
Statewide Price Agreement #: 00-80000-20-00121

Item 4: (AA) Albugquergue Mator Co, dba Melloy Dodge

Utility Vehicle, Mid-Size, Four Door, All-Whee! Drive. Police Pursuit Rated

of lorque.

Wheel Base:

Maust be no less than one hundred and ten {110} inches,

Make Offered.........

........

........

..................................................... DODGE

.............................................. e _DURANGO

............................................ 5,74,

Page-23

and three hundred and fifty (350) pound/feet

HP / Torque

................................................................

300/ 390

Bid 1s Options;

A)
B)
C)
D)
L)
F)
G)
H)
y
5
K)
Ly
M)
N
)
P}
Q)
R)
)
'r)
U)
V)
W}
x)
Y)

Base Price per Unite..ooooe i ev % 3335500
All/ Four Wheel Drive Delete Deduet; $2,200.00
Dark Car Feature Delete Deduet: /A
Dual Baitery Add: NiA
Engine, Other: 3,61 V-6 Add/Deduct:  $1,600,00
Floor Covering, Carpet with Mats, Front Only Add: N/A
Floor Covering, Carpet with Mats, Front and Rear Add: $395.00
Floor Covering, Rubber Mat Front and Rear Add; $205.00
Four Re-Mappable Switches on Steering Wheel (Requires SYNC) Add: N/A
Four Re-Mappable Switches on Steering Wheel (Less SYNC) Add: N/A
Front License Plate Bracket, Delete Dreduet; Nia,
Interior Upgrade Package Adil; £2.700.00
Hylbrid Add: NIA
Lockable Gas Cap and/or Door Add; NIA,
Marked Police Package Add: $23,500.00
Marked Police K-9 Package Adds $26.000.00
Police Wiring Harness Add; $1.150.00
Power Adjustable Pedals Add: N/A
Rear Door Interior Handles Rendered Inoperable Delete Deduct NiA
Remote Keyless Intry and Starting (1f Available) Add: £550,00
Skid Plates Add: $395.00
Special Service Package Delete Deduet: $995.00
Spot Light, Delete Peduct: $325.00
Spot Light on Passenger Side Adld: $545.00
Trailer Brakes , Add; £399.00
Trailer Tow Package, Less Trailer Brakes Add: $950.00




Docusign Envaiepe [D: BRESFTAT-B634-4327-0ACE-3A1B403DDECE

Z)
AAY
AB)
AC)
AD)
AE)
AF)
AG)
AH)
Al)
Al
AK)
AL)
AM)

State of New Mexico
General Services Department
Purchasing Division

Statewide Price Agrecment #: 00-00008-20-00121

Item 4 (AA) Opiions Continued:

Unmarked Police Package
Window Tinting Darker than MFG Standard

Tech Group

Blind Spot

107 Display
Ballistic Door Each
Power Lift-gate
Aluminum Wheels
Side Steps

3" Row Seat
Black Top Package
Transport per Mile
Light Bar 157 LED

Add:
Add:
Add:
Add:
Add:
Add:
Add:
Add:
Add;
Add:
Add:
Add:
Add:
Add:

Page-24

§1.200.00

LI

$2.:425.00
$393.00
$449.00
$725.00
$1,095.00
$1,595.00
$2.00
$2.815.00




DocuSign Envelope ID; BB69F7A7-B634-4327-9AC8-3A18493DDACF

State of New Mexico
General Services Department
Purchasing Division
Statewide Price Agreement #: 00-00000-20-00121

Page-6
Awarded Vendors:

(AA) 0000047770

Albuquerque Motor Company Delivery: 90-180 Days
dba Melloy Dodge

9621 Coors Blvd NW

Albuquerque, NM 87114
(505) 239-2811

Jeassell@mellovdodee.com

(AB) 0000049896

Bob Turner's Ford Country Delivery:
dba Power Ford

1101 Mentano Rd NE

Albuquerque, NM 87107

(505) 449-1268

Mbeltran@myforddealer.com

Albuguerque and Santa Fe
As requested

(AC) 0000051541

Don Chalmers Ford Delivery: 70-120 Days depending on Ford
dba MHQ of NM

2500 Rio Rancho Blvd SE

Rio Rancho, NM 87124

(505) 890-2153

Teullen@chalmersford.com

(AD) 0000137865
MCLL, Inc. Delivery: Approx. 90-120 Days
dba Melloy Chevrolet (Chevy Tahoe production beings Feb, 2021)

377 Emilio Lopez Rd
Los Lunas, NM 87031
(505) 866-3005
Randy@mellovtiect.com

(AE) 0000062888

Melloy Nissan Delivery: 12 to 14 weeks
7707 Lomas Blvd

Albuquerque, NM 87110
(505) 265-8721

Rbeavis@melloynissan.com




Requisitions Over

520,000

2021 Durango-Melloy Dodge-Sheriff’s Office




REQUISITION ORDER

\\ ‘\ [‘/‘Jd/ DATE : DEPARTMENT: QUOTE OBTAINED BY:
SR B i Sheriffs Office Delaney G
f/t s January 21, 2022 ¥
\<\§Q' Tl T TRy e QUOTE #1 QUOTE 72 QUOTE #3
3 N VENDOR NAME:|MELLOY DODGE
CONTACT NAME:
PHONE:
Mrr MEKIES - pnr (mag FAX:
NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT COsT EXTENSION UNIT COST EXTENSION UNIT COST | EXTENSION
1 |DURANGO 33355.00 33,355.00 -
1 |SKID PLATE 395.00 395.00
1 |[BLINDSPOT 525.00 525.00 =
1 |MARKED POLICE PACKAGE 13041.00 13,041,00 - -
SUBTOTAL FOR SELECTED ITEMS 47,316.00 -
R ———
TOTAL LABOR/ SERVICE COSTS - = =
ooy, | OO
TOTAL GROSS RECEIPTS TAX =
Lo
TOTAL SHIPPING/ FREIGHT COSTS . =
S e — e cm—— iy _—_7—‘=—-—_
T GRANDTOTAL 4731600 | - -
REASON SELECTED STATE CONTRACT <:'
VENDQOR MELLOY DODGE
CONTRACT/BID/RFP # 00-00000-20-0121
ADDRESS ESTIMATED DELIVERY
PURCHASE ORDER #
PURCHASING | R Loy i
AGENT CERTIFICATION P ? FUND NAME & LINE ITEM # AMOUNT
ENDORSEMENT With my signature, | hereby certify that all 1lith ) 0 401-005-408-00028 $ 55.00
goods/services requested are necessary to [BlSILEL RS 8S€ canno
properly conduct the operatians of this ove forward =
department, and that all procurement has 5 5
been conducted according to purchasing e g i
policies approved by the Cibola County DEPAﬁTﬁEMHWIGNATURE DESIGNEE SIGNATURE FINANCE SIGNATURE
Board of Commissioners, i o
7 A _
iR &3 HARD QUGTES! ANY P £ ‘ijﬂyﬁl‘ﬁzﬁﬁi
; ai‘il‘;‘: i ABO e et ,r;,,w i
SR ity s

P Reitals



BID/QUOTE

2021 Dodge Durango Pursuit

State contract 00-00000-20- 00121

Item 4 Durango

Item T Skid Plate

Item AD Blind Spot

Item N Marked Police package

Total for Dodge Durango Pursuit

Dominic Gonzales

Fleet Sales

Melloy Dodge

(505)379-8052 direct
(505)922-2580 fax
dgonzales@melloydodge.com

$33,355.00

$395.00
$525.00
$13,041.00

$47,316.00



BocuSign Envelope ID; 34107C7E-9BE1 ~48D5-BAFB-ABDOADSEABFR

Awarded Vendor:
8 Awarded Vendors

Ship To:

All State of New Mexico agencies, commissions,
Institutions, political subdivisions and local public
bodies allowed by law,

Invoice;
As requested

Title: Police Pursuit

SPD_Amd_Exted_010_Rev 00 0220

State of New Mexico
General Services Department
Purchasing Division

Statewide Price Agreement Amendment

Number: 00-80000~20-00121

Amendment No.: One

Term: Nevember 13, 2020 - November 12, 2022

Procurement Specialist: Tami Conchs  2\(.

Telephone No.: 505-660-3671

Ermnail: Tgmi.Concha@state.nm.us

This amendment is to be attached to the respective Price Agreement and become a part thereof,

In accordance with Price Agreement provisions, and by mutual agreement of all parties, this Price
B '--Agreem'ent'-is'extemi—eﬁ*fro-m*N-ovem'ber'-1-37202"1*t0—Novemb’er“12; 2022-at the same price; terms and — —

conditions,

Except as modified by this amendment, the provisions of the Price Agreement shall remain in full force

and effect,

Accepted for the State of New Mexico

Valerit Paudt

Mark Hayden, New Mexico State Purchasing Agent

Date: 10/25/2021

X This Agreement was signed on behalf of the State Purchasing Agent

Purchasing Division: 1100 St, Francis Drive, Room 201 6, Santa Fe,

ML

87505; PO Box 6850, Santa Fe, NM 87502 (505) 827-0472



DocuSign

Certificate Of Completion

Envelape Id: 341 07CTEIBE146D5BAFBASDOAISRABER Status: Completed
Subject; Please DocuSign: SPD sS4
3ource Envelope:

Document Pages: 1 Signatures: 1 Envelope Originator:
Cettificate Pages: 5 Initials; 2 Tam! Concha

AutoNav: Enabled 13 Bataan Blvd
Envelopeld Stamping: Enablad Santa Fe, NM 87508
Time Zone: (UTC-07:00) Mountaln Time {US & Canada) tami.concha @state.nm. us

[P Address: 75.151.60.164
Record Tracking

Status: Original Halder; Tami Congha Location: DocuSign
10/22/12021 8:53:51 AM taml.concha@state.nm.us
Security Appliance Staius: Connectad Pool: Statslocal
Storage Appliance Status: Connected Poal GSD Location; DocuSign
Signer Events — Signature - Timestamp
Tanii Corcha Ac Sent: 10/22/2021 8:56:14 AM
taml.concha@state.nm.us Viewed: 10/22/2021 8:58:29 AM
Procurernent Officer-A Signed: 10/22/2021 8:56:38 AM
New Mexlco Gsneral & ices, State Purchasin
Diiision ° eral Berv © sy Slgnature Adoption: Pre-selected Style
Security Level: Emall, Account Authentication Using IP Addrass; 75, 161.69.164
(None)

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure:
Not Offered via DacuSign

Natalie Martinez . Sent: 10/22/2021 8:56:13 AM
natalie.martinez1 @state.nm.us M Viewsd: 10/22/2021 8:57:34 AM
New Mexica General Services Signed: 10/22/2021 8:57:45 AM
Security Level; Em il, Account Authentication

(l\?one)y ¢ & ? . Signature Adoption: Pre-sslacted Style

Using IP Address: 173.191.144.245

Electronte Record and Slgnature Disclosure:

Not Gtfered via PocuSign

Valetle Pautk Sent: 10/22/2021 8:57:46 AM
- NelorlePauk@statermus . VUblwiv Padk — — —— . Resent:10i2502021 8:58:07.AM_ __
Signed of Behalf of State Purchasing Agent Viewed: 10/25/2021 10:05:43 AM
New Mexico General Services Signature Adoption: Pre-salssted St Slgned: 10/25/2021 10:05:59 AM
Security Level; Email, Account Authentication 9 © Acoption: Pre-selecied Style
(None) Using IP Address: 97.123.127.51
Signed using mobife

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure:

Acceptad: 5/29/2020 9:40:59 AM

ID: f12cadd0-7¢ba-4d e4-b58f-8180244a87#
In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Editor Dellvery Events Status Timestamp
Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp
Intermediar Delivery Events Status Timestam

¥

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp



Carbon Copy Events Status

Witness Events Signature
Notary Events Signature
Envelope Summary Events Status
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted
Cettified Dalivered Security Cheacked
Slgning Complete Security Checked
Comgpleted Security Checked
Payment Events Status

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure

Timestamp
Timestamp
Timestamp

Timestamps
10/22/2021 8:56:14 AM
10/26/2021 10:05:43 AM
10/25/2021 10:05:59 AM
10/25/2021 10:05:59 AM

Timestamps



Electranic Record and Signature Disclosure crested on; 4/14/2020 1:18:28 PM
Fartles agreed to: Valeria Paulk

ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE,

A. ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE (ERSD)

disclosures clectronically through the DocuSign system, Please read this information carcfully, If
you are able to access this information electronically and agree to this Electronic Record and
Signature Disclosure (ERSD), please confirm vour agreement by selecting the check-hox next
lo “T agree to use electronic records and signatures” before clicking “CONTINUE” within the
DocuSign system.

B. Obtaining paper copies

you elect to create a DocuSign account, you may access the documents for a twenty (20)
calendar day period after such documents are first sent to you. Following the twenty (20) day
period, if you want GSD to send you paper copies of any such documents from GSD's office,
you will be charged a $1.00 per-page fee plus postage, Yoy may request delivery of such paper
copies from GSD by following the procedure stated in Section H, below.

C. Withdrawing your consent

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from GSD electronically, you may at any time
change your mind and inform GSD you want to receive required notices and disclosures only in



DocuSign Envelope 1D: BBES9F7A7-8634—432?—9AC8—3A1B493DDBCF

State of New Mexico
General Services Department
Purchasing Division
Statewide Price Agresment #: 00-00000-20-00121

Page-6
Awarded Vendors:

(AA) 0000047770

Albuquerque Motor Company Delivery: 90-180 Days
dba Melloy Dodge

9621 Coors Blvd NW

Albuquerque, NM 87114

(505) 239-2811

Jeassell@melloydodge.com

(AB) 0000049896

Bob Turner's Ford Country Delivery: Albuquerque and Santa Fe
dba Power Ford As requested

1101 Montano Rd NE

Albuquerque, NM 87107

(505) 449-1268
Mbeltra n@myforddealer.com

(AC) 0000051541

Don Chalmers Ford Delivery: 70-120 Days depending on Ford
dba MHQ of NM

2500 Rio Ranche Blvd SE

Rio Rancho, NM 87124

(505) 890-2153

Teullen@chalmersford.com

(ADD) 0000137865

MCLL, Inc. Delivery: Approx. 90-120 Days

dba Melloy Chevrolet (Chevy Tahoe production beings Feb. 2021)
377 Emilio Lopez Rd

Los Lunas, NM-87031

(505) 866-3005
Randy@melloyfleet.com

(AE) 0000062888

Melloy Nissan Delivery: 12 to 14 weeks
7707 Lomas Blvd

Albuquerque, NM 87110

(505) 265-8721

Rbeavis@melloynissan.com




DecuSign Envetope ID; BBEIFTAT-BE34-4327-0AC8-3A1 B493DDECF

State of New Mexico
General Services Department
Purchasing Division
Statewide Price Agreement #: 00-06600-20-00121

Page-23
l@m&;ﬁ@mﬁmﬁbﬂﬂﬂﬁ.&m&;&%@iﬂ&ﬂ&m&@ﬁﬁﬂ%@gﬁ
Utitity Vehicle, Mid-Size, Four Door, All-Wheel Drive, Police Pursnit Rated
Enging:
Shail have a minimum of three hundred and fifty (35 0) horsepower and three hundred and fifty (350) pound/feet
of torque.
Wheel Base:
Must be no Tess than one hundred and ten (110) inches.
Make Offeted.......cooooiviicvirinenioee DODGE
Model Offered. ... DURANGO
Bigine Offered. ..o 5,71,
HP/Totque. oo 360/ 390
Base Price per Unit...........ooocoorcrmsi $ 33.355.00
Bid as Options;
A)  All/Four Wheel Drive Delete Deduct: $2.200.00
B) Datk Car Feature Delote Deduet: N/A
C) Dual Battery Add; MNAA
D} Eogine, Other: 3.6 V-6 Add/Deduct:  $1,600.00
E) Floor Covering, Carpet with Mats, Front Only Add: N/A
B Floor Covering, Carpet with Mats, Front and Rear Add: $395.00
G)  Floor Covering, Rubber Mat Front and Rear _ Add: $295.00
H) Four Re-Mappable Switches on Steering Wheel {Requires SYNC) Add: N/A
)} Four Re-Mappable Switches on Steeting Wheel (Less SYNC) Add: N/A,
) Front License Plate Bracket, Delete Deduct: N/A
K)  Interior Upgrade Package Add: $7,700.00
R Hybdd T T T T s e e CAdd: T CNAT T T
M)  Lockable Gas Cap and/or Door Add: N/A
N)  Marked Police Package Add: $25,500.00
Q) Marked Police K-9 Package Add: $26.000.00
P) Police Wiring Harness Add: $1.150.00
Q) Power Adjustable Pedals Add; N/A
R) Rear Door Interior Handles Rendered Inoperable Delete Deduct: N/A
3) Remote Keyless Fntry and Starting (If Available) Add: $550.00
T) Skid Plates Add: $395.00
U)  Special Service Package Delete Deduet: $993,00
Vi Spot Light, Delete Deduct: $325.00
W) Spot Light on Passenger Side Add: $545.00
X)  Trailer Brakes Add: $399.00

Y)  Traifler Tow Package, Iess Trailer Brales Add: $950.00



Docusign Envelope 10: BBBQF?A?~8634-4327—9ACB—SMB493DDBCF

State of New Mexico
General Services Depariment
Purchasing Division
Statewide Price Agreement #: 00-00600-20-00121

Page-24
Item 4 (AA) Options Continued:

Z) Tites, Other: ALL TERRAIN Add: $1,200.00
AA)  Unmarked Police Package Add: $16,500.00
AB}Y  Window Tinting Darker than MFG Standard Add: $250.00
ACy  Tech Group Add: $2.495,00
AD)  Blind Spot Add: $525.00
AE) 107 Digplay Add; $975.00
AF)  Ballistic Door Each Add: $2,425,00
AG)  Power Lift-gate Add: $395.00
AH)  Aluminum Wheels Add: $449.00
Al)  Side Steps Add: $725.00
AJ) 3" Row Seat Add: $1,095.00
AK)  Black Top Package Add: $1.595.00
AL)  Transport per Mile Add: $2.00

AM) Light Bar 15” I.ED Add: $2.815.00



Requisitions Over

$20,000

Data Communication Network Switches
SHI International




REQUISITION ORDER

SENT BACK

Board of Commissioners.

(&\_\l E 0 J DATE : DEPARTMENT: Quote Obtained By:
RN v Data Processing Jessie Carwile
January 21, 2022
3 e e QUOTE #1 QUOTE #2 QUOTE #3
: Sy R VENDOR NAME: SHI international
¥ CONTACT NAME:| Matthew Kemp
PHONE:|732-652-0838
e aExigs . 1ar reas FAX:
NO, DESCRIPTION UNIT COST EXTENSION UNIT COST EXTENSION UNIT COST | EXTENSION
14 |HPE Aruba 6000 48G Class4 PoE 4SFP 370W 1676.49 23,470.86 - -
Switch - RBN85A#ABA - - -
14 |HPE Foundation Care Net Business Day 354.20 4,958.80 - -
Exchange Service - Part No. H53A1E - - -
SUBTOTAL FOR SELECTED ITEMS 28,429.66 -
TOTAL LABOR/ SERVICE COSTS - - -
TOTAL GROSS RECEIPTS TAX - - -
TOTAL SHIPPING/ FREIGHT COSTS - - -
GRAND TOTAL 28,429.66 -
REASON SELECTED STATE CONTRACT <:|
VENDOR SHI International
CONTRACT/BID/RFP # 60-000-15-00020A8
ADDRESS 300 Davidson Ave ESTIMATED DELIVERY
Somerset, NJ 08873 PURCHASE ORDER #
AGENT FUND NAME & LINE ITEM # AMOUNT
[ENDORSEMENT | With my signature, | hereby certify that all 0 649-200-400-00105 28,429.66
goods/services requested are necessary to obtained : a anno
properly conduct the operations of this ove fo Public Safety
department, and that all procurement has
been conducted according to purchasing
policles approved by the Cibola County DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE DESIGNEE SIGNATURE FINANCE SIGNATURE

PLEASE REMEMBER ANY REQUISITIONS OVER $500.00 NOW REQUIRE 3 HARD QUOTES. ANY REQUISTION 510,0007.00 OR MORE WILL NEED TO GO ON THE AGENDA FOR
COMMISSION APPROVAL. IF USING STATE CONTRACT PLEASE LIST CONTRACT # ABOVE AS WELL AS THE FIRST 4 PAGES OF THE STATE CONTRACT, OTHERWISE IT WILL BE




Pricing Proposal

Quotation #: 21365110

Reference #: Public Safety Building
Valid Until: ~ 1/31/2022

Cibola County Inside Account Executive

Jessie Carwile

Matthew Kemp
700 East Roosevelt Avenue

300 Davidson Ave, Somerset, NJ 08873

Suite 50 Phone: 732-652-0838

Grants, NM 87020 Fax:

United States Emal:  Matthew_Kemp@shi.com
Phone: (505) 287-9431

Fax:

Emai: jessie.carwile@co.cibola.nm.us

All Prices are in US Dollar (USD)

Product Qty  Your Price Total
1 HPE Aruba 6000 48G Class4 PoE 4SFP 370W Switch - Switch - managed - 48 x 14 $1,676.49 $23,470.86
10/100/1000 (PoE+) + 4 x Gigabit SFP - side to side airflow - rack-mountable - PoE
(370 W)
Hewlett Packard Enterprise - Part#: REN85A#ABA
2 HPE Foundation Care Next Business Day Exchange Service - Extended service 14 $354.20 $4,958.80
agreement - replacement - 3 years - shipment - 9x5 - response time: NBD - for P/N:
RBN85A
Hewlett Packard Enterprise - Part#: H53A1E
Subtotal $28,420.66
Total $28,429.66

Additional Comments

Please Note: Hewlett Packard Enterprise has a zero returns policy on custom build machines.

SHI SPIN: #143012572
SHI-GS SPIN (For Texas customers ONLY): #143028315

For E-rate SPI orders, applicant shall be responsible for payment of any outstanding or ineligible costs if USAC rejects
reimbursement claim in whole or in part.

Please note, if Emergency Connectivity Funds (ECF) will be used to pay for all or part of this quote, please let us know as we will
need to ensure compliance with the funding program.

Hardware items on this quote may be updated to reflect changes due to industry wide constraints and fluctuations.

Thank you for choosing SHI International Corp! The pricing offered on this quote proposal is valid through the expiration date set

above. To ensure the best level of service, please provide End User Name, Phone Number, Email Address and applicable Contract
Number when submitting a Purchase Order.

SHI International Corp. is 100% Minority Owned, Woman Owned Business.
TAX ID# 22-3008648; DUNS# 61-1429481; CCR# 61-243957G; CAGE 1HTFO

The Products offered under this proposal are resold in accordance with the SHi Online Customer Resals Terms and Conditions,




Bacuslgn Enve lope 1D ?3C9D215-8C65-492B~B2BF-A9224A868530

SI’D“Amd_Exth_O 10_Rev_00_0220

State of New Mexico
General Services Department
Purchasing Division

Statewide Price Agreement Amendment

Awarded Vendor

0000013840 Price Agreement Number: 60-000-15-00020AB8
CDW Government LLC

75 Remittance Drive Price Agroement Amendment No.: Five

Chicaga, I1, 60675-1518
Term: June 30, 2017 - April 7, 2022

Contact: John Armijo

Email: JohnArmijo@edw.com NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement Award
Telephone No.; (312) 5472495 Number; AD§P016-130§52

NASPO ValuePoint Link:
https:// . ovaluepoint.o

Ware-var-2016-2022/cdw-g/
el 02002 2 /e d wagy/

re/poretolio/soft

Ship To: Procurement Specialist Vanessa LeBlanc v,
All State of New Mexico agencies, commissions, _
Institutions, political subdivisions and local public Telephone No.: (505) 629-9525

bodies allowed by law,

Email: V:mesgg.LeB]anc(a;statg.nm.us

Evoice:
As Requested -,

Title: Software VAR
This amendment is to be attached to the respective Price Agreement and become a part thereof.

In accordance with Price Agreement Provisions, and by mutyal agreement of all parties, this Price
Agreement is extended from January 8, 2022 o April 7, 2022 at the same price, terms and conditions,

Also, update Award Vendor Contact information to; John Armijo
Email: John.Armijo@cdw.com

Except as modified by this amendment, the provisions of the Price Agreement shall remain in full foree
and effect,

Aceepted for the State of New Mexico

Valerie, Pault: Date: 1/4/2022

Mark Hayden, New Mexico State Purchasing Agent
X This Agreement was signed on bebalf of the State Purehasing Agent

Purchasing Divigion: 1100 St. Francls Drlve, Room 2016, Santa Fe, 87505: PO Box 6850, Sauta Fe, NM 87502 (505) 827-0472

Q.




Certlficato Of Completion

Envelope Ig: 76(39[‘.‘1215BCGD4928[~328FA9224A866530
Sublect: Plepse PoouSign; 80-000~15-00020A8 ADDB

Source Envelope:

Racument Pagas: 1

Coriificate Pages; 6

AutaNav; Enabled

Envelopeld Stamping: Enabled

Slgnatures: 1
Initlzle; 2

Time Zone: (UTC-07:00) Mountaln Time (48 & Canada)

Record Tracking

Status: Origlnal

1412022 B8:18:65 AM
Sacurity Appliance Statys; Connacted
Storags Appliance Statua: Connected

Signer Events

Travie Dutton- Leyda
Trevis.Dutton-l.eyda@sla(e.nm. us

IT & Congtrustion Buresy Chies

New Mexlco General Sarvices, State Furchasing
Divigion

Beourity Leval: Emall, Agoount Authentication:
{None)

Electronle Record and Slgnature Disclosyre;
Not Offarad via DocuSign

Vanessa LeBlang
vanessaeblanc@state.nm.us

New Mexico General Hervices .

Seaurlty Level: Emal, Acoount Authentication
(None)

Eleotronie Record and Slgnature Disclostre;
Acoapted: 8212020 7:02:28 AM
iD: ??’4oe339-&460-4eb9-5489-b3f506d3d8e4

Valerla Paulk
valeria.pautk@state.nm.us

Slgned of Behalf of Statg Purchasing Agent
New Mexino General Bervices

Slgning Group: 35000 - State Purchasing Agent
Seourlty Lovel; Bmall, Account Authentloation
{None)

Electronle Revord and Signature Disclosure:
Actepted: 5/28/2020 8:40:50 AM
It f%2aa6d0-7oba~4de4-b58fu8180244887ﬁ

In Person Signer Events
Editor Deflvery Events
Agent Dellvery Events

Intermediary Delivery Events

Holder: Vaneses LeBlane

Vanessa, LeBlanc@state.nm.us

Pool: StateLocal
Pool: G8D

Signatura

Qb

Slgrature Adoplion: Pra-selacted Siyle

Using IF Address; 73. 127.218.222

174

Signature Adoption: Pra-selectad Style

Using IP Address: 76,127.41.204

Uidorit, Pasdte

Signature Adoption: Pre-selectad Style

Uslng IP Addrass: 164.64.62.10

Slgnature
Status
Status

Status

DocuSign

Status: Completed

Envelope Originator:

Vanessa LeBlanc

13 Bataan Blvd

Santa Fe, NM 87508
Vanessa.|.eBlanc@state.nm.ys
IP Addraas: 76.127.41,204

Location: DoouSign

Location: BocuSign

Timestamp

Sent: 1/4/2022 8:20:32 AM
Viewed: 1/4/2022 8:49:39 AM
Signed: 1/4/2022 8:40:45 AM

Sent: 14/2022 8:40:48 AM
Viewed: 1/4/2022 8:54:50 AM
Slgned: 1/4/2022 8:54:52 AM

Bent; /412022 8,54:53 AM
Viewed: 1/4/2022 9:08:40 AM
Slgned: 1412022 9:08:52 AM

Timestamp
Timestamp
Timestamp

Timestamp




Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carhon Copy Events Status Timestamp
Withess Events Slgnature Timestamp
Notary Events Signature ‘ Timestamp
Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envefope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 1/4/2022 8:20:32 AM
Carilfted Deliverad Seaurity Checked 11412022 9:08:40 AM
Signing Compiete Becurlty Checkad 1142022 9:08:82 AM
Completed Securily Checked 1/4/2022 9:08:52 AM
Payment Events Status ' Timestamps

Electrohia Record and Signature Disciosure




Eleolrenio Record and Signature Disclosure ereatad on; 414/2020 1:18:26 PM
Partles agreed to: Vanessa LeBlano, Valerie Paulk

ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE
A, ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE (ERSD)

From time to time, New Mexico General Services Department (GSD), on behalf of the State of
New Mexico (SONM), may be required by law to provide you with certain written notices or
disclosures, Stated below are the terms and conditions for GSD's providing you such notices and
disclosures electronically through the DocuSign system, Please read this information carefully, If
you are able to access this information electronically and agree to this Electronic Record and
Signature Disclosure (ERSD), please confirm your agreement by selecting the check-box next

“Iagree to use electronic rds and signatures” before clicking “CONTINUE” within the

B. Obtaining paper copies

At any time up to twenty (20) calendar days following your use of DocuSign to electronically
sign a docunent, you may request a paper copy of any record provided or made available
electronically to you by GSD. You will have the ability to download and print doguments SONM
sends you through the DocuSign system during and immediately after the signing session and, if
you elect to create a DocuSign account, you may access the documents for a twenty (20)
calendar day period after such documents are first sent to you. Following the twenty (20) day
period, if you want GSD to send you paper copies of any such documents from GSD's office,
you will be charged a $1.00 per-page fee plus postage. You may request delivery of such paper
copies from GSD by following the procedure stated in Section H, below.

C. Withdrawing your consent

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from GSD electronically, you may at any time
change your mind and inform GSD you want to receive required notices and disclosures only in
paper format. The procedure concerning how you may inform GSD of your decision to receive
future notices and disclosures in paper format as well as withdraw your consent to receive
notices and disclosures electronically is stated in Section D, immediately below,

D. Consequences of changing your mind

If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures onty in paper format, it will slow the
speed with which GSD will be able to complete certain steps in specific transactions and deliver
paper copies to you, GSD will need: (1) to send the required notices or disclosures to you in
paper format; and (2) wait until GSD receives your acknowledgment of your receipt of such
paper notices or disclosures. Further, you will no longer be able to use the DocuSign system to
receive required notices and consents electronically from SONM or to electronically sign
documents generated and sent to you from SONM.




HIEBY oo 000 000

%eoe'8y  9%T0L96 000 000 . 000
%SEBy  98TOL'9E L AL ... -

% SE'8Y 98°'10L'96 000 000 000

Suluteway % Sujuieway 128png souejeg Sujpuz  AJARNOY [Rl0L uejeg Suluudag

2202/12/10 - 1202/10/40 :2buey 33eQ
Alewiwing JUNO2JY

voday 18bpng sA jieleq AN

00000002 vI'86Z€0T

.. 00700000 VI'86Z'E0T
_..00000°002 VUB6LEOT

00°000'002 ¥1°867'E0T
1a8png |easy sajuesquiniug

- s|eyo) asuadx3y

:jelo) woday
__*SIel0L 1DV NV1d 3NJS3¥ NYDIYINY - 6v9

Aages ngnd S0T00-00t-00¢-6v9
asuadx3
LIV NV1d 3NJ$34 NVIIHINY - 649
awen junody

WN ‘A3uno) ejoqid




Requisitions Over

$20,000

Battery Backup System- SHI International




REQUISITION ORDER

properly conduct the operations of this
department, and that all procurement has
been conducted according to purchasing
policles approved by the Cibola County

%\—1\ E 0” DATE : DEPARTMENT: Quote Obtained By:
% G J/ Data Processing Jessie Carwile
/ 2022
N G TnU2L 2 QUOTE #1 QUOTE #2 QUOTE #3
VENDOR NAME: SHl international
CONTACT NAME: | Matthew Kemp
2 PHONE:|732-652-0838
SR MEEIC s AT smar FAX:
NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT COST EXTENSION UNIT COST EXTENSION UNIT COST | EXTENSION
3 |Apc Smart-Ups Srt 3000Va Rm 120V 2452.25 7,356.75 - -
Part No. SRT3000RMXLA - -
30 |APC Smart-UPS SRT 96V 3kVA RM Battery 978.87 29,366.10 - s
Pack - Part No. SRTO6RMBP - - -
3 |APC Network Management Card 3 w/ Power 249.24 747.72 - -
Chute Network Shutdo - -
Part No. AP9640 - -
30 |[APC Extended Warranty Service Pack 96.48 2,894.40 - =
Part No. WBEXTWAR1YR-5P-04 - - -
3 __|APC Extended Warranty Service Pack 195.12 585.36 - -
Part No. WBEXTWAR1YR-SP-05 - - 2
SUBTOTAL FOR SELECTED ITEMS 40,950.33 -
TOTAL LABOR/ SERVICE COSTS - - -
TOTAL GROSS RECEIPTS TAX - - -
TOTAL SHIPPING/ FREIGHT COSTS - - -
GRAND TOTAL 40,950.33 = -
: REASON SELECTED STATE CONTRACT <:|
VENDOR SH1 International
CONTRACT/BID/RFP # 60-000-15-15-00020AB
ADDRESS 300 Davidson Ave ESTIMATED DELIVERY
Somerset, NJ 08873 PURCHASE ORDER #
AGENT = FUND NAME & LINE ITEM # AMOUNT
[ENDORSEMENT | WIth my signature, 1 hereby certify that all |\ (& 117 sighatures are not 649-200-400-00105 S 40,950.33
Boods/services requested are necessary to obtained the purchase cannot

move forward

Public Safety

DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE

DESIGNEE SIGNATURE FINANCE SIGNATURE

Board of Commissioners.

COMMISSION APPROVAL. IF USING STATE CONTRACT PLEASE
SENT BACK

PLEASE REMEMBER ANY REQUISITIONS OVER $500.00 NOW REQUIRE 3 HARD QUOTES. ANY REQUISTION $10,000.00 OR MORE WILL NEED TO GO ON THE AGENDA FOR |
LIST CONTRACT # ABOVE AS WELL AS THE FIRST 4 PAGES OF THE STATE CONTRACT, OTHERWISE IT WILL BE




Pricing Proposal

Quotation #: 21457041
Created On: 1/11/2022
Valid Until: ~ 1/31/2022

Cibola County Inside Account
Executive

Jessie Carwile Matthew Kemp
700 East Roosevelt Avenue 300 Davidson Ave, Somerset, NJ
Suite 50 08873

Grants, NM 87020 Phone: 732-652-0838
United States Fax:

Phone: (505) 285-2952 Email:
Fax:
Emai; jessie.carwile@co.cibola.nm.us

Matthew_Kemp@shi.com

All Prices are in US Dollar (USD)

Product Qty  Your Price Total

1 Apc Smart-Ups Srt 3000Va Rm 120V 3 $2,452.25 $7,356.75
APC by Schneider Electric - Part#: SRT3000RMXLA
Contract Name: Open Market
Contract # Open Market

2 APC Smart-UPS SRT 96V 3kVA RM Battery Pack - Battery enclosure (rack- 30 $978.87 $29,366.10
mountable) - 2 x Lead Acid - 2U - black
APC by Schneider Electric - Part#: SRTSSRMBP
Contract Name: Open Market
Contract #: Open Market

3 APC Network Management Card 3 with PowerChute Network Shutdo 3 $249.24 $747.72
APC by Schneider Electric - Part#: AP8640
Contract Name; Open Market
Contract #: Open Market

4 APC Extended Warranty Service Pack - Technical support - phone consulting - 1 30 $96.48 $2,894.40
year - 24x7 - for P/N: SRT1500XLJ, SRT1 92BP2J, SRT192BP2US, SRT192BPUS,
SRT96BPJ, SRTEERMBPUS, XU2KALLXXRCC
APC by Schneider Electric - Part#: WBEXTWAR1YR-SP-04
Contract Name: Open Market
Contract # Open Market

5 APC Extended Warranty Service Pack - Technical Support - phone consulting - 1 3 $195.12 $585.36
year - 24x7 - for P/N: SRT2400XLJ, SRT3000XLA-TW, SRT3000XLTW,
SRTSKRMXLW-TW, SRTEKXLTUS, SRTSKXLTW
APC by Schneider Electric - Part#: WBEXTWAR1YR-SP-05
Contract Name: Open Market
Contract #: Open Market

Subtotal $40,950.33
Shipping $0.00
Total $40,950.33



Additional Comments

Please Note: APC has a zero returns policy.

SHI SPIN: #143012572
SHI-GS SPIN (For Texas customers ONLY): #143028315

For E-rate SP| orders, applicant shall be responsible for payment of any outstanding or ineligible costs if USAC rejects
reimbursement claim in whole or in part.

Please note, if Emergency Connectivity Funds (ECF) will be used to pay for all or part of this quote, please let us know as we will
need to ensure compliance with the funding program.

Hardware items on this quote may be updated to reflect changes due to industry wide constraints and fluctuations.

Thank you for choosing SHI International Corp! The pricing offered on this quote proposal is valid through the expiration date set

above. To ensure the best level of service, please provide End User Name, Phone Number, Email Address and applicable Contract
Number when submitting a Purchase Order.

SHI International Corp. is 100% Minority Owned, Woman Owned Business.
TAX ID# 22-3009648; DUNS# 61 -1429481; CCR# 61-243957G; CAGE 1HTFO

The products offered under this proposal are Open Market and resold in accordance with the terms and conditions at SHI Online
Customer Resale Terms and Conditions,




DacuSign Envelope iy 78CAD216-8C8D-402B-B2BF-A0224A866530

Awarded Vendor:
0600013840

CDW Government LLC
75 Remittance Drive
Chicago, IL 60675-1515

Contact: John Armijo
Email: John.Armijo@edw.com
Telephone No.: (312) 547-2495

Ship To:

All State of New Mexico agencies, commissions,
Institations, political subdivisions and local public
bodies allowed by law.

Invoice;
As Requested

Title: Software VAR

SPD_Amd Bxted_010_Rev_00_0220

State of New Mexico
General Services Department
Purchasing Division

Statewide Price Agreement Amendment

Price Agreement Number: 60-000-15-00020AB
Price Agreement Amendment No.: Five

Term: June 30, 2017 — April 7, 2022

NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement Award

Number: ADSPO16-130652
NASPO ValuePoint Link:

https:!.-’wwmnaspnvaiuegoint.org@ortfolia!scft
ware-vgr~2016-2022/cdw»g/

Procurement Specialist: Vanessa LeBlane o1
Telephone No.: (508) 629-9525
Email: Vaggssa.LeBlanc@‘stgteznm.u§

This amendment is to be aitached to the respective Price Agreement and become a part thereof,

In accordance with Price Agreement provisions, and b
Agreement is extended from January 8, 2022 to April

y mutual agreement of all parties, this Price
7, 2022 at the same price, terms and conditions.

Also, update Award Vendor Contact information to: John Armijo

Email: John.Armijo@ecdw.com

Except as modified by this amendment, the provisions of the Price Agreement shall remain in full force

and effect,

Accepted for the State of New Mexico

Valerie Paulte
Mark Hayden, New Mexico State Purchasing Agent

X ‘This Agreement was signed on behalf of the State Purchasing Agent
Purchasing Division: 1100 St. Francis Drive, Room 2016, Santa Fe, 87505; PO Box 6850, Santa Fe, NM 87502 {505) 827-0472

NN

Date: 1/4/2022




Certificate Of Completion

Envstopae id: 78COD2156C6D402BB2BFAV224AB66830
Subject: Please DocuSign: 80-000-15-0002048 ANDB

Soures Envelope:

Dacument Pages: 1

Cartificate Pages: 6

Autolav: Enablod

Envelopeld Stamping: Enabled

Bignatures: 1
Inltleds; 2

Time Zone: (UTC-07:00) Mountaln Time (U8 & Canada)

Record Tracking

Status: Original

11412022 8:18:55 AM
Security Appliance Status: Connscted
Storage Appllance Status: Connected

Slgner Events

Travis Dufton- Leyda

Travis,Dutton-lL eydagetats.nm.us

IT & CQonstruotion Bureau Chisf

New Maxico General Services, State Purchasing
Pivision

Seaurlty Level: Email, Account Authentication
{None)

Electronic Record and Signaturs Disclosure:
Nt Offered via Dascuslgn

Vanessa LoBlanc
vanessaleblanc@state.nm.us
New Maxico General Services

Security Level: Email, Acaount Authentication
{None)

Electronio Record and Signature Disclosure!
Accepted: B/2/2020 7:02:26 AM
ID: 174ce330-a46c-40h-8480-b3160ed3d0ed

Valerla Paulk

valerie.paulk@state, nm.us

Stgned of Bahalf of Slate Purchasing Agent
New Mexico General Services

$lgning Group; 35000 - Stats Purchasing Agent

Seourlty Leval: Emall, Account Aithentication
(Nona)

Elactronic Rogerd and Signature Disclosurs:
Accapted; 8/28/2020 0:40:5% AM
1D: 1208840-7cha-dded-b5a1-8180244857ff

In Person Signer Events
Editor Dellvery Events
Agant Dellvery Events

Intermediary Dalivery Events

Holder: Vanessa LeBlanc
Venassa.beBlanc@state.nm.ug

Pool: Statel.oaal

Pook: 38D

Slgnature

At

Signature Adoption: Pra-selected Style
Using IP Address: 73.127.219.222

(44

Slgnature Adopfian: Pre-selected Styla
Using IP Address: 76.127.41.204

Valerie. Panll

Skanature Adoption; Pre-selacted Style
Uslng P Address: 164.64.62,10

Signature
Status
Status

Status

DocuSign

Slatus: Completed

Envelope Qrlginator;

" Vanessa LeBlanc

13 Bataan Blvd

Santa Fe, NM 87508

Vanessu LeBlanc@state.nm.us
IP Addrass: 76,127.41.204

Locatlon: DocuSign

Location: DecuSign

Timestamp

Sant; 1/4/2022 8:20:32 AM
Viewed: 1/4/2022 5:48:39 AM
Slgned: 1/4/2022 8:49:45 AM

Bent: 1/4/2022 8:40:46 AM
Viewsd: 1/4/2022 8:54:50 AM
Signed: 1/4/2022 8:54:52 AM

Sent: 1/4/2022 8:54:53 AM
Viewedd: 1/4/2022 9:08:40 AM
Signed: 1/4/2022 9:08:52 AM

Timestamp
Timestamp
Timestamp

Timestamp




Certifled Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp
Witness Events Signature Timestamp
Notary Bvents Slgnature Timestamp
Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 412022 8:20:32 AM
Califled Delivered Securlty Checked 1412022 9:08:40 AM
Slgning Complate Securlty Checked 1412022 9:08:52 AM
Completad Seourity Checked 1412022 S08:52 AM
Payment Events Status Timestamps

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure




Elettronlc Resord and Signature Disclosure craated on: 4114/2020 1:18:28 PM
Partios agreed to: Vanesss LeBlanc, Valerie Paulk

ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE
A. ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE (ERSD)

From time to time, New Mexico General Services Depattment (GSD), on behalf of the State of
New Mexico (SONM), may be required by law to provide you with certain written notices or
disclosures. Stated below are the terms and conditions for GSD's providing you such notices and
disclosures electronically through the DocuSign system, Please read this information carefully, If
you are able to access this information clectronically and agree to this Electronic Record and
Signature Disclosure (ERSD), please confirm your agreement by selecting the check-box next

to “I agree to use electronje records and signatures” hefore clicking “CONTINUE” within the
DocuSign system,

B. Obtaining paper copies

At any time up to twenty (20) calendar days following your use of DocuSign to electronically
sign & docurment, you may request a paper copy of any record provided or made available
electronically to you by GSD. You will have the ability to download and print documents SONM
sends you through the DocuSign system duting and immediately after the sighing session and, if
you elect to create a DocuSign account, you may access the documents for a twenty (20)
calendar day period after such documents are first sent to you. Following the twenty (20) day
period, if you want GSD to send you paper copies of any such documents from GSD's office,
you will be charged a $1.00 per-page fee plus postage. You may requost delivery of such paper
copies from GSD by following the procedure stated in Section H, below.

C. Withdrawing your consent

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from GSD electronically, you may at any time
change your mind and inform GSD you want to receive required notices and disclosures only in
paper format. The procedure concerning how you may inform GSD of your decision to receive
future notices and disclosures in paper format as well as withdraw your consent fo receive
notices and disclosures electronically is stated in Section D, immediately below,

D. Consequences of changing your mind

If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the
speed with which GSD will be able to complete certain steps in specific transactions and deliver
paper copies to you. GSD will need: (1) to send the required notices or disclosures to you in
paper format; and (2) wait untit GSD receives your acknowledgment of your receipt of such
paper notices or disclosures, Further, you will no longer be able to use the DocuSign system to
recejve required notices and consents electronically from SONM or to electronically sign
documents generated and sent to you from SONM.




NSeBr  SETOCOS : 0000000 vU'S6T'E0T  ifesoyuoday
%SEBY  9B'TOL'9G PI'862'E0T  SIENOL IOV NY1d 3NJSIH NYIININY - 699
K SEBY 98TOL96 :sje10) asuadx3
%Se8y 98'10£'96 Ayages nang S0T00-006-002-673
asuadxy
LIV NV1d 3INJS3H NYIIHINY - 6¥9
Buiueway %  Suueway 103png  asuejeg Suipug Auanoy |ejol aouejeg Suluwdag  33dpng [eIsiy S3oUBIGWINIU] awen unoxy

2202/12/10 - 120Z/10/40 :9buey ajeq
\CMEEJW UnNoodYy WN ‘Auno) ejoqin

uoday 196png sa jiel1ag AN




%SE8Y 98096 000 oo 600 0000000z
WSE'BY  98TOL96 0o o 0  0000000Z
% seay 98T0L'96. 009 g JOOD., 00’0 . 00°000°00Z
% SE'8Y 98'T0.'96 000 000 000 00'000°002
Juuieway %  Suluieway 323png  scuejeg Sujpu3z Ayanoy |e1o0) @ouejeg Suiuuidag  198png |easid

2202/12/10 - 1202/10/£0 :2buey ajeq
Alewwing Juno2oYy

voday 19bpng sA jieleqg AN

YT'86Z'€0T

. bresz’eor
... YUSGT'EOT

PI°862€0T

SaJueaqunauy

:jejo) woday
iS[E30L LDV NV1d 3NJS3Y NYIIHIWY - 679

isjeoy asuadx3z
Aajes ngnd SOT00-00%-00Z-6¥9
asuadxy
10V NV1d 3NJS3H NYOIH3WY - 69
awepy unox»y

WN ‘A3uno) ejog




REQUISITION ORDER

DATE : DEPARTMENT: Quote Obtained By:
Data Processing Jessie Carwile
January 21, 2022
w QUOTE #1 QUOTE #2 QUOTE #3
VENDOR NAME: SHI international
CONTACT NAME:{Matthew Kemp
PHONE:|732-652-0838
wew MExies - rar rea FAX:
NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT COST EXTENSION UNIT COST EXTENSION UNIT COST | EXTENSION
3 _|Apc Smart-Ups Srt 3000Va Rm 120V 2452.25 7,356.75 - -
Part No. SRT3000RMXLA - - -
30 |APC Smart-UPS SRT 96V 3kVA RM Battery 978.87 29,366.10 - -
Pack - Part No. SRT96RMBP - - ®
3 |APC Network Management Card 3 w/ Power 249.24 747.72 5 =
Chute Network Shutdo - - -
Part No. AP9640 - a -
30 |APC Extended Warranty Service Pack 96.48 2,894.40 2 5
Part No. WBEXTWAR1YR-SP-04 - - Z
3 _|APC Extended Warranty Service Pack 195,12 585.36 =
Part No. WBEXTWAR1YR-SP-05 - - -
SUBTOTAL FOR SELECTED ITEMS 40,950.33 - -
TOTAL LABOR/ SERVICE COSTS - : -
TOTAL GROSS RECEIPTS TAX - - -
TOTAL SHIPPING/ FREIGHT COSTS - - -
GRAND TOTAL 40,950.33 - -
REASON SELECTED STATE CONTRACT <:]
VENDOR SHI International
CONTRACT/BID/RFP # 60-000-15-15-00020AB
ADDRESS 300 Davidson Ave ESTIMATED DELIVERY
Somerset, NJ 08873 PURCHASE ORDER #
{PURCHASING T
AGENT FUND NAME & LINE ITEM # AMOUNT
ENDORSEMENT | With my signature, | hereby certify that all If all three signatures are not | 649-200-400-00105 S 40,950.33
goods/services requested are necessary to obtained the purchase cannot | )
properly conduct the operations of this move forward Public Safety
department, and that all procurement has
been conducted according to purchasing e e e —
policies approved by the Clbola County DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE DESIGNEE SIGNATURE FINANCE SIGNATURE
Board of Commissioners, "'
[ O O O 00.00 8 () LD 0 O O 0,000.0 D O 00 D UN
0 0 PPRO g 0 0 A # ABO B



Cibola County

Jessie Carwile

700 East Roosevelt Avenue
Suite 50

Grants, NM 87020

United States

Phone: (505) 285-2952

Emal. jessie.carwile@co.cibola.nm.us

All Prices are in US Dollar (USD)

Product

Apc Smart-Ups Srt 3000Va Rm 120V
APC by Schneider Electric - Part#: SRT3000RMXLA
Contract Name: Open Market
Contract #: Open Market

APC Smart-UPS SRT 96V 3kVA RM Battery Pack - Battery enclosure (rack-
mountable) - 2 x Lead Acid - 2U - black

APC by Schneider Electric - Part#: SRT96RMBP

Contract Name: Open Market

Contract # Open Market

APC Network Management Card 3 with PowerChute Network Shutdo
APC by Schneider Electric - Part#: AP9640
Contract Name: Open Market
Contract #: Open Market

APC Extended Warranty Service Pack - Technical support - phone consulting - 1
year - 24x7 - for P/N: SRT1500XLJ, SRT192BP2J, SRT1 92BP2US, SRT192BPUS,
SRT96BPJ, SRT6RMBPUS, XUZKOLLXXRCC

APC by Schneider Electric - Part#: WBEXTWAR1YR-SP-04

Contract Name: Open Market

Contract # Open Market

APC Extended Warranty Service Pack - Technical support - phone consulting - 1
year - 24x7 - for P/N: SRT2400XLJ, SRT3000XLA-TW, SRT3000XLTW,
SRTSKRMXLW-TW, SRTEKXLTUS, SRTEKXLTW

APC by Schneider Electric - Part#: WBEXTWAR1YR-SP-05

Contract Name: Open Market

Contract #: Open Market

Pricing Proposal

Quotation #: 21457041
Created On: 1/11/2022
Valid Until:  1/31/2022

Inside Account
Executive

Matthew Kemp

300 Davidson Ave, Somerset, NJ

08873
Phone: 732-652-0838
Fax:

Emal.  Matthew_Kemp@shi.com

Qty  Your Price

3 $2,452.25
30 $978.87
3 $249,24
30 $96.48
3 $195.12
Subtotal

Shipping

Total

Total

$7,356.75

$29,366.10

$747.72

$2,894.40

$585.36

$40,950.33
$0.00
$40,950.33




Additional Comments

Please Note: APC has a zero retumns policy.

SHI SPIN: #143012572
SHI-GS SPIN (For Texas customers ONLY): #143028315

For E-rate SPI orders, applicant shall be responsible for payment of any outstanding or ineligible costs if USAG rejects
reimbursement claim in whole or in part.

Please note, if Emergency Connectivity Funds (ECF) will be used to pay for all or part of this quote, please let us know as we will
need to ensure compliance with the funding program.

Hardware items on this quote may be updated to reflect changes due to industry wide constraints and fluctuations.

Thank you for choosing SHI International Corp! The pricing offered on this quote proposal is valid through the expiration date set

above. To ensure the best level of service, please provide End User Name, Phone Number, Email Address and applicable Contract
Number when submitting a Purchase Order.

SHI International Corp. is 100% Minority Owned, Woman Owned Business,
TAX ID# 22-3009648; DUNS# 61-1429481; CCR# 61-243957G; CAGE 1HTFO

The products offered under this proposal are Open Market and resold in accordance with the terms and conditions at SHI Online

Customer Resale Terms and Conditions.



DocuBlgn Envelops ID: 78C9D215-8C6D-492B-B2BF-A9224A866530
SPD_Amd_Exted 010 _Rev_00_0220

State of New Mexico
General Services Department
Purchasing Division

Statewide Price Agreement Amendment

Awarded Vendor;

0000013840 Price Agreerent Number: 60-000-15-00020AB
CDW Government LLC

75 Remittance Drive Price Agreement Amendment No.: Five

Chicago, IL 60675-1515
Term: June 30, 2017 — April 7, 2022
Contact: John Armijo

Email: John.Armijo@edw.com NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement Award
Telephone No.: (312) 547-2495 Number: ADSPO16-130652
NASPO ValuePoint Link:

hetpsiiiwww.naspovaiuepoint.org/portlolio/soft
ware-var-2016-2022/cdw-g/

Ship To: Procurement Specialist: Vanessa LeBlane %
All State of New Mexico agencies, commissions,
institutions, political subdivisions and local publie Telephone No.: {505) 629-9525
bodies allowed by law.

Email: Vanessa.LeBlanc@state.nm.us
Invoice;
As Requested

Title; Software VAR

This amendment is to be attached to the respective Price Agreement and hecome a part thereof.

In accordance with Price Agreement provisions, and by mutual agreement of all parties, this Price
Agreement is extended from January 8, 2022 to April 7, 2022 at the same price, terms and conditions.

Also, update Award Vendor Contact information to: John Armijo
Email; John. Armijo@cdw.com

Except as modificd by this amendment, the provisions of the Price Agreement shall remain in full force
and effect.

Accepted for the State of New Mexico

Valene Paulte Date: 1/4/2022

Mark Hayden, New Mexico State Purchasing Agent
X This Agreement was signed on behalf of the State Purchasing Agent

Purchasing Divigion: 1100 St. Francis Drive, Room 2016, Santa Fe, 37505; PO Box 6850, Santa Fe, NM 87502 (505) 827-0472

IS




Certificate Of Completion

Envelope id: 78COD2168CE0402BB2BFAI224AB66630
Subject: Pleagsa DocuSign: 60-000-16-00020AB AODS

Source Envelopa:

Document Pages: 1

Certiflcate Pages: &

AutoNay: Enabled

Envelopslel Stamping: Enabled

Signatures: 1
Initlals; 2

Time Zone: (UTC-07:00) Mourain Time (U8 & Canada)

Record Tracking

Status; Originaf

11412022 8:18:55 AM
Baourity Appliance Status; Connected
Storage Appllance Status; Connected

Sigher Events

Travis Dutton- Leyda

Travis. Dutton-Leydagstate.nm.us

IT & Conatruotion Bureay Chief

New Mexlco General Sarvices, Stata Purchasing
Bivislon

Seourity Level: Emall, Account Authentlcation
(Nona)

Elsctronic Record and Signature Disclosura:
Not Offered via DocuSign

Vanoasa LeBlang
vanessaleblanc@state.nm.us
New Mexico Ganeral Services

Security Level: Emall, Account Authentication
{None}

Electronic Record and Slgnature Disclosurs:
Acgepled: 6/2/2020 7:02:28 AM
1D: 17400339-0450-46b0-8489-b35ced M8 ad

Vaterla Paulk

valaria.pauik@state.nm,us

Signed of Behalf of State Purchesing Agent
New Mexico General Services

Bigning Group: 35000 - State Purchasing Agent

Sacurlty Leval: Emall, Acoount Authentication
{Nong)

Electronle Rocord and $ignature Disclosura:
Accepted: 5/20/2020 9:40:69 AM
ID: 1 2088d0-Toba~4ded-hE61-81002448871F

In Person Signer Events
Editor Dalivery Events
Agent Dellvery Events

Intermediary Delivery Events

Holder: Vanessa L.eBlanc

Vahessa,LeBlanc@state.nm,ug
Pool: Statat.ooal
Pool: G&D

Signature
Al

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Slyle
Using IP Addrass: 73,127.219.222

(#4

Slgnature Adoption: Pre-selacted Style
Using I Address: 76.127.41.204

Vialerit, Pandle

Signaturs Adaptlon: Pre-selscied Styte
Using P Address: 164.64.62.10

Signature
Status
Status

Btatus

DocuSign
Status: Completed

Envelope Qriginator:

Vanessa LeBlanc

13 Bataan Blvd

Santa Fe, NM 87508
Vanessa.LeBlanc@state.nm.us
I Address: 76,127.41.204

Looatlon: DocuSign

Location: DocuSign

Timestamp

Sents 1/4/2022 8:20:32 AM
Viewed: 1/4/2022 8:44:39 AM
Slgned: 1/4/2022 8:49:45 AM

Sent: 1/4/2022 8:49:48 AM
Viewed: 1/4/2022 8:54:50 AM
Signed: 1/4/2022 8:54:52 AM

Benl: 1/4/2022 8:54:53 AM
Viewed: 1/4/2022 9:08:40 AM
Signad: 1/4/2022 9:08:52 AM

Timestamp
Timestamp
Timestamp

Timestamp




Certifled Dollvery Events Status

Carbon Copy Events Status
Withess Events Signature
Notary Events Signaturs
Envelope Summary Events ‘ Status
Envelope Sent Haghed/Encrypted
Certified Deliverad Securily Checkad
Slgning Complete Securlty Checked
Completed Securlty Chacked
Payment Events Status

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure

Timestamp
Timestamp
Timestamp
Timestamp

Timestamps

11412022 8:20:32 AM
17412022 $08:40 AM
11472022 $:08:52 AM
1412022 B:08:52 AM

Timestamps




Elactronle Record and Signature Disclosure craated on: 4/14/2020 1:18:28 PM
Partios agreed lo: Vanessa LeBlane, Valerie Paulk

ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE

A, ELECTRONIC RECORD AND SIGNATURE DISCLOSURE (ERSD)

From time to time, New Mexico General Services Department (GSD), on behalf of the State of
New Mexico (SONM), may be required by law to provide you with certain written notices or
disclosures, Stated below are the terms and conditions for GiSD's providing you such notices and
disclosures electronically through the DocuSign system, Please read this information carefully. If
you are able to access this information electronically and agree to this Electronic Record and
Signature Disclosure (ERSD), please confirm vour agreement by selecting the check-box next
to “1 agres to use electronic records and signatures” before clicking “CONTINUE” within the
DocuSign system,

B. Obtaining paper copies

At any time up to twenty (20) calendar days following your use of DocuSign to elecironically
sign a document, you may request a paper copy of any record provided or made available
electronically to you by GSD. You will have the ability to download and print documents SONM
sends you through the DocuSign system during and immediately after the signing session and, if
you elect to create & DocuSign account, you may access the documents for a twenty 0)
calendar day period after such documents are first sent to you. Following the twenty (20) day
period, if you want GSID to send you paper copies of any such documents from GSD's office,
you will be charged a $1.00 per-page fee plus postage. You may request delivery of such paper
copies from GSD by following the procedure stated in Section H, betow.

C. Withdrawing your consent

If you decide to receive notices and disclosures from GSD electronically, you may at any time
change your mind and inform GSD you want to receive required notices and disclosures only in
paper format. The procedure concerning how you may inform GSD of your decision to recejve
future notices and disclosures in paper format as well as withdtaw your consent to receive
notices and disclosutes electronically is stated in Section D, immediatety below.

D. Consequences of changing your mind

If you elect to receive required notices and disclosures only in paper format, it will slow the
speed with which GSD will be able to complete certain steps in specific transactions and deliver
paper copies to you. GSD will need: (1) to send the required notices or disclosures 1o you in
paper format; and (2) wait until GSD receives your acknowledgment of your receipt of such
paper notices or disclosures. Further, you will no Jonger be able to use the DocuSign system to
receive required notices and consents electronically from SONM or to electronically sign
documents generated and sent to you from SONM,




%SEEY
NEERY
ks 3.1
% SE'8Y

Suurewsay 9

2202/12Z/70 - 1202/10/£0 :96uey ajeq

| 98°T0L'96
98°T0L'96
987T0L'96

98'10.'96

Juujeway 123png  asuejeg Suipuy

00°0

..

000

Alewwng Junoooy
Hoday 1e6png sa jie19qg AN

000

000 . boo 00°000°00Z
boo ... o0 0000000z
00’0 oo 00°000'00Z
000 000 007000002
Ananovy 1oy aouejeg Sujuui@ag  138png easiy

 vrgezor
. brEezEor
PTBEZEOT

¥1°86Z'€0T

saauBIqUINIU]

158301 3suadxz

:|ero] poday
_'SIE0L 1DV NV1d 3NJS3H NYIIYIWY - 69

Ayajesangng §0T00-007-002-6v3
asuadxy

OV NVId 3NJS3H NVIIYIWY - 619

awen unoly

Y
WN ‘Auno ejoqry -, % /U
pyy W




Procurement For

FY23 Budget

Road Equipment-2 Requisitions




REQUISITION ORDER

PLEASE REMEMBER ANY REQUISITIONS OVER
[COMMISSION APPROVAL. IF USING STATE CONTRACT

SENT BACK P

$500.00 NOW REQUIRE 3 HARD QUOTES. ANY REQUISTION &40
PLEASE LIST CONTRACT # ABOVE AS WELL AS THE FIRST

DATE : DEPARTMENT: Quote Obtained By:
Road Department Edward Salazar
lanuary 21, 2022 QUOTE #1 QUOTE #2 QUOTE #3
VENDOR NAME:|Pete's Equipment Repair
CONTACT NAME: | Wiiliam Pedigo
PHONE:|505-242-6969
BEWw MEXICH . ST iwan FAx: 505-242-4156
NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT COST EXTENSION UNIT COST EXTENSION UNIT COST | EXTENSION
1 [Ramjet 3040-750 124493,75 124,493,75 - -
1 |Pintle Hitch 71,25 71.25 - =
1 13,000 PSI Washdown Gun w/ 1/2" x 25' Hose 506.25 506.25 - &
1 |Additional 42" Tool Box 1056.25 1,056.25 - 5
1 [Spare Tire & Rim with Mounting Bracket 531.25 531.25 -
on Frame - r 3
1_|3/4" Super Spinn 11| Warthog Nozzle w/ 2092.50 2,092,50 - ,
Syringe & Oil - % =
1 _|Delivery & Training 2500.00 2,500.00 - &
1 |Mini Thubder Nozzle Assembly 1417.54 1,417.54 - g
1 |Sourcewell Discount -3862.54 (3,862.54) - 2
SUBTOTAL FOR SELECTED ITEMS 128,806.25
TOTAL LABOR/ SERVICE COSTS - - -
TOTAL GROSS RECEIPTS TAX - - -
TOTAL SHIPPING/ FREIGHT COSTS 3,500.00 - -
GRAND TOTAL 132,306.25 - -
. ) REAS(;N SELECTED STATE CONTRACT cﬂ
VENDOR Pete’s Equipment Repair, Inc
CONTRACT/&D]RFP # 950-00000-19-00063
RBDiRGSS 1412 Broadway NE ESTIMATED DELIVERY
Albuquerque, NM 87102 PURCHASE ORDER #
[PURCHASING
AGENT FUND NAME & LINE ITEM # AMOUNT
[ENDORSEMENT | With my signature, | hereby certify that all 0 402-015-416-00028 $ 132,306.25
goods/services requested are necessary to obtained the p d anno
properly conduct the operations of this ave fo d Capital Outlay
department, and that all procurement has
been conducted according to purchasing
policies approved by the Cibofa County DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE bﬁSiGhj_EE SIGNATURE FINANCE SIGNATURE
Board of Commissioners. X '
P

ot '00 OR MORE WILL NEED TO GO ON THE AGENDA FOR ]
4 PAGYS OF THE STATE CONTRACT, OTHERWISE IT WILL BE |




] Y =
IZC et quiipmcn Repain, Tne,
| PE— 1412 Broadway NE
\ ' Albuquerque, NM 87102
(505) 242-6969 Phone

..... — (505) 242-4156 Fax
Cleaning aud Protecting Ouwn Communities WWwW.petesequip.com
g 9 p

.

January 18, 2022

Cibola County

1129 Motel Dr.,
Milan, NM 87021
Attn: Edward Salazar
Road Superintendent

Dear Mr. Salazar.,

I am pleased to offer you a new 2022 Vactor RAMIET., trailer mounted, jetter for $132.306.25
via Federal Signal Sourcewell Contract #101221-VTR. Pleasc know we are estimating 6 months
on this build from the time of purchase order receipt. This final price includes the following

features:

* 40 GPM@3000 PSI * Hose Wind Guide

* 750 Gallon Water Capacity * 25" Fill Hose

* Water Recirculation & Anti-Freeze System * Hydraulic Speed Control

* DOT Approved LED trailer lighting * Twin 6000 Ibs. Torsion Bar Axles
* Triplex Plunger Run Dry Pump * Two Drain Jet Nozzles

* Pintle Hitch * 10" Leader Hose

* 500" 3/4™ Piranha Sewer Hose * High Temp/Low 0il Shut Down

* 37 Tiger Tail * Mini Thunder Nozzle Assembly

* Two (2) 42 Aluminum Toolboxes * Pulsation System

* Tier IV Diesel Engine * Finned Nozzle Extension

* 3000 PSI Washdown Gun w/hose * %" Super Spin 111 Warthot Nozzle

The purchase order should be addressed to Pete’s Equipment Repair, Inc, as we are the sole
distributor for Vactor products for the entire State of New Mexico. This price includes delivery
and training. Please know this quote is good for 30 days from today’s date. If you have any
questions, please give me or Laurie Rebarchik a call.

Thank you for this opportunity,
William Pedigo

(. 7’%;

General Manager, Pete Equipment Repair INC.




BocuSlgn Envalops 1D 46137C94-98BC-4815-A1C4-AAD7845ABEAD

8PD_Amd_Exted_010_Rev_00_0220

State of New Mexico
General Services Department
Purchasing Division

Statewide Price Agreement Amendment

Awarded Vendor: Number; 90-00000-19-06063
23 Vendors

Amendment No,: Four
Email;

Teleplione No,: ' Term: July 29, 2019-July 28, 2022

Ship To: Procurement Specialist: Raelynn Lujan #£
All State of New Mexico agencies, commissions,
institutions, political subdivisions and local public Telephone No,: 70-

bodics allowed by Iaw,

Email; rae!xnn.luian@state.nm.gs

Envolce;
As Requested

Title: Highway & OIT Road Heavy Equipment

This amendment is to be attached 1o the respective Price Agreement and become a part thereof,

In accordance with Price Agreement provisions, and by mutual agreement of sl parties, this

Price Agreement is
extended from July 29, 2021 to July 28, 2022 at the same price, terms and conditions,

"This amendment is issued to reflect the following effective immediately:
Vendor Titan Machinery Inc, has been acquired by Century Equipment Company,

From: Ta:
(AV) 0000051908 (AV) 0000150685
Waesskote Inc, Aaron’s Perez Collision Center LLC
1504 Coors Blvd, SW 1504 Coors Blvd, SW
Albuquerque, NM 87121 Albuguerque, NV 87121
(505)873-8360 (505) 269-9387
wesskote@hotmail.com aperezcollision/@gmail.com

Except as modified by this amendment, the provisions of the Price Agreemont

shall remain in full force and
effect,

Accepted for the State of New Mexico

Valenit. Paull

Mark Hayden, New Mexico State Purchasing Agent
x This Agreement was signed on behalf of the State Purchasing Agent
Purchasing Division: 1100 St. Francis Drive, Room 2016, Santa Fe, 87505 ; PO Box 6830, Santa Fe, NM 87502 (505) 827-0472

Q.

Date;7/1/2021




GSD/PD (Rev. 04/19)
State of New Mexico

General Services Department
Purchasing Division

Statewide Price Agreement Amendment

Awarded Vendor- Price Agreement Number: 90-000-19-00063
23 Vendors

Price Agreement Amendment No.: Three
Email: Term: July 29,2019 - July 28, 2021
Telephone No.:
Ship To: Procurement Specialist: Raelvnn Lujan
All State of New Mexico agencies, commissions,
institutions, political subdivisions and local public Telephone No.: (505) 827-0484

bodies allowed by law.

Email: raclynn.lujan@state.nm.us

Invoice:
As Requested

Title: Highway & Off Road Heavy Equipment and Truck Repairs (Parts & Labor)

thereof,

In accordance with Price Agreement provisions, and by mutual agreement of all parties, this Price
Agreement is extended from July 29,2020 to J uly 28, 2021 at the same price, terms and conditions,

This amendment is issued to reflect the following effective immediately:
Vendor Titan Machinery Inc. has been acquired by Century Equipment Company.

[ From: To:
(AU) 0000102501 (AU) 0000092769
Titan Machinery Inc. Century Equipment Company
6613 Edith Blvd NE 6301 Edith Blvd NE
Albuquerque, NM 87114 Albuquerque, NM 87107
505-342-2566 505-433-2246
'ake.schams@titanmachinery.com ian.hurley@centuryeq.com ]

Except as modified b

¥ this amendment, the provisions of the Price Agreement shall remain in full force
and effect.

A\7£cptcd for the State of New Mexico

(UU\”“ W iq)ﬂ Date: 7/21/2020

Mark Hayden, New Mexico Statt:)Purchasing Agent

Purchasing Division: | 100 St. Francis Drive, Room 2016, Santa Fe, 87505; PO Box 6850, Santa Fe, NM 87502 (505) 827-0472



L

GSIVED (Rev. 04/19)
State of Now Mexico

General Services Department
Purchasing Division

Statewide Price Agrecment Amendment

Awarded Vendor; Price Agresment Number: 90-000-19-00063
0000143288

411 Equipment, LLC Price Agreement Amendment No.: Tywo
1815 4™ Street NW

Albuquerque, NM 87102 - Term: July 29, 2019 -July 28, 2020

Email: mmarquez@41 lequipment.com

Telephone No, (503) 280-9143

Ship To: Procurement Specialist: Raelynn Lujan W
All State of New Mexico agencies, commissions,
institutions, political subdivisions and Jocal public Telephone No.t (305) 827-0484
bodies allowed by iaw,
Email: melyon njan@state.nm us
Involce:
As Requested

Title: Highway and Off Road Heavy Equipment and Truck Repairs (Parts & Labor)

This Price Agreement Amendment is fo be attached to the respective Price Agreement and become a
part thereof,

This amendment is issned to reflect the following effective immediately:

Vendor (AP) MIM Service & Repair has been acquired by 411 Equipment, LLC,

From: To:

(AP) 0000142503 (AP) 6000143288

MJIM Service & Repair 411 Equipment LLC

8528 Powder Ct NW - 1815 4™ Street NW

Albugquerque, NM 87120 Albuguerque, NM 87102
(505) 280-9143

Except as modified by this amendment, the provisions of the Price Agreement shall remain in full force
and cffect,

Accepted e of New Mexico

Date: 10/3/2019

Mark Hq&’den, New Mexico Qfate Purdhasing Agent

anlmsﬁ:g Divislon, 1100 St Feancls Drive 87508, PO Box 6850, Santa Fe, NM 87302-6350 (505) 827-0472




Awarded Vendoy:

0000141519

(AS) Roberts Truck Center of NM
1623 Aspen Ave, NM
Albuquerque, NM 87104

Email: melody.dyer@roberistruck.com
Telephone No, (505) 243-7883

rﬁhip To:
All State of New Mexico agencies, commissions,

institutions, political subdivisions and local public
bedies allowed by Iaw,

‘Invoice:
As Requested at time of order

GSDIPD (Rev, 01/11)

State of New Mexico.
General Services Department
Purchasing Division

Statewide Price Agreement Aﬁ:endment

Price Agreement Number: 20-000-19-00063

Price Agresinent Amendment No,: One

- Term: July 29, 2019 thra July 28, 2020

Procurement Spocialist: Raglynn Lujan %
Telephone No.: (505) 827-0484
Email: raclynnujan@state.um

Title: Highway and Off Road Heavy Equipment and Truck Repairs (Parts & Labor)

This Price Agrecsent Amendment is to be attached to the respective Price Agreoment and become a

part thereof,

This amendment is issued to refiect the following effective immediately:

Correet Vendor numbey (AS) Roberts Truck Centor:

Change from #0000047816 to #0000141519

Except as modified by this amendment, the provisions of the Price Agreement shall remain in full foree

and effect,

New Mexico State Purchasing Agent

Purchasing Division: 1100 St, Francis Drive, Ragin 2016, Santa Fo, §7503;

Date: 9/3/2019

PO Box 6850, Snnta Fe, NM 87502 (505) 8270472




REQUISITION ORDER

\\ [‘ [! DATE : DEPARTMENT: Quote Obtained By:
®\ : % January 21, 2022 Road Department Edward Salazar
3% ) i, QUOTE #1 QUOTE #2 QUOTE #3
B VENDOR NAME:|Wagner equipment
CONTACT NAME:
PHONE:|505-345-8411
mew werien . yar ies EAX:
NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT COST EXTENSION UNIT COST EXTENSION UNIT COST | EXTENSION
Monthly Leasing of 2 Blades & 1 Back Hoe - - &
12 1420 Backhoe :0ader 1746.83 20,961.96 - -
12 |140LVR Motor Grader 3454.30 41,451.60 - =
12 |140LVR Motor Grader 3454.30 41,451.60 - &
SUBTOTAL FOR SELECTED ITEMS 103,865.16 - -
TOTAL LABOR/ SERVICE COSTS - - =
TOTAL GROSS RECEIPTS TAX - - =
TOTAL SHIPPING/ FREIGHT COSTS - - =
GRAND TOTAL 103,865.16 - -
REASON SELECTED STATE CONTRACT @
VENDOR Wagner Equipment
CONTRACT/BID/RFP # 90-00000-19-00063
ADDRESS 400 Osuna Rd NE ESTIMATED DELIVERY
Albuquerque, NM 87109 PURCHASE ORDER #
ke FUND NAME & LINE [TEM # AMOUNT
[ENDORSEMENT | With my signature, | hereby certify that all 0 402-015-416-00013 $ 43,277.15
goods/services requested are necessary to obtained the p 0 0
properly conduct the operations of this ove fo Equipment Rental
department, and that all procurement has
been conducted according to purchasing
policles approved by the Cibola County DEPARTMENT HEAD SIGNATURE IGNEE SIGNATURE FINANCE SIGNATURE
Board of Commissioners,
REQ 2 O 00.00 O Q RD Q O 4 REQ 0,000.00 OR UR D a 0O D OR
O O O O O BO 3




Quote 238942-01

8 waGNER

Quote 238942-01

January 20, 2022

CIBOLA COUNTY COMMISSIONATTN: ROAD
DEPARTMENT

515 W HIGH STREET
GRANTS, New Mexico 87020

Attention: EDWARD SALAZAR

Dear Mr. Salazar,

consideration.
Caterpillar Model: 140LVR Motor Grader
STOCK NUMBER: TBD SERIAL NUMBER: TBD YEAR: 2022 HOURS:

We appreciate the opportunity to extend this quote. This quote is subject to availability and is valid for 30 days, after which time we
reserve the right to re-quote. If there are any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Regards,

Don Roberts
505-320-1023

Sales Representative
Wagner Equipment Co.

Page 1 of 4



Quote 238942.01

Gaterplliar Modsl: 140LVR Motor Grader
STANDARD EQUIPMENT

POWERTRAIN -Alr cleanar, dual stage dry type radial -seal with Setvice indicator and -automatic dust ejector -Alrto-gir after cooler
{ATAAC) -Belt, serpentine, automatic tensioner -Brakes, oil disc, four-whagi, hydraulic -Demand fan, hytraulls -Blectronto over-gpand
protection -Engine, €9 with ACERT tachnology, diesal -with automatic angine derate and Idis ~control, BRPAJARR tier 4 final & BU
-stage IV certified englne & -aftertreatment ~Parking brake, multl-dise, sealad and -oi| sooled -Sedimant drain, fugl tank -Tandem drive
~Transmission, § spead forward and -6 speed reverse, power shift, direct -drive -VHp Plus (Varlable Horse Power Plig) -

ELECTRICAL -Alarm, back-up -Alternator, 150 ampere, sealed -Batterles, maintenance fres, heavy -duty, 1125 COA -Breaker panal
~Electrical system, 24 volt -Lights, reversing -Starter, electrlc

OPERATOR ENVIRONMENT ~Steering wheal -Alr Conditioning with heater -Articulation -Centershift pin indleator -Display, dightat
speed and gear -Load sensing hydraulic controts: —Right/loft biade lift .-Girgla drive --Center shift .-Side shift ~-Blade tip ~Front wheel
lean -Doors, Jeft and right side -Gauge, machine level -Gauges (anatog) inside the cab -(ncludes fusl, articulation, engina -coolant
temp, engina RPM and hydraulic -oll temp, DEF/AdBIue) -Lights, night time cab -Messenger Display --Metear ~Hour dighal -Mirror
-Inside rearview, wide angle -Power port, 12V -Radio ready, sntartainment -ROPS cab, 77dB(A) ISO 8304 ~Storage aren for

coolerllunchbox -Throttle control, electronic -Windows: laminated glass -Fixed front with Intermittent wipar -windows: fempered -Left
and rght side wipars -Raar with intermittent wiper -Gab Storage -

SAFETY AND SECURITY -Clutoh, clrcle drive stip -Doors, 2 8ngine compartment, (two left -hand, two Fight hand) locking -boors, 2

service, left and right loeking -Ground level engine shutdown -Hammer {omergency axit) -Hom, slectric -Baat belt, retractable 3
-Becondary steering -Tandem walkway/guards

FLUIDS -Antifraeze -Extended ife cootant -35CLA0F

OTHER STANDARD EQUIPMENT -Accumulators -brake -dual cerified ~Drawbar,5 shoe wiraplaceable wear sifips -Fluld check,
ground level -Fuel tank, 100 gallon (378 L) -Ground level fueling -DEF/AdBIue Tank, 3.3 gallon (12,8 L) -Hydraulic ines for base

functions -Pump, hydraulic, high capacity -(100¢c / 8 oy in) -Radlator, cleanout accass ~(both sides with swing doors) -80S ports -
angine -hydraulie ~transmission -coolant -fuel -Tog box -Debris guard -

Page 2 of 4




MACHINE SPECIFICATIONS

140 B+2 LVR

MOLDBOARD, 14' BASIC
RIPPER-SCARIFIER, REAR

COLD WEATHER PLLUS, TANDEM
PRECLEANER, 8Y-KLONE

LINK BAR, HYDRAULIC
DRAWBAR, TOP ADJUST

LOCK OUT, MANUAL

BASE+2 (RIP FL)
ACCUMULATORS, NO ARO
STARTER, EXTREME DUTY
ROADING LIGHTS W/FOLD DOWN ARM
CAB, PLUS

SEAT, CLOTH AIR SUSPENSION
MIRRORS, HEATED EXTERNAL
PRODUCT LINK, CELLULAR PLEB41
FAN, STANDARD TANDEM
TIRES,14.0R24 MX XGLA2 * G2 MP
LOW BAR, HALOGEN, TANDEM
LIGHTS, WORK PLUS, HALOGEN
LIGHTS, CAB ROOF, HALOGEN
WARNING STROBE
TRANSMISSION, AUTOSHIFT
CIRCLE SAVER

CAMERA, REAR VISION

PREMIUM CORP RADIC (12V)
GUARD, TRANSMISSION
COVERS, UNDER CAB

PUSH PLATE, COUNTERWEIGHT
LIFT GROUP, FRONT MOUNTING
SHANKS/TEETH, RIPPER/SCARIFIER
COOLANT (-400)

LANGUAGE, ENGLISH

DECALS, ENGLISH (US)

FUEL ANTIFREEZE, -25C (-13F)

Quote 23884201

Page dof4d




Quote 238963-01

SELL PRICE $126,008.77
SUBTOTAL $126,008.77
TOTAL $128,006.77
WARRANTY & COVERAGE

Standard Warranty; 12 Months Untimited Hours, Parts and Labor (Travel Timo lnciudad_ for the

first & months)

Extendad Coverage: 420-80 MO/3000 HR POWERTRAIN + HYDRAULICS + TEGCH

F.OBTERWS:
Grants, NM

PAYMENT TERMS

T

CABWTH ORDBR o ot oo e oo T T
$0.00

CASHWITH ~ [BALANGE |TERM ~  |MONTHLY "‘l‘f»i"b{'fﬂ"" BUYOUT  |DOGUMENT FEE
ORDER .. |TOFINANCE . PAYMENT —} L
1$0.00 1$126,405.77 {60 (Monthly)  [$1,746.83 | $46,035.00  |$400.00

The above lease is based on the following:

® Taxes are extra on the monthly payments and the buy-out
If the machine Is not purchased at the end, then it must be returned in average condition with normal wear-and-tear
The customer is rasponsible for all maintenance and repairs on the machine using genuine Cat parts only

Tires, undarcarriage, and all ground engaging tools {.e. teeth, cutting edges) must be at 50% remalning, minimum, if the unit
is not purchaged at the end of the lsaga

* The ahove is subject to epproval by Caterpliiar Finance

Page 4 of 6




Quote 238963-01

#§§ WAGNER

Quote 238863-01

January 20, 2022

CIBOLA COUNTY COMMISSIONATTN: ROAD
DEPARTMENT

515 WHIGH STREET

GRANTS, New Mexico 87020

Attention: EDWARD SALAZAR
Dear Mr. Salazar,

We would like to thank you for

your interest in our company and our products, and are pleased to quote the following for your
consideration.

Caterpillar Model: 420 Backhoe Loader

STOCK NUMBER: TBD SERIAL NUMBER: TBD YEAR: 2022 HOURS:

We appreciate the opportunity to extend this quote. This quote is subject to availability and is valid for 30 days, after which time we
reserve the right to re-quote. If there are any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Regards,

Don Roberts
505-320-1023

Sales Representative
Wagner Equipment Co.

Page 1 of 5



Quote 236963-04

Caterpillar Model: 420 Backhoe Loader
STANDARD EQUIPMENT

BOOMS, STICKS, AND LINKAGES -BACKHOE .. 144" Centre pivot buckhoe -4.3 Metars -

ELECTRICAL - External Power Receptacle {12v) - Diagnostic ports for engine ahd -maching Elsctronic Control Modules -

OPERATOR ENVIRONMENT - Interlor rearvisw mirror -- ROPS canopy, Rear Fenders - 2-ineh (50mm) retractable seat bealt  THt

steering column -- Steering knob -- Hand and foot throttle - Automatic Engine Speed Control - One Touch Low Idle - Floor mat and
Coat Strap - Lockable storage aroa -- Air suspension seaf -

FLUIDS -~ Antifreazs - Extended |ife Coolant --205 -30C)

OTHER STANDARD EQUIPMENT - Standard Storage Box - Tranaport tie-down polnts -~ Ground line filt fusl tank with -42,5 gal

(160L) capacity 8 5 gal (19L) -diesel exhaust fiuld - Rubber impact strips on radigtor -guard - CI-ROM Parts Manua - Safety Manual
~ Operations and Maintenance Manual -- Lockable hood - Tire Valve Stem Protection .

BOOMS, STICKS, AND LINKAGES - Boom and swing transport locks -- Piiot operated backhos and ~slectro hydrauli stabilizer
controls -- Street type stabillzer shoas - Anti-drift hydrauiics {boom, stick, -and E-slick) - Cat Cushion Swing(tm) system -LOADER -

8ingle Tilt Loader - Lift cylinder brace - Selfdavaling loater with single tever controt - Return-to-dig -(automatic bucket positioner) -
Transmisslon neutralizer switch . Bucket ieval indicator

POWERTRAIN - Water separator - Thermal starting aid system - Dry typa axlal seal alr claaner with «Integral precieanar -
Automatic dust ejection system - Fllter condition indicator - Hydraulically boosted multl-plate -wet disk brake with dual Podals &
~interlock - Differential lock - Torque converier - Transmisslon-four speed manual shift - Neutral safety switoh .. Spin-on fiters for
~Fuet -Engine oll -Transmisslon oil - Outboard Planstary Rear Axies - Diesel particulate filter .- Hydrostatic power ateering

HYDRAULICS -- Piiot hoe and machanical loader -controls - Load sensing, varlable flow aystem -with 43 gpm (162 L/min) mxlal plston

~pump - & micron hydraullc filter - Catarplligr X'T-3 hose - Hydraullc ol! coolar - Pilot control shutoff switch w- Flow-sharing hydraull
valves - Hydrauflc sustion strainer -

ELECTRICAL -- 12 volt alectrical start -- Horn, front and roar - Backup alatm -- Hazarg flashers/turn sighalg - Halogen head lights (2)

- Halogen rear flood lights (2) -« Stop and tall lights - Audible system fault alarm - Key start/stop system - 850 CCA maintenance frae
battery .- Battery disconnect switch -

Paoge 2 of §




MACHINE SPECIFICATIONS

420 07A BACKHOE LLOADER CFG2
STICK, EXTENDABLE, 14FT

PT, 4WDRWS AUTOSHIFT
ENGINE, 74.5kW, 3.6 DITA, T4F
HYDRAULICS, GP, 6FCN/BBNK, 8T
CAB, DELUXE

DISPLAY, STANDARD

AlR CONDITIONER, T4F
WORKLIGHTS (8) HALOGEN LAMPS
SEAT, DELUXE FABRIC

BELT, SEAT, 2" SUSPENSION
COUNTERWEIGHT, 1015 LBS
TIRES, 12.6 80MB.61-24, GY
STABILIZER PADS, FLIP-OVER
BUCKET-GP, 1.3 Y03, PO
LOADER BUCKET PINS

CUTTING EDGE, TWO PIECE
BUCKET-ROCK, HD, 24", 7.0FT3
COUPLER, PG, MAN.D.LOCK, BHL.
INSTRUCTIONS, ANSI
SERIALIZED TECHNICAL MEDIA KIT
RIDE CONTROL.

LINES, COMBINED AUX, E-STICK
STANDARD RADIO {12V)
PRODUCT LINK, CELLULAR, PLES43
COLD WEATHER PACKAGE, 120V
AUTO-UP STABILIZERS

GUARD, STABILIZER

HAMMER, B9S

BRACKET, BL., 45-50MM, XL
LINES, B9 HAMMER, BL

Coupler

Coupler

Quote 238963.04

Page 3 of §




Quote 238863.01

8ELL PRICE $126,008.77
SUBTOTAL $128,0058.77
TOTAL §126,006.77
WARRANTY & COVERAGE

Standard Warranty: 12 Months Unlimited Hours, Parts and Labor (Trave! Time included for the

Extended Coverage:

F.O.BITERMS:
Grants, NM

PAYMENT TERMS

Cash Involge Terms
l%ﬁﬁﬁ.‘fﬂ.‘)ﬂ“ﬁ% e

16,00

leasoTerms
CASH WITH BALANCE
ORDER JTOFINANCE
§$0.00 $126 405,77

. & 2 2

180 (Monthly) [$1,746.83 3 i$48,935.00 $400.00
The abova lease Is hased on the fallowing:
Taxes are extra on the monthly payments and the buy-out
if the maching Is not purchased at the end, then It must be returned in aversge condition with normal wear-and-tear
The customer Is rasponsible for all maintenance and repairs on the machine using genuine Cat parts only

Tires, undercarriage, and all ground sngaging tools (.. teath, cutting edges) must be at 50% remalning, minimum, If the unit

Is not purchased at the end of the le

first 8 months)
420-80 MO/B000 HR POWERTRAIN + HYDRAULICS + TECH

(MONTHLY  [RATE [BUYOUT  |pOCUMENTFEE T
PAYMENT

* Tha ahove is subject to approval by Caterpillar Finance

Page 4 of &




PoouBign Envelope ID: 46137C04-08BC-461E-A1 C4-AAD7B45ABF40

SPI>_Amd_Exted_0t0_Rev_00_0220

State of New Mexico
General Services Department
Purchasing Division

Statewide Price Agreement Amendment

Awarded Vendor: Number: 90-00600-10-00063
23 Vendors

Amendment No.: Fouy
Emait: .
Telephone No.: Term: 2 ~duly 28, 20
Ship To: Procurement Specialist: Raclynn Lujan %4
All State of New Mexico agenctes, commissions, '
institutions, political subdivisions and local public Telephone No.: 505-67(-1561
bodies aliowed by Iaw.

Email: rael X ate.q
Invoice:
As Requested

Title: Highway & Off Road Heavy Equipment

This amendment is to be attached to the respective Price Agreement and become a part thereof,

In accordance with Price Agreement provisions, and by mutual agreement of all parties, this Price Agreement is
extended from July 29, 2021 to July 28, 2022 at the same price, terms and conditions,

This amendment is issued to reflect the following effective immediately:
Vendor Titan Machinery Inc. has been acquired by Century Equipment Company,

From: To:
(AV) 00606051908 (AV) 0060150685
Wesskote Inc. Aaron’s Perez Collision Center LY.C
1504 Coors Blvd, SW 1504 Coors Blvd, SW
Albuguerque, NM 87121 Albuguergue, NM 87121
(505)873-8300 (505) 269-9387
wesskote@hotmail.com aperezcollision@gmail.com

Except ns modified by this amendment, the provisions of the Price Agroement shall remain in full force and
effect,

Accepted for the State of New Mexico

Valene Paudk

Mark Hayden, New Mexico State Purchasing Agent
x This Apreement was signed on behalf of the State Purchasing Agent
Purchasing Division: 1100 St. Franeis Drive, Room 20186, Santa Fe, 87505; PO Box 6850, Santa Fe, NM 87502 (505) 827-0472

QY.

Date:7/1/2021




GSD/PD (Rev. 04/19)
State of New Mexico

General Services Department
Purchasing Division

Statewide Price Agreement Amendment

Awarded Vendor: Price Agreement Number: 90-000-19-00063
23 Vendors

Price Agreement Amendment No.: Three

Email: Term: July 29, 2019 — July 28, 2021
Telephone No.:

Ship To: Procurement Specialist: Raelynn Lujan
All State of New Mexico agencies, commissions,

institutions, political subdivisions and local public Telephone No.: (505) 827-0484

bodies allowed by law.

Email: raelynn.lujan@state.nm.us

Invoice:
As Requested

Title: Highway & Off Road Heavy Equipment and Truck Repairs (Parts & Labor)

This Price Agreement Amendment is to be attach

ed to the respective Price Agreement and become a part
thereof.

In accordance with Price Agreement provisions, and by mutual agreement of all parties, this Price
Agreement is extended from July 29, 2020 to July 28, 2021 at the same price, terms and conditions.

This amendment is issued to reflect the following effective immediately:
Vendor Titan Machinery Inc. has been acquired by Century Equipment Company.

From: To:

(AU) 0000102501 (AU) 0000092769

Titan Machinery Inc. Century Equipment Company
6613 Edith Blvd NE 6301 Edith Blvd NE
Albuquerque, NM 87114 Albuquerque, NM 87107
505-342-2566 505-433-2246
jake.schams@titanmachinery.com ian.hurley@centuryeq.com

Except as modified by this amendment, the

provisions of the Price Agreement shall remain in full force
and effect.

Acgtepted for the State of New Mexico

MUUL W Jﬂ)\/l Date: 7/21/2020

Mark Hayden, New Mexico Stalt:}Purchasing Agent

Purchasing Division: 1100 St. Francis Drive, Room 2016, Santa Fe, 87505: PO Boy 6850. Santa Fe, NM 87502 (505) 827-0472




GSD/PD (Rev, 04/ 10y
State of New Mexico

General Services Depariment
Purchasing Diviston

Statewide Price Agrecment Amendment

Awarded Vendor Price Agreoment Number: 90-000-19-00063
0000143288
411 Equipment, LLC Price Agreement Amendment No.: Two

1815 4™ Street NW ‘
Albuquerque, NM 87102 - Term: July 29, 2019 ~Julv 28, 2020

Email: mmarquez@41 lequipment.com
Telephone No. (505) 280-9143

Ship To: Procurement Specialist: Raelyan Lujan W
Al State of New Mexico agencies, commissions,
institutions, political subdivisions and loeat public Telophone No.: (505) 827-0484

bodies allowed by law,

Email: raelynn.(ujan@state.om.us

Invoice:
As Requested

Title: Highway and Off Road Henvy Equipment and Truck Repairs (Parts & Labor)

This Price Agreement Amendment is fo be attached to the respeetive Price Agreement and become
part thereof,

This amendment is issued to reflect the following effective immedintely:

Vendor (AP) MM Service & Repair has been acquired by 411 Equipment, LLC.

From: To:

(AP) 0006142503 (AP) 0000143288

MJIM Service & Repair 411 Bquipment LLC

8528 Powder Ct NW : 1815 4t Strect NW

Albuquerque, NM 87120 Albuquergue, NM 87102
(505) 280-9143

Except as modified by this amendment, the provisions of the Price Agreement shall remain in full foree
and effect,

Accepted

o

of New Mexico

Date: 10/3/2019

Mark H%’fden, New Mexico Qfate Purdhasing Agent
nadeigy

Putclmstng Division, | 100 SL. Francis Drive 87505, PO Box 6850, Santa Fe, NM 87502-6850 {305) B270472




GSD/PD (Rev. BI/1 1)
State of New Mexico

General Services Department
Purchasing Division

Statewide Price Agreement Alﬁendment

Awarded Vendor Price Agreement Number: 90-000-19-06063
0000141519

(AS) Reberts Truck Center of NM Price Agreement Amendment No,: One
1623 Aspen Ave, NM

Albuguerque, NM 87104 Term: July 29, 2019 thru July 28, 2020
Email: melody.dyer@robertstruck.com

Telephone No, (505) 243-7883

Ship To:
All State of New Mexico agencies, commissions, Procurement Speoialist: Raclynn Luian %{
institutions, political subdivisions and local public
bodies atloweil by law, Telephone No.: (505) 827-6484
Email: raclynnJujan@state.nn
*Invoice:

As Requested at time of order

Title: Highway and Off Road Heavy Equipment and Truck Repairs (Parts & Labor)

This Price Agreement Amendment is to be attached to the respective Price Agrecmont and become a
part thereof.

This amendment is issued to refleet the following effective immediately:

Correct Vendor number (AS) Reberts Truck Center:
Change from #0000047816 to #0000141519

Except as modified by this amendment, the provisions of the Price Agrecment shall romain in full force
and effect,

gt

Accepted ﬁm"ﬁne Stgte of New Mexico

S

Date: 9/3/2019

New Mexleo State Purchasing Agent

Purchasing Division: 1100 St, Francis Drive, Rogh 2016, Santa f'e, 87505: PO Box 6850, Santa Fe, NM 87502 (505) 827-0472




(AV) 0000051908
Wesskote Ing,

1504 Coors Blvd. SW
Albuquerque, NM 87121
(305) 873-8300
wesskote@hotmail.com

(AW) 0000045306

Wagner Equipment

4000 Osuna Rd NE
Albuquerque, NM 87109

(505) 345-8411
teldred@wagnerequipment.com

State of New Mexico
General Services Department
Purchasing Division
Price Agresment #: 90.000-19-00063

Delivery: No

Delivery: Equiptent location or our store

Page-9




Resolution 22-17

NMFA Loan-2 OEM Vehicles for County Fire
Marshall



Form 8038'G

{Rev. October 2021) » Under Internal Revenue Code section 149{e}

» See separate instructions.

Department of ths Treasury
internal Revenue Servige.

information Return for Tax-Exempt Governmental Bonds

OMB No. 1545-0047

Cautlon If the isstie price Is under $7060,060, use Form 8038-GC.
» Ga to www.irs.gov/F8038G for instructions and the fatest information.

EZIN  Reporting Authority

Chack box if Amended Return P []

1 {ssuer's name

Cikbola County, New Mexico

2 Issuer's employer identificatlon number (EIN)
85-0291095

Ba Name of person (other than Issuer} with whom the IRS may communlcate about this return (see instructions)

3k Telaphone number of other person shown on 3a

4 Number and street (or P.C. box if mal! Is not delivered to stroat address) Reom/suite

700 Easi Roosevelt Avenue

§ Report number {For RS Use Oniy) ‘
| > (R

8 City, town, or post office, stats, and ZIP code
Grants, New Mexlco 87020

7 Data of issus

0311/2022

8 Name of lssue

New Mexico Finance Authority, 2022 Fire Equipment Loan, PPRF-5707

9 CUSIPF number
NIA

10a Name and tltle of officer o other employas of the issuer whom the IRS may call for more information

Paul Ludi, Finance Director

10b Telephene number of officer or other
employee shown on 10a

505-285-2518

Wﬂ;pe of Issue (Enter the issue price.} See the Instructions and attach schedule.

11 Education . 11
12  Health and hospital 12
13  Transportation .o 13
14 Publicsafsty . . . . . 14 121,000
15 Environment {inciuding sewage bonds} 15
16  Housing 16
17 Utilities 17
18 Other. Descrlbeb -F' lRG Ea &U ﬁ" -1 18 |
18a If bonds are TANs of BANs, check only box 19a . B ] [

b If bonds are BANSs, check enly box 19h . . > ]
20 If bonds are in the form of a lease or.nstaliment sale, check box e []
P ‘Description of Bonds. Completafor the entire issus for which thls form is belng filed,

{a} Final maturity date {h) Issue price () psgggegtﬁi?mg;lon av{:r)a\g,;v:‘ng*lz:iﬁty {e) Yield
21 05/01/2029 $ 121,000[$ 121,000 4.1389 years 0.0000 %
P Uses of Proceeds of Bond Issue (including underwriters’ discount)
22 Proceeds used for acorued interest . . . . . e
23  Issue price of entire issus {enter amount from line 21 co!umn (b)) e e 121,000
24 Proceeds used for bond issuance costs (including underwriters’ discount) 24
25  Proceeds used for credit enhancement . . . . . 25
26 Proceeds allocated to reasonably required reservs or rep[acement fund . | 26
27  Proceeds used to refund prior tax-exempt bonds. Complete PartV . . . 27
28  Proceeds used to refund prior taxable bonds. Complete Partv , . . . | 28
29 Total (add lines 24 through 28) . . . . ;
Nonrefundlng proceeds of the issue (subtract Ime 29 from I|ne 23 and enter amount here) 121,000
Description of Refunded Bonds. Complete this part only for refunding bonds.

3 “Enter the remaining weighted average maturity of the tax-exempt bonds o be refunded . » years
32  Enter the remaining welghted average maturity of the taxable bends to be refunded > years
33  Enter the last date on which the refunded tax-exempt bonds will be called (MM/DD/YYYY) . |

34 Enter the date(s) the refunded bonds wers Issued ¥ (MM/DD/YYYY)

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate instructions.

Cat. No. B37738

Form 8038-G {Rev. 10-2021)



Form 8038-Gi (Rev. 10-2021}

Page 2

e Rl Miscellaneous

35  Enter the amount of the state volume cap allocated to the issue under section 141{(b)E) .
36a Enter the amount of gross proceeds invested or to be invested in a guaranteed investment contract
{GIC). See instructions .
b Enterthe final maiurity date of the GIG b (MNI/ DD/YYYY)
¢ Enterthe name of the GIC provider P
37 Pooledfinancings: Enter the amount of the proceeds of this issue that are to be used to make loans
to cther governmental units .
38a Ifthis Issue is a loan made from the proceeds of another tax—exempt issue, check box b E! and enter the following information:
b Enter the date of the master poo! bond » (MM/DD/YYYY)
¢ Enterthe EIN of the issuer of the master pool bond >
d Enter the name of the Issusr of the mastsr pool bond »
39 If the issuer has designated the issue under section 265(b)3)B){Il) (small issuer excephon) check box N 4
40 [fthe issuer has elected to pay a penaliy in lieu of arbiirage rebate, checkbox . . | A
41a lithe issuer has identified a hedge, check here » [_] and enter the following |nformat|on
b Name of hedge provider »
¢ Type of hedge »
d Term of hedge ™
42 If the Issuer has superintegrated the hedge, checkbox . . . . N
43 If the issuer has established written procedures to ensurg that all nonquahfled bonds of thls issue are remediated
according to the requirements under the Code and Regulations (see instructions), checkbox . . . . . . . . » []
44 if the issuer has established written procedures to monitor the requirements of section 148, checkbox . . . . . » [
45a [f some portion of the proceeds was used to reimburse expenditures, check here » [ and enter the amount
of relmbursement . . . b "
b Enter the date the official |ntent was adopted P (MIVI/DD/YYYY}
Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined thls return and accompanying schedules and statements, and to the bast of my knowledge
Signature %?gcggget% ltsh%ytf l?rrr? ttrél?ﬁ g%r‘;?:gne%ﬂgtclo'me!f;% tlhgl:‘?zt:g?jr ;jézg\lrgre that | consent to the IRS"s disclosure of the Issuer g'return Information, as necessary to
and
Consent > } Daniel J. Torrez, Chairman
Blgnature, of issuer's autherized representative Date Type or print name and title
Paid PHnt/Type preparar’s name Preparat’s signature Date Gheck [ if | PTIN
Preparer [Suzanne Wood Bruckner seffemployed | p;1629036
Use Onl Flrm’s name » Sutin, Thayer & Browne, A Professionai Corporation Firm's EIN & 850225724
y Fimm's address P 6100 Uptown Blvd NE; Suite 400, Albugquerque, NM 87110 Phone ho, 505-883-2500

Form 8038-G (Rev. 10-2021)



$121,000
CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY LOAN

STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
COUNTY OF CIBOLA )ss.  ARBITRAGE AND TAX
) CERTIFICATE

On behalf of Cibola County, New Mexico (the “Governmental Unit”), and in connection
with the Loan Agreement dated March 11, 2022 (the “Loan Agreement”), relating to the
financing the cost of purchasing two pickup trucks for use by the Governmental Unit’s fire
administration (the “Project”) as described in the Loan Agreement, and evidencing the
Governmental Unif’s obligation in the aggregate principal amount of $121,000, the
Governmental Unit hereby certifies as follows:

Capitalized terms used in this Certificate have the same meanings as defined in
Resolution No. adopted on January 27, 2022, unless otherwise defined in this
Certificate or the context requires otherwise.

1. The Project. The Governmental Unit is entering into the Loan Agreement
simultaneously with delivery of this Certificate. The Loan Agreement evidences the loan (the
“Loan”) made by the New Mexico Finance Authority (the “Finance Authority™) to provide funds
to pay the costs of acquiring the Project described in Exhibit “A” attached to the Loan
Agreement and to pay certain costs incurred in connection with the execution and delivery of the
Loan Agreement.

2. Security for the Loan Agreement. Debt service on the Loan Agreement will be
secured by the pledged revenues described in Exhibit “A” attached to the Loan Agreement (the
“Pledged Revenues™) sufficient to pay debt service due in connection with the Loan, which
Pledged Revenues have been pledged to the Finance Authority pursuant to the Loan Agreement.

: 3. Finance Authority Public Project Revolving Fund Program. The Governmental
Unit acknowledges that the Finance Authority may assign and transfer the Loan Agreement to
the BOKF, NA, as successor trustee (the “Trustee”) pursuant to the Indenture, as defined in the
Loan Agreement, and all Supplemental Indentures thereto, between the Finance Authority and
the Trustee (collectively, the “Indenture”). Pursuant to the Indenture, the Loan Agreement may
be pledged as an Additional Pledged Loan to the Trustee as additional security for the payment
of amounts due on the Finance Authority’s Public Project Revolving Fund Revenue Bonds
outstanding at the time of such pledge.

4, Sources and Uses of Loan Funds. The Governmental Unit has received Loan
proceeds from the public project revolving fund, as defined in the New Mexico Finance
Authority Act, Sections 6-21-1, ef seq., NMSA 1978, as amended and supplemented, in the
amount of $121,000 from the Finance Authority (the “Proceeds™). The Proceeds do not exceed
the amount reasonably necessary for the purposes for which the Loan Agreement was entered
into.




5. Expenditure Expectations. The Governmental Unit expects to incur a substantial
binding obligation within six (6) months of the date hereof with regard to the Project, which
obligation involves the expenditure of no less than five percent (5%) of the Proceeds. The
Governmental Unit reasonably expects that the $121,000 of Proceeds deposited into the
Governmental Unit’s Program Account in the Program Fund together with other legally available
funds and anticipated earnings from the investment of such Proceeds until they are spent, are
expected to be expended within three (3) vears of the date hereof.

The estimated total costs of the Project will not be less than $121,000 plus investment
carnings thereon during the acquisition period.

Proceeds in the amount of $0.00 will be deposited into the Finance Authority Debt
Service Account to be maintained by the Finance Authority or its assignee and utilized as
provided in Section 5.2 of the Loan Agreement.

6. Investment of Proceeds. Except for the investment of the Proceeds (i) in the
Program Account established under the Indenture with respect to the Loan Agreement pending
the payment of the costs of the Project, and (ii) in the Finance Authority Debt Service Account
established and administered by the Finance Authority pending the payment of debt service on
the Loan Agreement, there will be no investment of the Proceeds.

7. Bona Fide Debt Service Fund. Debt service payments on the Loan Agreement
will be paid from the Pledged Revenues of the Governmental Unit deposited to the Finance
Authority Debt Service Account created with respect to the Loan Agreement. Because the
Pledged Revenues of the Governmental Unit for any year will exceed debt service on the Loan
Agreement, it is assumed that current debt service paid by the Governmental Unit for deposit in
the Finance Authority Debt Service Account will be derived entirely from the current Pledged
Revenues. The Finance Authority Debt Service Account will be depleted at least once a year
except for an amount not to exceed the greater of the earnings on the Finance Authority Debt
Service Account for the immediately preceding bond year or one-twelfth (1/12™) of debt service
on the Loan for the immediately preceding bond year. The Governmental Unit has not created or
established, nor does it expect to create or establish, any debt service fund, redemption fund,
replacement fund, sinking fund or other similar fund which is reasonably expected to be used to

pay principal or interest on the Loan Agreement or pledged therefor, except for the Finance
Authority Debt Service Account,

8. No Disposition of Project. The undersigned reasonably expect that no part of the
Project acquired with the Proceeds will be sold or otherwise disposed of, in whole or in part,
during the term of the Loan Agreement,

9. General Tax Covenant. The Governmental Unit has covenanted in the Loan
Agreement that no use will be made of the Proceeds, or any funds or accounts of the
Governmental Unit which may be deemed to be Gross Proceeds (as defined in Treasury
Regulation Section 1.148(b)) of the Loan Agreement, which use, if it had been reasonably
expected on the date hereof, would have caused the Loan Agreement to be classified as an
“arbitrage bond” within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code. The Governmental Unit has
further obligated itself in the Loan Agreement to comply throughout the term of the Loan

2

Arbitrage and Tax Certificate
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5707



Agreement with the requirements of Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code and
regulations proposed or promulgated with respect thereto.

10.  Private Business Use Limitations. None of the Proceeds will be vused by a private
business or any entity other than a governmental unit or secured by payments from or property of
a private business or any entity other than a governmental unit except pursuant to a management
contract which conforms with Revenue Procedure 2017-13 of the United States Treasury. For
purposes of the preceding sentence a governmental unit does not include the United States
Government or any agency or instrumentality thereof.

11. No Common Plan of Financing. There are no other obligations which are being
issued or sold at substantially the same time as the Loan Agreement pursuant to a commeon plan
of financing with the Loan Agreement and that will be paid out of the Pledged Revenues or will
have substantially the same claim to be paid out of the Pledged Revenues as the Loan
Agreement.

12, No Federal Guarantees. The Loan is not federally guaranteed within the meaning
of Section 149(b} of the Code.

13.  Information Filing. Loan Counsel for the Finance Authority, on behalf of the
Governmental Unit, will timely file the Form 8038-G with respect to the Loan Agreement
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” with the Internal Revenue Service. The Finance Authority has
verified certain information necessary to complete the Form 8038-G as shown on the Finance
Authority Certificate attached hereto as Exhibit “B”.

14.  Hedge Bonds. The Loan is not a hedge bond as defined in Section 149 of the
Code.

15. No Reimbursement. None of the Proceeds will be used to reimburse the
Governmental Unit for costs paid for the Project more than sixty (60) days prior to the date
hereof.

16. No Refunding, Proceeds of the Loan are not being used to refund any other
obligation of the Governmental Unit.

17. . Economic Life of Project. The weighted average maturity of 4.1389 years of the
Loan Agreement does not exceed 120% of the reasonably expected economic life of the Project,
which is four (4) years.

18.  Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations. The Loan Agreement is a “qualified tax~
exempt obligation” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. The Governmental Unit
represents that the reasonably anticipated amount of qualified tax-exempt obligations which will
be issued by the Governmental Unit during the current calendar year does not exceed
$10,000,000 and the Governmental Unit will not designate more than $10,000,000 of “qualified
tax-cxempt obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. For purposes of this
Section, “aggregated issuer” means any entity which: (i) issues obligations on behalf of the
Governmental Unit; (ii) derives its issuing authority from the Governmental Unit, or (iii) is

Arbitrage and Tax Certificate
Cibela County, Loan No, PPRF-5707



controlled directly or indirectly by the Governmental Unit within the meaning of Treasury
Regulation Section 1.150-1(e).

19. Rebate Exception. The Governmental Unit is & governmental unit with general
taxing powers, no part of the Loan Agreement is a private activity bond, ninety-five percent
(95%) or more of the proceeds are to be used for local governmental activities of the
Governmental Unit and, the aggregate face amount of all tax-exempt obligations issued by the
Governmental Unit during the current calendar year is not reasonably expected to exceed
$5,000,000. There are no subordinate entities of the Governmental Unit which are authorized to
issue tax-exempt obligations. If the Governmental Unit fails to satisty all of the provisions of
this paragraph 19 for any reason, as provided in the Loan Agreement and consistent with the
covenants of the Governmental Unit contained therein, any rebate owed to the United States
Treasury will be paid in the amounts and at the times provided in Section 148 of the Code.

20, Record Retention. The Governmental Unit will manage and retain records related
to the Loan as follows:

: A. Records will be retained for the life of the Loan, including any refunding
loans related thereto, plus three (3) years. Records may be in the form of documents or
electronic copies of documents, appropriately indexed to the Loan and compliance functions;

B. Basic records relating to the Loan transaction, including transeript
documents executed in connection with the issuance of the Loan (i.e., the authorizing documents,
Form 8038-G, the tax certificate, and any elections made with respect to the Loan, if applicable),

any amendments, and copies of rebate calculations and records of payments, including Forms
8038-T;

C. Records pertaining to the use of Loan-financed facilities by public and
private sources including copies of management agreements and research agreements;

D.  Records pertaining to expenditures of Loan proceeds. including
requisitions, appraisal and property purchase confracts, account statements, invoices, payment
vouchers, and the final allocation of proceeds to expenditures;

E. Records pertaining to all sources of payment or security for the Loan; and

F. Records pertaining to investments including guaranteed investment
contract documents under the Treasury Regulations, records of purchase and sale- of other
investments, and records of investment activity sufficient to permit calculation of arbitrage
rebate or demonstration that no rebate is due.

[Signature page follows]

Arbitrage and Tax Certificate
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5707



This certificate is being executed and delivered to establish the reasonable expectations of
the Governmental Unit for purposes of Sections 103 and 141 through 148 of the Code, and the
undersigned officers of the Governmental Unit are the officers of the Governmental Unit charged
with the responsibility of entering into the Loan Agreement. The foregoing is based upon the
reasonable expectations of the undersigned on the date hereof, and to the best of our knowledge,
information and belief, the above expectations are reasonable.

Dated: March 11, 2022

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

[SEAL] By:

Dantel J. Torrez, Chairman

By:
Paul Ludi, Finance Director

By:

Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk

6191077

Arbitrage and Tax Certificate
Cibola County, Loan No, PPRF-5707






STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CIBOLA COUNTY

The Board of County Commissioners (the “Governing Body”) of Cibola County, .
New Mexico, met in regular session in full conformity with law and the rules and regulations of the
Governing Body at the Cibola County Commission Chamber Room located at 700 East Roosevelt
Avenue, Grants, New Mexico being the meeting place of the Governing Body for the regular meeting

held on January 27, 2022, at the hour of 5:00 p.m. Upon roll call, the following members were found
to be present:

Present:

Absent:

Also Present;

- Thereupon, there was ofﬁciaﬂy filed with the County Clerk a copy of a proposed resolution
in final form.

PPRF-5707



CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
RESOLUTION NO.

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A LOAN AGREEMENT
AND INTERCEPT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW
MEXICO (THE “GOVERNMENTAL UNIT”) AND THE NEW MEXICO
FINANCE AUTHORITY (THE “FINANCE AUTHORITY”), EVIDENCING A
SPECIAL, LIMITED OBLIGATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT TO PAY
A PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $121,000 TOGETHER WITH INTEREST
THEREON, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PURCHASING TWO PICKUP TRUCKS
FOR USE BY THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT; PROVIDING FOR THE PLEDGE
AND PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST DUE UNDER THE
LOAN AGREEMENT SOLELY FROM THE DISTRIBUTION OF STATE FIRE
PROTECTION FUND REVENUES DISTRIBUTED BY THE STATE
TREASURER TO THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT PURSUANT TO SECTION
S9A-53-7, NMSA 1978; PROVIDING FOR THE DISTRIBUTION OF STATE FIRE
PROTECTION FUND REVENUES TO BE REDIRECTED BY THE STATE
TREASURER TO THE FINANCE AUTHORITY OR ITS ASSIGNS FOR THE
PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST DUE ON THE LOAN
AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO AN INTERCEPT AGREEMENT; APPROVING
'THE FORM AND TERMS OF, AND OTHER DETAILS CONCERNING THE
LOAN AGREEMENT AND INTERCEPT AGREEMENT; SETTING THE
MAXIMUM INTEREST RATE OF THE LOAN; RATIFYING ACTIONS
HERETOFORE TAKEN; REPEALING ALL ACTION INCONSISTENT WITH
THIS RESOLUTION; AND AUTHORIZING THE TAKING OF OTHER ACTIONS
IN CONNECTION WITH THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF THE LOAN
AGREEMENT AND INTERCEPT AGREEMENT.

Capitalized terms used in the following recitals have the same meaning as defined in Section
[ of this Resolution unless the context requires otherwise.

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit is a legally and regularly created, established, organized
and existing county under the general laws of the State; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body has determined and hereby determines that the Project may
be financed with amounts borrowed under the Loan Agreement and that it is in the best interest of the
Governmental Unit and its residents that the Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement be executed
and delivered and that the financing of the acquisition of the Project take place by executing and
delivering the Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit may use the Pledged Revenues to finance the Project;
and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body has determined pursuant to the Act that it may lawfully
pledge the Pledged Revenues for the payment of amounts due under the Loan Agreement; and



WHEREAS, other than as described in Exhibit “A” to the T.oan Agreement, the Pled ged
Revenues have not been pledged to secure the payment of any obligation which is currently
outstanding; and

WHEREAS, the Loan Agreement shall be a special, limited obligation of the Governmental
Unit, payable solely from the Pledged Revenues and shall not constitute a general obligation of the
Governmental Unit, or a debt or pledge of the full faith and credit of the Governmental Unit or the
State; and '

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit desires to provide that distributions of the Pledged
Revenues be redirected to the Finance Authority or its assigns pursuant to the Intercept Agreement
between the Governmental Unit and the Finance Authority (the “Intercept Agreement”) for the
payment of amounts due under the Loan Agreement; and

WHEREAS, there have been presented to the Governing Body and there presently are on file
with the County Clerk this Resolution and the forms of the Loan A greement and Intercept Agreement,
which are incorporated by reference and considered to be a part hereof; and -

WHEREAS, the Governing Body hereby determines that the Project to be financed by the
Loan is to be used for governmental purposes of the Governmental Unit and will not be used for
purposes which would cause the Loan Agreement to be deemed a “private activity bond” as defined
by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body intends by this Resolution to authotize the execution and
delivery of the Loan Agreement in the amount and for the purposes set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, all required authorizations, consents and approvals in connection with (i) the use
and pledge of the Pledged Revenues to the Finance Authority (or its assigns) for the payment of the
amounts due under the Loan Agrecment, (ii) the use of the proceeds of the Loan Agreement to finance
the Project, and (iii) the authorization, execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and Intercept
Agreement which are required to have been obtained by the date of this Resolution, have been
obtained or are reasonably expected to be obtained.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT' RESOLVED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF CIBOLA
COUNTY, NEW MEXICO:

Section 1. Definitions. As used in this Resolution, the following terms shall, for all
purposes, have the meanings herein specified, unless the context clearly requires otherwise (such
meanings to be equally applicable to both the singular and the plural forms of the terms defined):

. “Act” means the general laws of the State, Sections 4-62-1 through 4-62-10, NMSA 1978, as
amended, Sections 59A-53-1 through 59A-53-19, NMSA 1978, as amended, and enactments of the
Governing Body relating to the Loan Agreement and Infercept Agreement, including this Resolution,

“Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement” means the total principal and interest
payments due and payable pursuant to the Loan Agreement and on all Parity Obligations secured by
a pledge of the Pledged Revenues for any one Fiscal Year,

2
PPRY-5707



“Authorized Officers” means the Chairman, Vice-Chair, Finance Director and County Clerk.

“Bonds” means public projedt revolving fund revenue bonds, if any, issued hereafter by the
Finance Authority to fund or reimburse the Loan Agreement.

“Closing Date” means the date of execution, delivery and funding of the Loan Agreement.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable regulations
thereunder.

“Completion Date” means the date of final paymeht of the cost of the Project.

“Distributing State Agency” means the department or agency of the State, as described on the
Term Sheet, authorized to distribute the Pledged Revenues on behalf of the Governmental Unit.

“Bxpenses” means the cost of issuance of the Loan Agreement and the costs of issuance of
the Bonds, if any, and the periodic and regular fees and expenses incurred by the Finance Authority
in administering the Loan Agreement, including legal fees.

“Finance Authority” means the New Mexico Finance Authority.

“Finance Authority Debt Service Account” means the debt service account in the name of the
Governmental Unit established under the Indenture and held by the Finance Authotity to pay principal
and interest, if any, on the Loan Agresment as the same become due,

“Fiscal Year” means the period commencing on July 1 in each calendar year and ending on
the last day of June of the next succeeding calendar year, or any other twelve-month period which
any appropriate authority may hereafter establish for the Governmental Unit as its fiscal year.

“Govefning Body” means the Board of County Commissioners of the Governmental Unit, or
any future successor governing body of the Governmental Unit.

“Governmental Unit” means Cibola County, New Mexico.

“Herein,” “hereby,” “hereunder,” “hereof,” “hereinabove” and “hercafter” refer to this entire
Resolution and not solely to the particular section or paragraph of this Resolution in which such word
is used.

“Indenture” means the General Indenture of Trust and Pledge dated as of June 1, 1995, as
amended and supplemented, by and between the Finance Authority and the Trustee, as successor
trustee, or the Subordinated General Indenture of Trust and Pledge dated as of March 1, 2003, as
supplemented, by and between the Finance Authority and the Trustee, as successor trustee, as
determined by the Finance Authority pursuant to a Pledge Notification or Supplemental Indenture (as
defined in the Indenture).

“Intercept Agreement” means the Intercept Agreement, dated the Closing Date, between the
Governmental Unit and Finance Authority providing for the direct payment by the Distributing State

3
PPRE-5707



Agency to the Finance Authority of Pledged Revenues in amounts sufficient to pay principal and
interest due on the Loan Agreement, and any amendments or supplements to the Intercept Agreement.

“Loan” means the funds to be loaned to the Governmental Unit by the Finance Authority
pursuant to the Loan Agreement.

“Loan Agreement” means the Loan Agreement dated the Closing Date between the Finance
Authority and the Governmental Unit which provides for the financing of the Project and requires
payments by or on behalf of the Governmental Unit to the Finance Authority and/or the Trustee and
any amendments or supplements thereto, and including the exhibits attached to the L.oan Agreement.

“Loan Agreement Principal Amount” means the original principal amount of the Loan
Agreement as shown on the Term Sheet.

“NMSA” means the New Mexico Statutes Annotated, 1978, as ameénded and supplemented.

“Parity Obligations” means the Loan Agreement and any other obligations, now or hercafter
issued or incurred, payable from or secured by a lien or pledge of the Pledged Revenues and issued
with a lien on the Pledged Revenues on parity with the Loan Agreement, including those obligations
described on the Term Sheet.

“Pledged Revenues” means the State Fire Protection Fund revenues distributed to the
Governmental Unit for the District, which is utilizing the Project and benefiting from the Loan
Agreement, which distribution is made periodically by the State Treasurer pursuant to Section S9A-~
53~7, NMSA 1978, as amended, in the amount certified by the State Fire Marshal.

“Program Account” means the account in the name of the Governmental Unit established
pursuant to the Indenture and held by the Trustee for the deposit of the net proceeds of the Loan
Agreement for disbursal to the Governmental Unit for payment of the costs of the Project.

“Project” means the project described in Exhibit “A” to the Loan Agreement.

“Resolution” means this Resolution No. adopted by the Governing Body on January 27,
2022 approving the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement and pledging the Pledged Revenues
to the payment of the Loan Agreement as shown on the Term Sheet, as supplemented and amended
from time to time. ' '

“State” means the State of New Mexico.

“Term Sheet” means Exhibit “A” to the Loan Agreement.

“Trustee” means BOKF, NA, Albuquerque, New Mexico, or any successor trustec company,
national or state banking association or financial institution at the time appointed Trustee by the

Finance Authority.

Section 2. Ratification. All actions heretofore taken (not inconsistent with the provisions
of this Resolution) by the Governing Body and officers of the Governmental Unit directed toward the

4
PPRF-5707



acquisition of the Project and the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and the Intercept
Agreement, be, and the same hereby are, ratified, approved and confirmed.

Section 3. Authorization of the Project, the [.oan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement.
The acquisition of the Project and the method of financing the Project through execution and delivery
of the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement are hereby authorized and ordered, The Project
is for the benefit and use of the Governmental Unit,

Section 4. Findings. The Governmental Unit hereby declares that it has considered all
relevant information and data and hereby makes the following findings:

A. The Project is needed to meet the needs of the Governmental Unit and its
residents and the issuance and delivery of the Loan Agreement is necessary and advisable.

B. Moneys available and on hand for the Project from all sources other than the
Loan are not sufficient to defray the cost of acquiring the Project.

C. The Pledged Revenues may lawfully be pledged to secure the payment of
amounts due under the Loan Agreement.

: D. It is economically feasible to defray, in whole or in part, the costs of the Project
by the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement,

E. The Project and the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and the
Intercept Agreement pursuant to the Act to provide funds for the financing of the Pro ject are necessary
and in the interest of the public health, safety and welfare of the residents of the Governmental Unit.

F. The Governmental Unit will acquire the Project, in whole or in part, with the
net proceeds of the Loan,

G. Other than as described in the Term'Sheet, the Governmental Unit does not
have any outstanding obligations payable from the Pledged Revenues which it has incurred or will
incur prior to the initial execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement.

H. The net effective interest rate on the Loan does not exceed twelve percent
(12.0%) per annum, which is the maximum rate permitted by State law.

Section 3. Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement - Authorization and Detail.
A. Authorization. This Resolution has been adopted by the affirmative vote of at

least a majority of all of the members of the Governing Body, For the purpose of protecting the public
health, conserving the property, protecting the general welfare and prosperity of the regidents of the
Governmental Unit and acquiring the Project, it is hereby declared necessary that the Governmental
Unit, pursuant to the Act, execute and deliver the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement
evidencing a special, limited obligation of the Governmental Unit to pay a principal amount of
$121,000 plus interest thereon, and the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and the
Intercept Agreement are hereby authorized. The Governmental Unit shall use the proceeds of the

5
PPRE-5707



Loan to (i) finance the acquisition of the Project; (ii) make a deposit to the Finance Authority Debt
Service Account. The Project will be owned by the Governmental Unit.

B. Detail. The Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement shall be in substantially
the forms of the Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement presented at the meeting of the Governing
Body at which this Resolution was adopted, The Loan shall be in an original aggregate principal
amount of $121,000, shall be payable in installments of principal due on May 1 of the years designated
in Exhibit “B” to the Loan Agreement and bear interest payable on May 1 and November 1 of each
year, beginning on May 1, 2023 at the rates designated in Exhibit “B” to the Loan Agreement.

Section 6. Approval of Loan Agreement and Intercept Aereement. The forms of the Loan
Agreement and the Intercept Agreement, as presented at the meeting of the Governing Body at which
this Resolution was adopted are hereby approved. Authorized Officers are hereby individually
authorized to execute, acknowledge and deliver the Loan Agreement and the Tntercept Agreement,
with such changes, insertions and omissions that are consistent with this Resolution as may be
approved by such individual Authorized Officers, and the County Clerk is hereby authorized to affix
the seal of the Governmental Unit on the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement and attest the
same. The execution of the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement by an Authorized Officer
shall be conclusive evidence of such approval. :

Section 7. Special Limited Obligation. The Loan Agreement shall be secured by the
pledge of the Pledged Revenues as set forth in the Loan Agreement and shall be payable solely from
the Pledged Revenues. The Loan Agreement, together with other obligations of the Governmental
Unit thereunder, shall be a special, limited obligation of the Governmental Unit, payable solely from
the Pledged Revenues as provided in this Resolution and the Loan Agreement and shall not constitute
a general obligation of the Governmental Unit or the State, and the holders of the Loan Agreement
may not look to any general or other fund of the Governmental Unit for payment of the obligations
thereunder, Nothing contained in this Resolution or in the Loan Agreement, or any other instruments,
shall be construed as obligating the Governmental Unit (except with respect to the application of the
Pledged Revenues), as incurring a pecuniary liability or a charge upon the general credit of the
Governmental Unit or against its taxing power, nor shall a breach of any agreement contained in this
Resolution, the Loan Agreement, or any other instrument impose any pecuniary liability upon the
Governmental Unit or any charge upon its general credit or against its taxing power. The Loan
Agreement shall never constitute an indebtedness of the Governmental Unit within the meaning of
any State constitutional provision or statutory limitation and shall never constitute or give rise to a
pecuniary liability of the Governmental Unit or a charge against its general credit or taxing power,
Nothing herein shall prevent the Governmental Unit from applying other finds of the Governmental
Unit legally available therefore to payments required by the Loan Agreement, in its sole and absolute
discretion., '

Section 8, Disposition of Proceeds: Completion of Acquisition of the Project.

A. Program Account, Finance Authority Debt Service Account and. The
Governmental Unit hereby consents to creation of the Finance Authority Debt Service Account to be
held by the Finance Authority and to the Program Account to be held and maintained by the Trustee
pursuant to the Indenture, The Governmental Unit hereby approves the deposit of a portion of the
proceeds of the Loan Agreement in the Program Account and the Finance Authority Debt Service
Account, all as set forth in Exhibit “A” to the Loan Agreement.

6

PPRE-5707



The proceeds derived from the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement shall be
deposited promptly upon the receipt thereof in the Program Account, all as provided in the Loan
Agreement and the Indenture.

. Until the Completion Date, the money in the Program Account shall be used and paid
out solely for the purpose of acquiring the Project in compliance with applicable law and the
provisions of the Loan Agreement and the Indenture,

The Governmental Unit will acquire the Project with all due diligence.

B. Completion of Acquisition of the Project. Upon the Completion Date, the
Governmental Unit shall execute and send to the Finance Authority a certificate stating that
acquisition of and payment for the Project have been completed. As soon as practicable, and, in any
event, not more than sixty (60) days from the Completion Date, any balance remaining in the Pro gram
Account shall be transferred and deposited into the Finance Authority Debt Service Account, as
provided in the Loan Agreement and the Indenture.

C.  Finance Authority and Trustee Not Responsible. The Finance Authority and
the Trustee shall in no manner be responsible for the application or disposal by the Governmental
Unit or by its officers of the funds derived from the Loan Agreement or of any other funds herein
designated.,

Section 9. Deposit of Pledged Revenués. Distributions of the Pledeed Revenues and Flow
of Funds.

A. Deposit of Pledged Revenues. Pursuant to the Intercept Agreement, Pledged
Revenues shall be paid directly by the Distributing State Agency to the Finance Authority for deposit
in the Finance Authority Debt Service Account and remittance to the Trustee in an amount sufficient
to pay the principal and interest due under the Loan Agreement.

B. Termination on Deposits to Maturity. No payment shall be made into the
Finance Authority Debt Service Account if the amount in the Finance Authority Debt Service
Account totals a sum at least equal to the entire aggregate amount to become due as to principal,
interest on, and any other amounts due under, the Loan Agreement in which case moneys in such
account in an amount at least equal to such principal and interest requirements shall be used solely to
pay such obligations as the same become due, and any moneys in excess thereof in such accounts
shall be transfetred to the Governmental Unit and used as provided below,

C. Use of Surplus Revenues. After making all the payments hereinabove required
to be made by this Section and any payments required by outstanding Parity Obligations, any moneys
remaining in the Finance Authority Debt Service Account shall be transferred to the Governmental
Unit on a timely basis and shall be applied to any other lawful purpose, including, but not limited to,
the payment of any Parity Obligations or bonds, or obligations subordinate and junior to the Loan
Agreement, or other purposes authorized by the Governmental Unit, the Constitution and laws of the
State, as the Governmental Unit may from time to time determine. '

PPRF-5707



Section 10.  Lien on Pledged Revenues, Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the Pledged
Revenues are hereby authorized to be pledged to, and are hereby pledged to, and the Governmental
Unit grants a security interest therein for, the payment of the principal, interest and any other amounts
due under the Loan Agreement, subject to the uses hereof permitted by and the priorities set forth in
this Resolution. The Loan Agreement constitutes an irrevocable and first lien, but not necessarily an
exclusive first lien, on the Pledged Revenues as set forth herein and therein and the Governmental
Unit shall not create a lien on the Pledged Revenues superior to that of the Loan Agreement.

Section 11.  Authorized Officers. Authorized Officers are hereby individually authorized
‘and directed to execute and deliver any and all papers, instruments, opinions, affidavits and other
documents and to do and cause to be done any and all acts and things necessary or proper for carrying
out this Resolution, the Loan Agreement, the Intercept Agreement and all other transactions
contemplated hereby and thereby. Authorized Officers are hereby individually authorized to do all
acts and things required of them by this Resolution, the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement
for the full, punctual and complete performance of all the terms, covenants and agreements contained
in this Resolution, the Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement, including but not limited to, the
execution and delivery of closing documents in connection with the execution and delivery of the
Loan Agreement and the publication of the summary of this Resolution set out in Section 17 of this
Resolution (with such changes, additions and deletions as may be necessary).

Section 12. Amendment of Resolution, Prior to the date of the initial delivery of the Loan
Agreement to the Finance Authority, the provisions of this Resolution may be supplemented or
amended by resolution of the Governing Body with respect to any changes which are not inconsistent
with the substantive provisions of this Resolution. This Resolution may be amended without receipt
by the Governmental Unit of any additional consideration, but only with the prior written consent of
the Finance Authority.

Section 13.  Resolution Irrepealable. After the Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement
have been executed and delivered, this Resolution shall be and remain irrepealable until all obligations
due under the Loan Agreement shall be fully paid, canceled and discharged, as herein provided.

Section 14.  Severability Clause. If any gection, paragraph, clause or provision of this
Resolution shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or
unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the remaining
provisions of this Resolution,

Section 15.  Repealer Clause. All bylaws, orders, resolutions, and ordinances, or parts
thereof, inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency. This
repealer shall not be construed to revive any bylaw, order, resolution or ordinance, or part thereof,
heretofore repealed.

Section 16.  Effective Date. Upon due adoption of this Resolution, it shall be recorded in’
the book of the Governmental Unit kept for that purpose, authenticated by the signatures of the
Chairman and County Clerk of the Governmental Unit, and the title and general summary of the
subject matter contained in this Resolution (set out in Section 17 below) shall be published in a
newspaper which maintains an office and is of general circulation in the Governmental Unit, or posted
in accordance with law, and said Resolution shall be in full force and effect thereafter, in accordance
with law.

8
PPRE-5707



Section 17.  General Summary for Publication. Pursuant to the general laws of the State,
the title and a general summary of the subject matter contained in this Resolution shall be published
in substantially the following form:

(Form of Summary of Resolution for Publication)

Cibola County, New Mexico
Notice of Adoption of Resolution

Notice is hereby given of the title and of a general summary of the subject matter contained
in Resolution No. , duly adopted and approved by the Governing Body of Cibola County, New
Mexico, on January 27, 2022, A complete copy of the Resolution is available for public inspection

during the normal and regular business hours of the Office of County Cletk, 700 East Roosevelt
Avenue, Grants, New Mexico.

The title of the Resolution is

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
Resolution NO.,

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF ALOAN AGREEMENT
AND INTERCEPT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW
MEXICO (THE “GOVERNMENTAL UNIT”) AND THE NEW MEXICO
FINANCE AUTHORITY (THE “FINANCE AUTHORITY™), EVIDENCING A
SPECIAL, LIMITED OBLIGATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT TO PAY
A PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $121,000 TOGETHER WITH INTEREST
THEREON, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PURCHASING TWO PICKUP TRUCKS
FOR USE BY THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT; PROVIDING FOR THE PLEDGE
AND PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST DUE UNDER THE
LOAN AGREEMENT SOLELY FROM THE DISTRIBUTION OF STATE FIRE
PROTECTION FUND REVENUES DISTRIBUTED BY THE STATE
TREASURER TO THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT PURSUANT TO SECTION
S9A-53-7, NMSA 1978; PROVIDING FOR THE DISTRIBUTION OF STATE FIRE
PROTECTION FUND REVENUES TO BE REDIRECTED BY THE STATE
TREASURER TO THE FINANCE AUTHORITY OR ITS ASSIGNS FOR THE
PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST DUE ON THE LOAN
AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO AN INTERCEPT AGREEMENT; APPROVING
THE FORM AND TERMS OF, AND OTHER DETAILS CONCERNING THE
LOAN AGREEMENT AND INTERCEPT AGREEMENT; SETTING THE
MAXIMUM INTEREST RATE OF THE LOAN; RATIFYING ACTIONS
HERETOFORE TAKEN; REPEALING ALL ACTION INCONSISTENT WITH
THIS RESOLUTION; AND AUTHORIZING THE TAKING OF OTHER ACTIONS
IN CONNECTION WITH THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF THE LOAN
AGREEMENT AND INTERCEPT AGREEMENT.

PPRF-5707



A general summary of the subject matter of the Resolution is contained in its title, This
notice constitutes compliance with Section 6-14-6, NMSA 1978.

(End of Form of Summary for Publication)

10
PPRE-5707



PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 27® DAY OF JANUARY, 2022.

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

By:

Daniel J, Torrez, Chairman

[SEAL]
ATTEST:

By:
Michelle E. Dominguez, County Clerk

11
PPRF-5707



Commissioner then moved adoption of the foregoing Resolution, duly
seconded by Commissioner :

The motion to adopt said Resolution, upon being put to a vote, was passed and adopted on the
following recorded vote:

Those Voting Aye:

Those Voting Nay:

Those Absent:

+

(__) members of the Governing Body having voted in favor of said motion, the
Chairman declared said motion carried and said Resolution adopted, whereupon the Chairman and
the County Clerk signed the Resolution upon the records of the minutes of the Governing Body.

12
PPRF-5707



Adter consideration of matters not relating to the Resolution, the meeting on the motion duly
made, seconded and unanimously carried, was adjourned.

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

By:

Daniel J. Torrez, Chairman

[SEAL]

ATTEST:

By:
Michelle E. Dominguez, County Clerk

13
PPRF-5707



PPRFE-5707

EXHIBIT “A”
Meeting Agenda
: of the January 27, 2022
Cibola County Board of County Commissioners Meeting

(See attached)



STATE OF NEW MEXICO )

. ) ss.
COUNTY OF CIBOLA

N

I, Michelle E. Dominguez, the duly qualified and acting County Clerk of Cibola County,
New Mexico (the “Governmental Unit”), do hereby certify:

1. The foregoing pages are a true, perfect, and complete copy of the record of the
proceedings of the Board of County Commissioners of Cibola County, New Mexico (the
“Governing Body”), constituting the governing body of the Governmental Unit had and taken at 4
duly called regular meeting held in the County Commission Chamber Room, 700 East Roosevelt
Avenue, Grants, New Mexico, on J anuary 27, 2022, at the hour of 5:00 p.m., insofar as the same
relate to the execution and delivery of the proposed Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement, a
copy of each of which is set forth in the official records of the proceedings of the Governing Body
kept in my office. None of the action taken has been rescinded, repealed, or modified,

2. Said proceedings were duly had and taken as therein shown, the meeting therein was
duly held, and the persons therein named were present at said mecting, as therein shown.

3. Notice of said meeting was given in compliance with the permitted methods of giving
notice of regular meetings of the Governing Body as required by the Governmental Unit’s open
meetings standards presently in effect,

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, I have hereunto set my hand this 11% day of March, 2022.

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

By:

Michelle E. Dominguez, County Clerk

[SEAL]

6169319



$121,000
CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY LOAN

STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
}ss. DELIVERY, DEPOSIT AND
COUNTY OF CIBOLA ) CROSS-RECEIPT CERTIFICATE

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED by the undersigned, the duly chosen, qualified and acting
Chairman, Finance Director and County Clerk of Cibola County, New Mexico
(the “Governmental Unit”)

1. On the date of this Certificate, the Governmental Unit executed and delivered, or
caused to be executed and delivered, a Loan Agreement between the Governmental Unit and the
New Mexico Finance Authority (the “Finance Authority”), in the aggregate principal amount of
$121,000, to the Finance Authority (the “Loan Agreement”), as authorized by Governmental
Unit Resolution No. _ (the “Resolution”) adopted on January 27, 2022 relating to the
execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement. The undersigned
have received $121,000 as proceeds from the Loan Agreement, being the full purchase price
therefore,

2. The proceeds of the Loan Agreement will be placed in the funds and accounts
created for the deposit of such moneys under the General Indenture of Trust and Pledge dated as
of June 1, 1995, as amended and supplemented, or the Subordinated General Indenture of Trust
and Pledge dated as of March 1, 2005, as supplemented, cach by and between the Finance
Authority and BOKFY, NA, as Trustee and its successors and assigns, as determined by the
Finance Authority pursuant to a Pledge Notification or Supplemental Indenture, as follows:

Governmental Unit’s

Account in the Program Fund: $121,000.00
Deposit to Finance Authority Debt
Service Account: $ 0.00
Total: $121,000.00
3. The proceeds of the Loan Agreement will be available to the Governmental Unit

upon submittal of a Requisition Form to the Finance Authority in the form attached to the Loan
Agreement as Exhibit “C” and will be used as set forth in the Resolution and the Loan
Agreement.



WITNESS our hands this 11% day of March, 2022,

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

By:
Daniel J. Torrez, Chairman
By:
Paul Ludi, Finance Director
By:
Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk
[SEAL]
6169465
Delivery, Deposit and Cross-Receipt Certificate 2

Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5707



It is hereby certified by the undersigned, a duly qualified and acting official of the New
Mexico Finance Authority, that, the undersigned has, on the date of this Certificate, received
from Cibola County, New Mexico the Loan Agreement and the Infercept Agreement.

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

By:

Marquita D. Russel, Chief Executive Officer

6169465

Delivery, Deposit and Cross-Receipt Certificate . 3
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5707






Jan 18, 2022 10:44 am Prepared by DBC Einance (Finance 8.700 Entilies:CCIBOLA-PPRF5707) Page 3

BOND DEBT SERVICE
Cibola County
2022 Equipment Loan

Period Debt
Ending Principal interest Service
05/01/2023 17,286 17,286
0570172024 17,286 17,286
05/01/2025 17,286 17,286
05/01/2026 17,286 17,286
05/01/2027 17,285 . 17,285
05/01/2028 17,285 17,285
05/01/2029 17,286 17,286
121,000 0 121,000

Note! The County's MHI of $38,413 constitutes 79.22% of the State's MH|







$121,000
CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY LOAN

STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
)ss.  GENERAL AND NO LITIGATION
COUNTY OF CIBOLA ) CERTIFICATE

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED by the undersigned, the duly elected and chosen,
Chairman, County Clerk and Attorney for Cibola County, New Mexico (the
“Governmental Unit”) in Cibola County, and the State of New Mexico (the “State™)
(pr0v1ded that the Attorney for the Governmental Unit is cettifying only as to Paragraphs
1,2,3,5,6,7,8,9,10, 11,13, 14, 16, 17, 18, 20, 21, 22, 24 and 25 hereof):

Capitalized terms used in this Certificate have the same meaning as defined in
Governmental Unit Resolution No. ___ adopted on January 27, 2022 (the “Resolution”)
unless otherwise defined in this Certificate or the context requires otherwise,

1 The Governmental Unit is a political subdivision of the State and is duly
organized and validly existing under and pursuant to the laws of the State, its full name
being “Cibola County, New Mexico.” '

2. The Governmental Unit was established in the year 1981, pursuant to
Section 4-3A-1, NMSA 1978, as amended

3. From at least October 18, 2021 (except as otherwise noted), to and
including the date of this Certificate, the following were and now are the duly chosen,
qualified and acting officers of the Governmental Unit;

Chairman: Daniel J. Torrez
First Vice-Chair: Martha Garcia
Second Vice-Chair: Christine Lowery
Commissioners: Ralph Lucero
Robert Windhorst
Finance Director: Paul Ludi
County Clerk: Michelle Dominguez
Deputy County Clerk: Natalic Grine
Attorney: Adren R. Nance, Fisq.
4. The population of the Governmental Unit is not less than seventy-five

percent (75%) English speakmg and is less than twenty-five percent (25%) Spanish
speaking. .



5. There is no reason within our knowledge, after due inquiry with tespect
thereto, why the Governmental Unit may not enter into the Loan Agreement and the
Intercept Agreement with the New Mexico Finance Authority (the “Finance Authority”),
as authorized by the Resolution.

6. The Governmental Unit has duly authorized the execution, delivery and
performance of its obligations under the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement.
The Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement have been duly authorized, executed
and delivered by the Governmental Unit. '

7. The Resolution has been duly signed and adopted in accordance with all
applicable laws and has not been repealed, rescinded, revoked, modified, amended or
supplemented in any manner except as set forth in the Resolution. The Resolution
constitutes valid and sufficient legal authority for the Governmental Unit to carry out and
enforce the provisions of the Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement. No referendum
petition has been filed with respect to the Resolution under the provisions of the laws,
bylaws or regulatiotis of the Governmental Unit or the State.

8. No event will result from the execution and delivery of the Loan
Agreement or the Intercept Agreement that constitutes a default or an event of default
under either the Loan Agreement, the Intercept Agreement or the Resolution, and no
event of default and no default under the Loan Agreement, the Intercept Agreement or
the Resolution has occurred and is continuing on the date of this Certificate,

9. The Governmental Unit has duly authorized and approved the
consummation by it of all transactions and has complied with all requirements and
satisfied all conditions, which are required by the Loan Agreement and the Intercept
Agreement to have been authorized, approved, performed or consummated by the
- Governmental Unit at or prior to the date of this Certificate. The Governmental Unit has
full legal right, power and authority to carry out and consummate the transactions
contemplated by the Resolution, the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement,

10. A, All appro{;als, consents and orders of any governmental authority
having furisdiction in the matter which would constitute a condition precedent to the
enforceability of the Loan Agreement or the Intercept Agreement or to any of the actions
required to be taken by the Resolution, the Loan Agreement or the Intercept Agreement
on or prior to the date of this Certificate have been obtained and are in full force and
effect; and

B. All approvals, consents and orders of any governmental authority
having jurisdiction in the matter which would constitute a condition precedent to the
financing of the Project have been obtained and are in full force and effect.

11. None of the following does or will conflict with, or constitute a breach by
the Governmental Unit of, or default by the Governmental Unit under any law, court
decree or order, governmental regulation, rule or order, resolution, agreement, indenture,

General and No Litigation Certificate
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRE-5707



mortgage or other instrument to which the Governmental Unit is subject or by which it is

 bound:

A. . The Governmental Unit’s adoption of the Resolution; or

B. Any action contemplated by or pursuantlto the Resolution, the
Loan Agreement, or the Intercept Agreement.

12, No material adverse change has occurred, nor has any development
occurred involving a prospective material and adverse change in, or affecting the affairs,
business, financial condition, results of operations, prospects, or properties of the
Governmental Unit or the Pledged Revenues since the date of the Resolution.

13.  To the best of our knowledge and belief, after due inquiry with respect
thereto, none of the events of default referred to in Article X of the Loan Agreement has
oceurred.

14.  Subsequent to the adoption of the Resolution, the Governmental Unit has
not pledged or otherwise encumbered the Pledged Revenues. On the date of this
Certificate there are no other outstanding obligations with a lien or encumbrance against
the Pledged Revenues senior to or on a parity with the lien of the Loan Agreement.

15.  The Loan Agreement prohibits the Governmental Unit from issuing any
bonds or other obligations with a lien on Pledged Revenues senior to the lien thereon of
the Loan Agreement on the Pledged Revenues. The Loan Agreement permits the
Governmental Unit to issue additional bonds or other obligations with a lien on the
Pledged Revenues on a parity with or subordinate to the lien of the Loan Agreement on
the Pledged Revenues upon satisfaction of the conditions set forth in the Loan
Agreement.

16.  There is no threatened action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation
against the Governmental Unit, at law or in equity, by or before any court, public board
or body, nor to the Governmental Unit’s knowledge is there any basis therefor, affecting
the existence of the Governmental Unit or the titles of its officials to their respective
offices, or seeking to prohibit, restrain or enjoin the pledge of revenues or assets of the
Governmental Unit pledged or to be pledged to pay the principal, premium, if any, and
interest on the Loan Agreement, or in any way materially adversely affecting or
questioning: (a) the tertitorial jurisdiction of the Governmental Unit; (b} the use of the
proceeds of the Loan Agreement for the Project and to pay certain costs of the Finance
Authority associated with the administration of its public projects revolving fund loan
program; (c) the validity or enforceability of the Loan Agreement, the Intercept
Agreement or any proceedings of the Governmental Unit taken with. respect to the Loan
Agreement, the Intercept Agreement or the Resolution; (d) the execution and delivery of
the Loan Agreement or the Intercept Agreement; or (¢) the power of the Governmental
Unit to carry out the transactions contemplated by the Loan Agreement, the Intercept
Agreement or the Resolution.

General and No Litigation Certificate
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5707



17. The Governmental Unit has complied with all the covenants and satisfied
all the conditions on its part to be performed or satisfied at or prior to the date hereof, and
the representations and warranties of the Governmental Unit contained in the Loan
Agreement and in the Resolution are true and cotrect as of the date hereof.

18, The Governmental Unit is not in default, and has not been in default
within the ten (10) years immediately preceding the date of this Certificate, in the
payment of principal of, premium, if any, or interest on any bonds, notes or other
obligations which it has issued, assumed or guaranteed as to payment of principal,
premium, if any, or interest except that no representation is made with respect to
industrial revenue bonds or conduit bonds payable solely from installment sale or leage
payments, loan repayments or other amounts received by the Governmental Unit from
private entities. : :

19. " To the best of our knowledge and belief, neither the Chairman, Finance
Director, County Clerk, any member of the Governing Body, nor any other officer,
employee or other agent of the Governmental Unit is interested (except in the
performance of his or her official rights, privileges, powers and duties), directly or
‘indirectly, in the profits of any contract, or job for work, or services to be performed and
appertaining to the Project.

20.  Regular meetings of the Governing Body have been held in the Cibola
County Commission Chamber, 700 East Roosevelt, Grants, New Mexico, the principal
meeting place of the Governing Body.

21. The Governing Body has no rules of procedure which would invalidate or
make -ineffective the Resolution or other action taken by the Governing Body in
connection with the Loan Agreement. Open Meetings Act Resolution No, , as
adopted and approved by the Governing Body on , 2022, establishes notice
standards as required by Sections 10-15-1 through 10-15-4, NMSA 1978. Open
Meetings Act Resolution No. has not been amended or repealed. All action of the
Governing Body with respect to the Loan Agreement, the Intercept Agreement and the
Resolution was taken at meetings held in compliance with Open Meetings Act Resolution
No. 21-05.

22, The Cibola Citizen is a legal newspaper which maintains an office and is
of general circulation in the Governmental Unit.

23, The Pledged Revenues from the Fiscal Year immediately preceding the
Closing Date were equal to or exceeded, and, on an ongoing basis during each year of the
Loan Agreement Term, are reasonably expected to equal or exceed one hundred twenty-
five 125% of the maximum Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement.

~ 24. The Pledged Revenues may lawfully be pledged to secure the payment of
amounts due under the Loan Agreement.

General and No Litigation Certificate
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5707



25, The Chairman, Finance Direcfor and County Clerk, on the date of the
signing of the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement and on the date of this
Certificate, are the duly chosen, qualified and acting officets of the Governmental Unit
authorized to execute such agreements,

26.  The Governmental Unit understands. that Sutin, Thayer & Browne A
Professional Corporation represents the Finance Authority in this Loan and the
Governmental Unit has had the opportunity to consult other counsel in connection with

the Loan.
27, This Certificate is for the benefit of the Finance Authority.

28.  This Certificate may be executed in counterparts.

[Signature page follows]
6169320

General and No Litigation Certificate
Cibola County, T.oan No, PPRE-5707



WITNESS our hands and the seal of the Governmental Unit this 110 day of
March, 2022,

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

By:
Daniel J, Torrez, Chairman
By:
Paul Ludi, Finance Director
By:
Michelle E. Dominguez,
County Clerk
[SEAL]
APPROVED:

Paragraphs 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 16, 17, 18, 20, 21, 22, 24 and 25
are approved and confirmed.

NANCE, PATO & STOUT

Adren R. Nance, Attorney for
Cibola County, New Mexico

General and No Litigation Certificate
Cibola County, Loan No, PPRF-5707



INTERCEPT AGREEMENT

This INTERCEPT AGREEMENT is made and entered into March 11, 2022, by
and between the NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY (the “Finance Authority®), a
public body politic and corporate constituting a governmental instrumentality separate
and apart from the State of New Mexico (the “State”) under the laws of the State and
CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO, a political subdivision duly organized and existing
under the laws of the State (the “Governmental Unit™).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Sections 6-21-1 through 6-21-31, NMSA 1978, as amended,
authorized the creation of the Finance Authority within the State to assist in financing the
cost of public projects of participating qualified entities, including the Governmental
Unit, such as the acquisition of two pickup trucks for use by the Governmental Unit’s fire
administration; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 6-21-1 through 6-21-31, NMSA 1978, as
amended, and Sections 4-62-1 through 4-62-10, NMSA 1978, as amended (collectively,
the “Act”), the Finance Authority and the Governmental Unit are authorized to enter into
agreements to facilitate the financing of the Project as described in the Loan Agreement
by and between the Finance Authority and the Governmental Unit of even date herewith
(the “Loan Agreement™); and

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit desires to acquire the Project and such
acquisition is permitted under the Act; and

WEHEREAS, the Finance. Authority has established its Loan Program (the
“Program”) funded by its public project revolving fund (as defined in the Act) for the
financing of infrastructure and equipment projects upon the execution of the Loan
Agreement and the assignment of loan agreements to a trustee (the “Trustee’); and

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit desires to borrow $121,000 from the
Program for the purpose of financing the acquisition of the Project, which Loan is to be
governed by this Intercept Agreement and by the Loan Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Act confers upon the Finance Authority the authority to loan
funds to the Governmental Unit to finance the Project, and Section 59A-53-1 et seq.,
NMSA 1978, as amended, authorizes the Governmental Unit to direct that its distribution
of the State Fire Protection Fund (the “Pledged Revenues”) from the State Treasurer (the
“Distributing State Agency”) be paid to the Finance Authority or its assignee, to secure
payments under the Loan Agreement;



NOW THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree:

Unless otherwise defined in this Intercept Agreement and except where the
context by clear implication otherwise requires, capitalized terms used in this Intercept
Agreement shall have for all purposes of this Intercept Agreement the meanings assigned
thereto in the Loan Agreement and the Indenture, as defined in the Loan Agreement.

~ Section 1. Authorization to the Finance Authority, The Governmental Unit
hereby recognizes that the Finance Authority has made a Loan to the Governmental Unit
in the amount of $121,000 to finance the acquisition of the Project. Pursuant to the Loan
Agreement and this Intercept Agreement, the Loan and all Loan Agreement Payments on
the Loan made by or on behalf of the Governmental Unit shall be collected by the
Finance Authority and remitted to the Trustee. All payments due on the Loan from the
Pledged Revenues shall be paid by the Distributing State Agency to the Finance
Authority or its designee, on behalf of the Governmental Unit, from scheduled
distributions of the Pledged Revenues in accordance with the Intercept Schedule attached
hereto as Exhibit “A” (the “Intercept Schedule™), or shall be made from Special reserve
funds of the Finance Authority (ag determined by the Finance Authority, and subject to
repayment from the Pledged Revenues).

This Intercept Agreement shall be deemed a written certification, authorization
and request by the Governmental Unit to the Distributing State Agency to pay to the
Finance Authority, on behalf of the Governmental Unit, sums shown on the Intercept
Schedule from periodic distributions of the Pledged Revenues pursuant to Section 59A-
53-7,, NMSA 1978, as amended, or from special reserve funds of the Finance Authority
(as determined by the Finance Authority, and subject to repayment from the Pledged
Revenues) to insure compliance with the Loan Agreement and repayment of the Loan.
Upon written notice to the Distributing State Agency from the Finance Authority, the
amount of the Pledged Revenues to be paid to the Finance Authority shall be increased
from the amounts shown on Exhibit “A” to defray any delinquencies in the Finance
Authority Debt Service Account or Loan Agreement Reserve Account, if any, established
for the Governmental Uni. Any accumulation of the Pledged Revenues in an amount in
excess of the next Loan Agreement Payment and the Loan Agreement Reserve
Requirement, if any, shall be redirected by the Finance Authority to the benefit of the
Governmental Unit on a timely basis as provided in Section 5.2 of the Loan Agreement.

To the extent applicable and to fhe extent that the Pledged Revenues are
insufficient to meet the debt service. requirements due on the Loan and other Parity
Obligations (as defined in the Loan Agreement) now or hereafter issued or incurred, the
amounts intercepted under this Intercept Agreement shall be applied to allow partial
bayment on a pro-rata basis of the debt service due and owing on the Loan Agreement

and other Parity Obligations,

Section 2, Term; Amendments. This Intercept Agreement will remain 1o full
force and effect from its effective date as herein provided until such time as the Loan
made pursuant to the Loan Agreement and this Intercept Agreement have been paid in
full. Nothing herein shall be deemed in any way to limit or restrict the Governmental

2

Intercept Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5707



Unit from issuing its own obligations, providing its own program or participating in any
other program for the financing of public projects which the Governmental Unit may
choose to finance. This Intercept Agreement may be amended only by written instrament
signed by the parties hereto.

Section 3. Authorization. The execution and performance of the terms of this
Intercept Agreement have been authorized and approved by Resolution No. , passed
and adopted on Jamuary 27, 2022 by the Governing Body of the Governmental Unit,
which Resolution is in full force and effect on the date hereof.

Section 4. Severability of Invalid Provisions. If any one or more of the
provisions herein contained shall be held contrary to any express provisions of law or
contrary to the policy of express law, though not expressly prohibited, or against public-
policy, or shall for any reason whatsoever be held invalid, then such provision shall be
null and void and shall be deemed separable from the remaining provisions and shall in
no way aftfect the validity of any of the other provisions hereof.

Section 5. Counterparts. This Intercept Agreement may be simulianeously
executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall
constitute but one and the same instrument.

Section 6. Further Authorization. The Governmental Unit agrees that the
Finance Authority shall do all things necessary or convenient to the implementation of
the Program to facilitate the Loan to the Governmental Unit.

Section 7. Effective Date. This Intercept Agreement shall take effect on the
Closing Date of the Loan.

Section 8. Initial Intercept Date. As indicated on the Intercept Schedule, the
periodic distribution of the Pledged Revenues that is to be intercepted by the Distributing
State Agency under the terms of this Intercept Agreement consist of Pledged Revenues
due to the Governmental Unit distributed in the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2023,

Section 9. Final Intercept Date. Once-the Loan has been fully paid off and
satisfied, Finance Authority shall provide written notice to the Distributing State Agency
to discontinue the interception of the Governmental Unit’s Pledged Revenues.

[Remainder of page left intentionally blank]

[Signature page follows]

Intercept Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5707



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this Intercept Agreement have caused

their names to be affixed hereto by the proper officers thercof as of the date first above
written.

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

By:

Marquita D. Russel, Chief Executive Officer
CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

By:

Daniel J. Torrez, Chairman

(SEAL)

Afttest;

By:

Michelle E. Dominguez, Cibola County Clerk

Acknowledged;

By:

John Kondratick,
Acting State Fire' Marshall

Date;

Intercept Agreement.
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRE-5707



EXHIBIT “A”

INTERCEPT SCHEDULE
CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

[ Fiscal Year Ending
June 30
Payment Dates

Pledged Revenues

Annual Amount

2023 — 2029

The distribution of State Fire Protection
Fund Revenues to Cibola County pursuant
to Sections 59A-53-7, NMSA 1978,
which distributions are made periodically
by the State Treasurer

$17,286

6169458







$121,000

LOAN AGREEMENT

dated

March 11, 2022

by and between the

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

1

and

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

Certain interests of the New Mexico Finance Authority under this Loan

Agreement may be assigned to BOKF, NA as trustee under the Indenture, as
defined in Article I of this Loan Agreement,



LOAN AGREEMENT

THIS LOAN AGREEMENT dated March 11, 2022 is entered into by and between the
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY (the “Finance Authority”), and the CIBOLA
COUNTY, NEW MEXICO (the “Governmental Unit”), a political subdivision duly organized
and existing under the laws of the State of New Mexico (the “State™).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Finance Authority is a public body politic and corporate constituting a
governmental instrumentality, separate and apart from the State, duly organized and created
under and pursuant to the laws of the State, particularly Section 6-21-1 et seq., NMSA 1978, as
amended (the “Finance Authority Act”); and

WHEREAS, one of the purposes of the Finance Authority Act is to implement a program
fo permit qualified entities, such as the Governmental Unit, to enter into agreements with the
Finance Authority to facilitate financing of public projects; and

_ WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit is a political subdivision duly organized and existing
under and pursuant to the laws of the State and is qualified entity under the Finance Authority
Act; and '

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the Governmental Unit, has determined that it is in
the best interests of the Governmental Unit and its residents that the Governmental Unit enter
into this Loan Agreement with the Finance Authority and accept a loan from the Finance
Authority to finance the costs of purchasing two pickup trucks for use by the Governumental
Unit’s fire administration as more fully described on the Term Sheet attached hereto as Exhibit
“A”; and

WHEREAS, the Act authorizes the Governmental Unit to use the Pledged Revenues to
finance the Project and to enter into this Loan Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Authority has determined that the Project is important to the
overall capital needs of the residents of the State and that the Project will directly enhance the
health and safety of the residents of the Governmental Unit; and

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit is a disadvantaged qualified entity within the
meaning of Section 8(B)(4)(b) of the Finance Authority’s Amended and Restated Rules and
Regulations Governing the Public Project Revolving Fund Program.,

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit has entered into the Intercept Agreement by and
between the Finance Authority and the Governmental Unit whereby the Pledged Revenues due
to the Governmental Unit from the Distributing State Agency are intercepted by the Finance
Authority, or the Trustee, as its assignee, to make payments due under this Loan Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Authority may assign and transfer this Loan Agreement to the
Trustee pursuant to the Indenture; and

PRRF-5707



WHEREAS, except as described on the Term Sheet, the Pledged Revenues have not been
pledged or hypothecated in any manner or for any purpose at the time of the execution and
delivery of this Loan Agreement, and the Governmental Unit desires to pledge the Pledged
Revenues toward the payment of this Loan Agreement; and :

WHEREAS, the obligation of the Governmental Unit hereunder shall constitute a special,
limited obligation of the Governmental Unit, limited to the Pledged Revenues, and shall not
constitute a general obligation or other indebtedness of the Governmental Unit or a charge
against the general credit or ad valorem taxing power of the Governmental Unit or the State; and

WHEREAS, the execution, performance and delivery of this Loan Agreement and the
Intercept Agreement have been authorized, approved and directed by all necessary and
appropriate action of the Governing Body pursuant to the Resolution; and

WHEREAS, the execution and performance of this Loan Agreement and the Intercept
Agreement have been authorized, approved and directed by all necessary and appropriate action
of the Finance Authority; and

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and the mutual promises
and covenants herein contained, the parties hereto agree: :

ARTICLE I
DEFINITIONS
Capitalized terms defined in the foregoing recitals shall have the same meaning when
used in this Loan Agreement, unless the context clearly requires otherwise. Capitalized terms
not defined in the recitals and defined in this Article I shall have the same meaning when used in
this Loan Agreement, including the foregoing recitals, unless the context clearly requires
otherwise. :

“Act” means the general laws of the State, including Sections 4-62-1 through 4-62-10 and
Sections 59A-53-1 through 59A-53-19, NMSA 1978, as amended, and enactments of the
Governing Body relating to this Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement, including the
Resolution.

“Additional Payment Obligations” mean payments in addition to Loan Agreement
Payments required by this Loan Agreement, including, without limitation, payments required
pursuant to the provisions of Article IX and Article X hereof.

“Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement” means the total principal, interest, and
premium payments, if any, due and payable pursuant to this Loan Agreement and on all Parity
Obligations secured by a pledge of the Pledged Revenues for any one Fiscal Year.

“Authorized Officers” means, in the case of the Governmental Unit, Chairman, Vice-
Chair, Finance Director and County Clerk and, in the case of the Finance Authority, the Chair,
Vice-Chair and Secretary of the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer or any other
officer or employee of the Finance Authority designated in writing by an Authorized Officer.

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRE-5707



“Blended Interest Rate” means the rate of interest on this Loan Agreement as shown on
the Term Sheet.

“Bond Counsel” means nationally recognized bond counsel experienced in matters of
municipal law satisfactory to the Trustee and listed in the list of municipal bond attorneys, as
published semi-annually by The -Bond Buyer’s Municipal Marketplace, or any successor
publication, acting as Loan Counsel to the Finance Authority.

“Bonds” means public project revolving fund revenue bonds, if any, issued hereafter by
the Finance Authority to fund or reimburse the Loan Agreement.

“Closing Date” means the date of execution, delivery and funding of this Loan
Agreement as shown on the Term Sheet.

“Code” means the Tnternal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable
regulations thereunder.

“Distributing State Agency” means the department or agency of the State, as described
on the Term Sheet, authorized to distribute the Pledged Revenues to or on behalf of the
Governmental Unit.

“Event of Default” means one or more events of default as defined in Section 10.1 of this
Loan Agreement.

“Expenses” means the costs of issuance of this Loan Agreement and the Bonds, if any,
and periodic and regular fees and expenses incurred by the Finance Authority in administering
this Loan Agreement, including legal fees.

“Finance Authority Debt Service Account” means the debt service account established in
the name of the Governmental Unit within the Debt Service Fund, as defined in the Indenture,
held and administered by the Finance Authority to pay principal and interest, if any, on this Loan
Agreement as the same become due.

“Fiscal Year” means the period beginning on July 1 in each calendar year and ending on
the last day of June of the next succeeding calendar year, or any other twelve-month period

which any appropriate authority may hereafter establish for the Governmental Unit as its fiscal
year.

“Governing Body” means the duly organized County Commission of the Governmental
Unit and any successor governing body of the Governmental Unit.

“Indenture” means the General Indenture of Trust and Pledge dated as of June 1, 1995, as
amended and supplemented, by and between the Finance Authority and the Trustee, or the
Subordinated General Indenture of Trust and Pledge dated as of March 1, 2005, as
supplemented, by and between the Finance Authority and the Trustee, as determined by the

Finance Authority pursuant to a Pledge Notification or Supplemental Indenture (as defined in the
Indenture).

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5707



“Independent Accountant” means: (i) an accountant employed by the State and under the
supervision of the State Auditor; or (i} any certified public accountant or firm of such
accountants duly licensed to practice and practicing as’ such under the laws of the State,
appointed and paid by the Governmental Unit who (a) is, in fact, independent and not under the
domination of the Governmental Unit; (b) does not have any substantial interest, direct or
indirect, with the Governmental Unit; and (c) is not connected with the Governmental Unit as an
officer or employee of the Governmental Unit, but who may be regularly retained to make
annual or similar audits of the books or records of the Governmental Unit.

“Intercept Agreement” means the Intercept Agreement, dated March 11, 2022, between
the Governmental Unit and the Finance Authority providing for the direct payment by the
Distributing State Agency to the Finance Authority of the Pledged Revenues in amounts
sufficient to pay Loan Agreement Payments, and any amendments or supplements to the
Intercept Agreement.

“Interest Component” means the portion of each Loan Agreement Payment paid as
interest on this Loan Agreement as shown on Exhibit “B” hereto.

“Loan” means the funds in the Loan Agreement Principal Amount to be loaned to the
Governmental Unit by the Finance Authority pursuant to this Loan Agreement.

“Loan Agreement” means this loan agreement and any amendments or supplements
hereto, including the exhibits attached to this loan agreement.

“Loan Agreement Balance” means, as of any date of calculation, the Loan Agreement
Principal Amount less the aggregate principal amount paid or prepaid pursuant to the provisions
of this Loan Agreement,

“Loan Agreement - Payment” means, collectively, the Principal Component and the
Interest Component, if any, to be paid by the Governmental Unit ag payment of this Loan
Agreement as shown on Exhibit “B” hereto.

“Loan Agreement Payment Date” means cach date a payment is due on this Loan
Agreement as shown on Exhibit “B” hereto.

“Loan Agreement Principal Amount” means the original principal amount of this Loan
Agreement as shown on the Term Sheet.

“Loan Agreement Term” means the term of this Loan Agreement as provided under
Article III of this Loan Agreement.

“NMSA” means the New Mexico Statutes Annotated, 1978 compilation, as amended and
supplemented,

“Patity Obligations” means this Loan Agreement, and any other obligations, now
outstanding or hereafter issued or incurred, payable from or secured by a lien or pledge of the
Pledged Revenues and issued with a lien on the Pledged Revenues on a parity with this Loan
Agreement, including any such obligations shown on the Term Sheet.

4

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5707



“Permitted Investments” means securities which are at the time legal investments of the
Governmental Unit for the morney to be invested, as applicable, including but not limited to the
following, if permitted by law: (i) securities that are-issued by the United States government or
by its agencies or instrumentalities and that are either direct obligations of the United States, the
federal home loan mortgage association, the federal national mortgage association, the federal
farm credit bank, federal home loan banks or the student loan marketing association or that are
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government; (i) negotiable securities of
the State; (iii) money market finds which invest solely in obligations described in clause (i)
above which are rated in the highest rating category by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., or
Standard & Poor’s Rating Group; and (iv) the State Treasurer’s short-term investment fund
created pursuant to Section 6-10-10.1, NMSA 1978, and operated, maintained and invested by
the office of the State Treasurer.

“Pledged Revenues” means revemjes distributed to the Governmental Unit pledged to

payment of the Loan Agreement Payments pursuant to the Resolttion and described on the Term
Sheet.

- “Principal Component” means the portion of each Loan Agreement Payment paid as
principal on this Loan Agreement as shown on Exhibit “B” hereto.

“Program Account” means the account in the name of the Governmental Unit established
pursuant to the Indenture and held by the Trustee for the deposit of the net proceeds of the Loan
Agreement for disbursal to the Governmental Unit for payment of the costs of the Project.

“Project” means the proj ect(s) described on the Term Sheet,

“Resolution” means the Governmental Unit Resolution No. adopted by the
Governing Body on Tanuary 27, 2022 approving this Loan Agreement and fhe Intercept
Agreement and pledging the Pledged Revenues to the payment of the Loan Agreement Payments
as shown on the Term Sheet.

“Term Sheet” means Exhibit “A” attached hereto.

“Trustee” means BOKF, NA, Albuquerque, New Mexico, or any successor trust
company, national or state banking association or financial institution at the time appointed
Trustee by Finance Authority,

“Unassigned Rights” means the tights of the Finance Authority to receive payment of
administrative expenses, reports and indemnity against claims pursuant to the provisions of this
Loan Agreement which are withheld in the granting clauses of the Indenture from the pledge,
assignment and transfer of this Loan Agreement to the Trustee,

ARTICLEII
REPRESENTATIONS, COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES

Section 2.1 Representations, Covenants and Warranties of the Governmental Unit.
The Governmental Unit represents, covenants and warrants:

5

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No., PPRE-5707



(2) Binding Nature of Covenants. All covenants, stipulations, obligations and
agreements of the Governmental Unit contained in this Loan Agreement shall be decmed to be
the covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Governmental Unit to the full
extent authorized or permitted by law, and such covenants, stipulations, obligations and
agreements shall be binding upon the Governmental Unit and its successors and upon any board
or body to which any powers or duties affecting such covenants, stipulations, obligations and
agreements shall be transferred by or in accordance with law. Except as otherwise provided in
this Loan Agreement, all rights, powers and privileges conferred and duties and liabilities
imposed upon the Governmental Unit by the provisions of this Loan Agreement and the
Resolution shall be exercised or performed by the Governmental Unit or by such members,
officers, or officials of the Governmental Unit as may be required by law to exercise such
powers and to perform such duties,

(b)  Personal Liability. No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement
contained in this Loan Agreement shall be deemed to be a covenant, stipulation, obligation or
agreement of any officer, agent or employee of the Governmental Unit or member of the
Governing Body in his or her individual capacity, and neither the members of the Governing
Body nor any officer, agent or employee of the Governmental Unit executing this Loan
Agreement shall be liable personally on this Loan Agreement or be subject (o any personal
liability or accountability by reason of the execution and delivery thereof.

(c) Authorization of Loan Apreement and Intercept Agreement. The
Governmental Unit is a political subdivision of the State and is duly organized and existing
under the statutes and laws of the State. Pursuant to the Act, as amended and supplemented from
time to time, the Governmental Unit is authorized to enter into the transactions contempiated by
this Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement and to carty out its obligations herecunder and
thereunder. The Governmental Unit has duly authorized and approved the execution and
delivery of this Loan Agreement, the Intercept Agreement, and the other documents related to
the transaction.

(d)  Use of Loan Agreement Proceeds. The Governmental Unit shall proceed
without delay in applying the proceeds of this Loan Agreement to the acquisition of the Project.

(e Payment of Lodn Agreement. The Governmental Unit shall promptly pay
Loan Agreement Payments, as specified in Exhibit “B” hereto, according to the true intent and
meaning of this Loan Agreement. Loan Agreement Payments are payable solely from (i) the
Pledged Revenues, (ii} special reserve funds of the Finance Authority (as determined by the
Finance Authority, and subject to repayment from the Pledged Revenues), or (iii) the proceeds of
refunding bonds or other refunding obligations which the Governmental Unit may hereafter issue
in its sole discretion and ‘which are payable from the Pledged Revenues; and nothing in this Loan
Agreement shall be construed as obligating the Governmental Unit to pay Loan Agreement
Payments from any general or other fund of the Governmental Unit other than such special
funds. Nothing contained in this Loan Agreement, however, shall be construed as prohibiting
the Governmental Unit in its sole and absolute discretion, from making such payments from any
moneys which may be lawfully used, and which are legally available, for that purpose.

Loan Agreement
Cilola County, Loan No. PPRF-5707



(f) Acquisition and Completion of Project. The Project will consist of
acquiring fire equipment; the funds will be used to purchase two pickup trucks for use by the
Governmental Unit’s fire administration. The Project will be acquired and completed so as to
comply with all applicable ordinances, resolutions and regulations, if any, and any and all
applicable laws relating to the acquisition and completion of the Project and to the use of the
Pledged Revenues. The Project complies with Sections 59A-53-1 through 59A-53-19, NMSA
1978, as amended.

(8)  Necessity of Project. The acquisition of the Project under the terms and
conditions provided for in this Loan Agreement is necessary, convenient and in furtherance of
the governmental purposes of the Governmental Unit and is in the best interests of fthe
Governmental Unit and its residents.

() Legal, Valid and Bindine Special Obligation. The Governmental Unit has
taken all required action necessary to authorize the execution and delivery of this Loan
Agreement and the Intercept Agreement, and this Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement

constitute legal, valid and binding special obligations of the Governmental Unit enforceable in
accordance with their terms.

(1) Loan Agreement Term. The wei ghted average maturity of 4.1389 years of
the Loan Agreement does not exceed 120° o of the reasonably expected life of the Project which
is four (4) years.

6 Use of Project. During the Loan Agreement Term, the Project will at all
times be used for the purpose of benefiting the Governmental Unit as a whole.

(k)  No Private Activity,. The Governmental Unit is a “governmental_ unit”
within the meaning of Sections 103 and 141(b)(6) of the Code. In addition, no amounts
disbursed from the Program Account and used to finance the Project shall be used in the trade or

business of a person who is not a “governmental unit” within the meaning of Sections 103 and
141(b)(6) of the Code, : ’

4y No Excess Loan Agreement Proceeds. The amount loaned to the
Governmental Unit under this Loan Agreement as set forth on the Term Sheet does not exceed
the sum of: (i) the cost of the Project and (if) an amount necessary to pay the costs related to
issuance of the Bonds, if any.

. (m)  No Breach or Default Caused by Loan Agreement or Intercept Agreement.
Neither the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement, nor the
fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and conditions in this Loan Agreement and the
Intercept Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein and therein,
conflicts with or results in a breach of terms, conditions or provisions of any restriction or any
agreement or instrument to which the Governmental Unit is a party or by which the
Governmental Unit is bound or any laws, ordinances, governmental rules or regulations or court
or other governmental orders to which the Governmental Unit or its properties are subject, or
constitutes a default under any of the foregoing.

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5707



(n} - lrrevocable Enactments, While this Loan Agreement remains outstanding
and unpaid, any ordinance, resolution or other enactment of the Goverping Body applying the
Pledged Revenues for the payment of this Loan Agreement, including the Resolution shall be
irrevocable until this Loan Agreement has been paid in full as to both principal and interest, and
shall not be subject to amendment or modification in any manner which would in any way
jeopardize the timely payment of Loan Agreement Payments.

(0)  OQutstanding Debt. Except for the Parity Obligations, if any, described on
the Term Sheet, there are currently no outstanding bonds, notes or other obligations of the
Governmental Unit which are payable from and secured by a parity lien on the Pledged
Revenues. No additional indebtedness, bonds or notes of the Governmental Unit payable on a
priority ahead of the indebtedness herein authorized out of the Pledged Revenues shall be created
or incurred while this Loan Agreement remains outstanding. No additional indebtedness, bonds
or notes of the Governmental Unit payable on a priority ahead of the indebtedness herein
authorized out of the Pledged Revenues shall be created or incurred while this Loan Agreement
remains outstanding. Prior to entering into additional indebtedness to be secured by a parity lien
on the Pledged Revenues, the Governmental Unit shall comply with the terms of Section 5.5
hereof and shall seek the written consent of the Finance Authority, such consent shall not be
unreasonably withheld. During the term of this Loan Agreement, prior to entering into any
indebtedness secured by a subordinate lien on the Pledged Revenues or a lien on any revenues of
the Governmental Unit other than the Pledged Revenues, the Governmental Unit shall notify the
Finance Authority in writing of such indebtedness.

(p)  No Litigation. To the knowledge of the Governmental Unit, no litigation
or proceeding is pending or threatened against the Governmental Unit or any other person
affecting the right of the Governmental Unit to execute or deliver this Loan Agreement or the
Intercept Agreement or to comply with its obligations under this Loan Agreement or the
Intercept Agreement. Neither, the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement or the
Intercept Agreement by the Governmental Unit, nor compliance by the Governmental Unit with
the obligations under such agreements, requires the approval of any regulatory body, or any other
entity, which approval has not been obtained or which is not reasonably expected to be obtained.

(1)  No Event of Defaylt. No event has occurred and no condition exists
which, upon the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement,
would constitute an Event of Default on the part of the Governmental Unit under this Loan
Agreement or the Intercept Agreement.

(r).  Pledged Revenues Not Budgeted. The portion of the Pledged Revenues
necessary to pay the Loan Agreement Payments, as and when due, is not needed or budgeted to
pay current or anticipated operational or other expenses of the Governmental Unit.

(s) Expected Coverage Ratio. The Pledged Revenues (giving credit for any
increase in the Pledged Revenues which has received final approval of the Governing Body and
become effective) from the Fiscal Year immediately preceding the Closing Date were equal to or
cxceeded and, on an ongoing basis during each year of the Loan Agreement Term, are
reasonably expected to equal or exceed, two hundred percent (200%) of the maximum Aggregate
Annual Debt Service Requirement.

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPREF-5707



{t) No_Extension of Interest Payments. The Governmental Unit will not
extend or be a party to the extension of the time for paying any interest on this Loan Agreement.

()  Governmental Unit’s Existence. The Governmental Unit will maintain its
corporate identity and existence so long as this Loan Agreement is unpaid, unless another
political subdivision by operation of law succeeds to the liabilities and rights of the
Governmental Unit without adversely affecting to any substantial degree the privileges and rights
of the Finance Authority.

(v) Continuing Disclosure. The Governmental Unit covenants that it shall
provide continuing disclosure to the Finance Authority, as the Finance Authority may require,
that shall include, but not be limited to, annual audits, operational data required to update
information in any disclosure documents used to assign or securitize the Loan Agreement
Payments by issuance of Bonds by the Finance Authority pursuant to the Indenture, and
notification of any event deemed material by the Finance Authority.

(W) Tax Covenants. The Governmental Unit covenants that it shall restrict the
use of the proceeds of this Loan Agreement in such manner and to such extent, if any, as may be
necessary so that this Loan Agreement will not constitute an arbitrage bond under Section 148 of
the Code and that it shall pay any applicable rebate to the Internal Revenue Service. Authorized
Officers of the Governmental Unit are hereby authorized and directed to execute an Arbitrage
and Tax Certificate as may be required by the Finance Authority and such additional certificates
as shall be necessary to establish that this Loan Agreement is not an “arbitrage bond” within the
meaning of Section 148 of the Code and the Treasury Regulations promulgated or proposed with
respect thereto, including Treasury Regulation Sections 1.148-1 through 1.148-11, 1.149 and
1.150 as the same currently exist, or may from time to time hereafter be amended, supplemented
or revised. The Governmental Unit covenants to comply with the provisions of any such
Arbitrage and Tax Certificate and the provisions thereof will be incorporated herein by reference
to the same extent as if set forth hercin. The Governmental Unit covenants that no use will be
made of the proceeds of this Loan Agreement, or any funds or accounts of the Governmental
Unit. which may be deemed to be Gross Proceeds (as defined in Treasury Regulation
Section 1.148-1(b)) of this Loan Agreement, which use, if it had been reasonably expected on the
Closing Date, would have caused this Loan Agreement to be classified as an “arbitrage bond”
within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code. Pursuant to this covenant, the Governmental
Unit obligates itself to comply throughout the I.oan Agreement Term with the requirements of
Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code and the regulations proposed or promulgated with
respect thereto. The Governmental Unit further represents and covenants that no bonds or other
evidence of indebtedness of the Governmental Unit payable from substantially the same source
as this Loan Agreement have been or will be issued, sold or delivered within fifteen (15) days
prior to or subsequent to the Closing Date. The Governmental Unit hereby further represents and
covenants to comply with Section 7.6 hereof, which designates this Loan Agreement as a
“qualified tax-exempt obligation” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.

(x)  Use of Fire Protection Fund Revenues. The Governmental Unit will take
no action with respect to the Project that would constitute a violation of the terms of Sections
59A-53-7 through 59A-53-10, NMSA. 1978, as the same may be amended or recompiled from
time to time.

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No, PPRT-5707



Section 2.2 Representations, Covenants and Warranties of the Finance Authority. The
Finance Authority represents, covenants and warrants for the benefit of the Governmental Unit
as follows: '

(a) Authorization of Loan Agreement and Intercept Apreement. The Finance
Authority is a public body politic and corporate constituting a governmental instrumentality,
separate and apart from the State, duly organized, existing and in good standing under the laws
of the State, has all necessary power and authority to enter into and perform and observe the
covenants and agreements on its part contained in this Loan Agreement and the Intercept
Agreement and, by proper action, has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Loan
Agreement and the Intercept Agreement based upon the Finance Authority’s findings that;

(1) The Governmental Unit is a disadvantaged qualified entity in that
its median household income is $39,413, which is less than eighty percent (80%) of the State
median household income of $48,059. ’

(i1}  The Project is important to the overall capital needs of the State
and directly enhances the health and safety of the residents of the Governmental Unit].

(b)  Assignment of Rights. The Finance Authority may not pledge or assign
the Pledged Revenues, the Loan Agreement Payments or any of its other rights under this Loan
Agreement and the Intercept Agreement except to the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture.

: (¢©).  No Breach or Default Caused by Loan Agreement or Intercept Agreement.
Neither the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement or the Intercept Agreement, nor the
fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and conditions of this Loan Agreement or the
Intercept Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated in this Loan
Agreement or the Intercept Agreement, conflicts with or results in a breach of the terms,
conditions and provisions of any restriction or any agreement or instrument to which the Finance
Authority is a party or by which the Finance Authority is bound or constitutes a default under
any of the foregoing and will not conflict with or constitute a violation of any constitutional or
statutory provision or order, rule, regulation, decree or resolution of any court, government or
governmental authority having jurisdiction over the Finance Authority or its property and which
conflict or violation will have a material adverse effect on the Finance Authority or the financing
of the Project. '

(d) No Litigation. To the knowledge of the Finance Authority, there is no
litigation or proceeding pending or threatened against the Finance Authority or any other person
affecting the right of the Finance Authority to execute or deliver this Loan Agreement or the
Intercept Agreement or to comply with its obligations under this Loan Agreement or the
Intercept Agreement. Neither, the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement or the
Intercept Agreement by the Finance Authority, nor compliance by the Finance Authority with its
obligations under this Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement requires the approval of any
regulatory body, or any other entity, which approval has not been obtained.

10

Lean Agteement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5707



(e) Legal, Valid and Binding Obligations. This Loan Agreement and the
Intercept Agreement constitute the legal, valid and binding obligations of the Finance Authority
enforceable in accordance with their terms.

({) Tax-Exempt Reimbursement of Amount Loaned. The Finance Authority
intends to reimburse the public project revolving fund (as defined in the Finance Authority Act)
for the amount of the Loan from the proceeds of tax-exempt bonds which the Finance Authority
expects to issue within eighteen (18) months of the Closing Date.

ARTICLE IIT
LOAN AGREEMENT TERM

The Loan Agreement Term shall commence on the Closing Date and shall not terminate
until this Loan Agreement has been paid in full or provision for the payment of this Loan
Agreement has been made pursuant to Article VIII hereof,

ARTICLE IV
LOAN; APPLICATION OF MONEYS

On the Closing Date, the Finance Authority shall transfer the Loan Agreement Principal -
Amount as follows:

(@)  To the Trustee, the amount shown on the Term Sheet as the Program
Account Deposit shall be deposited in the Governmental Unit’s Program Account to be
disbursed by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture and disbursed pursuant to Section 6.2 hereof
-at the direcfion of the Governmental Unit as needed by the Governmental Unit for the Project;
and :

“(b) To the Finance Authority, the amount shown on the Term Sheet ag the
Finance Authority Debt Service Account deposit shall be deposited into the Finance Auithority
Debt Service Account to be maintained by the Finance Authority or its assignee and utilized as
provided in Section 5.2 hereof; and

ARTICLE V
LOAN TO THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT;
PAYMENTS BY THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT

Section 5.1  Loan to the Governmental Unit; Payment Obligations Iimited to Pledged
Revenues: Pledge of Pledged Revemues. The Finance Authority hereby lends to the
Governmental Unit and the Governmental Unit hereby borrows from the Finance Authority an
amount equal to the Loan Agreement Principal Amount. The Governmental Unit promises to
pay, but solely from the sources pledged herein or special reserve funds of the Finance Authority
(as determined by the Finance Authority, and subject to repayment from the Pledged Revenues),
the Loan Agreement Payments as herein provided. The Governmental Unit does hereby convey,
assign and pledge unto the Finance Authority and unto its successors in trust forever all right,

I1

Loan Agreement i
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-57(/7



title and interest of the Governmental Unit in and to: (i) the Pledged Revenues to the extent
required to pay the Loan Agreement Payments on parity with the Parity Obligations; (ii) the
Finance Authority Debt Service Account, such account being held by the Finance Authority;
(iii) the Program Account, such account being held by the Trustee; and (iv) all other rights
hereinafter granted, for the securing of the Governmental Unit’s obligations under this Loan
Agreement, including payment of the Loan Agreement Payments and Additional Payment
Obligations; provided, however, that if the Governmental Unit, its successors or assigns, shall
well and truly pay, or cause to be paid, all Loan Agreement Payments at the time and in the
manner contemplated by this Loan Agreement, according to the true intent and meaning hereof,
or shall provide, as permitted by Article VIII of this Loan Agreement for the payment hereof and
shall pay all other amounts due or to become due under this Loan Agreement in accordance with
its terms and provisions, then, upon such final payment or provision for payment by the
Governmental Unit, this Loan Agreement and the rights created thereby shall terminate;
otherwise, this Loan Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. The Loan Agreement
Payments shall, in the aggregate, be sufficient to pay the Principal Component and Interest
Component when due, the payment schedule of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “B.”

The pledge of the Pledged Revenues and the lien thereon shall be effective upon the
Closing Date. The Governmental Unit and the Finance Authority acknowledge and agree that
the Loan Agreement Payments of the Govermmental Unit hereunder are limited to the Pledged
Revenues, and that this Loan Agreement shall constitute a special, limited obligation of the
Governmental Unit. No provision of this Loan Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as
creating a general obligation or other indebtedness of the Govertumental Unit within the meaning
of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation. No provision of this Loan Agrecment shall be
construed to pledge or to create a lien on any class or source of Governmental Unit moneys other
than the Pledged Revenues, nor shall any provision of this Loan Agreement restrict the future
issuance of any bonds -or obligations payable from any class or source of Governmental Unit
moneys other than the Pledged Revenues, In addition, to the extent not required for the payment
of obligations of the Governmental Unit hereunder, the Pledged Revenues may be utilized by the
Governmental Unit for any other purposes permitted by law.

Section 5,2 Payment Obligations of Governmental Unit. As provided in the Intercept
Agreement, the Distributing State Agency shall cause to be transferred from the Pledged
Revenues or special reserve funds of the Finance Authority (as determined by the Finance
Authority, and subject to repayment from the Pledged Revenues) the amounts provided in
subsections (a)(i) and (ii) of this Section 5.2 for deposit into the Finance Authority Debt Service
Account. The Finance Authority Debt Service Account shall be established and held by the
Finance Authority on behalf of the Governmental Unit. All Pledged Revenues received by the
Finance Authority pursuant to the Intercept Agreement shall be accounted for and maintained on
an ongoing basis by the Finance Authority in the Finance Authority Debt Service Account or
used for repayment of Loan Agreement Payments paid by the special reserve funds of the
Finance Authority, and all Loan Agreement Payments shall be remitted to the Trustee. The
amounts on deposit in the Finance Authority Debt Service Account shall be expended and used
by the Finance Authority or the Trustee, as the case may be, only in the manner and order of
priority specified below.

12

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5707



(a) As a first charge and lien, but not an exclusive first charge and lien, on the
Pledged Revenues (on a parity with the lien on the Pledged Revenues created by any outstanding
Parity Obligations), the Governmental Unit shall remit to the Finance Authority and the Finance
Authority shall transfer and deposit into the Finance Authority Debt. Service Account the
following from the Pledged Revenues received pursuant to the Intercept Agreement from the

Governmental Unit, which the Finance Authority shall transfer to the Trustee in accordance with
the Indenture:

_ (i) Interest Components. Amounts necessary to pay the Interest
Components coming due on this Loan. Agreement on May 1 and November 1 of each Fiscal Year
beginning with the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2023, as described in Exhibit “B:”

(ii) Principal Payments. Amounts necessary to pay the Principal
Components coming due on this Loan Agreement on May 1 of each Fiscal Year beginning with
the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2023, as described in Exhibit “B.”

(b)  Each Loan Agreement Payment shall be transferred by the Finance
Authority from the Finance Authority Debt Service Account to the Trustee.

(c) Subject to the foregoing deposits, the Finance Authority or the Trustee
shall annually use the balance of the Pledged Revenues received, if any, at the request of the
Governmental Unit: (i) to credit against upcoming Loan Agreement Payments; or (ii) to
distribute to the Governmental Unit’s account in the Fire Protection Fund maintained by the
State Treasurer for any purpose permitted by law.

Section 5.3  Manner of Payment. All payments of the Governmental Unit hereunder
shall be paid in lawful money of the United States of America to the Finance Authority at the
address designated in Section 11.1 herein, for remittance to the Trustee. The obligation of the
Governmental Unit to make payments hereunder, from and to the extent of the available Pledged
Revenues, shall be absolute and unconditional in all events, except as expressly provided
hereunder, and payment hereunder shall not be abated through accident or unforeseen
circumstances. Notwithstanding any dispute between the Governmental Unit, the Finance
Authority, the Trustee, any vendor or any other person, the Governmental Unit shall make all
deposits hereunder, from and to the extent of the available Pledged Revenues, when due and
shall not withhold any deposit hereunder pending final resolution of such dispute, nor shall the
Governmental Unit assert any right of set-off or counterclaim against its obligation to make such
deposits required hereunder.

Section 5.4 Disposition of Payments by the Trustee. The Trustee shall deposit all
- moneys received from the Finance Authority under this Loan Agreement in accordance with the
Indenture. '

Section 5.5  Additional Parity Obligations. No provision of this Loan Agreement shall
be construed in such a manner as to prevent the issuance by the Governmental Unit of additional
Parity Obligations payable from the Pledged Revenues, nor to prevent the issuance of bonds or
other obligations refunding all or a part of this Loan Agreement; provided, however, that before
any such additional Parity Obligations are actually issued (excluding refunding bonds or

13

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No, PPRF-5707



refunding obligations which refund Parity Obligations but including parity refunding bonds and
obligations which refund subordinate obligations as provided in Section 5.6 hereof), the
Governmental Unit shall obtain the written consent of the Finance Authority and it must be
determined that:

(a) The Governmental Unit is then current in all of the accumulations
required to be made into the Finance Authority Debt Service Account as provided herein.

(b) No default shall exist in connection with any of the covenants or
requirements of the Resolution or this Loan Agreement,

(c) The Pledged Revenues received by or credited to the Governmental Unit
for the Fiscal Year or for any twelve (12) consecutive months out of the twenty-four (24) months
preceding the date of the issuance of such additional Parity Obligations (the “Historic Test
Period”) shall have been sufficient to pay an amount representing two hundred percent (200%) of
the combined maximum Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement coming due in any
subsequent Fiscal Year on the then ouistanding Parity Obligations and the Parity Obligations
proposed to be issued (excluding the accumulation of any reserves therefor).

(d) A written certification or opinion by the Governmental Unit’s Treasurer
or chief financial officer or by an Independent Accountant that the Pledged Revenues for the
Historic Test Period are sufficient to pay said amounts, shall be conclusively presumed to be
accurate in determining the right of the Governmental Unit to authorize, issue, sell and deliver
the Parity Obligations proposed to be issued.

(e) With prior written notice to Finance Authority, no provision of this Loan
Agreement shall be construed in such a manner as to prevent the issuance by the Governmental
Unit of additional bonds or other obligations payable from the Pledged Revenues constituting a
lien upon such Pledged Revenues subordinate and junior to the lien of this Loan Agreement nor
to prevent the issuance of bonds or other obligations refunding all or part of this Loan Agreement
as permitted by Section 5.6 hereof.

M The Governmental Unit shall not issue bonds or other obligations
payable from the Pledged Revenues having a lien thercon prior and superior to this Loan
Agreement,

Section 5.6  Refunding Qbligations. The provisions of Section 5.5 hereof are subject
to the following exceptions:

(a) If at any time after the Closing Date, while this Loan Agreement, or any
part thereof, is outstanding, the Governmental Unit shall find it desirable to refund any
outstanding bonds or other outstanding obligations payable from the Pledged Revenues, this
Loan Agreement, such bonds or other obligations, or any part thercof, may be refunded (but the
holders of this Loan Agreement or bonds to be refunded may not be compelled to surrender this
Loan Agreement or their bonds, unless this Loan Agreement, the bonds or other obligations, at
the time of their required surrender for payment, shall then mature, or shall then be callable for
prior redemption at the Governmental Unit’s option), regardiess of whether the priority of the
lien for the payment of the refunding obligations on the Pledged Revenues is changed, except as

14

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No, PPRF-5707



provided in subparagraph (e) of Section 5.5 hereof and in subparagraphs (b) and (¢) of this
Section,

(b) No refunding bonds or other refunding obligations payable from the
Pledged Revenues shall be issued on a parity with this Loan Agreement unless:

(i) . The outstanding obligations so refunded are Parity Obligations and
the refunding bonds or other refunding obligations do not increase any aggregate annual
principal and interest obligations evidenced by such refunded obligations; or

(ii) The refunding bonds or other refunding obligations are issued in
compliance with Section 5.5 hereof.

{(c) The 1'eﬁ1nding bonds or other obligations so issued shall enjoy complete
equality of lien on the Pledged Revenues with the portion of this Loan Agreecment or any bonds
or other obligations of the same issue which is not refunded, if any; and the holder or holders of
such refonding bonds or such other refunding obligations shall be subrogated to all of the rights
and privileges enjoyed by the holder or holders of this Loan Agreement or the bonds or other
obligations of the same issue refunded thereby. Tf only a part of this Loan ‘Agreement or the
outstanding bonds and any other outstanding obligations of any issue or issues payable from the
Pledged Revenues is refunded, then such obligations may not be refunded without the consent of
the holder or holders of the unrefunded portion of such obligations, unless:

(i) The refunding bonds or other refunding obligations do not increase
any aggregate annual principal and interest obligations evidenced by such refunded obligations
and by the outstanding obligations not refunded on and prior to the last maturity date of such
unrefunded obligations; or

_ (i1) The refunding bonds or other refunding obligations are issued in
compliance with Section 5.5 hereof: or '

(iii) The lien on the Pledged Revenues for the payment of the refunding
obligations is subordinate to each such lien for the payment of any obligations not refunded.

(d) Any refunding bonds or other refunding obligations payable from the
Pledged Revenues shall be issued with such details as the Governmental Unit may provide by
ordinance or resolution, but without any impairment of any contractual obligations imposed upon
the Governmental Unit by any proceedings authorizing the issuance of any unrefunded portion of
such outstanding obligations of any one or more issues (including, but not necessarily limited to,
this Loan Agreement).

Section 5.7 Investment of Governmental Unit Funds, Money on deposit in the Finance
Authority Debt Service Account established by the Finance Authority may be invested by the
Finance Authority in Permitted Tnvestruents at the discretion of the Finance Authority. Money
on deposit in the Program Account held by the Trustee and created hereunder may be invested by
the Trustee in Permitted Investments at the written direction of the Finance Authority or at the
discretion of the Trustee. Any carnings on any of said accounts shall be held and administered n
each respective account and utilized in the same manner as the other moneys on deposit therein.

15

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan Ne, PPRF-5707



Section 5.8 Governmental Unit May Budget for Payments. The Governmental Unit
may, in its sole discretion, but without obligation and subject to the Constitution of the State,
governing laws, and its budgetary requirements, make available properly budgeted and legally
available funds to defray any insufficiency of the Pledged Revenues to pay Loan Agreement
Payments; provided, however, the Governmental Unit has not covenanted and cannot covenant
to make such funds available and has not pledged any of such funds for such purpose.

ARTICLE VI
THE PROJECT

Section 6.1  Agreement To Acquire and Complete the Project. The Governmental Unit
hereby agrees that to effectuate the purposes of this Loan Agréement and to effectuate the
acquisition of the Project, it shall make, execute, acknowledge. and transmit any contracts, orders,
receipts, writings and instructions with any other persons, firms or corporations and, in general,
do all things which may be requisite or proper to complete the Project. The Governmental Unit
agrees to acquire the Project through the application of moneys to be disbursed from the Program
Account pursuant to Section 6.2 of this Loan Agreement.

Section 6.2 Disbursements From the Program Account. So long as no Event of
Default shall occur, the Trustee shall disburse moneys from the Program Account in accordance
with Section 6.2 of the Indenture upon receipt by the Trustee of a requisition substantially in the
form of Exhibit “C” attached hereto signed by an Authorized Officer of the Governmental Unit,

No disbursement shall be made from the Program' Account without the approval of Bond
Counsel: (i) to reimburse the Governmental Unit’s own funds for expenditures made prior to the
Closing Date; (ii) to refund or advance refund any tax-exempt obligations issued by or on behalf
of the Governmental Unit; (iif) to be used, directly or indirectly, to finance a project used or to be
used in the trade or business of a person who is not a “governmental unit,” within the meaning of
Section 141(b)(6) of the Code; or (iv) to expend funds after the date that is three (3) years after
the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement.

Section 6.3  Completion of Acquisition of the Project. Upon completion of the
acquisition of the Project, an Authorized Officer of the Governmental Unit shall deliver a
certificate to the Finance Authority and the Trustee substantially in the form of Exhibit “D”
attached hereto stating that, to the best of his or her knowledge, the Project has been completed
and accepted by the Governmental Unit, and all costs have been paid. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, such certificate shall state that it is given without prejudice to any rights against third
parties which exist at the date of such certificate or which may subsequently come into being,

Section 6.4 Application of Loan Agreement Proceeds Subsequent to Completion of
the Project. Upon completion of the Project as signified by delivery of the completion certificate
contemplated in Section 6.3 hereof, or in the event that the Finance Authority and the Trustee
shall not have received a certificate of completion as required by Section 6.3 hereof by the date
three (3) years from the Closing Date (or such later date as is approved in writing by Bond
Counsel), the Trustee shall transfer the amounts remaining in the Program Account (except
amounts necessary for payment of amounts not then due and payable) to the Finance Authority

16

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5707



Debt Service Account and such amounts shall be used for the payment of Loan Agreement
Payments.

ARTICLE VII
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
AND RULES; OTHER COVENANTS

Section 7.1 Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments. The Finance Authority
and the Governmental Unit agree that they will, from time to time, execute, acknowledge and
deliver, or cause to be executed, acknowledged and delivered, such supplements hereto and such
further instruments as may reasonably be required for correcting any inadequate or incorrect

description of the Project or of the Pledged Revenues, or for otherwise carrying out the intention
hereof.

Section 7.2 Finance Authority and Governmental Unit Representatives. Whenever
under the provisions hereof the approval of the Finance Authority or the Governmental Unit is
required, or the Governmental Unit or the Finance Authority is required to take some action at
the request of the other, such approval or such request shall be given for the Finance Authority or
for the Governmental Unit by an Authorized Officer of the Finance Authority or the
Governmental Unit, as the case may be, and any party hereto shall be authorized to act on any
such approval or request.

Section 7.3 Requirements of Law. During the Loan. Agreement Term, the
Governmental Unit and the Finance Authority shall observe and comply promptly with all
current and future orders of all courts having jurisdiction over the parties hereto, the Project or
the Pledged Revenues. '

Section 7.4 First Lien: Equality of Liens. The Loan Agreement Payments constitute
an irrevocable first lien (but not necessarily an exclusive first lien) upon the Pledged Revenues.
The Governmental Unit covenants that the Loan Agreement Payments and any Parity
Obligations herein authorized to be issued and from time to time outstanding shall be equitably
and ratably secured by a first lien on the Pledged Revenues and shall not be entitled to any -
priority one over the other in the application of the Pledged Revenues regardless of the time or
times of the issuance of such obligations, it being the intention of the Governmental Unit that
* there shall be no priority between the Loan Agreement Payments and any such Parity

Obligations regardless of the fact that they may be actually issued and delivered at different
times. : :

- Section7.5  Expeditious Completion. The Governmental Unit shall complete the
Project with all practical dispatch.

Section 7.6 Bank Designation of Loan Agreement. For purposes of and in accordance
with Section 265 of the Code, the Governmental Unit hereby designates this Loan Agreement as
an issue qualifying for the exception for certain qualified tax-exempt obligations to the rule
denying banks and other financial institutions 100% of the deduction for interest expenses which
is allocable to tax-exempt interest. The Governmental Unit reasonably anticipates that the total
amount of tax exempt obligations (other than obligations described in Section 265(b)(3)(C)(ii) of

17

Loan Agreement
Cibela County, Loan No. PPRF-37(7



the Code) which will be issued by the Governmental Unit and by any aggregated issuer during
the current calendar year will not exceed $10,000,000. For purposes of this Section 7.6,
“aggregated issuer” means any entity which: (i) issues obligations on behalf of the Governmental
Unit; (ii) derives its issuing authority from the Governmental Unit; or (iii) is controlled directly
or indirectly by the Governmental Unit within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section
1.150-1(e). The Governmental Unit hereby represents that: (a) it has not created and does not
intend to create and does not expect fo benefit from any entity formed or availed of to avoid the
purposes of Section 265(b}(3)(C) or (D) of the Code; and (b) the total amount of obligations so
designated by the Governmental Unit, and- all aggregated issuers for the current calendar year
does not exceed $10,000,000.

Section 7.7  Arbifrage Rebate Exemption. The Governmental Unit hereby certifies and
warrants, for the purpose of qualifying for the exception contained in Section 148(f)(4)(D) of the
Code, to the requirement to rebate arbitrage earnings from investments of the proceeds of the
Loan Agreement (the “Rebate Exemption”), that: (i) this Loan Agreement is issued by the
Governmental Unit which has general taxing powers; (ii) neither this Loan Agreement nor any
portion thereof is a private activity bond as defined in Section 141 of the Code (“Private Activity
Bond™); (iii) all of the net proceeds of this Loan Agreement are to be used for local government
activities of the Governmental Unit (or of a governmental unit, the jurisdiction of which is
entirely within the jurisdiction of the Governmental Unit); and (iv) neither the Governmental
Unit nor any aggregated issuer has issued or is reasonably expected to issue any Tax-Exempt
Bonds other than (A) Private Activity Bonds (as those terms are used in Section 148(f)(4)(D) of
the Code) and (B) issued to refund (other than to advance refund (as used in the Code)) any bond
to the extent the amount of the refunding bond does not exceed the outstanding amount of the
refunded bond, during the current calendar year, which would in the aggregate amount exceed
$5,000,000. For purposes of this paragraph, “aggregated issuer” means any entity which:
(a) issues obligations on behalf of the Governmental Unit; (b) derives its issuing authority from
the Governmental Unit; or (c)is controlled directly or indirectly by the Governmental Unit
within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-1(e). The Governmental Unit hereby
represents that it has not created, does not intend to create and does not expect to benefit from
any entity formed or availed of to avoid the purposes of Section 148(H)(4)(D) of the Code.

. Accordingly, with respect to the Loan Agreement, the Governmental Unit will qualify for
the rebate exemption granted under Section 148(f)(4)(D) of the Code and the Governmental Unit
shall be treated as meeting the requirements of paragraphs (2) and (3) of Section 148(f) of the
Code relating to the required rebate of arbitrage earnings to the United States.

The Governmental Unit hereby further represents and covenants that if it is determined
that rebatable arbitrage, as that term is defined under Section 148 of the Code and related
regulations, is required to be paid to the United States, that it will pay such rebatable arbitrage.

ARTICLE VIII
PREPAYMENT OF LOAN AGREEMENT PAYMENTS

Section 8.1  Prepayment. The Governmental Unit is hereby granted the option to
prepay any of the Principal Components of this Loan Agreement in whole or in part on any day
on or after one (1) year following the Closing Date without penalty or prepayment premium,

18

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No, PPRF-53707



The Governmental Unit may designate the due dates of any Principal Components being prepaid
in the event of a partial prepayment. Notice of intent to malke such prepayment shall be provided
to the Finance Authority and the Trustee by the Governmental Unit no less than forty-five (45)
days prior to the prepayment date. The Trustee shall recalculate the Loan Agreement Payments
due under this Loan Agreement in.the event of a partial prepayment in a manner which is
consistent with the manner in which the Bonds, if any, are prepaid.

Section 8.2  Defeasance. Should the Governmental Unit pay or make provision for
payment of the Loan such that all amounts due pursuant to this Loan Agreement shall be deemed
to have been paid and defeased, then the Loan Agreement Payments hereunder shall also be
deemed to have been paid, the Governmental Unit’s payment obligations hereunder shall be
terminated, this Loan Agreement and all obligations contained herein shall be discharged and the
pledge hereof released. Such payment shall be deemed made when the Governmental Unit has
deposited with an escrow agent, in trust, (i) moneys sufficient to make such payment, and/or (i1)
noncallable Governmental Obligations maturing as to principal and interest in such amount and
at such times as will ensure the availability of sufficient moneys to make such payment and when
all necessary and proper expenses of the Finance Authority have been paid or provided for. In
the event the Governmental Unit makes provisions for defeasance of this Loan Agreement, the
Governmental Unit shall cause to be delivered (1) a report of an independent nationally
recognized certified public accountant verifying the sufficiency of the escrow established to pay
‘this Loan Agreement in full when due or upon.an irrevocably designated prepayment date, and
(2) an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that this Loan Agreement is no longer outstanding,
each of which shall be addressed and delivered to the Finance Authority. Governmental
Obligations within the meaning of this Section 8.2, unless otherwise approved by the Finance
Authority, shall include only (1) cash, (2) U.S. Treasury Cettificates, Notes and Bonds (including
State and Local Government Series — “SLGs”), and (3) obligations the principal of and interest
on which are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America.

ARTICLE IX
INDEMNIFICATION

From and to the extent of the Pledged Revenues, and to the extent permitted by law, the
Governmental Unit shall and hereby agrees to indemmify and save the Finance Authority and the
Trustee harmless against and from all claims, by or on behalf of any person, firm, corporation or
other legal entity arising from the acquisition or operation of the Project during the Loan
Agreement Term, from: (i) any act of negligence or other misconduct of the Governmental Unit
or breach of any covenant or warranty by the Governmental Unit hereunder; and (i) the
incurrence of any cost or expense in connection with the acquisition or operation of the Project in
excess of the Loan Agreement proceeds and interest on the investment thercof.  The
Governmental Unit shall indemnify and save the Finance Authority and the Trustee harmless,
from and to the extent of the available Pledged Revenues, from any such claim arising as
aforesaid from (i) or (ii) above, or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon
and, upon notice from the Finance Authority or the Trustee, shall defend the Finance Authority
or the Trustee, as applicable, in any such action or proceeding.

19

Loan Agresment
Cibola County, Loan No, PPRF-5707



ARTICLE X
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 10.1 Events of Default Defined. Any one of the following shall be an Event of
Default under this Loan Agreement:

(a) Failure by the Governmental Unit to pay any amount required to be paid
under this Loan Agreement on the date on which it is due and payable;

(b) FKailure by the Governmental Unit to observe and perform any covenant,
condition or agreement on its part to be observed or performed under this Loan Agreement, other
than as referred to in paragraph (a), for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice specifying
such failure and requesting that it be remedied is given to the Governmental Unit by the Finance
Authority or the Trustee unless the Finance Authority and the Trustee shall agree in writing to an
extension of such time prior to its expiration; provided, however, if the failure stated in the notice
can be wholly cured within a period of time not materially detrimental to the rights of the
Finance Authority or the Trustee but cannot be cured within the applicable thirty (30) day period,
the Finance Authority and the Trustee will not unreasonably withhold their consent to an
extension of such time if cortective action is instituted by the Governmental Unit within the
applicable period and diligently pursued until the failure is corrected; and provided, further, that
if by reason of force majeure the Governmental Unit is unable to carry out the agreements on its
part herein contained, the Governmental Unit shall not be deemed in default under this paragraph
(b) during the continuance of such inability (but force majeure shall not excuse any other Event
of Default); '

(¢) Any warranty, representation or other statement by or on behalf of the
Governmental Unit contained in this Loan Agreement or in any instrument furnished in
compliance with or in reference to this Loan Agreement is false or misleading in any material
respect;

(d) A petition is filed against the Governmental Unit under any bankruptcy,
moratorium, reorganization, arrangement, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or
liquidation law of any jurisdiction, whether now or hereafter in effect, and is not dismissed
within thirty (30) days after such filing, but the Finance Authority and the Trustee shall have the
right to intervene in the procecedings prior to the expiration of such thirty (30) days to protect
their interests;

(e) The Governmental Unit files a petition in voluntary bankruptcy or seeking
reliecf under any provision of any bankruptcy, moratorium, reorgapization, arrangement,
insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation law of any jurisdiction, whether now
or hereafter in effect, or consents to the filing of any petition against it under any such law; or

(f) The Governmental Unit admits insolvency or bankruptcy or its inability to
pay its debts as they become due or is generally not paying its debts as such debts become due,
or becomes insolvent or bankrupt or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, ot a
custodian (including, without limitation, a receiver, liquidator or trustee) of the Governmental
Unit for any of its property is appointed by court order or takes possession thereof and such order

20

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5707



remains in effect or such possession continues for more than thirty (30) days, but the Finance
Authority and the Trustee shall have the right to intervene in the proceedings prior to the
expiration of such thirty (30) days to protect their interests.

Section 10.2  Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default has occurred and is
continuing and subject to Section 10.3 hereof, the Finance Authority or the Trustee may take any
or all of the following actions as may appear necessary or desirable to collect the payments then
due and to become due or to enforce performance of any agreement of the Governmental Unit in
this Loan Agreement or the Intercept Agreement:

(a) By mandamus or other action or proceeding or suit at law or in equity to
enforoe the rights of the Finance Authority and the Trustee under this Loan Agreement and the
Intercept Agreement against the Governmental Unit, and compel the Governmental Unit to
perform or carry out its duties under the law and the agreements and covenanis required to be
performed by it contained herein; or :

(b) By suit in equity to enjoin any acts or things which are unlawful or violate
the rights of the Finance Authority or the Trustee; or

{c) Intervene in judicial proceedings that affect this Loan Agreement or the
Pledged Revenues; or

(d) Cause the Governmental Unit to account as if it were the trustee of an
cxpress trust for all of the Pledged Revenues; or

(e Take whatever other action at law or in equity may appear necessary or
desirable to collect amounts then due and thereafter to become due under this Loan Agreement
or to enforee any other of its rights thereunder; or

(f) Apply any amounts in the Program Account toward satisfaction of any of
the obligations of the Governmental Unit under this Loan Agreement.

Section 10.3  Limitatjons on Remedies. A judgment requiring a payment of money
entered against the Governmental Unit may reach only the available Pledged Revenucs.

Section 10.4  No Remedy Exclusive. Subject to Section 10.3 hereof, no remedy herein
conferred upon or reserved to the Finance Authority or the Trustee is intended to be exclusive,
and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given
hereunder as now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. No delay or omission to exercise any
right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or shall be
construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised from time to
time and as often as may be deemed expedient. In order to entitle the Fitance Authority or the
Trustee to exercise any remedy reserved in this Article X, it shall not be necessary to give any
notice, other than such notice as may be required in this Article X,

Section 10.5 Waivers of Events of Default. The Finance Authority or the Trustec may
i its discretion waive by written waiver any Event of Default hereunder and the consequences of
such an Bvent of Default provided, however, that there shall not be waived: (i) any Event of

21

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No, PPRF-5707



Default in the payment of the principal of this Loan Agreement at the date when due as specified
herein; or (ii) any default in the payment when due of the interest on this Loan Agreement,
unless prior to such waiver or rescission, all arrears of interest, with interest at the rate borne by
this Loan Agreement on all arrears of payments of principal and all expenses of the Finance
Authority or the Trustee, in connection with such Event of Default shall have been paid or
provided for, and in case of any such waiver or rescission, or in case any proceeding taken by the
Finance Authority or the Trustee on account of any such Bvent of Default shall have been
discontinued or abandoned or determined adversely, then and in every such case, the Finance
Authority and the Trustee shall be restored to their former positions and rights hereunder,
respectively, but no such waiver or rescission shall extend to any subsequent or other Bvent of
Default, or impair any right consequent thereon,

Section 10.6  No Additional Waiver Implied by One Waiver, In the event that any
agreement contained herein should be breached by either party and thercafter waived by the
other party, such waiver shall be limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be
deemed to waive any other breach hereunder.

Section 10.7  Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses. In the event that the
Governmental Unit shall default under any of the provisions hereof and the Finance Authority or
- the Trustec shall employ attorneys or incur other expenses for the collection of payments
hereunder, or the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or agreement on
the part of the Governmental Unit herein contained, the Governmental Unit agrees that it shall on
demand therefor pay to the Finance Authority or the Trustee, as applicable, the fees of such
attorneys and such other expenses so incurred, to the extent that such attoreys’ fees and
expenses may be determined to be reasonable by a court of competent jurisdiction; provided,
however, that the obligation of the Governmental Unit under this Section shall be limited to
expenditures from and to the extent of the available Pledged Revenues. o

- ARTICLE XI
MISCELLAN_EOUS

Section 11.1  Notices. All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder shall
be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when delivered as follows: if to the
Governmental Unit, 700 East Roosevelt, Suite 50, Grants, New Mexico 87020, Attention;
County Clerk; if to the Finance Authority, New Mexico Finance Authority, 207 Shelby Street,
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501, Attention: Chief Executive Officer; and if to the Trustee, BOKF,
NA, 100 Sun Avenue N.E., Suite 500, Albuquerque, New Mexico 87109, Attention: Trust
Division. The Governmental Unit, the Finance Authority, and the Trustee may, by notice given
hereunder, designate any further or different addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates
or other communications shall be sent,

Section 11.2  Binding Effect. This Loan Agreemént shall inure to the benefit of and
shall be binding upon the Finance Authority, the Governmental Unit and their respective
successors and assigns, if any.

Section 1.3 Amendments. The Governmental Unit agrees that this Loan Agreement
will not be amended without the prior written consent of the Finance Authority, and, if the Loan

22

Loan Agreemesnt
Cibela County, Loan No, PPRF-5707



has been pledged under the Indenture (as defined herein), without the prior written consent of the

Trustee (as defined herein), the Finance Authority and the Governmental Unit, pursuant to the
Indenture.

Section 11.4  No_Liability of Individual Officers, Directors or Trustees. No recourse
under or upon any obligation, covenant or agreement contained in this Loan Agreement shall be
had against any member, employee, director or officer, as such, past, present or future, of the
Finance Authority, either directly or through the Finance Authority, or against any officer,
employee, director, trustee or member of the Governing Body, past, present or future, as an
individual so long as such individual was acting in good faith. Any and all personal liability of
every nature, whether at common law or in equity, or by statute, constitution or otherwise, of any
such officer, employee, director, trustee or member of the Governing Body or of the Finance
Authority is hereby expressly waived and released by the Governmental Unit and by the Finance
Authority as a condition of and in consideration for the execution of this Loan Agreement.

Section 11.5 Severability. In the event that any provision of this Loan Agreement,
other than the requirement of the Governmental Unit to pay hereunder, shall be held invalid or
unienforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render
unenforceable any other provision hereof.

Section 11.6  Execution in Counterparts. This Loan Agreement may be simultaneously
executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall
constitute but one and the same instrument.

Section 11.7 Assignment by the Finance Authority. Pursuant to the Indenture, this
Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement may be assigned and transferred by the Finance
Authority to the Trustee, which assignment and transfer is hereby acknowledged and approved
by the Governmental Unit.

Section 11.8  Compliance with Governing Law. It is hereby declared by the Governing
Body that it is the intention of the Governmental Unit by the execution of this Loan Agreement
to comply in all respects with the provisions of the New Mexico Constitution and statutes as the
same govern the pledge of the Pledged Revenues to payment of all amounts payable under this
Loan Agreement. '

Section 11.9  Applicable Law. This Loan Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State,

Section 11.10 Captions. The captions or héadings herein are for convenience only and in
no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or sections of this Loan
Agreement.

[Signature pages follow]
[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]

23

Loan Agresment
Cibdla County, Loan No. PPRF-5707



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Finance Authority, on behalf of itself, and as approved by
the Board of Directors of the Finance Authority on December 16, 2021, has executed this Loan
Agreement in its corporate name by its duly authorized officer; and the Governmental Unit has
caused this Loan Agreement to be executed in its corporate name and the seal of the
Governmental Unit affixed and attested by its duly authorized officers. All of the above are
effective as of the date first above written.

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

By

Marquita D. Russel, Chief Executive Officer

PREPARED FOR EXECUTION BY OFFICERS OF
THE NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY:
Sutin, Thayer & Browne A Professional Corporation
As Loan Counsel

By

Suzanne Wood Bruckner

APPROVED FOR EXECUTION BY OFFICERS OF THE
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY:

By

Daniel C. Opperman, Chief Legal Officer

S-1
Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5707



CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

[SEAL] | By

Daniel J. Torrez, Chairman
ATTEST:

By,

Michelle E. Dominguez, County Clerk

6169316

S-2
Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No, PPRF-5707



EXHIBIT “A”

TERM SHEET

New Mexico Finance Authority Loan No. PPRF-5707

Governmental Unit:

Project Description:

Loan Agreement
Principal Amount:

Disadvantaged Funding Amount:

Pledged Revenues:

Coverage Ratio:
Distributing State Agency:

Currently Outstanding Parity
Obligations:

Additional Parity Bonds Test:
Authorizing Legislation:
Closing Date:

Blended Interest Rate:

Program Account Deposit:

Cibola County, New Megico

Purchase two pickup trucks for use by the Governmental
Unit’s Fire Administration.

$121,000

$121,000

The distribution of State Fire Protection Funds to the
Governmental Unit made periodically by the State
Treasurer pursuant to Section 59A-53-7, NMSA 1978.

125%

State Treasurer

None

200%

Resolution No. __ adopted on January 27, 2022
March 11, 2022

0.00%

$121,000

Finance Authority Debt Service Account

Deposit:
First Interest Payment Date:
First Principal Payment Date:

Final Payment Date:

$0
May 1, 2023
May 1, 2023

May 1, 2029

PROGRAM ACCOUNT DEPOSITS MUST BE USED WITHIN THREE YEARS UNLESS A

THE FINANCE AUTHORITY APPROVES A LONGER PERIOD IN WRITING

A-1



EXHIBIT “B”
DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE FOR LOAN REPAYMENT

[SEE ATTACHED]

B-1



EXHIBIT “C”
FORM OF REQUISITION

RE:  $121,000 Loan Agreement by and between the Cibola County, New Mexico, and the
New Mexico Finance Authority (the “Loan Agreement”), -

TO:  BOKF, NA
¢/o New Mexico Finance Authority
PPRF@nmfa.net

You are hereby authorized to disburse from the Program Account - Cibola County, New Mexico
(2022 Fire Equipment Loan), with regard to the above-referenced Loan Agreement the
following:

LOAN NO. PPRF- CLOSING DATE:
REQUISITION NUMBER:

NAME AND ADDRESS OF PAYEE:

AMOUNT OF PAYMENT: §

PURPOSE OF PAYMENT:

Each obligation, item of cost or expense mentioned herein is for costs of the Project, is due and
payable, has not been the subject of any previous requisition and is a proper charge against the
Program Account — Cibola County, New Mexico (2022 Fire Equipment Loan).

All representations contained in the Loan Agreement and the related closing documents remain
true and correct and (the) Cibola County, New Mexico, is not in breach of any of the covenants
contained therein. ' : '

If this is the final requisition, payment of costs of the Project is complete or, if not complete,
(the) Cibola County shall and understands its obligation to complete the acquisition of the
Project from other legally available funds.

Capitalized terms used herein, are used as defined or used in the Loan Agreement.

DATED: By

Authorized Officer

Title
(Print Name and Title)




EXHIBIT “D”
CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION
RE:  $12]1,000 Loan Agreement by and between the Cibola County, New Mexico, and the
New Mexico Finance Authority (the “Loan Agreement”),

TO: New Mexico Finance Authority
PPRF@nmfa.net

Susan Ellis

Assistant Vice President, Corporate Trust
BOKF, NA

100 Sun Avenue NE, Suite 500
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87109

LOAN NO.: PPRF-5707 ‘ CLOSING DATE: March 11, 2022

In accordance with Section 6.3 of the Loan Agreement, the undersigned states, to the best of his
or her knowledge, that the acquisition of the Project has been completed and accepted by the
Governmental Unit, and all costs have been paid as of the date of this Certificate.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, this certification is given without prejudice to any rights against
third parties which exist at the date of this Certificate or which may subsequently come into
being.

Capitalized terms used herein, are used as defined or used in the Loan Agreement.

DATED: By ,
Authorized Officer of Governmental Unit

Title

Print Name and Title



EXHIBIT “B”

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY TAX REPRESENTATIONS CERTIFICATE

The undersigned hereby certifies as follows with respect to the $121,000 Loan
Agtreement dated March 11, 2022 (the “Loan”) from the New Mexico Finance Authority (the
“Finance Authority™) to Cibola County, New Mexico (the “Governmental Unit™)

b

Loan to persons other than the Finance Authority, therefore the “issye price” of the Loan is
$121,000.

2. The Arbitrage Yield on the Loan, calculated in accordance with the applicable
U.S. Treasury Regulations from interest to be paid on the Loan, is 0.00%.

3. Funding the Loan Agreement Reserve Account with proceeds of the Loan in the
amount of $121,000 was required by the Finance Authority as a condition of making the Loan,
and is, in the best judgment of the undersigned, reasonably required to provide the Loan at a
reasonable interest rate for the Governmental Unit and is, in the best Jjudgment of the
undersigned, established at a level of funding comparable to that found for obligations of similar
credit quality as the Loan which were issued or originated within the past year,

4, The Weighted Average Maturity of the Loan, calculated in accordance with the
applicable U.S, Treasury Regulations, is 4.1389 years,

5. The undersigned understands that the statements made herein will be relied upon
by the Governmental Unit in it effort to complete the Information Return for Tax-Exempt

Dated this 11™ day of March, 2022.

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

By:

Marquita D. Russel, Chief Executive Officer

6191078

Cibola County, Loan No. PPRE-5707






10k. & 10I.
Resolution 22-18
&

Ordinance 22-001

NMFA Loan-Cibola County HVAC System




. 8038-G | Information Return for Tax-Exempt Governmental Bonds

(Rev. October 2021) P Under Internal Revenue Code section 149(e)

P See separate instructions. OMB No. 1545-0047
Diegattiianh a e Teasi Caution: {f the issue price is L{nder $1Q0,000, use Form SO:SB—GC. )
[riternal Revanue Serflce » Go to www.irs.gov/F8038G for instructions and the latest information.
il  Reporting Authority Check box if Amended Return » []
1 Issuer's name 2 |ssuer's employer identification number (EIN)
Cibola County, New Mexico 85-0291095
3a Name of person (other than issuer) with whom the IRS may communicate about this return (see instructions) 3b Telephone number of other person shown on 3a
4 Number and street (or P.Q. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite | 5 Report number (For /RS Use Only)
700 East Roosevelt Avenue | 3 | P | -
6 City, town, or post office, state, and ZIP code 7 Date of issue
Grants, New Mexico 87020 04/08/2021
8 Name of issue 9 CUSIP number
New Mexico Finance Authority, 2022 Building Loan, PPRF-5708 N/A
10a Name and title of officer or other employee of the issuer whom the IRS may call for more information 10b Telephone number of officer or other
employee shown on 10a
Paul Ludi, Finance Director 505-285-2518
Type of Issue (Enter the issue price.) See the instructions and attach schedule.
11 Education. . . G me M w6 Ge PR M W G Ge e B R B S0 WD e M Wb D o me e o o 11
12  Health and hospltal Bl T S W M GE W W W SRR s B M0 S0 MR WS e fw M G G f @ 12
183 Transporfation . . . & o e w0 o v @ w ow e e e e w0 e e e a s G m w0 13
14 Publicsafety . . . . G W e T e MmO G D m S BB G MG ML W @ m os 14
15 Environment (including sewage bonds) e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 15
16 HOUSIHE « « ¢ « = = o 5 & = & 6 % s i ;o aw o am e o m wmom om e i 16
17  Utilities . . o ww o em e wm smn gw om ser am e o Ge 0 17
18  Other. Describe ) Bmldmg Irnprouements - H\]ﬁ(‘/ 18 1777178

19a If bonds are TANs or RANs, check only box 19a

b If bonds are BANs, check only box 18b .
20 If bonds are in the form of a lease or installment sale check box
: Description of Bonds. Complete for the entire issue for Wh[Ch thls form is bemg filed.

A
o

(a) Final maturity date (b Issue price (c’s'r‘ij;e:tri‘;‘:m;‘c’” a\}:r’a‘;";ﬂ':tﬁﬂ " () Yield
21 05/01/2031 $ 1,777,778/ $ 1,777,778 5.152 years 1.4628 %
Pa Uses of Proceeds of Bond Issue (including underwriters’ discount)
22  Proceeds used for accrued interest . . . . c = % £ 2 % m = m 5 5 % 22
23  |Issue price of entire issue (enter amount from line 21 coiumn (b)) e 23 1,777,778
24  Proceeds used for bond issuance costs (including underwriters’ discount) 24
25 Proceeds used for credit enhancement . . . . . 25
26  Proceeds allocated to reasonably required reserve or replacement fund . 26 177,778
27  Proceeds used to refund prior tax-exempt bonds. Complete PartV . . . 27
28  Proceeds used to refund prior taxable bonds. Complete PartV . . . . 28
29 Total (add lines 24 through 28) . . . . . & s 29 177,778
Nonrefunding proceeds of the issue (subtract Ilne 29 from I|ne 23 and enter amount here) i % 30 1,600,000

Description of Refunded Bonds. Complete this part only for refunding bonds.
31  Enter the remaining weighted average maturity of the tax-exempt bonds to be refunded . | years
32  Enter the remaining weighted average maturity of the taxable bonds to be refunded . . . . > years
33  Enter the last date on which the refunded tax-exempt bonds will be called (MM/DD/YYYY) .
34  Enter the date(s) the refunded bonds were issued b (MM/DD/YYYY)

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate instructions. Cat. No. 637735 Form 8038-G (Rev. 10-2021)




Form 8038-G (Rev. 10-2021)

Page 2

LEURIl  Miscellaneous

85  Enter the amount of the state volume cap aflocated 1o the issue under section 141(0){5) .
36a - Enter the amount of gross proceeds invested or to be invested in a guaranteed investment contract
(GIC). Seeinstructions . . . . . . . . . . . .
b Enter the final maturity date of the GIC » (MM/DD/YYYY)
¢ Enter the name of the GIC provider»
37  Pooled financings: Enter the amount of the proceeds of this issue that are to be used to make loans
toother governmental units . . . . . . . . . . . L L L L L oo a7
38a  [f this issue is a loan made from the proceeds of ancther tax-exempt issue, check box » [ and enter the following information:
b Enter the date of the master pool bond » (MM/DD/YYYY)
¢ Enter ths EIN of the issuer of the master pool bond P
d  Enter the name of the issuer of the master pool bond B
32  Ifthe issuer has designated the issue under section 265()(@)BYII (small issuer exception), checkbox . . . . P ‘|:I
40 If the issuer has elected to pay a penalty in lieu of arbitrage rebate, checkbox . . . . . . . . . . . . . » [
41a [f the issuer has identified a hadge, check here ™ [ and enter the following information:
b Name of hedge provider »
¢ Type of hedge P
d  Term of hadge » ‘
42 - Ifthe lssuer has superintegrated the hedge, checkbox . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. bk []
43 If the issuer has established written procedures to snsure that all nonqualified bonds of this issue are remediated
according to the requirements under the Code and Regulations (ses instructions), checkbox . . . . . . . . P [
44  If the issuer has established written procedures to menitor the requirements of section 148, checkbox . . . . . » [
45a  If some portion of the proceeds was used to reimburse expendiiures, check here ™ ] and enter the amount
of reimbursement . . . . . . . . . . . . . . P
b Enter the date the officlal intent was adopied B (MM/DD/YYYY)
Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this retum and accompanylng schedulss and statements, and to the best of my lnowledge
Signature | 5ot i o he parsoh hat | ave suthoriosd shorg. 1at censert o the IRS's disclosure of the ssuarsretum Information, 4 necessary o
and
Consent } } Danlel J. Torrez, Chalirman
Slgnature of Issual’s authorized represeniative _ Date . Type or print name andl title
Paid Print/Type preparer’s name Preparer's slgnature Date Check [_] 1 | PTIN
Preparer Suzanne Wood Bruckner self-employed | pp1629036
Use Onl ’ Firm's hame P Sutin, Thayer & Browne, A Professlonal Corporation Firm’s EIN b 85-0225124
v Firm's address » 6100 Uptown Blvd NE, Suite 400, Albuguergue, NM 87110 _|_Phcne no. 505-883-2500

Form 8038-G (Rev. 10-2021)



$1,777,778
CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY
PUBLIC PROJECT REVOLVING FUND LOAN
Loan No. PPRF-5708

STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
)ss.  ARBITRAGE AND TAX
COUNTY OF CIBOLA : ) CERTIFICATE

On behalf of Cibola County, New Mexico (the “Governmental Unit”), and in connection
with the Loan Agreement dated April 8, 2022 (the “Loan Agreement™), relating to the financing
the cost of purchasing and installing an HVAC system in the Governmental Unit’s
administration building for use by the Governmental Unit (the “Project”) as described in the
Loan Agreement, and evidencing the Governmental Unit’s obligation in the aggregate principal
amount of $1,777,778, the Governmental Unit hereby certifies as follows:

Capitalized terms used in this Certificate have the same meanings as defined in
Ordinance No. adopted on February 24, 2022, unless otherwise defined in this
Certificate or the context requires otherwise.

1. The Project. The Governmental Unit is entering into the Loan Agreement
simultaneously with delivery of this Certificate. The Loan Agreement evidences the loan (the .
“Loan™) made by the New Mexico Finance Authority (the “Finance Authority”) to provide funds
to pay the costs of acquiring the Project described in Exhibit “A” attached to the Loan
Agreement and to pay certain costs incurred in connection with the execution and delivery of the
L.oan Agreement.

2, Security for the Loan Agreement. Debt service on the Loan Agreement will be
secured by the pledged revenues described in Exhibit “A” attached to the Loan Agreement (the
“Pledged Revenues”) sufficient to pay debt service due in connection with the Loan, which
Pledged Revenues have been pledged to the Finance Authority pursuant to the Loan Agreement.

3. Finance Authority Public Project Revolving Fund Program. The Governmental
Unit acknowledges that the Finance Authority may assign and transfer the Loan Agreement to
the BOKF, NA, as successor trustee (the “Trustee”) pursuant to the Indenture, as defined in the
Loan Agreement, and all Supplemental Indentures thereto, between the Finance Authority and
the Trustee (collectively, the “Indenture”). Pursuant to the Indenture, the Loan Agreement may
be pledged as an Additional Pledged Loan to the Trustee as additional security for the payment
of amounts due on the Finance Authority’s Public Project Revolving Fund Revenuc Bonds
outstanding at the time of such pledge.

4. Sources and Uses of Loan Funds. The Governmental Unit has received Loan
proceeds from the public project revolving fund, as defined in the New Mexico Finance
Authority Act, Sections 6-21-1, ef seq., NMSA 1978, as amended and supplemented, in the
amount of $1,777,778 from the Finance Authority (the “Proceeds”). The Proceeds do not exceed
the amount reasonably necessary for the purposes for which the Loan Agreement was entered-
into.




5. Expenditure Expectations. The Governmental Unit expects to incur a substantial
binding obligation within six (6) months of the date hereof with regard to the Project, which
obligation involves the expenditure of no less than five percent (5%) of the Proceeds. The
Governmental Unit reasonably expects that the $1,600,000 of Proceeds deposited into the
Governmental Unit’s Program Account in the Program Fund together with other legally available
funds and anticipated earnings from the investment of such Proceeds until they are spent, are
expected to be expended within three (3) years of the date hereof.

The estimated total costs of the Project will not be less than $1,600,000 plus investment
earnings thereon during the acquisition period.

Proceeds in the amount of $0.20 will be deposited into the Finance Authority Debt
Service. Account to be maintained by the Finance Authority or its assignee and utilized as
provided in Section 5.2 of the Loan Agreement.

6. Investment of Proceeds. Except for the investment of the Proceeds (i) in the
Program Account established under the Indenture with respect to the Loan Agreement pending
the payment of the costs of the Project, (ii) in the Loan Agreement Reserve Account established
under the Indenture with respect to the Loan Agreement to be applied to prevent deficiencies in
the payment of principal and interest on the Loan Agreement, and (iii) in the Finance Authority
Debt Service Account established and administered by the Finance Authority pending the
payment of debt service on the Loan Agreement, there will be no investment of the Proceeds.

7. Bona Fide Debt Service Fund. Debt service payments on the Loan Agreement
will be paid from the Pledged Revenues of the Governmental Unit deposited to the Finance
Authority Debt Service Account created with respect to the Loan Agreement. Because the
Pledged Revenues of the Governmental Unit for any year will exceed debt service on the Loan
Agreement, it is assumed that current debt service paid by the Governmental Unit for deposit in
the Finance Authority Debt Service Account will be derived entirely from the current Pledged
Revenues. The Finance Authority Debt Service Account will be depleted at least once a year
except for an amount not to exceed the greater of the earnings on the Finance Authority Debt
Service Account for the immediately preceding bond year or one-twelfth (1/12%) of debt service
on the Loan for the immediately preceding bond year. The Governmental Unit has not created or
established, nor does it expect to create or establish, any debt service fund, redemption fund,
replacement fund, sinking fund or other similar fund which is reasonably expected to be used to
pay principal or interest on the Loan Agreement or pledged therefor, except for the Finance
Authority Debt Service Account and the Loan Agreement Reserve Account.

R. Reserve Account. Proceeds in the amount of $177,777.80 will be deposited in the
Governmental Unit’s Loan Agreement Reserve Account in the Agreement Reserve Fund held by
the Trustee under the Indenture, which amount does not exceed the least of (i) one hundred
twenty-five percent (125%) of the average annual principal and interest requirements under the
Loan Agreement; (ii) the maximum annual principal and interest requirements under the Loan
Agreement, or (iii) ten percent (10%) of the Loan Agreement Principal Amount. Amounts held
in the Governmental Unit’s Loan Agreement Reserve Account may be applied to prevent
deficiencies in the payment of principal and interest on the Loan Agreement resulting from a
failure by the Govermmental Unit to deposit into the Finance Authority Debt Service Account
sufficient funds to pay debt service on the Loan Agreement. The Loan Agreement Reserve

Arbitrage and Tax Certificate 2
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



Account is required as a condition to enter into the Loan Agreement with the Finance Authority,
the Governmental Unit is of the opinion that the amount deposited fo the Loan Agreement
Reserve Account is reasonably required.

9. No Disposition of Project. The undersigned reasonably expect that no part of the
Project acquired with the Proceeds will be sold or otherwise disposed of, in whole or in part,
during the term of the Loan Agreement.

10.  General Tax Covenant. The Governmental Unit has covenanted in the Loan
Agreement that no use will be made of the Proceeds, or any funds or accounts of the
Governmental Unit which may be deemed to be Gross Proceeds (as defined in Treasury
Regulation Section 1.148(b)) of the Loan Agreement, which use, if it had been reasonably
expected on the date hereof, would have caused the Loan Agreement to be classified as an
“grbitrage bond” within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code. The Governmental Unit has
further obligated itself in the Loan Agreement to comply throughout the term of the Loan
Agreement with the requirements of Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code and
regulations proposed or promulgated with respect thereto.

11.  Private Business Use Limitations. None of the Proceeds will be used by a private
business or any entity other than a governmental unit or secured by payments from or property of
a private business or any entity other than a governmental unit except pursuant to a management
contract which conforms with Revenue Procedure 2017-13 of the United States Treasury. For
purposes of the preceding sentence a governmental unit does not include the United States
Government or any agency or instrumentality thereof.

12.  No Common Plan of Financing. There are no other obligations which are being
issued or sold at substantially the same time as the Loan Agreement pursuant to a common plan
of financing with the Loan Agreement and that will be paid out of the Pledged Revenues or will
have substantially the same claim to be paid out of the Pledged Revenues as the Loan
Agreement.

13.  No Federal Guarantees. The Loan is not federally guaranteed within the meaning
of Section 149(b) of the Code.

: 14.  Information Filing. Loan Counsel for the Finance Authority, on behalf of the
Governmental Unit, will timely file the Form 8038-G with respect to the Loan Agreement
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” with the Internal Revenue Service. The Finance Authority has
verified certain information necessary to complete the Form 8038-G as shown on the Finance
Authority Certificate attached hereto as Exhibit “B”.

15.  Hedge Bonds. The Loan is not a hedge bond as defined in Section 149 of the
Code.

16. No Reimbursement. None of the Proceeds will be used to teimburse the
Governmental Unit for costs paid for the Project more than sixty (60) days prior to the date
hereof. ,

Arbitrage and Tax Certificate 3
Cibola County, Loan No, PPRF-5708



17. No Refunding. Proceeds of the Loan are not being used to refund any other
obligation of the Governmental Unit.

18, Economic Life of Project. The weighted average maturity of 5.152 years of the
Loan Agreement does not exceed 120% of the reasonably expected. economic life of the Project,
which is 7 years. :

19.  Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations. The Loan Agreement is a “qualified tax-
exempt obligation” for purposes of Section 265(b}(3) of the Code. The Governmental Unit
represents that the reasonably anticipated amount of qualified tax-exempt obligations which will
be issued by the Governmental Unit during the current calendar year does not exceed
$10,000,000 and the Governmental Unit will not designate more than $10,000,000 of “qualified
tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code. For purposes of this
Section, “aggregated issuer” means any entity which: (i) issues obligations on behalf of the
Governmental Unit; (if) derives its issuing authority from the Governmental Unit; or (iii) is
controlled directly or indirectly by the Governmental Unit within the meaning of Treasury
Regulation Section 1.150-1(e).]

20.  Rebate Exception. The Governmental Unit is a governmental unit with general
taxing powers, no part of the Loan Agreement is a private activity bond, ninety-five percent
(95%) or more of the proceeds are to be used for local governmental activities of the
Governmental Unit and, the aggregate face amount of all tax-exempt obligations issued by the
Governmental Unit during the current calendar year is not reasonably expected to exceed
$5,000,000. There are no subordinate entities of the Governmental Unit which are authorized to
issue tax-exempt obligations. If the Governmental Unit fails to satisfy all of the provisions of
this paragraph 20 for any reason, as provided in the Loan Agreement and consistent with the
covenants of the Governmental Unit contained therein, any rebate owed to the United States
Treasury will be paid in the amounts and at the times provided in Section 148 of the Code.

21. Record Retention. The Governmental Unit will manage and retain records related
to the Loan as follows:

A, Records will be retained for the life of the Loan, including any refunding
loans related thereto, plus three (3) years, Records may be in the form of documents or
electronic copies of documents, appropriately indexed to the Loan and compliance functions;

B. Basic records relating to the Loan transaction, including transcript
documents executed in connection with the issuance of the Loan (.., the authorizing documents,
Form 8038-G, the tax certificate, and any elections made with respect to the Loan, if applicable),

any amendments, and copies of rebate calculations and records of payments, including Forms
8038-T;

C. Records pertaining to the use of Loan-financed facilities by public and
private sources including copies of management agreements and research agreements;

D. Records pertaining to expenditures of Loan proceeds including
requisitions, appraisal and property purchase contracts, account statements, invoices, payment
vouchers, and the final allocation of proceeds to expenditures;

Arbitrage and Tax Certificate 4
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



E. Records pertaining to all sources of payment or security for the Loan; and

F. Records pertaining to investments including guaranteed investment
contract documents under the Treasury Regulations, records of purchase and sale of other
investments, and records of investment activity sufficient to permit calculation of arbitrage
rebate or demonstration that no rebate is due.

[Signature page follows)

Arbitrage and Tax Certificate 5
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



This certificate is being executed and delivered to establish the reasonable expectations of
the Governmental Unit for purposes of Sections 103 and 141 through 148 of the Code, and the
undersigned officers of the Governmental Unit are the officers of the Governmental Unit charged
with the responsibility of entering into the Loan Agreement, The foregoing is based upon the
reasonable expectations of the undersigned on the date hereof, and to the best of our knowledge,
information and belief, the above expectations are reasonable.

Dated: April 8, 2022

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

By:
Daniel J. Torrez, Chairman
By:
Paul Ludi, Finance Director
By:
Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk
[SEAL]
6172646
Arbitrage and Tax Certificate 6

Cibola County, Loan No, PPRF-5708



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF CIBOLA

The County Commission (the “Governing Body™) of Cibola County, New Mexico, met in
regular session in full conformity with law and the rules and regulations of the Governing Body at
Cibola County Commission Chamber Room, 700 East Roosevelt, Grants, New Mexico being the
meeting place of the Governing Body for the regular meeting held on the 24" day of February,
20722, at the hour of 5:00 p.m. Upon roll call, the following members were found to be present:

Present:

Absent:

Also Present:

Thereupon, there was officially filed with the County Clerk a copy of a proposed ordinance
in final form.



CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
ORDINANCE NO.

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A LLOAN AGREEMENT
AND INTERCEPT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW
MEXICO (THE “GOVERNMENTAL UNIT”} AND THE NEW MEXICO FINANCE
AUTHORITY (THE “FINANCE AUTHORITY”), EVIDENCING A SPECIAL,
LIMITED 'OBLIGATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT TO PAY A
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $1,777,778 TOGETHER WITH INTEREST THEREON,
FOR THE PURPOSE OF PURCHASING AND INSTALLING AN HVAC SYSTEM
INTHE COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING LOCATED IN GRANTS, NEW
MEXICO AND FUNDING A LOAN AGREEMENT RESERVE ACCOUNT;
PROVIDING FOR THE PLEDGE AND PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL AND
INTEREST DUE UNDER THE LOAN AGREEMENT SOLELY FROM ONE-
EIGHTH OF ONE PERCENT OF COUNTY LOCAL OPTION GROSS RECEIPTS
TAX IMPOSED PURSUANT TO SECTION 7-20E-9, NMSA 1978, AND
DISTRIBUTED TO THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT BY THE STATE TAXATION
AND REVENUE DEPARTMENT; PROVIDING FOR THE DISTRIBUTION TO BE
REDIRECTED BY THE STATE TAXATION AND REVENUE DEPARTMENT TO
THE FINANCE AUTHORITY OR ITS ASSIGNS FOR THE PAYMENT OF
PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST DUE ON THE LOAN AGREEMENT PURSUANT
TO AN INTERCEPT AGREEMENT; APPROVING THE FORM AND TERMS OF,
AND OTHER DETAILS CONCERNING THE LOAN AGREEMENT AND
INTERCEPT AGREEMENT; SETTING THE MAXIMUM INTEREST RATE OF
THE LOAN; RATIFYING ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN; REPEALING ALL
ACTION INCONSISTENT WITH THIS ORDINANCE; AND AUTHORIZING THE
TAKING OF OTHER ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE EXECUTION AND
DELIVERY OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT AND INTERCEPT AGREEMENT.,

Capitalized terms used in the following recitals have the same meaning as defined in
Section 1 of this Ordinance unless the context requires otherwise.

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit is a legally and regularly created, established,
organized and existing county under the general laws of the State; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body has determined and hereby determines that the Project
may be financed with amounts borrowed under the Loan Agreement and that it is in the best
interest of the Governmental Unit and its residents that the Loan Agreement and Intercept
Agreement be executed and delivered and that the financing of the acquisition of the Project take
place by executing and delivering the Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement; and

_ WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit may use the Pledged Revenues to finance the Project;
and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body has determined pursuant to the Act that it may lawfully
pledge the Pledged Revenues for the payment of amounts due under the Loan Agreement; and

Authorizing Ordinance 2
Cibola County, Loan No, PPRF-5708



WHEREAS, other than as described in Exhibit “A” to the Loan Agreement, the Pledged
Revenues have not been pledged to secure the payment of any obligation, which is currently
outstanding; and

WIEREAS, the Loan Agreement shall be a special, limited obligation of the
Governmental Unit, payable solely from the Pledged Revenues, and shall not constitute a general
obligation of the Governmental Unit, or a debt or pledge of the full faith and credit of the
Governmental Unit or the State; and

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit desires to provide that distributions of the Pledged
Revenues be redirected to the Finance Authority or its assigns pursuant to an Intercept Agreement
between the Governmental Unit and the Finance Authority (the “Intercept Agreement”) for the
payment of amounts due under the Loan Agreement; and

WHEREAS, other than the Pledged Revenues, no tax revenues collected by the
Governmental Unit shall be pledged to the Loan Agreement; and

WHEREAS, there have been presented to the Governing Body and there presently are on
file with the County Clerk this Ordinance and the forms of the Loan Agreement and Intercept
Agreement, which are incorporated by reference and considered to be a part hereof}, and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body hereby determines that the Project to be financed by the
Loan is to be used for governmental purposes of the Governmental Unit and will not be used for
purposes which would cause the Loan Agreement to be deemed a “private activity bond” as
defined by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body intends by this Ordinance to authorize the execution and
delivery of the Loan Agreement in the amount and for the purposes set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, all required authorizations, consents and approvals in connection with (1) the
use and pledge of the Pledged Revenues to the Finance Authority (or its assigns) for the payment
~ of the amounts due under the Loan Agreement, (ii) the use of the proceeds of the Loan Agreement
to finance the Project, and (iii) the authorization, execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement
and Intercept Agreement which are required to have been obtained by the date of this Ordinance,
have been obtained or are reasonably expected to be obtained.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY QF CIBOLA
COUNTY, NEW MEXICO:

Section 1. Definitions. As used in this Ordinance, the following terms shall, for all
purposes, have the meanings herein specified, unless the context clearly requires otherwise (such
meanings to be equally applicable to both the singular and the plural forms of the terms defined):

“Act” means the general laws of the State, Sections 4-62-1 through 4-62-10, NMSA 1978,
as amended, Sections 7-1-6,15 and 7-20E-9, NMSA 1978, as amended, and enactments of the
Governing Body relating to the Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement, including this
Ordinance.

Authorizing Ordinance 3
Cibola County, Loan No, PPRF-5708



“Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement” means the total principal and interest
payments due and payable pursuant to the Loan Agreement and on all Parity Obligations secured
by a pledge of the Pledged Revenues for any one Fiscal Year,

“Authorized Officers” means the Chairman, Vice Chair, Finance Director and County
Clerk for Borrower:

“Bonds” means public project revolving fund revenue bonds, if any, issued hereafter by
the Finance Authority to fund or reimburse the Loan Agreement.

“Closing Date” means the date of execution, delivery and funding of the Loan Agreement.

“Code” means the ‘Iilternal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable
regulations thereunder. :

“Completion Date” means the date of final payment of the cost of the Project.

“Distributing State Agency” means the department or agency of the State, as described on
the Term Sheet, authorized to distribute the Pledged Revenues on behalf of the Governmental Unit.

“Expenses” means the cost of issuance of the Loan Agreement and the costs of issuance of
the Bonds, if any, and the periodic and regular fees and expenses incurred by the Finance Authority
in administering the Loan Agreement, including legal fees.

“Finance Authority” means the New Mexico Finance Authority.

“Finance Authority Debt Service Account” means the debt service account in the name of
the Governmental Unit established under the Indenture and held by the Finance Authority to pay
principal and interest, if any, on the Loan Agreement as the same become due.

“Fiscal Year” means the period commencing on July 1 in each calendar year and ending
on the last day of June of the next succeeding calendar year, or any other twelve-month period
which any appropriate authority may hereafter establish for the Governmental Unit as its fiscal
year.

“Governing Body” means the County Commission of the Governmental Unit, or any future
successor governing body of the Governmental Unit.

“Governmental Unit” means Cibola County, New Mexico.

“Herein,” “hercby,” “hereunder,” “hereof,” “hereinabove” and “hereafter” refer to this
entire Ordinance and not solely to the particular section or paragraph of this Ordinance in which
such word is used.

“Indenture” means the General Indenture of Trust and Pledge dated as of June 1, 1995, as
amended and supplemented, by and between the Finance Authority and the Trustee, as successor
trustee, or the Subordinated General Indenture of Trust and Pledge dated as of March 1, 2005, as
supplemented, by and between the Finance Authority and the Trustee, as successor trustee, as

Authorizing Ordinance 4
Cibola County, Loan No. PPREF-5708



determined by the Finance Authority pursuant to a Pledge Notification or Supplemental Indenture
(as defined in the Indenture).

“Intercept Agreement” means the Intercept Agreement, dated the Closing Date, between
the Governmental Unit and Finance Authority providing for the direct payment by the Distributing
State Agency to the Finance Authority of Pledged Revenues in amounts sufficient to pay principal
and interest due on the Loan Agreement, and any amendments or supplements to the Intercept
Agreement.

“Loan™ means the funds to be loaned to the Governmental Unit by the Finance Authority
pursuant to the Loan Agreement.

“J oan Agreement” means the Loan Agrecment dated the Closing Date between the
. Finance Authority and the Governmental Unit which provides for the financing of the Project and
fequires payments by or on behalf of the Governmental Unit to the Finance Authority and/or the

Trustee and any amendments or supplements thereto, and including the exhibits attached to the
f.oan Agreement.

“Loan Agreement Principal Amount” means the original principal amount of the Loan
Agreement as shown on the Term Sheet.

"Loan Agreement Reserve Account” means the loan agreement reserve account established
in the name of the Governmental Unit funded from the proceeds of the Loan Agreement and
administered by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture.

"Loan Agreement Reserve Requirement” means, with respect to the Loan, the amount
shown as the Loan Agreement Reserve Account Deposit on Exhibit “A” to the Loan Agreement,
which amount does not exceed the least of: (i) ten percent (10%) of the Loan Agreement Principal
Amount; (ij) one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the average annual principal and interest
requirements under the Loan Agreement; or (iii) the maximum annual principal and interest
requirements under the Loan Agreement.

“NMSA” means the New Mexico Statutes Annotated, 1978, as amended and
supplemented.

“Ordinance” means the Governmental Unit Ordinance No. adopted by the
Governing Body on February 24, 2022 approving the Loan Agreement and the Intercept
Agreement and pledging the Pledged Revenues to the payment of the Loan Agreement Payments
as shown on the Term Sheet.

“Parity Obligations” means the Loan Agreement and any other obligations, now or
hereafter issued or incurred, payable from or secured by a lien or pledge of the Pledged Revenues
and issued with a lien on the Pledged Revenues on parity with the Loan Agreement, including
those obligations described on the Term Sheet. '

“Pledged Revenues” means the one-eighth of one percent (.125%) of County Local Option
Gross Receipts Tax enacted pursuant to Section 7-20E-9, NMSA 1978, as amended, and received

Authorizing Ordinance 5
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



pursuant to the Tax Ordinance and pledged to payment of the Loan Agreement Payments pursuant
to the Ordinance and described on the Term Sheet,

“Program Account” means the account in the name of the Governmental Unit established
pursuant to the Indenture and held by the Trustee for the deposit of the net proceeds of the Loan
Agreement for disbursal to the Governmenta} Unit for payment of the costs of the Project.

“Project” means the project described on the Term Sheet.
“State” means the State of New Mexico.

“Tax Ordinance” means Ordinance No. 88-3 passed and approved by the Governmental
Unit pursuant to the Act on August 4, 1988, which originally imposed what was previously
identifiable as the first one-cighth of one percent (0.125%) increment of the County Local Option
Gross Receipts Tax on the gross receipts of persons engaging in business within the Governmental
Unit, as amended by Ordinance No. 02-03 passed and approved by the Governmental Unit on July
22,2002, Pursvant to laws 2019, Chapter 274, Section 16, the County Local Option Gross Receipts
Tax imposed by Ordinance No. 88-3, as amended by Ordinance No. 02-03 is no longer identifiable
as the first increment, and instead comprises one-eighth of one percent (0.125%) of the maximum
rate of county gross receipts tax that may be imposed under Section 7-20E-9, NMSA 1978, as
amended, of one and seventy-five hundredths percent (1.75%).

“Term Sheet” means Exhibit “A” to the Loan Agreement.

“Trustee” means BOKF, NA, Albuquerque, New Mexico, or any successor trustee
company, national or state banking association or financial institution at the time appointed Trustee
by the Finance Authority.

Section 2. Ratification. All actions heretofore taken (not inconsistent with the
provisions of this Ordinance) by the Governing Body and officers of the Governmental Unit
directed toward the acquisition of the Project and the execution and delivery of the Loan
Agreement and the Intercept Agreement, be, and the same hereby are, ratified, approved and
confirmed. :

Section 3. Authorization of the Project, the Loan Agreement and the Intercept
Agreement. The acquisition of the Project and the method of financing the Project through
execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement are hereby authorized
and ordered. The Project is for the benefit and use of the Governmental Unit.

Section 4. Findings. The Governmental Unit hereby declares that it has considered all
relevant information and data and hereby makes the following findings:

Al The Project is needed to meet the needs of the Governmental Unit and its
residents and the issuance and delivery of the Loan Agreement is necessary and advisable.

B. Morneys available and on hand for the Project from all sources other than
the Loan are not sufficient to defray the cost of acquiring the Project.

Authorizing Ordinance 6
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



- C The Pledged Revenues may lawfully be pledged to secure the payment of
amounts due under the Loan Agreement.

D, It is economically feasible to defray, in whole or in part, the costs of the
Project by the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement,

E. The Project and the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and the
Intercept Agreement pursuant to the Act to provide funds for the financing of the Project are
necessary and in fhe interest of the public health, safety and welfare of the residents of the
Governmental Unit.

F. . The Governmental Unit will acquire the Project, in whole or in part, with
the net proceeds of the Loan.

G. Other than as described in the Term Sheet, the Governmental Unit does not
have any outstanding obligations payable from the Pledged Revenues which it has incurred or will
incur prior to the initial execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and the Intercept
Agreement.

H. The net effective interest rate on the Loan does not exceed twelve percent
(12.0%) per annum, which is the maximum rate permitted by State law.

L Pursuant to Section 7-20E-9, NMSA 1978, as amended, the Governmental
Unit heretofore has adopted the Tax Ordinance, which imposes one-eighth of one percent (0.125%)
of County Local Option Gross Receipts Tax on the gross receipts of persons engaging in business
within the Governmental Unit.

J. Pursuant to Section 7-1-6.13, NMSA 1978, as amended, the Government
unit receives Pledged Revenues from the Distributing State Agency.

Section 5. Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement - Authorization and Detail.

Al Authorization. This Ordinance has been adopted by the affirmative vote of
at least a two thirds (2/3) majority of all of the members of the Governing Body. For the purpose
of protecting the public health, conserving the property, protecting the general welfare and
prosperity of the residents of the Governmental Unit and acquiring the Project, it is hereby
declared necessary that the Governmental Unit, pursuant to the Act, execute and deliver the Loan
Agreement and the Intercept Agreement evidencing a special, limited obligation of the
Governmental Unit to pay a principal amount of $1,777,778 plus interest thereon, and the
execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement are hereby authorized.
The Governmental Unit shall use the proceeds of the Loan to (i) finance the acquisition of the
Project; (ii) fund the Loan Agreement Reserve Account; (iif) make a deposit to the Finance
Authority Debt Service Account, The Project will be owned by the Governmental Unit.

B. Detail. The Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement shall be in
substantially the forms of the Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement presented at the meeting
of the Governing Body at which this Ordinance was adopted. The Loan shall be in an original
aggregate principal amount of $1,777,778, shall be payable in installments of principal due on

Authorizing Ordinance 7
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



May 1 of the years designated in Exhibit “B” to the Loan Agreement and bear interest payable on

May 1 and November 1 of cach year, beginning on May 1, 2022 at the rates designated in Exhibit
“B” to the Loan Agreement.

Section 6. Approval of Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement. The forms of the
Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement, as presented at the meeting of the Governing Body
at which this Ordinance was adopted are hercby approved. Authorized Officers are hereby
individually authorized to execute, acknowledge and deliver the Loan Agreement and the Intercept
Agreement, with such changes, insertions and omissions that are consistent with this Ordinance as
may be approved by such individual Authorized Officers, and the County Clerk is hereby
authorized to affix the seal of the Governmental Unit on the Loan Agreement and the Intercept
Agreement and attest the same. The execution ofthe Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement
by an Authorized Officer shall be conclusive evidence of such approval.

Section 7. Special Limited Obligation. The Loan Agreement shall be secured by the
pledge of the Pledged Revenues as set forth in the Loan Agreement and shall be payable solely
from the Pledged Revenues. The Loan Agreement, together with other obligations of the
Governmental Unit thereunder, shall be a special, limited obligation of the Governmental Unit,
payable solely from the Pledged Revenues as provided in this Ordinance and the Loan Agreement
and shall not constitute a general obligation of the Governmental Unit or the State, and the holders
of the Loan Agreement may not look to any general or other fund of the Governmental Unit for
payment of the obligations thereunder. Nothing contained in this Ordinance or in the Loan
Agreement, or any other instruments, shall be construed as obligating the Governmental Unit
(except with respect to the application of the Pledged Revenues), as incurring a pecuniary liability
or a charge upon the general credit of the Governmental Unit or against its taxing power, nor shall
a breach of any agreement contained in this Ordinance, the Loan Agreement, or any other
instrument impose any pecuniary liability upon the Governmental Unit or any charge upon its
general credit or against its taxing power. The Loan Agreement shall never constitute an
indebtedness of the Governmental Unit within the meaning of any State constitutional provision
or statutory limitation and shall never constitute or give rise to a pecuniary liability of the
Governmental Unit or a charge against its general credit or taxing power. Nothing herein shall
prevent the Governmental Unit from applying other funds of the Governmenta] Unit legally

available therefore to payments required by the Loan Agreement, in its sole and absolute
discretion,

Section 8. Disposition of Proceeds: Completion of Acquisition of the Project.

A, Program Account, Finance Authority Debt Service Account and Loan
Agreement Reserve Account. The Governmental Unit hereby consents to creation of the Finance
Authority Debt Service Account to be held by the Finance Authority and to the Program Account,
and the Loan Agreement Reserve Account to be held by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture,
cach in connection with the Loan. The Governmental Unit hereby approves: (1) the deposit of a
portion of the proceeds of the Loan Agreement in the Program Account and the Finance Authority
Debt Service Account; and (ii) the deposit of funds in the amount of the Loan Agreement Reserve

Requirement in the Loan Agreement Reserve Account, all as set forth in Exhibit “A” to the Loan
Agreement. ‘

Authorizing Ordinance &
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



The proceeds derived from the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement shall
be deposited promptly upon the receipt thereof in the Program Account, Loan Agreement Reserve
Account and Finance Authority Debt Service Account shall be paid to the Finance Authority, all
as provided in the Loan Agreement and the Indenture.

Until the Completion Date, the money in the Program Account shall be used and
paid out solely for the purpose of acquiring the Project in compliance with applicable law and the
provisions of the Loan Agreement and the Indenture.

The Governmental Unit will acquire the Project with all due diligence.

B. Completion of Acquisition of the Project. Upon the Completion Date, the
Governmental Unit shall execute and send to the Finance Authority a certificate stating that
acquisition of and payment for the Project have been completed. As soon as practicable, and, in
any event, not more than sixty (60) days from the Completion Date, any balance remaining in the

Program Account shall be transferred and deposited into the Finance Authority Debt Service
Account, as provided in the Loan Agreement and the Indenture.

C. Finance Authority and Trustee Not Responsible. The Finance Authority
and the Trustee shall in no manner be responsible for the application or disposal by the
Governmental Unit or by its officers of the funds derived from the Loan Agreement or of any other
funds herein designated.

Section 9. Deposit of Pledged Revenues, Distributions_of the Pledged Revenues and
Flow of Funds. .

A. Deposit of Pledged Revenues. Pursuant to the Intercept Agreement,
Pledged Revenues shall be paid directly by the Distributing State Agency to the Finance Authority
for deposit in the Finance Authority Debt Service Account and remittance to the Trustee in an
amount sufficient to pay principal and interest due under the Loan Agreement. [edit for Contingent
Intercept Agreement] '

B. Termination on Deposits to Maturity. No payment shall be made into the
Finance Authority Debt Service Account if the amounts in the Finance Authority Debt Service
Account and Toan Agreement Reserve Account total a sum at least equal to the entire aggregate
amount to become due as to principal, interest on, and any other amounts due under, the Loan
Agreement in which case moneys in such account in an amount at least equal to such principal and
interest tequirements shall be used solely to pay such obligations as the same become due, and
any moneys in excess thereof in such accounts shall be transferred to the Governmental Unit and
used as provided below. -

C. Use of Surplus Revenues. After making all the payments hereinabove
required to be made by this Section and any payments required by outstanding Parity Obligations,
any moneys remaining in the Finance Authority Debt Service Account shall be transferred to the
Governmental Unit on a timely basis and shall be applied to any other lawful purpose, including,
but not limited to, the payment of any Parity Obligations or bonds, or obligations subordinate and

Authorizing Ordinance 9
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRI-5708



junior to the Loan Agreement, or other purposes authorized by the Governmental Unit, the
Constitution and laws of the State, as the Governmental Unit may from time to time determine,

Section 10.  Lien on Pledged Revenues. Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, the Pledged
Revenues are hereby authorized to be pledged to, and are hereby pledged, and the Governmental
Unit grants a security interest therein for, the payment of the principal, interest, and any other
amounts due under the Loan Agreement, subject to the uses hereof permitted by and the priorities
set forth in this Ordinance. The Loan Agreement constitutes an irrevocable and first lien, but not
necessarily an exclusive first lien, on the Pledged Revenues as set forth herein and therein and the
Governmental Unit shall not create a lien on the Pledged Revenues superior to that of the Loan
Agreement.

Section 11.  Authorized Officers.  Authorized Officers are hereby individually
authorized and directed to execute and deliver any and all papers, instruments, opinions, affidavits
and other documents and to do and cause to be done any and all acts and things necessary or proper
for carrying out this Ordinance, the Loan Agreement, the Intercept Agreement and all other
transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. Authorized Officers are hereby individually
authorized to do all acts and things required of them by this Ordinance, the Loan Agreement and
the Intercept Agreement for the full, punctual and complete performance of all the terms, covenants
and agreements contained in this Ordinance, the Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement,
including but not limited to, the execution and delivery of closing documents in connection with
the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and the publication of the summary of this
Ordinance set out in Section 17 of this Ordinance (with such changes, additions and deletions as
may be necessary).

Section 12,  Amendment of Ordinance. Prior to the date of the initial delivery of the
Loan Agreement to the Finance Authority, the provisions of this Ordinance may be supplemented
or amended by ordinance of the Governing Body with respect to any changes which. are not
inconsistent with the substantive provisions of this Ordinance. This Ordinance may be amended
without receipt by the Governmental Unit of any additional consideration, but only with the prior
written consent of the Finance Authority.

Section 13, Ordinance Irrepealable. After the Loan Agreement and Intercept
Agreement have been executed and delivered, this Ordinance shall be and remain irrepealable until
all obligations due under the Loan Agreement shall be fully paid, canceled and dischatged, as
herein provided.

Section 14, Severability Clause. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this
Ordinance shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the invalidity or
unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall not affect any of the
remaining provisions of this Ordinance.

Section 15, Repealer Clause. All bylaws, orders, resolutions, and ordinances, or patts
thereof, inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed to the extent only of such inconsistency. This
repealer shall not be construed to revive any bylaw, order, resolution or ordinance, or part thereof,
heretofore repealed. :

Authorizing Ordinance 10
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



Section 16.  Effective Date. Upon due adoption of this Ordinance, it shall be recorded
in the book of the Governmental Unit kept for that purpose, authenticated by the signatures of the
Chairman and County Clerk of the Governmental Unit, and the title and general summary of the
subject matter contained in this Ordinance (set out in Section 17 below) shall be published in a
newspaper which maintains an office and is of general circulation in the Governmental Unit, or
posted in accordance with law, and said Ordinance shall be in full force and effect thereafter, in
accordance with law.

Section 17.  General Surnmary for Publication. Pursuant to the general laws of the State,
the titie and a general summary of the subject matter contained in this Ordinance shall be published
in substantially the following form:

[Form of Summary of Ordinance for Publication]

Cibola County, New Mexico
Notice of Adoption of Ordinance

Notice is hereby given of the title and of a general summary of the subject matter contained
in Ordinance No. , duly adopted and approved by the Governing Body of Cibola County,
New Mexico, on February 24, 2022. A complete copy of the Ordinance is available for public
inspection during the normal and regular business hours of the County Clerk, 700 East Roosevelt,
Suite 50, Grants, New Mexico.

The title of the Ordinance is:

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
ORDINANCE NO.

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A LOAN AGREEMENT
AND INTERCEPT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW
MEXICO (THE “GOVERNMENTAL UNIT”) AND THE NEW MEXICO FINANCE
AUTHORITY (THE “FINANCE AUTHORITY”), EVIDENCING A SPECIAL,
LIMITED OBLIGATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT TO PAY A
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $1,777,778 TOGETHER WITH INTEREST THEREON,
FOR THE PURPOSE OF PURCHASING AND INSTALLING AN HVAC SYSTEM
INTHE COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING LOCATED IN GRANTS, NEW
MEXICO AND FUNDING A LOAN AGREEMENT RESERVE ACCOUNT;
PROVIDING FOR THE PLEDGE AND PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL AND
INTEREST DUE UNDER THE LOAN AGREEMENT SOLELY FROM ONE-
EIGHTH OF ONE PERCENT OF COUNTY LOCAL OPTION GROSS RECEIPTS
TAX IMPOSED PURSUANT TO SECTION 7-20E-9, NMSA 1978, AND
DISTRIBUTED TO THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT BY THE STATE TAXATION
AND REVENUE DEPARTMENT; PROVIDING FOR THE DISTRIBUTION TO BE
REDIRECTED BY THE STATE TAXATION AND REVENUE DEPARTMENT TO
THE FINANCE AUTHORITY OR ITS ASSIGNS FOR THE PAYMENT OF
PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST DUE ON THE LOAN AGREEMENT PURSUANT
TO AN INTERCEPT AGREEMENT; APPROVING THE FORM AND TERMS OF,

Authorizing Ordinance 11
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



AND OTHER DETAILS CONCERNING THE LOAN AGREEMENT AND
INTERCEPT AGREEMENT; SETTING THE MAXIMUM INTEREST RATE OF
THE LOAN; RATIFYING ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN, REPEALING ALL
ACTION INCONSISTENT WITH THIS ORDINANCE; AND AUTHORIZING THE
TAKING OF OTHER ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE EXECUTION

AND DELIVERY OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT AND INTERCEPT
AGREEMENT,

A general summary of the subject matter of the Ordinance is contained in its tifle. This
‘notice constitutes compliance with Section 6-14-6, NMSA 1978,

[End of Form of Summary for Publication]

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]

Authorizing Ordinance 12
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 24" DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022.

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

By:

Daniel J. Torrez, Chairman

[SEAL]

ATTEST:

By:

Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk

Authorizing Ordinance 13
Cibola County, Loan No. PPREF-5708



then moved adoption of the foregoing Ordinance, duly seconded by

The motion to adopt said Ordinance, upon being put to a vote, was passed and adopted on
the following recorded vote:

Those Voting Aye:

Those Voting Nay:

Those Absent;

( )} members of the Governing Body having voted in favor of said
motion, the Chairman declared said motion carried and said Ordinance adopted, whereupon the

Chairman and the County Clerk signed the Ordinance upon the records of the minutes of the
Governing Body.

Authorizing Ordinance 14
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



After consideration of matters not relating to the Ordinance, the meeting on the motion
duly made, seconded and unanimously carried, was adj ourned.

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

By:

Daniel J. Torrez, Chairman

[SEAL]

ATTEST:

By:
Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk

Authorizing Ordinance 15
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



Authorizing Ordinance
Cibola County, Loan No, PPRF-5708

EXHIBIT “A”
Meeting Agenda
of the February 24, 2022

County Commission Meeting

[SEE ATTACHED]

16



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF CIBOLA

I, Michelle Dominguez, the duly qualified and acting County Clerk of Cibola County, New
Mexico (the “Governmental Unit”), do hereby certify:

1. The foregoing pages are a true, perfect, and complete copy of the record of the
proceedings of the County Commission of Cibola County, New Mexico (the “Governing Body™),
constituting the governing body of the Governmental Unit had and taken at a duly called regular
meeting held at Cibola County Commission Chamber Room, 700 East Roosevelt, Grants, New
Mexico, on February 24, 2022, at the hour of 5:00 p.n., insofar as the same relate to the execution
and delivery of the proposed Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement, a copy of cach of which
is set forth in the official records of the proceedings of the Governing Body kept in my office.
None of the action taken has been rescinded, repealed, or modified.

2. Said proceedings were duly had and taken as therein shown, the meeting therein was
duly held, and the persons therein named were present at said meeting, as therein shown.

3. Notice of said meeting was given in compliance with the permitted methods of giving
notice of regular meetings of the Governing Body as required by the Governmental Unit’s open
meetings standards presently in effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 8 day of April, 2022,

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICQO

By: .
Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk
[SEAL]
6172632
Authorizing Ordinance 17

Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



$1,777,778
CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY
PUBLIC PROJECT REVOLVING FUND LOAN
Loan No. PPRE-5708

STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
yss. DELIVERY, DEPOSIT AND
COUNTY OF CIBOLA ) CROSS-RECEIPT CERTIFICATE

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED by the undersigned, the duly chosen, qualified and acting
Chairman, Finance Director and County Clerk of Cibola County, New Mexico
(the “Governmental Unit”):

1. On the date of this Certificate, the Governmental Unit executed and delivered, or
caused to be executed and delivered, a Loan Agreement between the Governmental Unit and the
New Mexico Finance Authority (the “Finance Authority”), in the aggregate principal amount of
$1,777,778, to the Finance Authority (the “Loan Agreement™), as authorized by Governmental
Unit Ordinance No. (the “Ordinance™) adopted on February 24, 2022 relating to the
execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement. The undersigned
have received $1,777,778 as proceeds from the Loan Agreement, being the full purchase price
therefore.

2. The proceeds of the Loan Agreement will be placed in the funds and accounts
created for the deposit of such moneys under the Geperal Indenture of Trust and Pledge dated as
of Tune 1, 1995, as amended and supplemented, or the Subordinated General Indenture of Trust
and Pledge dated as of March 1, 2005, as supplemented, each by and between the Finance
Authority and BOKF, NA, as Trustee and its successors and assigns, as determined by the
Finance Authority pursuant to a Pledge Notification or Supplemental Indenture, as follows:

Governmental Unit’s

Account in the Program Fund: $1,600,000.00
Deposit to Loan Agreement
Reserve Account: $177,777.80
Deposit to Finance Authority Debt
Service Account: $0.20
Total: $1,777,778.00
3. The proceeds of the Loan Agreement will be available to the Governmental Unit

upon submittal of a Requisition Form to the Finance Authority in the form attached to the Loan
Agreement as Exhibit “C” and will be used as set forth in the Ordinance and the Loan
Agreement.



WITNESS our hands this 8% day of April, 2022.

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO ‘

By:
Daniel I. Torrez, Chairman
By:
Paul Ludi, Finance Director
By:
Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk
[SEAL] '
6172645
Delivery, Deposit and Cross-Receipt Certificate 2

Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



It is hereby certified by the undersigned, a duly qualified and acting official of the New
Mexico Finance Authority, that, the undersigned has, on the date of this Certificate, received
from Cibola County, New Mexico the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement.

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

By:

Marquita D. Russel, Chief Executive Officer

6172645

Delivery, Deposit and Cross-Receipt Certificate 3
Cibola County, Loan No, PPRF-5708



$1,777,778
CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY
PUBLIC PROJECT REVOLVING FUND LOAN
Loan No. PPRF-5708

STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
) ss, GENERAL AND NO LITIGATION
COUNTY OF CIBOLA ) CERTIFICATE
IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED by the undersigned, the duly elected and chosen, Chairman,
County Clerk and Attorney for Cibola County, New Mexico (the “Governmental Unit”) in
Cibola County, and the State of New Mexico (the “State”) (provided, that the Attorney for the
Governmental Unit s certifying only as to Paragraphs 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 16, 17,
18, 20, 21, 22, 24 and 25 heteof):

Capitalized terms used in this Cestificate have the same meaning as defined in
Governmental Unit Ordinance No. adopted on February 24, 2022 (the “Ordinance™)
unless otherwise defined in this Certificate or the context requires otherwise.

1. The Governmental Unit is a political subdivision of the State and is duly
organized and validly existing under and pursvant to the laws of the State, its full name being
“Cibola County, New Mexico.”

2. The Governmental Unit was established in the year 1981, Section 4-3A-1, NMSA
1978, as amended.

3. From at least October 22, 2021 (except as otherwise noted), to and including the
date of this Certificate, the following were and now are the duly chosen, qualified and acting
officers of the Governmental Unit:

Chairman: Daniel J. Torrez
First Vice-Chair; Martha Garcia
Second Vice-Chair: Christine Lowery
Commissioners: Ralph Lucero
Robert Windhorst
Finance Director: Paul Ludi
County Clerk: Michelle Dominguez
Deputy County Clerk: Natalie Grine
Attomey: Adren R. Nance, Esq.
4, The population of the Governmental Unit is not less than seventy-five percent

(75%) English speaking and is less than twenty-five percent (25%) Spanish speaking.



5. There is no reason within our knowledge, after due inquiry with respect thereto,
why the Governmental Unit may not enter into the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement
with the New Mexico Finance Authority (the “Finance Authority”), as authorized by the
Ordinance.

6. The Governmental Unit has duly authorized the execution, delivery and
performance of its obligations under the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement. The
Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement have been duly authorized, executed and delivered
by the Governmental Unit. '

7. The Ordinance has been duly signed and adopted in accordance with all
applicable laws and has not been repealed, rescinded, revoked, modified, amended or
supplemented in any manner except as set forth in the Ordinance. The Ordinance constitutes
valid and sufficient legal authority for the Governmental Unit to carry out and enforce the
provisions of the Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement. No referendum petition has been
filed with respect to the Ordinance under the provisions of the laws, bylaws or regulations of the
Governmental Unit or the State.

8. No event will result from the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement or
the Intercept Agreement that constitutes a default or an event of default under either the Loan
Agreement, the Intercept Agreement or the Ordinance, and no event of default and no default
under the Loan Agreement, the Intercept Agreement or the Ordinance has occurred and is
continuing on the date of this Certificate.

9. The Governmental Unit has duly authorized and approved the consummation by it
of all transactions and has complied with all requirements and satisfied all conditions, which are
required by the Loan Agreement and the [ntercept Agreement to have been authorized, approved,
performed or consummated by the Governmental Unit at or prior to the date of this Certificate.
The Governmental Unit has full legal right, power and authority to carry out and consummate the
transactions contemplated by the Ordinance, the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement.

10. A, All approvals, consents and orders of any governmental authority having
jurisdiction in the matter which would constitute a condition precedent to the enforceability of
the Loan Agreement or the Intercept Agreement or to any of the actions required to be taken by
the Ordinance, the Loan Agreement or the Intercept Agreement on or prior to the date of this
Certificate have been obtained and are in full force and effect; and

B. All approvals, consents and orders of any governmental authority having
jurisdiction in the matter which would constitute a condition precedent to the financing of the
Project have been obtained and are in full force and effect.

11, None of the following does or will conflict with, or constitute a breach by the
Governmental Unit of, or default by the Governmental Unit under any law, court decree or order,
‘governmental regulation, rule or order, resolution, agrecement, indenture, mortgage or other
instrument to which the Governmental Unit is subject or by which it is bound;

A. The Governmental Unit’s adoption of the Ordinance; or

General and No Litigation Certificate 2
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



B. Any action contemplated by or pursuant to the Ordinance, the Loan
Agreement, or the Intercept Agreement.

12.  No material adverse change has occurred, nor has any development occurred
involving a prospective material and adverse change in, or affecting the affairs, business,
financial condition, results of operations, prospects, or properties of the Governmental Unit or
the Pledged Revenues since the date of the Ordinance,

13.  To the best of our knowledge and belief, after due inquiry with respect thereto,
none of the events of default referred to in Article X of the Loan Agreement has occurred.

14.  Subsequent to the adoption of the Ordinance, the Governmental Unit has not
pledged or otherwise encumbered the Pledged Revenues. On the date of this Certificate there are
10 other outstanding obligations with a lien or encumbrance against the Pledged Revenues senior
to or on a parity with the lien of the Loan Agreement.

15.  The Loan Agreement prohibits the Governmental Unit from issuing any bonds or
other obligations with a lien on Pledged Revenues senior to the lien thereon of the Loan
Agreement on the Pledged Revenues. The Loan Agreement permits the Governmental Unit to
issue additional bonds or other obligations with a lien on the Pledged Revenues on a parity with
or subordinate to the lien of the Loan Agreement on the Pledged Revenues upon satisfaction of
the conditions set forth in the Loan Agreement. :

16.  There is no threatened action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation against the
Governmental Unit, at law or in equity, by or before any court, public board or body, nor to the
Governmental Unit’s knowledge is there any basis therefor, affecting the existence of the
Governmental Unit or the titles of its officials to their respective offices, or seeking to prohibit,
resirain or enjoin the pledge of revenues or assets of the Governmental Unit pledged or to be
pledged to pay the principal, premium, if any, and interest on the Loan Agreement, or in any way
materially adversely affecting or questioning: (a) the territorial jurisdiction of the Governmental
Unit; (b) the use of the proceeds of the Loan Agreement for the Project and to pay certain costs
of the Finance Authority associated with the administration of its public projects revolving fund
loan program; (c) the validity or enforceability of the Loan Agreement, the Intercept Agreement
or any proceedings of the Governmental Unit taken with respect to the Loan Agreement, the
Intercept Agreement or the Ordinance; (d) the execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement or
the Tntercept Agreement; or (¢) the power of the Governmental Unit to carry out the transactions
contemplated by the Loan Agreement, the Intercept Agreement or the Ordinance.

7. The Governmental Unit has complied with all the covenants and satisfied all the
conditions on its part to be performed or satisfied at or prior to the date hereof, and the
representations and warranties of the Governmental Unit contained in the Loan Agreement and
in the Ordinance are true and correct as of the date hereof.

18.  The Governmental Unit is not in default, and has not been in default within the
ten (10) years immediately preceding the date of this Certificate, in the payment of principal of,
premium, if any, or interest on any bonds, notes or other obligations which it has issued, assumed
or guaranteed as to payment of principal, premium, if any, or interest except that no

General and No Litigation Certificate 3
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



representation is made with respect to industrial revenue bonds or conduit bonds payable solely
from installment sale or lcase payments, loan repayments or other amounts received by the
Governmental Unit from private entities.

19.  To the best of our knowledge and belief, neither the Chairman, Finance Director,
County Clerk, any member of the Governing Body, nor any other officer, employee or ather
agent of the Governmental Unit is interested. (except in the performance of his or her official
rights, privileges, powers and duties), directly or indirectly, in the profits of any contract, or job
for work, or services to be performed and appertaining to the Project.

20.  Regular meetings of the Governing Body have been held in the Cibola County
Commission Chamber, 700 East Roosevelt, Grants, New Mexico, the principal meeting place of
the Governing Body.

21, The Governing Body has no rules of procedure which would invalidate or make
ineffective the Ordinance or other action taken by the Governing Body in connection with the
Loan Agreement. Open Meetings Act Resolution No. , as adopted and approved by
the Governing Body on , establishes notice standards as required by Sections
10-15-1 through 10-15-4, NMSA 1978, Open Meetings Act Resolution No. has not
been amended or repealed. All action of the Governing Body with respect to the Loan
Agreement, the Intercept Agreement and the Ordinance was taken at meetings held in
compliance with Open Meetings Act Resolution No.

22.  The Cibola Citizen is a legal newspaper which maintains an office and is of
general circulation in the Governmenta] Unit,

23.  The Pledged Revenucs from the Fiscal Year immediately preceding the Closing
Date were equal to or exceeded, and, on an ongoing basis during each year of the Loan
Agreement Term, are reasonably expected to equal or exceed one hundred twenty-five percent
(125%) of the maximum Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement.

24, The Pledged Revenues may lawfully be pledged to secure the payment of
amounts due under the Loan Agreement,

25, The Chairman, Finance Director and County Clerk, on the date of the signing of
the Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement and on the date of this Certificate, are the duly
chosen, qualified and acting officers of the Governmental Unit authorized to execute such
agrecments.

26.  The Governmental Unit understands that Sutin, Thayer & Browne A Professional
Corporation represents the Finance Authority in this Loan and the Governmental Unit has had
the opportunity to consult other counsel in connection with the Loan.

27.  This Certificate is for the benefit of the Finance Authority.

28.  This Certificate may be executed in counterparts.

[Signature page follows]

General and No Litigation Certificate : 4
‘Cibola County, Loan No. PPRE-5708



WITNESS our hands and the seal of the Governmental Unit this 8" day of April, 2022.

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

By:
Daniel J. Torrez, Chairman
By:
Paul Ludi, Finance Director
By:
Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk
[SEAL]
APPROVED:

Paragraphs 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 16, 17, 18, 20, 21, 22, 24 and 25 are
approved and confirmed.

Arden R. Nance, Attorney for
Cibola County, New Mexico

General and No Litigation Certificate 5
Cibola County, Loan No, PPRF-5708
§ .



INTERCEPT AGREEMENT

This INTERCEPT AGREEMENT is made and entered into April & 2022, by and
between the NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY (the “Finance Authority™), a public body
politic and corporate constituting a governmental instrumentality separate and apart from the
State of New Mexico (the “State™) under the laws of the State and CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW
MEXICO, a political subdivision duly organized and existing under the laws of the State
{the “Governmental Unit”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Sections 6-21-1 through 6-21-31, NMSA 1978, as amended, authorized the
creation of the Finance Authority within the State to assist in financing the cost of public projects
of participating qualified entities, including the Governmental Unit, such as the acquisition and
installation of an HVAC system in the Governmental Unit’s administration building for use by
the Governmental Unit; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Sections 6-21-1 through 6-21-31, NMSA 1978, as amended, and
Sections 4-62-1 through 4-62-10 for county, NMSA 1978, as amended {collectively, the “Act”),
the Finance Authority and the Governmental Unit are authorized to enter into agreements to
facilitate the financing of the Project as described in the Loan Agreement by and between the
Finance Authority and the Governmental Unit of even date herewith (the “Loan Agreement”);
and

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit desires to acquire the Project and such acquisition is
permitted under the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Authority has established its Loan Program (the “Program”)
funded by its public project revolving fund (as defined in the Act) for the financing of
infrastructure and equipment projects upon the execution of the Loan Agreement and the
assignment of loan agreements to a trustee (the “Trustee”); and

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit desires to borrow $1,777,778 from the Program for
the purpose of financing the acquisition of the Project, which Loan is to be governed by this
Intercept Agreement and by the Loan Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Act confers upon the Finance Authority the authority to loan funds to
the Governmental Unit to finance the Project, and Section 7-1-6.15, NMSA 1978, as amended,
authorizes the Governmental Unit to direct that its distribution of County Local Option Gross
Receipt Tax (the “Pledged Revenues”) from the State Taxation and Revenue Department
(the “Distributing State Agency”) be paid to the Finance Authority or its assignee, to secure
payments under the Loan Agreement;

Intercept Agreement 1
Cibola County, Loan No, PPRF-5708



NOwW THEREFORE, the parties hereto agree:

Section 1. Authorization to the Finance Authority, The Governmental Unit hereby
recognizes that the Finance Authority has made a Loan to the Governmental Unit in the amount
of $1,777,778 to finance the acquisition of the Project. Pursuant to the Loan Agreement and this

Distributing  State Agency to the Finance Authority or its designee, on behalf of the
Governmental Unit, from scheduled distributions of the Pledged Revenues in accordance with
the Intercept Schedule attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (the “Intercept Schedule™),

This Tntercept Agreement shall be deemed a written certification, authorization and
by the Governmental Unit to the Distributing State Agency to pay to the Finance
Authority, on behalf of the Governmental Unit, sums shown on the Intercept Schedule from
distributions of the Pledged Revenues pursuant to Section 7-1-6.15, NMSA 1978, as amended, to
insure compliance with the Loan Agreement and repayment of the Loan. Upon written notice to
the Distributing State Agency from the Finance Authority, the amount of the Pledged Revenues
to be paid to the Finance Authority shall be increased from the amounts shown on Exhibit “A” to
defray any delinquencies in the Finance Authority Debt Service Account or Loan Agreement
Reserve Account, if any, established for the Governmental Unit. Any accumulation of the
Pledged Revenues in an amount in excess of the next Loan Agreement Payment and the Loan
Agreement Reserve Requirement, if any, shall be redirected by the Finance Authority to the
benefit of the Governmental Unit on a timely basis ag provided in Section 5.2 of the Loan
Agreement, '

To the extent applicable and to the extent that the Pledged Revenues are insufficient to
meet the debt service requirements due on the Loan and other Parity Obligations (as defined in

Intercept Agreement shall be applied to allow partial payment on a pro-rata basis of the debt
service due and owing on the oan Agreement and other Parity Obligations.

Section 2. Term; Amendments. This Intercept Agreement will remain in full force
and effect from its effective date ag herein provided until such time ag the Loan made pursuant to
the Loan Agreement and this Intercept Agreement have been paid in full. Nothing herein shall

Section 3. Authorization. The execution and performance of the terms of this
Intercept Agreement have been authorized and approved by Ordinance No. , passed

Intercept Agreement 2
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-3708



and adopted on February 24, 2022 by the Governing Body of the Governmental Unit, which
Ordinance is in full force and effect on the date hereof.

Section 4. Severability of Invalid Provisions. If any one or more of the provisions
herein contained shall be held contrary to any express provisions of law or contrary to the policy
of express law, though not expressly prohibited, or against public policy, or shall for any reason
whatsoever be held invalid, then such provision shall be null and void and shall be deemed
separable from the remaining provisions and shall in no way affect the validity of any of the
other provisions hereof.

Section 5..  Counterparts. This Intercept Agrecment may be simultaneously executed
in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but
one and the same instrument.

Section 0. Further Authorization. The Governmental Unit agrees that the Finance
Authority shall do all things necessary or convenient to the implementation of the Program to
facilitate the Loan to the Governmental Unit.

Section 7. Effective Date. - This Intercept Agreement shall take effect on the Closing
Date of the Loan.

Section 8. Initial Intercept Date. As indicated on the Intercept Schedule, the first
distribution of the Pledged Revenues that is to be intercepted by the Distributing State Agency
under the terms of this Intercept Agreement consist of Pledged Revenues due to the
Governmental Unit distributed in May 2022.

Section 9. Final Intercept Date. Once the Loan has been fully paid off and satisfied,
Finance Authority shall provide written notice to the Distributing State Agency to discontinue
the interception of the Governmental Unit’s Pledged Revenues.

[Remainder of page left intentionally blank]

[Signature page follows]

Intercept Agreement 3
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the

parties to this Intercept Agreement have caused their
names to be affixed hereto by the proper

officers thereof as of the date first above written.

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

By:

Marquita D. Russel, Chjef Executive Officer
CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

By:

Daniel J. Torrez, Chairman
[SEAL]

ATTEST: -

By:

Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk

Intercept Agreement 4
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



EXHIBIT “A”

INTERCEPT SCHEDULE
CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

Payment Dates

Pledged Revenues

Amount

Monthly, beginning:
May 1, 2022

June 1, 2022 through

The distribution of one-eighth of one
percent (0.125%) of County Local
Option Gross Receipts Tax Revenues
distributed to the Governmental Unit
pursuant to Section 7-20E-9, NMSA

$21,005.61

$17,504.81

May 1, 2031 1978, and the Tax Ordinance, which
distributions are made monthly by the
State  Taxation and  Revenue
Department

Intercept Agreement 5

Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708




7 $i,777,7’78
LOAN AGREEMENT
dated
April 8, 2022
by and between the
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY
and

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

Certain interests of the New Mexico Finance Authority under this Loan

Agreement may be assigned to BOKF, NA, as trustee under an Indenture, as
defined in Article I of this Loan Agreement.



LOAN AGREEMENT

THIS LOAN AGREEMENT dated April 8, 2022 is entered into by and between the
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY (the “Finance Authority”), and CIBOLA COUNTY,
NEW MEXICO (the “Governmental Unit”), a political subdivision duly organized and existing
under the laws of the State of New Mexico (the “State™).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Finance Authority is a public body politic and corporate constituting a
governmental instrumentality, Separate and apart from the State, duly organized and created
under and pursuant to the laws of the State, particularly Section 6-21-1 et seq., NMSA 1978, as
amended (the “Finance Authority Act”); and

to permit qualified entities, such as the Governmental Unit, to enter into agreements with the
Finance Authority to facilitate financing of public projects; and

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit is authorized by the Act {o impose by ordinance a
County FLoca] Option Gross Receipts Tax pursuant to Section 7-20E-9, NMSA 1978, as
amended; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Governmental Unit has by the Tax Ordinance
imposed one-eighth of one percent (.125%) of County Local Option Gross Receipts Tax on the

WHEREAS, the Act authotizes the Governments] Unit to use the Pledged Revenues to
finance the Project and fo enter into this Loan Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit is g disadvantaged qualificd eittity within the
meaning of Section 8(B)(4)(b) of the Finance Authority’s Amended Rules and Regulations
Governing the Public Project Revolving Fund Program; and



WHEREAS, the Finance Authority has determined that the Project is important to the
overall capital needs of the residents of the State and that the Project will directly enhance the
health and safety of the residents of the Governmental Unit; and

WHEREAS, the Governmental Unit has entered info the Intercept Agreement by and
between the Finance Authority and the Governmental Unit whereby the Pledged Revenues due
to the Governmental Unit from the Distributing State Agency are intercepted by the Finance
Authority, or the Trustee, as its assignee, to make payments due under this Loan Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Finance Authority may assign and transfer this Loan Agreement to the
Trustee pursuant to the Indenture; and

WHEREAS, except as described on the Term Sheet, the Pledged Revenues have not been
pledged or hypothecated in any manner or for any purpose at the time of the execution and
delivery of this Loan Agreement, and the Governmental Unit desires to pledge the Pledged
Revenues toward the payment of this Loan Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the obligation of the Governmental Unit hereunder shall constitute a special,
limited obligation of the Governmental Unit, limited to the Pledged Revenues, and shall not
constitute a general obligation or other indebtedness of the Governmental Unit or a charge
against the general credit or ad valorem taxing power of the Governmental Unit or the State; and

WHEREAS, the execution, performance and delivery of this Loan Agreement and the
Intercept Agreement have been authorized, approved and directed by all necessary and
appropriate action of the Governing Body pursuant to the Ordinance; and

WHEREAS, the execution and performance of this Loan Agreement and the Intercept
Agreement have been authorized, approved and directed by all necessary and appropriate action
of the Finance Authority.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and the mutual promises
and covenants herein contained, the parties hereto agree:

ARTICLE1
DEFINITIONS

Capitalized terms defined in the foregoing recitals shall have the same meaning when
used in this Loan Agreement unless the context clearly requires otherwise. Cap1tahzed terms not
defined in the recitals and defined in this Article T shall have the same meaning when used in this
Loan Agreement including the foregoing recitals, unless the context clearly requires otherwise.

“Act” means the general laws of the State, including Sections 4-62-1 through 4-62-10,
NMSA 1978, as amended, Sections 7-20E-9 and 7-1-6.15, NMSA 1978, as amended, and
enactments of the Governing Body relating to this Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement,
including the Ordinance.

“Additional Payment Obligations® mean payments in addition to Loan Agreement
Payments required by this Loan Agreement, including, without limitation, payments required to

Loan Agreement 2
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



replenish the Loan Agreement Reserve Account and payments required pursuant to the
provisions of Article IX and Article X hereof, -

“Aggregate Amual Debt Service Requirement” means the total principal, interest, and
premium payments, if any, due and payable pursuant to this Loan Agreement and on all Parity
Obligations secured by a pledge of the Pledged Revenues for any one Fiscal Year.

“Authorized Officers” means, in the case of the Governmental Unit, Chairman, Vice-
Chair, Finance Director and County Clerk, and, in the case of the Finance Authority, the Chait,
Vice-Chair and Secretary of the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer or any other
officer or employee of the Finance Authority designated in writing by an Authorized Officer.

“Blended Interest Rate” means the rate of interest on this Loan Agreement as shown on
the Term Sheet,

“Bond Counsel” means nationally recognized bond counsel experienced in matters of
municipal law, satisfactory to the Trustee and listed in the list of municipal bond attorneys, as
published . semiannually by The Bond Buyer’s Municipal Marketplace, or any successor
publication, acting as loan counsel to the Finance Authority., :

“Bonds” means public project revolving fund revenue bonds, if any, issued hereafter by
the Finance Authority to fund or reimburse this Loan Agreement.

“Closing Date” means the date.of execution, delivery and funding of this Loan
Agreement as shown on the Term Sheet.

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the applicable
regulations thereunder. :

“Distributing State Agency” means the department or agency of the State, as described on
the Term Sheet, authorized to distribute the Pledged Revenues to or on behalf of the
Governmental Unit,

“Event of Default” means one or more events of default as defined in Section 10.1 of this
Loan Agreement.

“Expenses” means the costs of issuance of this Loan Agreement and the Bonds, if any,
and periodic and regular fees and expenses incurred by the Finance Authority in administering
this Loan Agreement, including legal fees.

“Finance Authority Debt Service Account” means the debt service account established in
the name of the Governmental Unit within the Debt Service Fund, as defined in the Indenture,
held and administered by the Finance Authority to pay principal and interest, if any, on this Loan
Agreement as the same become due.

“Fiscal Year” means the period beginning on July 1 in each calendar year and ending on
the last day of June of the next succeeding calendar year, or any other twelve-month period

Loatt Agresment 3
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



which any appropriate authority may hereafter establish for the Governmental Unit as its fiscal
year.

 “Governing Body” means the duly organized County Comumission of the Governmental
Unit, and any successor governing body of the Governmental Unit.

“Indenture” means the General Indenture of Trust and Pledge dated as of JTune 1, 1995, as
amended and supplemented, by and between the Finance Authority and the Trustee, as successor
trustee, or the Subordinated General Indenture of Trust and Pledge dated as of March 1, 2005, as
supplemented, by and between the Finance Authority and the Trustee, as successor trustee, as
determined by the Finance Authority pursuant to a Pledge Notification or Supplemental
Indenture (as defined in the Indenture).

“Independent Accountant” means: (i) an accountant employed by the State and under the
supervision of the State Auditor; or (ii) any certified public accountant or firm of such
accountants duly licensed to practice and practicing as such under the laws of the State,
appointed and paid by the Governmental Unit who: (a) is, in fact, independent and not under the
domination of the Governmental Unit; (b) does not have any substantial interest, direct or
indirect, with the Governmental Unit; and (c) is not connected with the Governmental Unit as an
officer or employee of the Governmental Unit, but who may be regularly retained to make
annual or similar audits of the books or records of the Governmental Unit.

“Intercept Agreement” means the Intercept Agreement dated April 8, 2022, between the
Governmental Unit and the Finance Authority providing for the direct payment by the
Distributing State Agency to the Finance Authority of the Pledged Revenues in amounts
sufficient to pay Loan Agreement Payments, and any amendments or supplements to the
Intercept Agreement.

“Interest Component” means the portion of each Loan Agreement Payment paid as
interest on this Loan Agreecment as shown on Exhibit “B” hereto.

“Ioan” means the funds in the Loan Agreement Principal Amount to be loaned to the
Governmental Unit by the Finance Authority pursuant to this Loan Agreement.

“Loan Agreement” means this loan agreement and any amendments or supplements
hereto, including the exhibits attached to this loan agreement.

“Loan Agreement Balance” means, as of any date of calculation, the Loan Agreement
Principal Amount less the aggregate principal amount paid or prepaid pursuant to the provisions
of this Loan Agreement.

“Loan Agreement Payment” means, collectively, the Principal Component ‘and the
Interest Component, if any, to be paid by the Governmental Unit as payment of this Loan
Agreement as shown on Exhibit “B” hereto.

“Loan Agreement Payment Date” means each date a payment is due on this Loan
Agreement as shown on Exhibit “B” hereto.

Loan Agreement 4
Cibola Couniy, Loan No., PPRIF-3708



“Loan Agreement Principal Amount” means the original principal amount of this Loan
Agreement as shown on the Term Sheet,

“Loan Agreement Reserve Account” means the loan agreement reserve account
established in the name of the Governmental Unit funded from the proceeds of this Loan
Agreement and administered by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture.

“Loan Agreement Reserve Requirement” means, with respect to the Loan, the amount
shown as the Loan Agreement Reserve Account deposit on the Term Sheet which amount does
not exceed the least of: (i) ten percent (10%) of the Loan Agreement Principal Amount; (ii) one
hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the average annual principal and interest requirements
under the Loan Agreement; or (iii) the maximum annual principal and interest requirements
under the Loan Agreement,

“Loan Agreement Term” means the term of this Loan Agreement as provided under
Atticle IIT of this Loan Agreement.

“NMSA” means the New Mexico Statutes Amlotated 1978 compllahon, as amended and
supplemented.

“Ordinance” means the Governmental Unit Ordinance No, adopted by the
Governing Body on February 24, 2022 approving this Loan Agreement and the Intercept
Agreement and pledging the Pledged Revenues to the payment of the Loan Agreement Payments
as shown on the Term Sheet.

“Parity Obligations” means this Loan Agreement, and any other obligations, now
outstanding or hereafter issued or incurred, payable from or secured by a lien or pledge of the
Pledged Revenues and issued with a lien on the Pledged Revenues on a parity with this Loan
Agreement, including any such obligations shown on the T'erm Sheet.

“Permitted Investments” means securities which are at the time legal investments of the
Governmental Unit for the money to be invested, as applicable, including but not limited to the
following, if permitted by law: (1) securities that are issued by the United States government or
by its agencies or instrumentalities and that are either direct obligations of the United States, the
federal home loan mortgage association, the federal national mortgage association, the federal
farm credit bank, federal home loan banks or the student loan marketing association or that are
backed by the full faith and credit of the United States government; (ii) negotiable secutities of
the State; (iii) money market funds which invest solely in obligations described in clanse (i)
above which are rated in the highest rating category by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., or S&P
Global Ratings; and (iv)} the State Treasurer’s short-term investment fund created pursuant to
Section 6-10-10.1, NMSA 1978, as amended, and operated, maintained and invested by the
office of the State Treasurer.

- “Pledged Revenues” means revenues of the Governmental received pursuant to the Tax
Ordinance and pledged to payment of the Loan Agreement Payments pursuant to the Ordinance
and described on the Term Sheet.

Loan Agreement 5
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRY-5708



“Principa,l‘ Component” means the portion of each Loan Agreement Payment paid as
principal on this Loan Agreement as shown on Exhibit “B” hereto.

“Program Account” means the account in the name of the Governmental Unit established
pursuant to the Indenture and held by the Trustee for the deposit of the net proceeds of this Loan
- Agreement for disbursal to the Governmental Unit for payment of the costs of the Project.

“Project” means the project(s) described on the Term Sheet.

“Tax Ordinance” means Ordinance No. 88-3 passed and approved by the Governmental
Unit pursuant to the Act on August 4, 1988, which originally imposed what was previously
identifiable as the first one-eighth of one percent (0.125%) increment of the County Local
Option Gross Receipts Tax on the gross receipts of persons engaging in business within the
Governmental Unit, as amended by Ordinance No. 02-03 passed and approved by the
Governmental Unit on July 22, 2002. Pursuant to laws 2019, Chapter 274, Section 16, the
County Local Option Gross Receipts Tax imposed by Ordinance No. 88-3, as amended by
Ordinance No. 02-03 is no longer identifiable as the first increment, and instead comprises one-
eighth of one percent (0.125%) of the maximum rate of county gross receipts tax that may be
imposed under Section 7-20E-9, NMSA 1978, as amended, of one and seventy-five hundredths
percent (1.75%).

“Term Sheet” means Exhibit “A” attached hereto.

“Trustee” means BOKF, NA, Albuquerque, New Mexico, or any successor trust
company, national or state banking association or financial institution at the time appointed the
Trustee by the Finance Authority.

“Unassigned Rights” means the rights of the Finance Authority to receive payment of the
administrative expenses, reports and indemnity against claims pursuant to the provisions of this
Loan Agreement which are withheld in the granting clauses of the Indenture from the pledge,
assignment and transfer of this Loan Agreement to the Trustee.

ARTICLE 11
REPRESENTATIONS, COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES

Section 2.1  Representations, Covenants and Warranties of the Governmental Unit.
The Governmental Unit represents, covenants and warrants:

(a)  Binding Nature of Covenants. All covenants, stipulations, obligations and
agreements of the Governmental Unit contained in this Loan Agreement shall be deemed to be
the covenants, stipulations, obligations and agreements of the Governmental Unit to the full
extent authorized or permitted by law, and such covenants, stipulations, obligations and
agreements shall be binding upon the Governmental Unit and-its successors and upon any board
or body to which any powers or duties affecting such covenants, stipulations, obligations and
agreements shall be transferred by or in accordance with law. Except as otherwise provided in
this Loan Agreement, all rights, powers and privileges conferred and duties and liabilities
imposed upon the Governmental Unit by the provisions of this Loan Agreement and the
Ordinance shall be exercised or performed by the Governmental Unit or by such members,

Loan Agresment 6
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



officers, or officials of the Governmental Unit as may be required by law to exercise such
powers and to perform such duties.

(b)  Personal Liability. No covenant, stipulation, obligation or agreement
contained in this Loan Agreement shall be deemed to be a covenant, stipulation, obligation or
agreement of any officer, agent or employee of the Governmental Unit or member of the
Governing Body in his or her individual capacity, and neither the members of the Governing
Body nor any officer, agent or employee of the Governmental Unit executing this Loan
Agreement shall be liable personally on this Loan Agreement or be subject to any personal
liability or accountability by reason of the execution and delivery thereof.

(¢ Authorization of Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement. The
Governmental Unit is a political subdivision of the State and is duly organized and existing
under the statutes and laws of the State. Pursuant to the Act, as amended and supplemented from
time to time, the Governmental Unit is authorized by the Act to enter into the transactions
contemplated by this Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement and to carty out its
obligations hereunder and thereunder. The Governmental Unit has duly authorized and approved
the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement, the Intercept Agreement, and the other
documents related to the transaction.

(d)  Use of Loan Agreement Proceeds. The Governmental Unit shall proceed
without delay in applying the proceeds of this Loan Agreement (less the deposits to the Loan
Agreement Reserve Account, if any, and the Finance Authority Debt Service Account) to the
acquisition of the Project.

(e) Payment of Loan Agreement. The Governmental Unit shall promptly pay
Loan Agreement Payments, as specified in Exhibit “B” hereto, according to the true inteat and
meaning of this Loan Agreement. Loan Agreement Payments are payable solely from the
Pledged Revenues or from the proceeds of refunding bonds or other refunding obligations which
the Governmental Unit may hereafter issue in its sole discretion and which are payable from the
Pledged Revenues; and nothing in this Loan Agreement shall be construed as obligating the
Governmental Unit to pay Loan Agreement Payments from any general or other fund of the
Governmental Unit other than such special funds. Nothing contained in this Loan Agreement,
however, shall be construed as prohibiting the Governmental Unit in its sole and absolute
discretion, from making such payments from any moneys which may be lawfully used, and
which are legally available, for that purpose.

9] Acquisition and Completion of Project. The Project will consist of
acquiring and completing the purchase and installation of an HVAC system in the Governmental
Unit’s administration building for use by the Governmental Unit, The Project will be acquired
and completed so as to comply with all applicable ordinances, resolutions and regulations, if any,
and any and all applicable laws relating to the acquisition and completion of the Project and to
the use of the Pledged Revenues. The Project complies with Section 7-1-6.15, NMSA, as
amended.

(&)  Necessity of Project. The acquisition of the Project under the terms and
conditions provided for in this Loan Agreement is necessary, convenient and in furtherance of

Loan Agreement 7
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



the governmental purposes of the Governmental Unit and is in the best interests of the
Governmental Unit and its residents.

(t)  Legal, Valid and Binding Special Obligation. The Governmental Unit has
taken all required action necessary to authorize the execution and delivery of this Loan
Agreement and the Intercept Agreement, and this Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement
constitute legal, valid and binding special obligations of the Governmental Unit enforceable in
accordance with their terms.

) Loan Agreement Term. The weighted average maturity of 5.152 years of
the Loan Agreement does not exceed 120% of the reasonably expected life of the Project which
is seven (7) years.

() Use of Project. During the Loan Agreement Term, the Project will at all
times be used for the purpose of benefiting the Governmental Unit as a whole.

(k)  No Private Activity, The Governmental Unit is a “governmental unit”
within the meaning of Sections 103 and 141(b)(6) of the Code. In addition, no amounts
disbursed from the Program Account and used to finance the Project shall be used in the trade or

business of a person who is not a “governmental unit” within the meaning of Sections 103 and
141(b){(6) of the Code.

( No Bxcess Loan Agreement Proceeds. The amount loaned to the
Governmental Unit under this L.oan Agreement as set forth on the Term Sheet does not exceed
the sum of: (i) the cost of the Project; (i1} the Loan Agreement Reserve Requirement; and (iii) an
amount necessary to pay the costs related to issuance of the Bonds, if any.

(m) No Breach or Default Caused by Loan Agreement or Intercept Agreement.
Neither the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement, nor the
fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and conditions in this Loan Agreement and the
Intercept Agreement, not the consummation of the transactions contemplated herein and therein,
conflicts with or results in a breach of terms, conditions or provisions of any restriction or any
agreement or instrument to which the Governmental Unit is a party or by which the
Governmental Unit is bound or any laws, ordinances, governmental rules or regulations or court
or other governmental orders to whicl the Govemmental Unit or its properties are subject, or
constitutes a default under any of the foregoing.

()  lirevocable Enactments. While this Loan Agreement remains outstanding
and unpaid, any ordinance, resolution or other enactment of the Governing Body applying the
Pledged Revenues for the payment of this Loan Agreement, including the Tax Ordinance and the
Ordinance, shall be irrevocable until this Loan Agreement has been paid in full as to both
principal and interest, and shall not be subject to amendment or modification in any manner
which would in any way jeopardize the timely payment of Loan Agreement Payments.

(0)  Outstanding Debt. Except for the Parity Obligations, if any, described on
the Term Sheet, there are currently no outstanding bonds, notes or other obligations of the
Governmental Unit which are payable from and secured by a parity lien on the Pledged
Revenues. No additional indebtedness, bonds or notes of the Governmental Unit payable on a

Loan Agreement 8
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRE-5708



priority ahead of the indebtedness herein authorized out of the Pledged Revenues shall be created
or incurred while this Loan Agreement remains outstanding. Prior to entering into additional
indebtedness to be secured by a parity lien on the Pledged Revenues, the Governmental Unit
shall comply with the terms of Section 5.5 hereof and shall seek the written consent of the
Finance Authority, such consent shall not be untreasonably withheld. During the term of this
Loan Agreement, prior to entering into any indebtedness secured by a subordinate lien on the
Pledged Revenues or a lien on any revenues of the Governmental Unit other than the Pledged
Revenues, the Governmental Unit shall notify the Finance Authority in writing of such
indebtedness,

Intercept Agreement or to comply with its obligations under this Loan Agreement or the
Intercept Agrecmient. Neither, the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement or the
Intercept Agreement by the Governmental Unit nor compliance by the Governmental Unit with
the obligations under such agreements, requires the approval of any regulatory body, or any other
entity, which approval has not been obtained or which is not reasonably expected to be obtained.

(1) Pledged Revenues Not Budgeted. The portion of the Pledged Revenues
necessary to pay the Loan Agreement Payments, as and when due, is not needed or budgeted to
pay current or anticipated operational or other expenses of the Governmental Unit.

(s) Expected Coverage Ratio. The Pledged Revenues (giving credit for any
increase in Pledged Revenues which has received final approval of the Governing Body and
become effective) from the Fiscal Year immediately preceding the Closing Date were equal to or
exceeded, and, on an ongoing basis during each vear of the Loan Agreement Term, are
reasonably expected to equal or exceed, one hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the
maximum Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement,

{t) No Extension of Interest Pavments. The Governmental Unit will not
extend or be a party to the extension of the time for paying any interest on this Loan Agreement,

(u) Governmental Unit’s Existence. The Governmental Unit will maintain its

“corporate identity and existence so long as this Loan Agreement is unpaid, unless another

political subdivision by operation of law succeeds to the liabilities and rights of the

Governmental Unit without adversely affecting to any substantial degree the privileges and rights
of the Finance Authority,

(v) Continuing Disclosure. The Governmental Unit covenants that it shall
provide continuing disclosure to the Finance Authority, as the Finance Authority may require,
that shall include, but not be limited to: annual audits, operational data required to update

Loan Agreement 9
Cibola County, T.oan No. PPRF-5708



information in any disclosure documents used to assign or securitize the Loan Agreement
Payments by issuance of Bonds by the Finance Authority pursuant to the Indenture, and
notification of any event deemed material by the Finance Authority.

(w) Tax Covenants. The Governmental Unit covenants that it shall restrict the
use of the proceeds of this Loan Agreement in such manner and to such extent, if any, as may be
necessary so that this Loan Agreement will not constitute an arbitrage bond under Section 148 of
the Code and that it shall pay any applicable rebate to the Internal Revenue Service. Authorized
Officers are hereby authorized and directed to execute an Arbitrage and Tax Certificate as may
be required by the Finance Authority and such additional certificates as shall be necessary to
establish that this Loan Agreement is not an “arbitrage bond” within the meaning of Section 148
of the Code and the Treasury Regulations promulgated or proposed with respect thereto,
including Treasury Regulation Sections 1.148-1 through 1.148-11, 1.149 and 1.150 as the same
currently exist, or may from time to time hereafter be amended, supplemented or revised, The
Governmental Unit covenants to comply with the provisions. of any such Arbitrage and Tax
Certificate and the provisions thereof will be incorporated herein by reference to the same extent
as if set forth herein. The Governmental Unit covenants that no use will be made of the proceeds
of this Loan Agreement, or any funds or accounts of the Governmental Unit which may be
deemed to be Gross Proceeds (as defined in Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1(b)) of this
Loan Agreement, which use, if it had been reasonably expected on the Closing Date, would have
caused this Loan Agreement to be classified as an “arbitrage bond” within the meaning of
Section 148 of the Code. Pursuant to this covenant, the Governmental Unit obligates itself to
comply throughout the Loan Agreement Term with the requirements of Sections 103 and 141
through 150 of the Code and the regulations proposed or promulgated with respect thereto. The
Governmental Unit further represents and covenants that no bonds or other evidence of
indebtedness of the Governmental Unit payable from substantially the same source as this Loan
Agreement have been or will be issued, sold or delivered within fifteen (15) days prior to or
subsequent to the Closing Date. The Governmental Unit hereby further represents and covenants
to comply with Section 7.6 hereof, which designates this Loan Agreement as a “qualified tax-
exempt obligation” for the purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Code.

(x)  Pledged Revenues Covenants. The Governing Body has duly adopted the
Tax Ordinance imposing the one-eighth of one percent (0.125%} of County Local Option Gross
Receipts Tax, which constitutes the Pledged Revenues. The Tax Ordinance has not been
repealed or superseded and is in full force and effect.

Section 2.2  Representations, Covenants and Warranties of the Finance Authority. The
Finance Authority represents, covenants and warrants for the benefit of the Governmental Unit
as follows:

(a) Authorization of Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement. The Finance
Authority is a public body politic and corporate constituting a governmental instrumentality,
separate and apart from the State, duly organized, existing and in good standing under the laws
of the State, has all necessary power and authority to enter into and perform and observe the
covenants and agreements on its part contained in this Loan Agreement and the Intercept
Agreement and, by proper action, has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Loan
Agreement and the Tntercept Agreement based upon the Finance Authority’s findings that:

Loan Agreement 10
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRE-5708



(i} The Governmental Unit is a disadvantaged qualified entity in that
its median household income is $39,413, which is less than eighty percent (80%) of the State
median household income of $49,751.

(i)  The Project is important to the overall capital needs of the State
and directly enhances the health and safety of the residents of the Governmental Unit.

(b)  Assignment of Rights. The Finance Authority may not pledge or assign
the Pledged Revenues, the Loan Agreement Payments or any of its other rights under this Loan
Agreement and the Intercept Agreement except to the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture.

(c)  No Breach or Default Caused by Loan Agreement or Intercept Agreement.
Neither the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement or the Intercept Agreement, nor the
fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and conditions of this Loan Agreement or the
Intercept Agreement, nor the consummation of the transactions contemplated in this Loan
Agreement or the Intercept Agreement, conflicts with or results in a breach of the terms,
conditions and provisions of any restriction or any agreement or instrument to which the Finance
Authority is a party or by which the Finance Authority is bound or constitutes a default under
any of the foregoing and will not conflict with or constitute a violation of any constifutional or
statutory provision or order, rule, regulation, decree or resolution of any court, government or
governmental authority having jurisdiction over the Finance Authority or its property, and which
conflict or violation will have a material adverse effect on the Finance Authority or the financing
of the Project.

(d)  No Litigation. To the knowledge of the Finance Authority, there is no
litigation or proceeding pending or threatened against the Finance Authority or any other person
affecting the right of the Finance Authority to exccute or deliver this Loan Agreement or the
Intercept Agreement, or to comply with its obligations under this Loan Agreement or the
Intercept Agreement. Neither, the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement or the
Intercept Agreement by the Finance Authority, nor compliance by the Finance Authority with its
obligations under this T.oan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement, requires the approval of
any regulatory body, or any other entity, which approval has not been obtained.

(¢)  Legal, Valid and Binding Obligations. This Loan Agreement and the
Intercept Agreement constitute the legal, valid and binding obligations of the Finance Authority
enforceable in accordance with their terms.

(f) Tax-Exempt Reimbursement of Amount Loaned. The Finance Authority
intends to reimburse the public project revolving fund (as defined in the Finance Authority Act)
for the amount of the Loan from the proceeds of tax-exempt bonds which the Finance Authority
expects to issue within eighteen (18) months of the Closing Date.

Loan Agreement 11
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



ARTICLE III
LOAN AGREEMENT TERM

~ The Loan Agreement Term shall commence on the Closing Date and shall not terminate
until this Loan Agreement has been paid in full or provision for the payment of this Loan
Agreement has been made pursuant to Article VIIT hereof,

ARTICLE IV
LOAN; APPLICATION OF MONEYS

On the Closing Date, the Finance Authority shall transfer the Loan Agreement Principal
Amount as follows:

(a) To the Trustee, the amount shown on the Term Sheet as the Program
Account deposit shall be deposited into the Governmental Unit’s Program Account to be
maintained by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture and disbursed pursuant to Section 6.2 hereof
at the direction of the Governmental Unit as needed by the Governmental Unit for the Project;
and

(b)  To the Trustee, the amount shown on the Term Sheet as the Loan
Agreement Reserve Account deposit shall be deposited in the Governmental Unif’s account
maintained in the Loan Agreement Reserve Fund by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture; and

(¢)  To the Finance Authority, the amount shown on the Term Sheet as the
Finance Authority Debt Service Account deposit shall be deposited into the Finance Authority
Debt Service Account to be maintained by the Finance Authority or its assignee and utilized as
provided in Section 5.2 hereof; and

ARTICLEV
LOAN TO THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT,
PAYMENTS BY THE GOVERNMENTAI, UNIT

Section 5.1 Loan to the Governmental Unit. Pavment Obligations Limited to Pledged
Revenues; Pledge of Pledged Revenues. The Finance Authority hereby lends to the
Governmental Unit and the Governmental Unit hereby borrows from the Finance Authority an
amount equal to the Loan Agreement Principal Amount. The Governmental Unit promises to
pay, but solely from the sources pledged herein, the Loan Agreement Payments as herein
provided. The Governmental Unit does hereby convey, assign and pledge unto the Finance
Authority and unto its successors in trust forever all right, title and interest of the Governmental
Unit in and to: (i) the Pledged Revenues to the extent required to pay the Loan Agreement
Payments on parity with the Parity Obligations; (ii) the Finance Authority Debt Service Account,
such account being held by the Finance Authority; (iii) the Program Account and the Loan
Agreement Reserve Account, such accounts being held by the Trustee, and; (iv) all other rights
hereinafter granted, for the securing of the Governmental Unit’s obligations under this Loan
Agreement, including payment of the Loan Agreement Payments and Additional Payment
Obligations; provided, however, that if the Governmental Unit, its successors or assigns, shall
well and truly pay, or cause to be paid, all Loan Agreement Payments at the time and in the
manner contemplated by this Loan Agreement, then, upon such final payment or provision for

Loan Agreement 12
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRE-5708



payment by the Governmental Unit, this Loan Agreement and the rights created thereby shall
terminate; otherwise, this Loan Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. The Loan
Agreement Payments shall, in the aggregate, be sufficient to pay the Principal Component and
Interest Component when due, the payment schedule of which is attached hereto as Exhibit “B.”

The pledge of the Pledged Revenues and the lien thercon shall be effective upon the
Closing Date. The Governmental Unit and the Finance Authority acknowledge and agree that
the Loan Agreement Payments of the Governmental Unit hereunder are limited to the Pledged
Revenues, and that this Loan Agreement shall constitute a special, limited obligation of the
Governmental Unit. No provision of this Loan Agreement shall be construed or interpreted as
creating a general obligation or other indebtedness of the Governmental Unit within the meaning
of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation. No provision of this Loan Agreement shall be
construed to pledge or to create a lien on any class or source of Governmental Unit moneys other
than the Pledged Revenues, nor shall any provision of this Loan Agreement restrict the future
issuance of any bonds or obligations payable from any class or source of Governmental Unit
moneys other than the Pledged Revenues. In addition, to the extent not required for the payment
of obligations of the Governmental Unit hereunder, the Pledged Revenues may be utilized by the
Governmental Unit for any other purposes permitted by law.

Section 5.2 Payment Obligations of Governmental Unit: As provided in the Intercept
Agreement, the Distributing State Agency shall cause to be transferred from the Pledged
Revenues the amounts provided in subsections (a)(i) and (ii) of this Section 5.2 for deposit into
the Finance Authority Debt Service Account and the amount provided in subsection (c) for
deposit into the Loan Agreement Reserve Account. The Finance Authority Debt Service
Account shall be established and held by the Finance Authority and the Loan Agreement Reserve
Account shall be established and held by the Trustee, each on behalf of the Governmental Unit.
All Pledged Revenues received by the Finance Authority pursuant to this Section 5.2 shall be
accounted for and maintained on an ongoing basis by the Finance Authority in the Finance
Authority Debt Service Account and all Loan Agreement Payments shall be remitted to the
Trustee. The amounts on deposit in the Finance Authority Debt Service Account and Loan
Agreement Reserve Account shall be expended and used by the Finance Authority or the
Trustee, as the case may be, only in the manner and order of priority specified below.

(@)  As afirst charge and lien, but not an exclusive first charge and lien, on the
Pledged Revenues (on a parity with the lien on the Pledged Revenues created by any outstanding
Parity Obligations) the Governmental Unit shall remit to the Finance Authority, and the Finance
Authority shall transfer and deposit into the Finance Authority Debt Service Account the
following from the Pledged Revenues received pursuant to the Intercept Agreement from the
Governmental Unit, which the Finance Authority shall transfer to the Trustee in accordance with
the Indenture:

68 Intercst Components. (A) Monthly, beginning on the first day of
the month following the Closing Date, an amount in equal monthly installments which is
necessary to pay the first maturing Interest Component coming due on this Loan Agreement
(which is May 1, 2022), and (B) on the first day of each month thereafter, one-sixth (1/6) of the
amount necessary to pay the next maturing Interest Component on this Loan Agreement as
described in Exhibit “B>;

Loan Agresment 13
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



(ii) Principal Payments. (A) Monthly, beginning on the first day of the
month following the Closing Date, an amount in equal monthly installments which is necessary
to pay the first maturing Principal Component (which is [insert date from Debt Service
Schedule]), and (B) on the first day of each month thereafter, one-twelfth (1/12) of the amount
which is necessary to pay the next maturing Principal Component on this Loan Agreement
during the Loan Agreement Term, as described in Exhibit “B”. :

(b) Each Loan Agreement Payment shall be transferred by the Finance
Authority from the Finance Authority Debt Service Account to the Trustee.

(¢}  As asecond charge and lien on the Pledged Revenues received from the
Governmental Unit after deposits in (a) and (b) have been made, the Trustee shall transfer and
deposit to the Loan Agreement Reserve Account any amounts necessary to replenish the Loan
Agreement Reserve Account to the Loan Agreement Reserve Requirement. Moneys in the Loan
Agreement Reserve Account shall be held and administered by the Trustee and shall be used
only to prevent deficiencies in the payment of the Principal Component and Interest Component
of the Loan Agreement Payments resulting from a failure to deposit into the Finance Authority
Debt Service Account sufficient funds to pay debt service requirements on the Loan; provided,
that the final two Interest Components and the final Principal Component on the Loan shall be
payable from the Loan Agreement Reserve Account. If funds are withdrawn from the Loan
Agreement Reserve Account to pay debt service on the Loan, at the direction of the Finance
Authority or the Trustee, additional Pledged Revenues shall be deposited into the Loan
Agreement Reserve Account in amounts in equal monthly installments sufficient to restore the
amount on deposit therein to the Loan Agreement Reserve Requirement within one (1) year
following such withdrawal; provided, that no additional Pledged Revenues shall be intercepted to
replenish the Loan Agreement Reserve Account following the transfer of the amount in the Loan
Agreement Reserve Account to the Finance Authority Debt Service Account for payment of the
final two Interest Components and the final Principal Component.

Notwithstanding any other provisions hereof, the Finance Authority shall have the
right to waive the requirement of the Loan Agreement Reserve Account and the Loan Agreement
Reserve Requirement, and any moneys in the Loan Agreement Reserve Account may, at the
written direction of the Finance Authority, be applied to the Finance Authority Debt Service
Account, applied to the prepayment of the Loan pursuant to Arficle VI hereof, or released to
the Governmental Unit for the Project or used for any other purposes provided by law. If
amounts in the Loan Agreement Reserve Account are released by the Finance Authority, the
references in this Loan Agreement to the Loan Agreement Reserve Account and the Loan
Agreement Reserve Requirement shall be of no further force and effect.

(d) Subject to the foregoing deposits, the Finance Authority or the Trustee
shall annually use the balance of the Pledged Revenues received, if any, at the request of the
Governmental Unit: (i) to credit against upcoming Loan Agreement Payments; or (it) to
distribute to the Governmental Unit for any purpose permitted by law.

Section 5.3  Manner of Payment. All payments of the Governmental Unit hereunder
shall be paid in lawful money of the United States of America to the Finance Authority at the
address designated in Section 11.1 herein, for remittance to the Trustee. The obligation of the

Loan Agreement 14
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5703



Governmental Unit to male payments hereunder, from and to the extent of the available Pledged
Revenues, shall be absolute -and unconditional in all events, except as expressly provided
hereunder, and payment hereunder shall not be abated through accident or unforeseen
circumstances, Notwithstanding any dispute between the. Governmental Unit, the Finance
Authority, the Trustee, any vendor or any other person, the Governmental Unit shall make all
deposits hereunder, from and to the extent of the available Pledged Revenues, when due and
shall not withhold any deposit hereunder pending final resolution of such dispute, nor shall the
Governmental Unit assert any ri ght of set-off or counterclaim against its obligation to make such
deposits required hercunder.

Section 5.4 Disposition of Payments by_the Trustee. The Trustee shall deposit all

moneys received from the Finance Authority under this Loan Agreement in accordance with the
Indenture,

, Section 5.5  Additional Parity Obligations. No provision of this Loan Agreement shall
be construed in such a manner as to prevent the issuance by the Governmental Unit of additional
Parity Obligations payable from the Pledged Revenues, nor to prevent the issuance of bonds or
other obligations refunding all or a part of this Loan Agreement; provided, however, that before
any such additional Parity Obligations are actually issued (excluding refunding bonds or
refunding obligations which refund Parity Obligations but including parity refunding bonds and
obligations which refund subordinate obligations as provided in Section 5.6 hereof), the

Governmental Unit shall obtain the written consent of the Finance Authority and it must be -
determined that: :

- (a) The Governmental Unit is then current in all of the accumulations required
to be made into the Finance Authority Debt Service Account and the Loan Agreement Reserve
Account as provided herein,

(b)  No default shall exist in connection with any of the covenants or
requirements of the Ordinance or this Loan Agreement,

{c) The Pledged Revenues received by or credited to the Governmental Unit
for the Fiscal Year or for any twelve (12) consecutive months out of the twenty-four (24) months
preceding the date of the issuance of such additional Parity Obligations (the “Historic Test
Period™) shall have been sufficient to bay an amount representing one hundred twenty-five
percent (125%) of the combined maximum Aggregate Annual Debt Service Requirement coming
due in any subsequent Fiscal Year on the then outstanding Parity Obligations and the Parity
Obligations proposed to be issued (excluding the accumulation of any reserves therefor).

(d) A written certification or opinion by the Governmental Unit’s Treasurer or
chief financial officer or by an Independent Accountant that the Pledged Revenues for the
Historic Test Period are sufficient to pay said amounts, shall be conclusively presumed to be
accurate in determining the tight of the Governmental Unit to authorize, issue, sell and deliver
the Parity Obligations proposed to be issued.

(e) With prior written notice to the. Finiance Authority, no provision of this
Loan Agreement shall be construed in such a manner as to prevent the issuance by the

Loan Agreement 15
Cibola County, Loan No, PPRF-5708



Governmental Unit of additional bonds or other obligations payable from the. Pledged Revenues
constituting a lien upon such Pledged Revenues subordinate and junior to the lien of this Loan
Agreement nor to prevent the issuance of bonds or other obligations refunding all or part of this
Loan Agreement as permitted by Section 5.6 hereof.

(f) The Governmental Unit shall not issue bonds or other obligations payable
from the Pledged Revenues having a lien thereon prior and superior to this Loan Agreement.

Section 5.6 Refunding Obligations. The provisions of Section 5.5 hereof are subject to the
following exceptions:

(a) If at any time after the Closing Date, while this Loan Agreement, or any
part thereof, is outstanding, the Governmental Unit shall find it desirable to refund any
outstanding bonds or other outstanding obligations payable from the Pledged Revenues, this
Loan Agreement, such bonds or other obligations, or any part thereof, may be refunded (but the
holders of this Loan Agreement or bonds to be refunded may not be compelled to surrender this
Loan Agreement or their bonds, unless this Loan Agreement, the bonds or other obligations, at
the time of their required surrender for payment, shall then mature, or shall then be callable for
prior redemption at the Governmental Unit’s option), regardless of whether the priority of the
lien for the payment of the refunding obligations on the Pledged Revenues is changed, except as
provided in subparagraph (e) of Section 5.5 hereof and in subparagraphs (b) and (¢) of this
Section. '

(b}  No refunding bonds or other refunding obligations payable from the
Pledged Revenues shall be issued on a parity with this Loan Agreement unless:

(i)  The outstanding obligations so refunded are Parjty Obligations and
the refunding bonds or other refunding obligations do not increase any aggregate annual
principal and interest obligations evidenced by such refunded obligations; or

(iiy  The refunding bonds or other refunding obligations are issued in
compliance with Section 3.5 hereof.

(c) The refunding bonds or other obligations so issued shall enjoy complete
equality of lien on the Pledged Revenues with the portion of this Loan Agreement or any bonds
or other obligations of the same issue which is not refunded, if any; and the holder ot holders of
such refunding bonds or such other refunding obligations shall be subrogated to all of the rights
and privileges enjoyed by the holder or holders of this Loan Agreement or the bonds or other
obligations of the same issue refunded thereby. If only a part of this Loan Agreement or the
outstanding bonds and any other outstanding obligations of any issue or issues payable from the
Pledged Revenues is refunded, then such obligations may not be refunded without the consent of
the holder or holders of the unrefunded portion of such obligations, unless;

(1)  The refunding bonds or other refunding obligations do not increase
any aggregate annual principal and interest obligations evidenced by such refunded obligations
and by the outstanding obligations not refunded on and prior to the last maturity date of such
unrefunded obligations; or

Loan Agreement 16
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



(i)  The refunding bonds or other refunding obligations are issued in
. compliance with Section 5.5 hercof: or :

(i)  The lien on the Pledged Revenues for the payment of the refunding
obligations is subordinate to each such lien for the payment of any obligations not refunded.

(d)  Any refunding bonds or other refunding obligations payable from the
Pledged Revenues shall be issued with such details as the Governmental Unit may provide by
ordinance or resolution, but without any impairment of any contractual obli gations imposed upon
the Governmental Unit by any proceedings authorizing the issuance of any unrefunded portion of
such outstanding obligations of any one or more issues (including, but not necessarily limited to,
this Loan Agreement).

Section 5.7 Investment of Governmental Unit Iunds. Money on deposit in the Finance
Authority Debt Service Account established by the Finance Authority for the Governmental Unit
may be invested by the Finance Authority in Permitted Tnvestments at the discretion of the
Finance Authority. Money on deposit in the Pro gram Account and the Loan Agreement Reserve
Account held by the Trustee and created hereunder may be invested by the Trustee in Permitted
Investments at the written direction of the Finance Authority or at the discretion of the Trustee.
Any earnings on any of said accounts shall be held and administered in each respective account
and utilized in the same manner as the other moneys on deposit therein.

Section 5.8 Governmental Unit May Budget for Payments. The Governmental Unit
may, in its sole discretion, but without obligation and subject to the Constitution of the State,
governing laws, and its budgetary requirements, make available properly budgeted and legally
available funds to defray any insufficiency of Pledged Revenues to pay Loan Agreement
Payments; provided, however, the Governmental Unit has not covenanted and cannot covenant
to make such funds available and has not pledged any of such funds for such purpose.

ARTICLE VI
THE PROJECT

Section 6.1  Agreement to Acquire the Project. The Governmental Unit hereby agrees
that to effectuate the purposes of this Loan Agreement and to effectuate the acquisition and
completion of the Project, it shall make, execute, acknowledge and transmit any contracts,
orders, receipts, writings and instructions with any other persons, firms or corporations and, in
general; do all things which may be requisite or proper to acquire the Project, The Governmental
Unit agrees to acquire and complete the Project through the application of moneys to be
disbursed from the Program Account pursuant to Section 6.2 of this Loan Agreement.

Section 6.2  Disbursements From the Program Account. So long as no Event of
Default shall occur, the Trustee shall dishurse moneys from the Program Account in accordance
with Section 6.2 of the Indenture upon receipt by the Trustee of a requisition substantially in the
form of Exhibit “C” attached hereto signed by an Authorized Officer of the Governmental Unit.

No disbursement shall be made from the Pro gram Account without the approval of Bond
Counsel: (i) to reimburse the Governmental Unit’s own funds for expenditures made prior to the
Closing Date; (ii) to refund or advance refund any tax-exempt obligations issued by or on behalf

Loan Agreement 17
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5703



of the Governmental Unit; (iii) to be used, directly or indirectly, to finance a project used or to be
used in the trade or business of a person who is not a “governmental unit,” within the meaning of
Section 141(b)(6) of the Code; or (iv) to expend funds after the date that is three (3) years after
the execution and delivery of this Loan Agreement.

Section 6.3 Completion of the Project. Upon completion of the Project, an Authorized
Officer of the Governmental Unit shall deliver a certificate to the Finance Authority and the
Trustee substantially in the form of Exhibit “D” attached hereto stating that, to the best of his or
her knowledge, the Project has been completed and accepted by the Governmental Unit, and all
costs have been paid. Notwithstanding the foregoing, such certificate shall state that it is given
without prejudice to any rights against third parties which exist at the date of such certificate or
which may subsequently come into being.

Section 6.4 Application of Loan Agreement Proceeds Subsequent to Completion of
the Project. Upon completion of the Project as signified by delivery of the completion certificate
contemplated in Section 6.3 hereof or in the event that the Finance Authority and the Trustee
shall not have received a certificate of completion as required by Section 6.3 hereof by the date
three (3) years from the Closing Date (or such later date as is approved in writing by Bond
Counsel), the Trustee. shall transfer the amounts remaining in the Program Account (except
amounts necessary for payment of amounts not then due and payable) to the Finance Authority
Debi Service Account and such amounts shall be used for the payment of Loan Agreement
Payments. '

ARTICLE VII
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
AND RULES; OTHER COVENANTS

Section 7.1 Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments. The Finance Authority
and the Governmental Unit agree that they will, from time to time, execute, acknowledge and
deliver, or cause to be executed, acknowledged and delivered, such supplements hereto and such
further instruments as may reasonably be required for correcting any inadequate or incorrect
description of the Project or of the Pledged Revenues, or for otherwise carrying out the intention
hereof.,

Section 7.2 Finance Authority and Governmental Unit Representatives. Whenever
under the provisions hereof the approval of the Finance Authority or the Governmental Unit is
required, or the Governmental Unit or the Finance Authority is required to take some action at
the request of the other, such approval or such request shall be given for the Finance Authority or
for the Governmental Unit by an Authorized Officer of the Finance Authority or the
Governmental Unit, as the case may be, and any party hereto shall be authorized to act on any
such approval or request.

Section 7.3  Requirements of Law. During the Loan Agreement Term, the
Governmental Unit and the Finance Authority shall observe and comply promptly with all
current and future orders of all courts having jurisdiction over the parties hereto, the Project or
the Pledged Revenues.

Loan Agreement 18
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-53708



~Section 7.4 First Lien; Bquality of Liens. The Loan Agreement Payments constitute
an irrevocable first lien (but not necessarily an exclusive first lien) upon the Pledged Revenues.
The - Governmental Unit covenauts that the Loan Agreement Payments and any Parity
Obligations herein authorized to be issued and from time to time outstanding shall be equitably
and ratably secured by a first lien on the Pledged Revenues and shall not be entitled to any
priority one over the other in the application, of the Pledged Revenues regardless of the time or
times of the issuance of such obligations, it being the intention of the Governmental Unit that
there shall be no priority between the Loan Agreement Payments and any such Parity

Obligations regardless of the fact that they may be actually issued and delivered at different
times. '

Section 7.5 Expeditious Completion. The Governmental Unit shall complete the
Project with all practical dispatch.

Section 7.6 Baunk Designation of Loan Agreement.. For purposes of and in accordance
with Section 265 of the Code, the Governmental Unit hereby designates this Loan Agreement as
an issue qualifying for the exception for certain qualified tax-exempt obligations to the rule
denying banks and other financial institutions 100% of the deduction for interest expenses which
is allocable to tax-exempt interest. The Governmental Unit reasonably anticipates that the total
amount of tax exempt obligations (other than obligations described in Section 265(b)(3)(C)(ii) of
the Code) which will be issued by the Governmental Unit and by any aggregated issuer during
the current calendar year will not exceed $10,000,000. For .purposes of this Section 7.6,
“aggregated issuer” means any entity which; (i) issues obligations on behalf of the Governmental
Unit; (ii) derives its issuing authority from the Governmental Unit; or (iii) is controlled directly
or indirectly by the Governmental Unit within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section
1.150-1(¢). The Governmental Unit hereby represents that: (a) it has not created and does not
intend to create and does not expect to benefit from aty entity formed or availed of to avoid the
purposes of Section 265(b)(3)(C) or (D) of the Code; and (b) the total amount of obligations so
designated by the Governmental Unit, and all aggregated issuers for the current calendar year,
does not exceed $10,000,000. '

Section 7.7 Arbitrage Rebate Exemption. The Governmental Unit hereby certifies and
warrants, for the purpose of qualifying for the exception contained in Section 148(£)(4)(D) of the
Code, to the requirement to rebate arbitrage earnings from investments of the proceeds of the
Loan Agreement (the “Rebate Exemption”), that: (i) this Loan Agreement is issued by the
Governmental Unit which has general taxing powers; (i) neither this Loan Agreement nor any
portion thereof is a private activity bond as defined in Section 141 of the Code (“Private Activity
Bond”); (iii) all of the net proceeds of this Loan Agreement are to be used for local government
activities of the Governmental Unit (or of a governmental unit, the jurisdiction of which is
entirely within the jurisdiction of the Governmental Unit); and (iv) neither the Governmental
Unit nor any aggregated issuer has issued or is reasonably expected to issue any Tax-Exempt
Bonds other than (A) Private Activity Bonds (as those terms are used in Section 148(H)(4)(D) of
the Code) and (B) issued to refund (other than to advance refund (as used in the Code)) any bond
to the extent the amount of the refunding bond does not exceed the outstanding amount of the
refunded bond, during the current calendar year, which would in the aggregate amount exceed
$5,000,000. For purposes of this paragraph, “aggregated issuer” means any entity which: (a)
issues obligations on behalf of the Governmental Unit; (b) derives its issuing authority from the

Loan Agreement 19
Cibola County, I.oan No. PPRF-5708



Governmental Unit; or (c) is controlled directly or indirectly by the Governmental Unit within
the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.150-1(¢). The Governmental Unit hercby
represents that it has not created, does not intend to create and does not expect 1o benefit from
any entity formed or availed of to avoid the purposes of Section 148(f)(4)D) of the Code.

Accordingly, with respect to the Loan Agreement, the Governmental Unit will qualify for
the rebate exemption granted under Section 148(£}(4)(D) of the Code and the Governmental Unit
shall be treated as meeting the requirements of paragraphs (2) and (3) of Section 148(f) of the
Code relating to the required rebate of arbitrage earnings to the United States.

The Governmental Unit hereby further represents and covenants that if it is determined
that rebatable arbitrage, as that term is defined under Section 148 of the Code and related
regulations, is required to be paid to the United States, that it will pay such rebatable arbitrage,

ARTICLE VIII
PREPAYMENT OF LOAN AGREEMENT PAYMENTS

Section 8.1  Prepayment.. The Governmental Unit is hereby pranted the option to
prepay any of the Principal Components of this Loan Agreement in whole or in part on any day
following the Closing Date without penalty or prepayment premium. The Governmental Unit
may designate the due dates of any Principal Components being prepaid in the event of a partial
prepayment. Notice of intent to make such prepayment shall be provided to the Finance
Authority and the Trustee by the Governmental Unit no less than forty-five (45) days prior to the
prepayment date. The Trustee shall recalculate the Loan Agreement Payments due under this
Loan Agreement in the event of a partial prepayment in a manner which is consistent with the
manner in which the Bonds, if any, are prepaid.

Section 8.2 Defeasance. Should the Governmental Unit pay or make provision for
payment of the Loan such that all amounts due pursuant to this Loan Agreement shall be deemed
to have been paid and defeased, then the Loan Agreement Payments hereunder shall also be
deemed to have been paid, the Governmenta! Unit’s payment obligations hereunder shall be
terminated, this Loan Agreement and all obligations contained herein shall be discharged and the
pledge hereof released. Such payment shall be deemed made when the Governmental Unit has
deposited with an escrow agent, in trust, (i) moneys sufficient to make such payment, and/or
(ii) noncallable Government Obligations maturing as to principal and interest in such amount and
at such times as will ensure the availability of sufficient moneys to make such payment and when
all necessary and proper expenses of the Finance Authority have been paid or provided for. In
the event the Governmental Unit makes provisions for defeasance of this Loan Agreement, the
Governmental Unit shall cause to be delivered (1)a report of an independent nationally
recognized certified public accountant verifying the sufficiency of the escrow established to pay
this Loan Agreement in full when due or upon an irrevocably designated prepayment date, and
(2) an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that this Loan Agreement is no longer outstanding,
cach of which shall be addressed and delivered to the Finance Authority. Government
Obligations within the meaning of this Section 8.2, unless otherwise approved by the Finance
Authority, shall include only (1) cash, (2) U.S. Treasury Certificates, Notes and Bonds (including
State and Local Government Series — “SLGs™), and (3) obligations the principal of and interest
on which are unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America.

Loan Agreement 20
Cibola County, Loan No, PPRF-5708



ARTICLE IX
INDEMNIFICATION

From and to the extent of the Pledged Revenues, to the extent permitted by law, the

Trustee harmless against and from all claims, by or on behalf of any person, firm, corporation or
other legal entity arising from the acquisition or operation of the Project during the I.oan
Agreement Term, from: (i) any act of negligence or other misconduct of the Governmental Unit
or breach of any covenant or warranty by the Governmental Unit hereunder; and (ii) the

cxcess of the Loan Agreement proceeds and interest on the investment thereof. The
Governmental Unit shall indemnify and save the Finance Authority and the Trustee harmless,
from and to the extent of the available Pledged Revenues, from any such claim arising as
aforesaid from (i) or (ii) above, or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon
and, upon notice from the Finance Authority or the Trustee, shall defend the Finance Authority
~or the Trustee, as applicable, in any such action or proceeding,

ARTICLE X
EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES

Section 10.1  Bvents of Default Defined. Any one of the following shall be an Event of
Default under this Loan Agreement:

(a)  Failure by the Governmenta] Unit to pay any amount required to be paid
under this Loan Agreement on the date og which it is due and payable;

() Failure by the Governmental Unit to observe and perform any covenant,
condition or agreement on its part to be observed or performed under this Loan Agreement, other
than as referred to in paragraph (a), for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice specifying
such failure and requesting that it be remedied is given to the Governmental Unit by the Finance
Authority or the Trustee unless the Finance Authority and the Trustee shall agree in writing to an
extension of such time prior to its expiration; provided, however, if the failure stated in the notice
can be wholly cured within a period of time not materially detrimental to the rights of the
Finance Authority or the Trustee but cannot be cured within the applicable thirty (30) day period,
the Finance Authority and the Trustes will not unreasonably withhold their consent to an

applicable period and diligently pursued until the failure is corrected; and provided, further, that
if by reason of force majeure the Governmental Unit is unable to carry out the agreements on its
part herein contained, the Governmental Uit shall not be deemed in default under this paragraph

(b) during the continuance of such inability (but force majeure shall not excuse any other Event
of Default);

(¢)  Any warranty, representation or other statement by or on behalf of the
Govetnmental Unit contained in this Loan Agreement or in any instrument furnished in
compliance with or in reference to this Loan Agreement is false or misleading in any material

respect;

Loan Agreement 21
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRFE-5708



(d) A petition is filed against the Governmental Unit under any bankruptcy,
moratorium, reorganization, arrangement, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or
liquidation law of any jurisdiction, whether now or hereafter in effect, and is not dismissed
within thirty (30) days after such filing, but the Finance Authority and the Trustee shall have the
right to intervene in the proceedings prior to the expiration of such thirty (30) days to protect
their interests;

(e) The Governmental Unit files a petition in voluntary bankruptcy or seeking
relief under any provision of any bankruptcy, moratorium, - reorganization, arrangement,
insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation law of any jurisdiction, whether now
or hereafter in effect, or consents to the filing of any petition against it under any such law; or

(f) The Governmental Unit admits insolvency or bankruptey or its inability to
pay its debts as they become due or is generally not paying its debts as such debts become due,
or becomes insolvent or bankrupt or makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or a
custodian (including, without limitation, a receiver, liquidator or frustee) of the Governmental
Unit for any of its property is appointed by court order or takes possession thereof and such order
remains in effect or such possession continues for more than thirty (30) days, but the Finance
Authority and the Trustee shall have the right to intervene in the proceedings prior to the
expiration of such thirty (30) days to protect their interests.

Section 10.2  Remedies on Default. Whenever any Event of Default has occurred and is
continuing and subject to Section 10.3 hereof, the Finance Authority or the Trustee may take any
or all of the following actions as may appear necessary or desirable to collect the payments then
due and to become due or to enforce performance of any agreement of the Governmental Unit in
this Loan Agreement or the Intercept Agreement: '

(a) By mandamus or other action or proceeding or suit at law or in equity to
enforce the rights of the Finance Authority and the Trustee under this Loan Agreement and the
Intercept Agreement against the Governmental Unit, and compel the Governmental Unit fo
perform or carry out its duties under the law and the agreements and covenants required to be
performed by it contained herein; or

) By suit in equity to enjoin any acts or things which are unlawful or violate
the rights of the Finance Authority or the Trustee; or

(c) Intervene in judicial proceedings that affect this Loan Agreement or the
Pledged Revenues; ot

(d) Cause the Governmental Unit to account as if it were the trustee of an
express trust for all of the Pledged Revenues; or '

(e}  Take whatever other action at law or in equity may appear necessary or
desirable to collect amounts then due and thereafter to become due under this Loan Agreement
or to enforce any other of its rights thereunder; or

{(f) Apply any amounts in the Program Account toward satisfaction of any of
the obligations of the Governmental Unit under this Loan Agreement.

Loan Agreement 22
Cibola County, Loan No, PPRF-5708



Section 10.3  Limitations on Remedics, A judgment requiring a payment of money
entered against the Governmental Unit may reach only the available Pledged Revenues.

Section 10.4  No Remedy Exclusive. Subject to Section 10.3 hereof, no remedy herein
conferred upon or reserved to the Finance Authority or the Trustes is intended to be exclusive,
and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shail be in addition to every other remedy given
‘hereunder ag now or hereafter existing at law or in equity. No delay or omission to exercise any
right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or shall be
construed to be a waiver thereof, but any such right and power may be exercised from time to
time and as often as may be deemed expedient. In order to entitle the Finance Authority or the
Trustee to exercise any remedy reserved in this Article X, it shall not be necessary to give any
notice, other than such notice as may be required in this Article X,

Section 10.5  Waivers of Bvents of Default. The Finance Authority or the Trustee may
in its discretion waive by written waiver any Bvent of Defayit hereunder and the consequences
of such an Event of Default provided, however, that there shall not be waived: (1) any Event of
Default in the payment of the principal of this Loan Agreement at the date when due as specified
herein; or (ii) any default in the payment when due of the interest on this Loan Agreement,
unless prior to such waiver or rescission, all arrears of interest, with interest at the rate borne by
this Loan Agreement on all arrears of payments of principal and all expenses of ‘the Finance
Authority or the Trustee, in connection with such Bvent of Default shall have been paid or
provided for, and in case of any such waiver or rescission, or in case any proceeding taken by the
Finance Authority or the Trustee on account of any such Bvent of Default shall have been
discontinued or abandoned or determined adversely, then and in every such case, the Finance
Authority and the Trustee shall be restored fo their former positions and rights hereunder,
respectively, but no such waiver or rescission shall extend to any subsequent or other Event of
Default, or impair any right consequent thereon. -

~ Section 10.6  No Additional Waijver Implied by One Waiver. In the event that any
agreement contained herein should be breached by either party and thereafter waived by the
other party, such waiver shall be in writing and limited to the particular breach so waived and
shall not be deemed to waive any other breach hereunder,

Section 10.7  Agreement to Pay Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses. In the event that the
Governmental Unit shall default under any of the provisions hereof and the Finance Authority or
the Trustee shall employ attorneys or incur other expenses for the collection of payments
hereunder, or the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or agreement on
the part of the Governmental Unit herein contained, the Governmental Unit agrees that it shall on
demand therefor pay to the Finance Authority or the Trustee, as applicable, the fees of such
attorneys ‘and such other expenses so incurred, to the extent that such attorneys’ fees and
expenses may be determined to be reasonable by a court of competent Jurisdiction; provided,
however, that the obligation of the Governmental Unit under this Section shall be limited to
expenditures from and to the extent of the available Pledged Revenues.

Loan Agreement 23
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



ARTICLE XI
MISCELLANEOUS

Section 11,1 Notices. All notices, certificates or other communications hereunder shall
be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given when delivered as follows: if to the
Governmental Unit, 700 East Roosevelt, Suvite 50, Grants, New Mexico 87020, Attention:
County Clerk; if to the Finance Authority, New Mexico Finance Authority, 207 Shelby Street,
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87501, Attention: Chief Executive Officer; and if to the Trustee, BOKF,
NA, 100 Sun Avenue NE, Suite 500, Albuquerque, New Mexico 87109, Attention: Trust
Division. The Governmental Unit, the Finance Authority, and the Trustee may, by notice given
hereunder, designate any further or different addresses to which subsequent notices, certificates
or other communications shall be sent.

Section 11.2  Binding Effect, This Loan Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and
shall be binding upon the Finance Authority, the Governmental Unit and their respective
successors and assigns, if any.

Section 11.3  Amendments. The Governmental Unit agrees that this Loan Agreement
will not be amended without the prior written consent of the Finance Authority, and, if the Loan
has been pledged under the Indenture (as defined herein), without the prior written consent of the
Trustee (as defined herein), the Finance Authority and the Governmental Unit, pursuant to the
Indenture.

Section 11.4  No_Liability of Individual Officers, Directors or Trustees. No recourse
under or upon any obligation, covenant or agreement contained in this Loan Agreement shall be
had against any member, employee, director or officer, as such, past, present or future, of the
Finance Authority, either directly or through the Finance Authority, or against any officer,
employee, director, trustee or member of the Governing Body, past, present or future, as an
individual so long as such individual was acting in good faith. Any and all personal liability of
every nature, whether at common law or in equity, or by statute or by constitution or otherwise,
of any such officer, employee, director, trustee or member of the Governing Body or of the
Finance Authority is hereby expressly waived and released by the Governmental Unit and by the

Finance Authority as a condition of and in consideration for the execution of this Loan
Agreement,

Section 11.5  Severability. In the event that any provision of this Loan Agreement,
other than the requirement of the Governmental Unit to pay hereunder, shall be held invalid or
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render
unenforceable any other provision hereof.

Section 11.6  Execution in Counterparts. This Loan Agreement may be simultaneously
executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall
constitute but one and the same instrument.

Section 11.7  Assignment by the Finance Authority. Pursuant to the Indenture, this
Loan Agreement and the Intercept Agreement may be assigned and transferred by the Finance

Loan Agreement 24
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



Authority to the Trustee, which assignment and transfer is hereby acknowledged and approved
by the Governmental Unit.

Section 11.8  Compliance with Governing Law. It is hereby declared by the Governing
Body that it is the intention of the Governmental Unit by the execution of this Loan Agreement
to comply in all respects with the provisions of the New Mexico Constitution and statutes as the
same govern the pledge of the Pledged Revenues to payment of all amounts payable under this
Loan Agreement.

Section 11.9  Applicable Law. This Loan Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State.

Section 11.10 Captions. The captions or headings herein are for convenience only and in
no way ‘define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provisions or sections of this Loan
Agreement.

(Signature pages follow)

Loan Agreement 25
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRE-5708



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Finance Authority, on behalf of itself, and as approved by
the Board of Directors of the Finance Authority on December 16, 2021, has executed this Loan
Agreement in its corporate name by its duly authorized officer; and the Governmental Unit has
caused this Loan Agreement to be executed in its corporate name and the seal of the
Governmental Unit affixed and attested by its duly authorized officers. All of the above are
effective as of the date first above written.

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

By:

Marquita D, Russel, Chief Executive Officer

PREPARED FOR EXECUTION BY OFFICERS
OF THE NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY:
Sutin, Thayer & Browne A Professional Corporation
As Loan Counsel

By:

Suzanne Wood Bruckner

APPROVED FOR EXECUTION BY OFFICERS OF
THE NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY:

By:
Daniel C. Opperman
Chief Legal Officer
. Loan Agreement S-1

Cibola County, Loan No. PPRIF-5708



CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

By:
Daniel J. Torrez, Chairman
[SEAL]
ATTEST:
By:
Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk
6172603
Loan Agreement S-2

Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



EXHIBIT “A”

TERM SHEET

New Mexico Finance Authority Loan No. PPRF-5708

Governmental Unit:

Project Description:

Loan Agreement
Principal Amount;

Disadvantaged Funding Amount:

Pledged Revenues:

Coverage Ratio:
Distributing State Agency:
Authorizing Legislation:
Closing Date:

Blended Interest Rate:
Program Account Deposit:

Loan Agreement Reserve
Account Deposit:

Finance Authority Debt Service
Account Deposit:

First Interest Payment Date:
First Principal Payment Date:

Final Payment Date:

Loan Agreement
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708

Cibola County, New Mexico
To purchase and install an HVAC system in the

Governmental Unit’s administration building for use by the
Governmental Unit.

$1,777,778
$177,778

The revenues of the one-eighth of one percent (0.125%) of
County Local Option Gross Receipts Tax enforceable
under Section 7-20E-9, NMSA 1978, as amended, and
Ordinance No. 88-3 approved by the Governmental Unit on
August 4, 1988 as amended by Ordinance 02-03, approved
by the Governmental Unit on July 22, 2002.

125%

State of New Mexit;o Taxation and Revenue Department
Ordinance No.  adopted on Februafy 24,2022
April 8, 2022

1.460301%

$1,600,000
$177,777.80

$0.20

May 1, 2022

 May 1, 2022

May 1, 2031

A-]



PROGRAM ACCOUN'T DEPOSITS MUST BE USED WITHIN THREE YEARS UNLESS A
LATER DATE IS APPROVED IN WRITING TO THE TRUSTEE AND THE FINANCE
- AUTHORITY BY BOND COUNSEL TO THE FINANCE AUTHORITY

Loan Agreement A2
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



EXHIBIT “B”
DEBT SERVICE SCHEDULE FOR LOAN REPAYMENT

[SEE ATTACHED]

Loan Agreement B-1
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



EXHIBIT “C”

FORM OF REQUISITION

RE:  $1,777,778 Loan Agreement by and between Cibola County, New Mexico, and the New
Mexico Finance Authority (the “Loan Agreement”).

TO: BOKF, NA
¢/0 New Mexico Finance Authority
PPRFE@nmifa.net

You are hereby authorized to disburse from the Program Account — Cibola County, New Mexico

(2022 Building HVAC Loan), with regard to the above-referenced Loan Agreement the
following:

LOAN NO.: PPRF-5708 - CLOSING DATE: April 8, 2022

REQUISITION NUMBER:

NAME AND ADDRESS OF PAYEE:

AMOUNT OF PAYMENT: $

PURPOSE OF PAYMENT;

Each obligation, item of cost or expense mentioned herein is for costs of the Project, is due and
payable, has not been the subject of any previous requisition and is a proper charge against the
Program Account -- Cibola County, New Mexico (2022 Building HVAC Loan).

All representations contained in the Loan Agreement and the related closing documents remain
true and correct and Cibola County, New Mexico, is not in breach of any of the covenants
contained therein.

If this is the final requisition, payment of costs of the Project is complete or, if not complete,
Cibola County, New Mexico, shall, and understands its obligation to, complete the acquisition of
the Project from other legally available funds.

Capitalized terms used herein, are used as defined or used in the Loan Agreement.

DATED: By:
Authorized Officer of Borrower
Title:
Print Name and Title
Loan Agreement C-1

Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



EXHIBIT “D”

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION

RE:  $1,777,778 Loan Agreement by and between Cibola County, New Mexico, and the New
Mexico Finance Authority (the “Loan Agreement”).

TO:  New Mexico Finance Authority
PPREF@nmia.net

Susen Ellis

Vice President, Corporate Trust
BOKF, NA

100 Sun Avenue NE, Suite 500
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87109

LOAN NO.: PPRF-5708 CLOSING DATE: April 8, 2022

In accordance with Section 6.3 of the Loan Agreement, the undersigned states, to the best of his
or her knowledge, that the acquisition of the Project has been completed and accepted by the
Governmental Unit, and all costs have been paid as of the date of this Certificate.
‘Notwithstanding the foregoing; this certification is given without prejudice to any rights against
third parties which exist at the date of this Certificate or which may subsequently come into
being.

Capitalized terms used herein, are used as defined or used in the Loan Agreement.

DATED: Byv:
Authorized Officer of Governmental Unit
Title:
Print Name and Title
Loan Agreement D-1

Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708






EXHIBIT “B”

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY TAX REPRESENTATIONS CERTIFICATEI

The undersigned hereby certifies as follows with respect to the $1,777,778 Loan
Agreement dated April 8, 2022 (the “Loan”) from the New Mexico Finance Authority (the
“Finance Authority”) to Cibola County, New Mexico (the “Governmental Unit”);

1. The Finance Authority is making the Loan for its own account (and not on behalf
of another) in the principal amount of $1,777,778, without accrued interest. The Finance Authority
is not acting as an Underwriter with respect to the Loan, The Finance Authority has no present
intention to sell, reoffer, or otherwise dispose of the Loan (or any portion of the Loan or any interest
in the Loan). The Finance Authority has not contracted with any person pursuant to a written
agreement to have such person participate in the initial sale of the Loan and the Finance Authority
has not agreed with the Governmental Unit pursuant to a written agreement to sell the Loan to
persons other than the Finance Authority, therefore the “issue price” of the Loan is $1,777,778.

2. The Arbitrage Yield on the Loan, calculated in accordance with the applicable U.S.
Treasury Regulations from interest to be paid on the Loan, is 1.4628%.

3. Funding the Loan Agreement Reserve Account with proceeds of the Loan in the
amount of $177,777.80 was required by the Finance Authority as a condition of making the Loan,
and is, in the best judgment of the undersigned, reasonably required to provide the Loan at a
reasonable interest rate for the Governmental Unit and is, in the best judgment of the undersigned,
established at a level of funding comparable to that found for obligations of similar credit quality
as the Loan which were issued or originated within the past year.

4. The Weighted Average Maturity of the Loan, calculated in accordance with the
applicable U.S. Treasury Regulations, is 5.152 years.

5. The undersigned understands that the statements made herein will be relied upon
by the Governmental Unit in its effort to complete the Information Return for Tax-Exempt
Governmental Obligations (Form 8038-G), required to be filed for the Loan pursuant to the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and with regard to establishing facts and
circumstances relied on by the Governmental Unit and bond counsel in connection with the
execution and delivery of the Loan and the exclusion of interest on the Loan from gross income
for federal income tax purposes. Such reliance is hereby authorized and approved.

Dated this 8% day of April, 2022.

NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY

By:

Marquita D. Russel, Chief Executive Officer
6172649 )






6172642

$1,777,778
CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY
PUBLIC PROJECT REVOLVING FUND LOAN
Loan No. PPRE-5708

Closing Date: April 8, 2022

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

INDEX
Open Meeting Act Resolution No. adopted | 20
Loan Ordinance No. , adopted February 24, 2022, Agenda, and the Affidavits of

Publication of the Notice of Intent to Adopt Ordinance and the Notice of Adoption of
Ordinance in the Cibola Citizen

Loan Agreement
Intercept Agreement
General and No Litigation Certificate

Arbitrage and Tax Certificate with Form 8038-G and evidence of filing and Finance
Authority Tax Representations Certificate

Delivery, Deposit and Cross-Receipt Certificate

Approving Opinion of Sutin, Thayer & Browne A Professional Corporation, Loan Counsel
to the Finance Authority

Finance Authority Application and Project Approval (informational only)

TRANSCRIPT DISTRIBUTION LIST

Cibola County, New Mexico
New Mexico Finance Authority
BOKF, NA
Sutin, Thayer & Browne A Professional Corporation






CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
RESOLUTION NO.

DECLARING THE INTENT OF .THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS OF CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO (THE “COUNTY™)
TO CONSIDER FOR ADOPTION AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A LOAN AGREEMENT AND INTERCEPT
AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE COUNTY AND THE NEW MEXICO
FINANCE AUTHORITY, EVIDENCING A SPECIAL LIMITED OBLIGATION
OF THE COUNTY TO PAY A PRINCIPAL. AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$1,777,778, TOGETHER WITH INTEREST THEREON, FOR THE PURPOSE
OF FINANCING THE COSTS OF PURCHASING AND INSTALLING AN
HVAC SYSTEM IN THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING
LOCATED IN GRANTS, NEW MEXICO AND TO FUND A LOAN
AGREEMENT RESERVE ACCOUNT; PROVIDING FOR THE PLEDGE AND
PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF, AND INTEREST DUE UNDER THE
LOAN AGREEMENT SOLELY FROM THE DISTRIBUTION OF A ONE-
EIGHTH OF ONE PERCENT INCREMENT OF COUNTY LOCAL OPTION
GROSS RECEIPTS TAX; AND AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE
PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF MEETING TO CONSIDER FINAL
PASSAGE OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE LOAN AGREEMENT
AND INTERCEPT AGREEMENT IN A NEWSPAPER OF GENERAL
CIRCULATION WITHIN THE COUNTY.

WHEREAS, Sections 4-62-1 through 4-62-10, NMSA 1978 (the “Act”), authorize New
Mexico counties to issue gross receipts tax revenue bonds which, pursuant to the Act, may include
loan agreements; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the County may secure its gross receipts tax revenue
bonds with the revenues of a one-cighth of one percent (0.125%) increment of County Local
Option Gross Receipts Tax originally imposed by Ordinance No. 88-3 adopted on August 4, 1988
pursuant to Section 7-20E-9, NMSA 1978, as amended, which Ordinance has been amended by
Ordinance No. 02-03 adopted on July 22, 2002; and

WHEREAS, the County desires to consider for adoption an ordinance authorizing, in
accordance with the Act (the “Ordinance”), the execution and delivery of a Loan Agreement and
an Intercept Agreement by and between the Finance Authority and the County in a principal
amount of up to $1,777,778; and

WHEREAS, Section 4-37-7, NMSA 1978, requires that publication of the title and general
summary of the subject matter of any proposed ordinance be made in a newspaper of general
circulation within the County at least two weeks prior to the meeting of the Board of County
Commissioners at which the ordinance is proposed for final passage.

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, THE -
GOVERNING BODY OF CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO:



Section 1, All action (not inconsistent with the provisions hereof) heretofore taken by
the Board of County Commissioners of Cibola, County and the officers thereof directed toward the
authorization, execution and delivery of the Loan Agreement and Intercept Agreement for such
purposes, be and the same is hereby ratified, approved and confirmed.

Section 2. The publication, in accordance with Section 4-37-7, NMSA 1978, as
amended, in the Cibola Citizen, a newspaper of general circulation within the County, of the
following Notice at least two weeks prior to the meeting at which the Board of County
Commissioners will consider the Ordinance, is hereby authorized,

[£orm of Notice for Publication)

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
NOTICE OF MEETING AND INTENT TO ADOPT ORDINANCE

Cibola County, New Mexico, hereby gives notice of a repular Board of County -
Commissioners meeting for Thursday, February 24, 2022 at 5:00 p.m., in the Cibola County
Commission Chamber Room, located at 700 East Roosevelt Avenue, Grants, New Mexico. At
such meeting the Board of County Commissioners will hold a public hearing concerning and will
consider for adoption the Ordinance described below. Complete copies of the proposed Ordinance
are available for public inspection during the normal and regular business hours of the County
Clerk, 700 East Roosevelt Avenue, Grants, New Mexico.

The title of the proposed Ordinance is:

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO
ORDINANCE

AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A LOAN
AGREEMENT AND INTERCEPT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN
CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO (THE “GOVERNMENTAL UNIT™) AND
THE NEW MEXICO FINANCE AUTHORITY (THE “FINANCE
AUTHORITY”), EVIDENCING A SPECIAL, LIMITED OBLIGATION OF THE
GOVERNMENTAL UNIT TO PAY A PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $1,777,778
TOGETHER WITH INTEREST THEREON, FOR THE PURPOSE OF
PURCHASING AND INSTALLING AN HVAC SYSTEM IN THE COUNTY
ADMINISTRATION BUILDING LOCATED IN GRANTS, NEW MEXICO
AND FUNDING A LOAN AGREEMENT RESERVE ACCOUNT; PROVIDING
FOR THE PLEDGE AND PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST
DUE UNDER THE LOAN AGREEMENT SOLELY FROM ONE-EIGHTH OF
ONE PERCENT OF COUNTY LOCAL OPTION GROSS RECEIPTS TAX
IMPOSED PURSUANT TO SECTION 7-20E-9, NMSA 1978, AND
DISTRIBUTED TO THE GOVERNMENTAL UNIT BY THE STATE
TAXATION AND REVENUE DEPARTMENT; PROVIDING FOR THE
DISTRIBUTION TO BE REDIRECTED BY THE STATE TAXATION AND
REVENUE DEPARTMENT TO THE FINANCE AUTHORITY OR ITS
ASSIGNS FOR THE PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST DUE ON

Resolution 2
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



and shall evidence a special, limited obli

THE LOAN AGREEMENT PURSUANT TO AN INTERCEPT AGREEMENT;
APPROVING THE FORM AND TERMS OF , AND OTHER DETAILS
CONCERNING THE LOAN AGREEMENT AND INTERCEPT AGREEMENT;
SETTING THE MAXIMUM INTEREST RATE OF THE LOAN; RATIFYING
ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN; REPEALING ALI, ACTION
INCONSISTENT WITH THIS ORDINANCE; AND AUTHORIZING THE
TAKING OF OTHER ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH THE EXECUTION
AND DELIVERY OF THE LOAN AGREEMENT AND INTERCEPT
AGREEMENT.

A general summary of the subject matter of the Ordinance is contained in its title.

This Notice constitutes compliance with Section 4-37-7, NMSA 197 8, as amended.

Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk
Cibola County, New Mexico

[End of Form of Notice for Publication)

Section 3. The Loan Agreement provides a principal loan amount of up to $1,777,778,

due under the Loan Agreement,

gation to pay its principal amount, together with interest

Section 4. The Ordinance shall be filed with the County Clerk, and shall be considered

by the County at a regular meeting of the County on Thursday, February 24, 2022 at 5:00 p.m., or
as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard, in the Cibola County Comumission

700 East Roosevelt Avenue, Grants, New Mexico.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank)

[Signature page follows]

Resolution 3
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708

Chamber Room,



PASSED AND ADOPTED this 27" day of January, 2022.

CIBOLA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

By:
Daniel J. Torrez, Chairman
- Board of County Commissioners
[SEAL]
ATTEST:
By:
Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk
Resolution 4

Cibola County, Loan Ne. PPRF-5708



STATE OF NEW MEXICO )
) ss.
COUNTY OF CIBOLA )

I, Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk of Cibola County, New Mexico, do hereby certify:

1. The foregoing pages are a true, correct and complete copy of the record of the
proceedings of the Board of County Commissioners (the "Board") of the County, constituting the
governing board of the County, had and taken at a duly called regular, open meeting of the Board
held in the County Commission Chamber Room, 700 East Roosevelt Avenue, Grants, New
Mexico, being the regular meeting place of the Board on J anuary 27, 2022 beginning at 5:00 p.m.,
insofar as the same relate to the publication of the title and general summary of a proposed
ordinance, a copy of which is set forth in the official records of the proceedings of the County kept
in my office. None of the action taken has been rescinded, repealed, or modified,

2. Said proceedings were duly had and taken as therein shown, the meeting thereon
was duly held, and the persons therein named were present at said meeting as therein shown.

3. Notice of said meeting was given in compliance with the permitted methods of
giving notice of meetings of the Board as required by the open meetings standards then in effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and the seal of said County of
Cibola, New Mexico, this 27" day of January, 2022.

Michelle Dominguez, County Clerk
[SEAL]

6170153

Resolution 5
Cibola County, Loan No. PPRF-5708



